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GrowinG

protecting yield is key as farmers work to meet our world’s growing food, 
feed, fiber, and fuel needs. Monsanto’s research helps farmers get more out 
of each seed, enabling them to do more with less. Hundreds of thousands 
of farmers throughout the world, including those below, are increasingly 
using Monsanto’s innovative products to increase their on-farm yields and to 
realize more value with each harvest. this growing adoption has contributed 
to a fourth consecutive year of record sales for our business allowing us to, 
in turn, deliver value to our shareowners.     

Monsanto CoMpany

800 north lindbergh Boulevard 
St. louis, Missouri 63167, u.S.a.

 
 
 
www.monsanto.com 

DeliverinG essential tools  
to Support GloBal aGriculture 
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growing oppoRtunities

More and more farmers throughout the  
world are using Monsanto’s seed and  
trait products to increase yields on their farms.  
the strong adoption of our seed products  
and growing acceptance of our biotechnology 
traits position Monsanto for expanded growth 
across its crop portfolio. turn to page 7 to  
learn more about the growing opportunities  
in Monsanto’s seeds and traits business. 
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growing innoVAtion

A growing population, finite resources  
and evolving consumer demands require 
Monsanto to relentlessly discover and  
deliver new products for farmers. our work  
in research and development (R&D) has us 
poised to deliver a new wave of breakthrough 
technologies to farmers well into the next 
decade. turn to page 15 to learn more  
about how Monsanto’s growing innovation  
is translating into R&D results from discovery 
to the field. 
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DEAr SHArEownErS,

By every measure, our 2007 fiscal  
year was an extraordinary year.  
we achieved record results, completed 
several strategic acquisitions, delivered 
the largest dividend increase in our 
history, and initiated several new 
collaborations. These achievements 
establish a strong foundation for 
continued earnings growth. 

this was also a year where our focus  
on satisfying our customers was evident. 
We delivered products that yielded real 
value for farmers and we returned real 
value to our shareowners. 

Among our focus crops – corn, cotton, 
oilseeds and vegetables – we have strong 
balance and potential for new growth. 
our portfolio balance, combined with the 
global nature of our business, insulates us 
from the natural cyclicality of agriculture. 
And, as importantly, we believe our 
investment in new technologies  
anticipates where agriculture is heading. 

to support our world’s growing food, 
feed, fiber, and fuel needs, we remain 
focused on increasing the yield potential 
of seeds while also delivering valuable 
technologies that can protect or enhance 
each season’s harvest. this approach 
puts us on a path to meet the key 
demands facing agriculture. We believe  
it also provides us with a competitive 
advantage, where we can expand the 
growth opportunities through continued 
industry leadership.

Backed by the growing demand for our 
seed and trait products, our business is 
poised for significant growth between 
now and the end of 2012. We believe  
we can effectively double our gross  
profit with the businesses we have today.  
 
 
 

this growth is expected to result in an 
ongoing earnings per share (eps) growth 
rate in the mid-to-high teens over the 
next five years.

As underscored in our report to you last 
year, our near-term growth will continue 
to be driven by six key factors. these 
factors now include: our u.s. and 
international corn business; our soybean 
business; our cotton business; our 
seminis business; and our research  
and development (R&D) pipeline.

We’ve structured this year’s report in a 
way that will allow you to gain a better 
understanding of these opportunities 
while also tying these growth drivers  
back to the growing value we’re providing 
to our farmer customers, and to you,  
our shareowners. We hope this approach 
provides you with a valuable guide to  
our business and its potential.

Growing Value for our  
Farmer Customers

Around the world, from the united states 
to europe to india, millions of farmers 
rewarded our company for the intrinsic 
value that our products are bringing to 
their farms and their lives. their support 
of our business is both a testament to the 
potential of our portfolio today, and to the 
investment we’re making for their future. 
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Years ended Aug. 31 
(in millions, except per share amounts)  2005  2006  2007 % Change

operating Results       
2006 - 2007

net sales  $ 6,275  $ 7,294  $ 8,563  17%

eBit(1)  $  347  $ 1,095  $ 1,376  26%

net income  $  255  $ 689  $  993  44%

Diluted earnings per share(2)  $  0.47  $ 1.25 $  1.79  43%

other selected Data

�ree Cash �low(3)  $  70  $ 1,049  $ (57)  nM

Capital expenditures  $  281  $ 370  $  509  38%

Depreciation and Amortization  $  488  $  519  $  527  2%

Diluted shares outstanding(2)   545.3   551.6   555.0  nM
see page 22 for footnotes 1-3 on pages 2 and 3.  
nM = not meaningful

Agriculture is a complex business, but  
we remain focused on the simplicity of 
serving farmers and delivering increases 
in yield. our focus is paying off.

our results this year were largely  
driven by our seeds and traits business, 
specifically our global corn business. 
strong adoption of our corn seed and  
trait products propelled us to record sales 
results for a fourth consecutive year. 
Backed by this strong adoption, we 
delivered ongoing eps of $2.00 for  
fiscal year 2007. this is an increase of  
54 percent compared with fiscal year 
2006 results, and marks our third 
consecutive year of 25-percent-plus 
ongoing eps growth. this has simply 
been a remarkable period for expansion 
of our seeds and traits franchise. the 
yield and quality of the products delivered 
by our people resulted in greater demand 
for our products. 

equally impressive, we saw sales of  
our corn seed and traits business rise 
to $2.8 billion, a more than $1 billion 
increase over the previous year. �armers 
increasingly chose Monsanto-bred corn 
genetics, as we saw strong share gains 
around the world in our corn seed 
business. We realized share growth  
in all key corn-growing regions except 
Brazil in 2007 (see chart at right).

today, Monsanto researchers are actively 
applying the power of our breeding 
program across all of our crop platforms. 
simply put, farmers select performance 
and yield, and that’s what we’re focused 
on delivering. 

the growth in our global corn seed 
business serves as the backdrop for  
the emergence of our traits business 
internationally. We saw strong adoption 
of our trait technologies in key markets 
including the united states, Brazil, india, 
and even the european union. Global use 
of Monsanto traits increased 13 percent 
to more than 246 million acres in 2007. 
By 2010, we believe the penetration of 
our traits outside the united states could 
be nearly three times what it was in 2007. 

this year, we were granted key  
regulatory approvals which will pave the 
way for our first-generation corn products 
in Brazil and Argentina, as well as our first 
High-impact technology (Hit) project, 
Roundup RReady2Yield soybeans, in the 
united states. the news out of latin 
America is encouraging and underscores 
the long-awaited opportunity in these 
markets. these approvals pave the way 
for new growth opportunities for our 
business leading up to the turn of the 
decade and beyond. 

in addition to these approvals, this year 
we continued to lay a strong foundation 
for meaningful collaborations. these 
collaborations offer us a way to both 
accelerate and broaden our pipeline.  
it’s a new path and while it’s still early 
days, we believe these new  
opportunities are important for future 
growth and, more importantly, we believe 
they further reinforce that Monsanto is a 
preferred partner of choice for innovation 
in agriculture. 

�or example, our collaborations with 
BAs� and Dow Agrosciences llC  
are focused on both discovering and  
delivering new innovative products to  
the farm through our pipeline and 
marketing efforts. We’re excited about 
the potential of these collaborations as 
well as our multiple collaborations with 
large and small technology companies.

Financial 
Highlights

in the 2007 fiscal 
year, Monsanto 
realized record  
sales for a fourth 
consecutive year. 

This year, Monsanto 
also completed 
several strategic 
acquisitions and 
rewarded our  
shareowners with 
the largest dividend 
increase in the 
company’s history.

seeding Corn Growth Globally(1)

 u.s.  19% 23% +4

 eu27 12% 13% +1

 Brazil 34% 30% -4

 Argentina 35% 40% +5

 india 35% 39% +4

(1) share is for sales of hybrid corn seed only.
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Growing Value for our shareowners

While we continue to work hard to earn 
the farmer’s business each and every 
season, we remain focused on delivering 
on the commitments we make to our 
shareowners. We’re focused on 
continuing to earn your trust and  
investment in our company. 

this year, a substantial portion of our  
free cash was used to finance strategic 
acquisitions including Delta and pine 
land, one of the world’s leading cotton 
seed companies, as well as several 
acquisitions that will bolster our  
American seeds inc. family of u.s. 
regional seed brands. 

in 2007, we also completed several 
international acquisitions. our acquisition 
of Agroeste in Brazil should support our 
ability to breed a better seed product for  
a key corn-growing region, while our 
investment in the international seeds 
Group is expected to bolster our fruits-
and-vegetables portfolio. 

in addition to these acquisitions, we 
committed up to $610 million through 
2009 in capital expenditures in our u.s. 
corn manufacturing facilities. this 
investment will help us meet the 
anticipated demand for our higher-yielding 
corn seed products. And we’ll continue  
to make major investments in our R&D 
program including investing approximately 
10 percent of our annual sales into R&D  

in fiscal year 2008. these investments  
are an important part of preserving and 
extending our innovative leadership in 
agriculture. they are also an indication  
of our commitment and confidence to 
future growth. 

At the same time, we continue to actively 
return value to shareowners via dividends 
and share repurchases. 

in 2007, we returned approximately  
$258 million in cash to shareowners 
through dividends. We also raised the 
dividend twice this year including by  
25 percent in December and by  
40 percent in August. our August 
dividend approval represents the largest  
increase in the history of our company. 
Additionally, we continue to repurchase 
shares. to date, we’ve repurchased  
$311 million in shares through the first  
22 months of our current four-year,  
$800 million repurchase program.

By the end of 2012, we believe the free 
cash flow generation of our business, 
exclusive of acquisitions, will be in the 
range of $2 billion to $2.2 billion. We plan 
to continue to use this free cash to 
repurchase shares, and, as we have 
historically, we’ll continue to review the 
return of free cash to shareowners 
through dividends. this growth in free 
cash would also give us greater flexibility 
for strategic acquisitions and technology 
investments for future growth. 

Focused on the Future

By all accounts, this was one of the most 
exciting years of my tenure, but i realize 
that we have a lot left to achieve. 
performance in agriculture is judged one 
year at a time. our current business, 
combined with our promising pipeline,  
is poised to deliver valuable new  
innovations that can help support our 
world’s growing food, feed, fiber and  
fuel needs. this is more than just an 
aspiration; it is a commitment that 
Monsanto employees around the world 
work hard to deliver every day. We are 
focused on growing value for farmers  
and growing value for our shareowners. 

on behalf of every one of us at Monsanto, 
thank you for your investment in our 
company, and for your commitment  
to agriculture and its future. 

 

Hugh grant 
Chairman, president and  
Chief executive officer

oct. 26, 2007
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Backed by higher sales of  
our seed and trait products,  
Monsanto realized record  

net sales in 2007. 

Higher spending on  
strategic acquisitions and  

higher net income resulted in  
a use of free cash in 2007.

in 2007, Monsanto realized  
a greater than 25 percent  

increase in ongoing eps for  
a third consecutive year.

net sales
(in billions of dollars for years  

ended Aug. 31)

Free Cash Flow(3)

(in billions of dollars for years  

ended Aug. 31)

Earnings Per share(2)

 As Reported  ongoing  

(in dollars for years ended Aug. 31)
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MonsAnto AT A gLAnCE

unDERstAnDInG ouR busInEss

biotechnology traits — Monsanto was one of the first 
companies to commercialize biotechnology traits in the 
mid-1990s.

since then, Monsanto has continued its first-mover  
advantage. We were the first company to launch stacked 
traits and second-generation traits.

breeding better seed — Monsanto combines its  
global library of seed germplasm with advanced breeding 
technology to develop and deliver higher-yielding seeds  
to farmers.

Channels to Market — Monsanto offers three  
commercial channels to market – national seed brands, 
regional seed brands, and a broad licensing business.

Commercial Complements — Roundup, the world’s  
best-selling herbicide brand, uniquely complements our  
seeds and traits platform.

Financial Performance — our high-margin technology  
business generates sustainable free cash flow.

sales by business segment
(by percent)

Gross Profit by business segment
(by percent)

WE ARE An AGRICultuRE CoMPAny
Monsanto is the world’s leading agriculture company focused on seeds and traits. we focus on the farm. we discover 
and deliver innovative products that support the farmers who feed, fuel and clothe our growing world. Farmers 
around the world use our products to address the challenges they face on the farm and to reduce agriculture’s impact 
on our environment. To support our farmer customers, we deliver our innovative products through two distinct  
business segments: Seeds and genomics, and Agricultural productivity. These segments serve as the foundation  
for our leading brands of seeds and traits, as well as our widely used agricultural herbicide products. 

 seeds and Genomics 

our seeds and Genomics segment consists of our seeds and traits business.  
We sell seed products through our leading brands like DEKALB, Asgrow,  
Deltapine and Seminis. We also sell trait technologies for weed control  
and insect protection. our business broadly licenses our seed and trait  
technologies so farmers have access to our products in the brands they prefer. 

 Agricultural Productivity 

our Agricultural productivity segment consists primarily of crop protection 
products, residential lawn-and-garden herbicide products, and our dairy business. 
Roundup agricultural herbicides are the flagship of Monsanto’s agricultural 
chemicals business, and Posilac is a proven tool for increasing dairy cow milk 
production and profitability. these products complement our seed business  
and play a vital role in improving productivity for farmers. 

� Monsanto Company 2007 Annual report



bREEDInG

bIotECHnoloGy

breeding

our research in plant breeding 
strives to add value to crops like 
corn, cotton and soybeans as  
well as fruits and vegetables. 
Monsanto uses breeding tech-
niques and technology tools such 
as genomics, crop analytics, and 
marker-assisted breeding (MAB)  
to unlock the yield potential within 
seeds. this ensures that farmers 
have a strong foundation to start 
each growing season.

gEnETiC poTEnTiAL 
Inherent yield possible from the seed

pErCEnT oF gEnETiC gAin prESErvED 
Amount of yield potential protected

BrEEDing FACTS

our leading seed genetics library 
allows us to tailor the development  
of our seed offerings to the challenges 
faced in a specific world region. 

Tens of millions of critical data points 
generated by our breeders this year 
pave the way for enhancements across 
our crop platforms. 

BrEEDing EnHAnCEMEnTS

our plant breeders use marker-assisted 
breeding to effectively double the  
rate of genetic gain compared with 
traditional breeding methods. we’re 
applying these techniques to develop 
higher-yielding seeds across our 
portfolio. we believe these new 
offerings will contribute to additional 
share gains for our seed brands 
through 2012.

BioTECHnoLogY FACTS

over the past 12 years, Monsanto’s 
r&D pipeline has produced 18 
commercial products, including  
both first- and second-generation 
technologies.

in 2007, Monsanto’s biotechnology 
program tested more genes than in 
any other year in our history. 

TrAiTS UnDEr DEvELopMEnT

we’re working on a wide range of 
new technologies that will both 
drive our long-term growth and play 
an important role in meeting the 
world’s growing demand for food, 
feed and fuel. 

biotechnology

our research in plant biotech-
nology aims to protect or enhance 
the yield opportunity of each 
season’s harvest. through 
biotechnology, we incorporate 
novel traits like insect protection 
and weed control in seed  
offerings, and we stack those 
technologies so farmers can  
get more benefit out of a single 
seed. in our R&D pipeline, we’re 
working on new traits to expand 
the benefits offered today.

GRoWInG yIElD  
Agriculture will play an increasingly important role in addressing the challenges our world faces — meeting the  
food and feed demands of a growing population, trying to produce more yield on each acre, as well as working to 
meet the needs for emerging trends like biofuels and healthier diets. increasingly, farmers are turning to something  
as simple as a seed to support these demands. Monsanto’s work in breeding higher-yielding seeds and developing 
trait technologies that better protect yield offers farmers a sustainable way to do more with less.

Monsanto at a glance �

yIElD



Craig and Gene  
stehly use Monsanto’s 
Asgrow brand of 
Roundup Ready 
soybeans to manage 
weeds and protect 
yield on their family 
farm in south Dakota.

the stehly brothers 
look forward to the 
introduction of 
Roundup RReady2Yield 
soybeans and the 
higher yield opportunity 
on each acre.

Redefining the Value opportunity of soybeans 

�armers such as Gene stehly of Mitchell, south Dakota,  
are looking forward to the introduction of Monsanto’s 
second-generation herbicide-tolerant soybean technology, 
Roundup RReady2Yield. the product will offer farmers  
a 7 percent to 11 percent yield advantage and weed  
control flexibility. 

since the yield increase presents a real step-change in 
performance for soybean growers, it represents an 
expanded profit opportunity for their farms and our business. 
this product will serve as the foundation on which we plan 
to stack our next round of traits including insect protection 
in latin America as well as our consumer-oriented traits,  
like our Vistive family of improved oil products.

 Gene stehly
 MiTCHELL, SoUTH DAkoTA
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growing oppoRtunities

Each year, farmers are asked to do 
more with less, so maximizing the  
yield from each seed — and protecting 
that yield against outside stress —  
is critical.

Monsanto works to improve the yield  
of seeds through advanced breeding 
techniques and to protect those gains 
with the trait combinations produced  
by our industry-leading biotechnology 
capabilities. We support this superior 
performance with a unique customer-
oriented market strategy that effectively 
brings this increased yield to the farm.

the bottom line: better-performing  
seeds offer improved profitability for 
farmers and narrow the gap between 
worldwide supply and demand. 
Monsanto’s current and near-term seed 
and trait offerings have the company 
poised for expanded growth between  
now and 2012. 

breeding better seeds

Monsanto is uniquely positioned to take 
yield to new levels through our vast library 
of crop genetics and our world-class 
research and development capabilities.

over the past 10 years, we have  
developed the world’s largest library of 
genetics for our core focus crops: corn, 
oilseeds, cotton, and vegetables. our 
global germplasm library is leveraged  
by more than 250 breeders at hundreds  
of locations around the world, and it 
allows our business to combine genes 
from distant locations to create powerful  
new seed products. 

our corn germplasm library, for example, 
has been assembled from 36 breeding 
programs located in 12 different  
countries. the breadth and depth of  
this genetics library has enabled our 
breeders to successfully create higher-
yielding seeds, which are fueling 
tremendous growth across our global 
corn seed business.

Recent acquisitions further broaden our 
genetic capabilities and position us for 
expanded growth. seminis, which we 
acquired in 2005, brings us the world’s 
broadest and deepest gene pool for fruits 
and vegetables. our Delta and pine land 
acquisition, completed in 2007, provides a 
robust germplasm base for cotton. these 
diverse gene pools enable our breeders  
to identify genes which have specific 

characteristics to increase yield, to 
protect against diseases, and to enhance 
product quality. 

through our world-class research  
and development capabilities, we are 
constantly evaluating and testing these 
genes in various environments. We are 
also using tools, like molecular markers, 
to more efficiently and effectively mine 
our genetic library. our molecular marker 
capabilities allow us to “tag” each gene 
and “remember” its location so that we 
can quickly find and combine the right 
genes to increase yield and fight crop 
stress. this approach allows us to 
accelerate our yield improvements  
and supports expanded opportunities  
for growth across our business.

Protecting yield with Advanced traits

While our advances in breeding allow  
us to enhance yield, our trait technology 
preserves that yield by protecting it from 
outside pests and stress. uncovering and 
enhancing key traits for each of our crops 
— and stacking them in our higher-
yielding seeds — gives us competitive 
differentiation in the marketplace and 
opportunities for strong financial growth 
well into the next decade.

Growing opportunities  7
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Reaching out to Farmers

�armers want superior yield. they  
also want to continue to do business  
with familiar companies. that’s why 
Monsanto offers its products through 
both leading seed brands and a broad 
licensing business:

Leading Brands. our support of  
farmers and the crops they plant begins 
with our leading national brands: DEKALB, 
Asgrow, Deltapine, and Seminis. these 
brands hold leading positions in key 
agriculture-producing regions in north 
America, latin America, Asia, and europe. 
in the united states, our largest market, 
we also serve farmers through American 
seeds inc. (Asi), a holding company for 
approximately 20 regional corn and 
soybean brands. A similar model, 
international seeds Group (isG), was 
established in our fruits and vegetables 
business this year. this regional approach 
allows us to serve farmers through the 
brands — and the people — they know 
and trust. it also gives our Asi and isG 
companies access to Monsanto’s leading 
breeding and R&D engine. 

Licensing. We supplement our branded 
approach by licensing both seed genetics 
and our trait technologies to hundreds of 
seed companies throughout the world. 
this approach ensures that farmers —  
in key markets like the united states, 
latin America, europe, and india — will 
have access to our products in the seed 

brands they prefer. our Corn states 
business licenses our seed germplasm 
and biotechnology traits to more than  
200 independent corn and soybean  
seed companies in the united states.  
A similar model, Cotton states,  
augments our u.s. cotton business. 

our customer-oriented market strategy  
is both a critical and a sustainable 
competitive advantage. it takes  
substantial time and investment to  
build the national brands, to assemble  
the regional brands, and to reach the 
licensing agreements that support  
the strategy. that advantage is sustained 
by relationships with the best companies 
in the agriculture industry.

Creating outstanding  
Growth opportunities

Worldwide demand for increased yield 
and superior quality, combined with  
the power of our core seeds and traits 
strategy, positions Monsanto to seize 
expanded growth opportunities across  
our crops portfolio between now and  
the end of 2012.

A Growing Opportunity: 
U.S. Corn

u.s. corn is our most obvious growth 
engine. With the growing demand for 
higher-yielding seeds and traits, farmers 
are increasingly turning to the superior 

performance of our products. this demand 
positions us for expanded growth in this 
growing market.

our advanced breeding capabilities have 
helped our national corn brands, like 
DEKALB, deliver improved yield perform- 
ance each year. in the process, we have 
gained more than 12 share points since 
2001. our ability to continually breed a 
better seed is expected to grow this 
brand by a cumulative target of up to  
10 additional share points by 2012. this is 
real value as one share point of DEKALB 
adds $16 million to $18 million in gross 
profit for the seed alone — in advance of 
our higher-margin trait offerings.

�armers’ demand for maximum yield  
has made our triple-stack corn — which 
combines Roundup Ready 2 weed  
control technology with YieldGard Corn 
Borer and Rootworm insect control —  
the market leader in the united states.  
u.s. corn farmers planted more than  
17 million acres of triple-stack corn in 
2007. We estimate that this product could 
be planted on 45 million to 55 million 
acres by 2010.

this triple-stack product offers higher 
margin potential on each acre and more 
value for farmers per seed. 

We are seeing growing penetration  
of our higher-value stacked trait offerings 
in all three of our market channels. in 2007, 
triple-trait penetration exceeded  
 

SMARTSTAX To rAiSE THE vALUE BAr on TripLE-TrAiT oFFEringS

the trait package of choice for corn farmers today is our triple-trait product.  
this product was planted on nearly 20 percent of u.s. corn acres in 2007.  
We estimate that it could be planted on 45 million to 55 million u.s. corn acres  
by 2010 (see adoption chart at right). At that time, we expect to launch a new  
all-in-one seed option called SmartStax. SmartStax will combine eight modes-of-
action in multiple traits and provide season-long yield protection in three areas: 
above- and below-ground insect protection as well as the most comprehensive 
weed control package ever. once launched, SmartStax is expected to deliver  
new value to farmers and our business.

Growth of triple-trait Corn
(u.s. corn trait acres in millions)

� = �orecast  = Range



40 percent for DEKALB, 34 percent for 
Asi, and 24 percent for our Corn states 
business. in 2008, we anticipate our 
higher-margin triple-trait product will reach 
50 percent penetration in our DEKALB 
and Asi businesses and 35 percent in 
Corn states. 

While our triple-stack corn is expected  
to be the product of choice leading up to 
2010, we remain focused on developing 
enhanced trait offerings for farmers. 

this year, we signed a cross-licensing 
agreement with Dow Agrosciences 
aimed at launching SmartStax, the 
industry’s first stack of eight genes  
(see box on page 8). this product, which 
combines eight different herbicide-
tolerance and insect-protection genes  
in one seed, offers a more robust trait 
package in advance of competitive  
triple-trait offerings.

We anticipate that we will be able to 
launch SmartStax by 2010, once all 
necessary approvals have been granted. 
once launched, we believe this product 
has the potential to be used on 60 million 
to 65 million acres in the united states.

to enhance our market leadership and 
competitive advantage, we are working 
on enhanced trait offerings across our 
corn portfolio. products in development 
include traits for drought-tolerance, better 
nitrogen utilization, and enhanced insect 
protection. once approved, we expect to 

stack these products with SmartStax so 
that farmers can realize more benefits  
out of every seed.

A Growing Opportunity: 
International Corn

europe is one of the largest corn markets 
in the world, with 27 million acres planted 
each year. our superior yields are driving 
consistent annual share increases of one 
to two points in key corn-growing 
countries. in �rance, europe’s largest 
corn-growing region, our DEKALB brand 
is now the market leader.

looking ahead, our strong genetic 
performance in europe positions us  
to take advantage of the growing 
acceptance of the first biotechnology trait 
used in the region, YieldGard Corn Borer.  
in 2007, farmers in �rance, spain, poland, 
Germany, portugal, slovakia, and the 
Czech Republic planted more than 
200,000 acres of our YieldGard Corn 
Borer product (see story above). We 
believe that nearly 30 percent of corn 
grown in europe is infested with the 
yield-robbing insect, so our corn borer 
trait offers an expanded growth  
opportunity through 2012 and beyond. 

We’re seeing similar opportunities for  
our business in Brazil and in Argentina. 

in Brazil, the world’s third-largest  
corn-growing region, our DEKALB and 
Agroceres brands, with 30 percent share, 
represent a powerful platform for our  

seed and trait offerings. this year, our  
acquisition of Agroeste sementes,  
a leading Brazilian corn seed company, 
deepened our germplasm library for 
tropical corn-growing regions. And with 
Agroeste’s products currently used on 
approximately 10 percent of Brazilian corn 
acres, we acquired a strong platform for 
future trait introductions. 

one of those traits is our YieldGard Corn 
Borer product. this year, the trait was 
approved by the Brazilian Biosafety 
technical Committee. While  
a number of regulatory hurdles remain,  
the approval moves us closer to a market 
opportunity we estimate could be 
between 15 million and 20 million acres. 

in Argentina, corn farmers used our 
DEKALB corn seed products on  
approximately 40 percent of corn acres 
planted in the country in 2007. this 
platform positions us for continued 
growth in this expanding market. 
Argentina currently plants 8 million  
acres of corn each year, but by 2012 that 
number could grow to 10 million as the 
country produces more corn to meet the 
import needs of the markets it serves. 

Argentina is also a key platform for our  
trait offerings — a platform that became 
more valuable with the final regulatory 
approval this year of our YieldGard  
Corn Borer with Roundup Ready  
Corn 2 technology, the first stacked  
trait offering in Argentina. 

Growing opportunities  9

Harald nitschke, German corn farmer. 
nitschke is one of several thousand farmers 
throughout Europe who use Monsanto’s 
YieldGard Corn Borer technology to protect 
and to increase yield on their land. A recent 
study across seven countries in Europe 
highlighted that farmers were experiencing  
a 10 percent yield boost with Monsanto’s 
insect-protected corn technology.
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gLoBAL TrAiTS BUSinESS  
poiSED To DELivEr nEw vALUE  
in UnTAppED MArkETS 

each year, hundreds of thousands of 
farmers use our traits as an essential 
tool to protect and enhance yield.  
in 2007, Monsanto’s trait technologies 
were planted on 246 million acres 
throughout the world. 

While the growth to date has been tremendous, we believe there are still 
untapped growth opportunities throughout the world (see chart below). By 2010, 
we believe the opportunity for traits in six key regions outside the united states 
will be nearly three times the penetration in 2007. these regions include Brazil, 
Argentina, india, europe (eu27), south Africa, and Australia. 

A Growing Opportunity:  
U.S. and International Soybeans

Despite a reduction in total soybean  
acres planted in the united states, we  
are seeing growth in both our Asgrow 
national brand and our Asi companies. 
Collectively, Monsanto’s soybean brands 
were used on approximately 27 percent 
of u.s. soybean acres in 2007. 

�armers planting these brands already 
use our first-generation soybean  
technology, Roundup Ready, for weed 
control. Backed by our work in both 
breeding and biotechnology, we have  
just begun to unlock the potential of our 
trait technology for this important crop. 
Roundup RReady2Yield, which gained  
u.s. and Canadian regulatory approvals  
this year, is scheduled to be launched  
by 2010. We believe this product, which 
offers a yield improvement of 7 percent  
to 11 percent per acre compared with 
Roundup Ready soybeans, has the  
potential to be used on 40 million to 
50 million acres of u.s. soybeans  
after 2010. 

our product development strategies 
recognize the emerging split of the 
soybean market into commodity and 
value-added segments.

We are differentiating ourselves in the 
commodity segment by offering superior 
yield and yield protection. Roundup 
RReady2Yield will provide substantially 

Expanding Global Market opportunity

Julio Cesar Pereira Jr., brazilian corn farmer. 
pereira uses Monsanto’s DEKALB brand of  
corn seed to increase yield on his farm. in the 
coming seasons, once all necessary approvals 
have been granted, pereira is expected to have 
access to Monsanto’s YieldGard Corn Borer 
technology — presenting him with another  
tool to support and to protect his crop’s  
yield potential.

João Riceto baggio, brazilian soy farmer. 
increasingly, Brazilian farmers like Baggio  
are using Monsanto’s Roundup Ready soybean 
technology to reduce their on-farm costs. This 
strong adoption of our product establishes a 
footprint for Monsanto’s second-generation 
soybean technology, Roundup RReady2Yield 
with insect-protection. This product is expected 
to be available after the turn of the decade, once 
all necessary approvals have been granted.

 Market opportunity for biotechnology traits through 2010 (1)

 Crop trait total Key Markets  untapped 
    (in millions of acres) opportunity

 soybeans Roundup Ready  160-170 22 %

 
Cotton

 Roundup Ready and  
28-39 77 % (2) 

   Roundup Ready �lex

   Bollgard and Bollgard II  23-31 23 % (3)

 

Corn

 Roundup Ready 2  140-145 58 %

   YieldGard Corn Borer  100-115 56 %

   YieldGard Rootworm  60-70 70 %

(1)  Market opportunity reflects total acres where our trait technologies have an applicable fit, not necessarily 
acres projected for penetration by 2010. this opportunity also assumes that necessary regulatory 
approvals have been granted in these markets and assumes the introduction of competitive trait offerings. 

(2) u.s. penetration is split between Roundup Ready and Roundup Ready �lex in 2007.
(3) primarily Bollgard penetration; opportunity to expand to second-generation technology.



increased yield while creating a strong 
foundation for the growth of double- and 
triple-stacked products. in fact, we expect  
soybeans to follow the pattern of corn.  
it is reasonable to expect that we will  
be stacking three or more traits by the 
middle of the next decade. Adding traits 
for insect control, higher yield, and 
dicamba tolerance — all in our R&D 
pipeline — will transform the landscape  
of soybean production and create new 
value for our business well into the  
next decade.

on the value-added side, our first-
generation Vistive soybeans, which have 
been bred to offer the dietary advantages 
of low levels of linolenic acid, have 
enjoyed strong growth. We are in  
the process of developing Vistive iii 
soybeans, which offer health and  
flavor characteristics similar to olive oil. 
Monsanto’s scientists are also creating 
soybeans with higher oil yields, which  
can boost oil output for food production 
with potential use for biodiesel. 

in Brazil, farmers used our Roundup 
Ready soybean technology on 26 million 
acres of the 50 million acres planted in 
2007, representing nearly a 35 percent 
increase in trait acres compared with  
the prior year. this growth is a strong  
step toward the 90 percent penetration 
level that we estimate could happen 
around the end of this decade. 

the penetration in Brazil also establishes 
a platform for the introduction of our 
Roundup RReady2Yield and insect-
protected soybean product after the turn  
of the decade, once regulatory approvals 
have been granted. 

A Growing Opportunity:  
Cotton

Cotton farmers are increasingly looking  
to seed companies to deliver greater 
productivity to the farm. We believe  
our recent acquisition of Delta and pine 
land (D&pl), our second-generation  
technologies, and our full R&D pipeline 
will serve that need, creating new value 
for the cotton industry and new opportu- 
nities for our business well into the future. 

D&pl brings us a strong germplasm 
library, a well-recognized brand name,  
and strong customer relationships in  
key cotton-growing regions throughout 
the world. 

We believe the Deltapine brand can 
benefit from breeding advances similar  
to those in corn. our breeders now  
have access to the world’s largest private 
collection of cotton germplasm, and  
we believe we can develop innovative 
combinations of genes to maximize the 
potential of that library, both in terms of 
yield and lint quality.

While we won’t see the commercial 
results of these initiatives until after 
2010, there is a tremendous opportunity 
in upgrading D&pl’s product portfolio  
to second-generation technologies.  
D&pl had only 17 percent penetration  
of second-generation traits in its portfolio 
in 2007, significantly less than that of 
other leading cotton seed brands.  
We’re taking steps to fully convert this 
portfolio to these enhanced second-
generation traits. 

in 2006, we launched Bollgard II  
with Roundup Ready �lex in the united 
states, a stack of two second-generation 
traits for weed and insect control. this 
improved product, which commands  
a price premium over Monsanto’s original 
Bollgard cotton trait, was planted on 
nearly 3 million acres of u.s. cotton  
in 2007. 

�armers are welcoming these new 
second-generation, double-stacked traits 
for their improved yield and profitability 
(see story above). Monsanto is working 
hard to deliver future traits for drought-
tolerance as well as enhanced insect  
and weed control. 

internationally, our cotton business  
has an established presence in  
biotechnology and this sets the stage  
for additional growth opportunities.  
A key example is india. 

Rusty stubbs, u.s. cotton farmer. Stubbs  
is excited about Monsanto’s recent acquisition 
of D&pL and the ability of the companies to 
deliver new innovation to cotton. Stubbs was 
among a select group of farmers who planted 
Deltapine’s stacked, second-generation product 
Bollgard II with Roundup Ready Flex. He enjoys 
the product’s greater weed-control flexibility 
and expanded insect-protection capabilities.

Growing opportunities  11
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Vishwanath Gore, Indian cotton farmer.  
gore uses Monsanto’s first-generation Bollgard 
insect-protected technology to protect the yield 
potential of his cotton crop. gore, who farms 
four acres in the Aurangabad region of india, 
enjoys the in-the-seed benefits of Bollgard 
including its ability to protect his crop from 
damaging insects. The strong adoption of our 
first-generation product in india establishes  
a footprint for Monsanto’s second-generation 
cotton technology, Bollgard II, which offers 
expanded insect protection.

today, we approach the indian cotton 
market through our own brands and 
through a licensing agreement with 
Mahyco. this business sub-licenses  
the technology to more than 20  
local companies.

With a hybrid cotton seed market of  
15 million to 20 million acres, indian 
farmers planted more than 13 million 
acres of Bollgard in 2007 — an increase 
of approximately 60 percent compared 
with 2006 — meeting our end-of-decade 
sales target this year. �armers are just 
now seeing the benefits of our second-
generation Bollgard II technology, which 
was introduced in 2007 and used on more 
than one million acres in its first year.  
this second-generation technology sets  
a new standard as local companies offer 
competitive first-generation seeds. it also 
offers a higher margin opportunity. We 
now estimate that the technology could 
be used on between 15 million and  
20 million acres by 2012.

A Growing Opportunity:  
Seminis

our 2005 acquisition of seminis made  
us a leading player in the $3 billion annual 
market for fruit and vegetable seeds.  
We believe our rich germplasm library, 
combined with our breeding expertise, 
provides a platform for accelerated 
growth in vegetables similar to the 

competitive advantages that have driven 
our core crop businesses over the past  
few years.

We estimate approximately 100 million 
acres are currently planted in the 
vegetable crops seminis sells, and that 
acreage is projected to remain relatively 
flat. With demand expected to increase  
5 percent to 10 percent annually, yield is 
key. that is particularly true in Asia, where 
growing populations and rising incomes 
are driving demand for vegetables and 
sharpening the need for efficient land use. 

We have taken steps to position seminis 
for these expanding growth opportunities. 
We began by refocusing the company 
operationally, changing the business to  
be gross-profit driven rather than revenue-
oriented and narrowing seminis’ crop 
offerings to the 25 most profitable crops, 
including tomatoes and peppers.

Worldwide, those two crops are among 
the largest and most profitable in the 
vegetable seed industry. sales of 
tomatoes reach approximately 
$500 million annually and pepper sales 
exceed $300 million. We already hold  
the number-one or two position globally  
in these high-value crops.

We are also targeting the most promising 
growth opportunities for this business by 
allocating more R&D dollars to priority 
targets in key crops — like tomatoes and 
peppers. And, we’re assembling the 
genetic maps and applying our marker 
technologies to unlock the value of these 
core vegetable families (see page 13). 

By providing superior seeds to growing 
markets, we believe that we’ll be able to 
pursue pricing strategies that reflect the 
value we’re delivering. seminis breeders 
are using Monsanto’s breeding expertise 
and the breadth and depth of our 
industry-best germplasm library to 
improve yield, flavor, appearance, shelf 
life, and other characteristics. We believe 
the higher-value products delivered 
through our breeding pipeline will support 
price increases in our product portfolio. 

one key area of focus is protected-culture 
environments like greenhouses. 
protected environments deliver dramatic 
yield gains — from three-fold up to 15-fold 
compared with traditional open-field 
agriculture — with seed prices reflecting 
the value delivered. Breeding seeds for 
these applications are expected to be a 
major contributor to growth across the 
markets we serve.



BrEEDing TooLS SET To DELivEr 
nEw vALUE To SEMiniS

our work to apply advanced breeding 
techniques to seminis’ top 10 vegetable 
crops positions us to deliver new value 
to customers and our business leading 
up to 2012. 

today, seminis scientists are using 
Monsanto’s technology and screening 
processes to make quick advances in 
marker development. By tapping into 
Monsanto’s breeding technologies and 
automation, we’ve been able to reduce 
our costs per marker to one-third of 
what it would have been in 2005.  
By 2009, we will have developed  
more than 10,000 markers for our  
top 10 crops. this step will allow  
us to breed higher-yielding, higher-
performing crops — unlocking  
enormous potential for growth in  
market share and pricing. We’re  
making tremendous progress already. 
this year, we’ve increased our tomato 
marker set to 1,600 markers, well 
ahead of our original schedule. 

our work is already helping tomato 
researchers like teresa Bunn (right) breed 
for and stack valuable characteristics  
that can be applied across our tomato 
portfolio. these traits include disease 
resistance and nematode resistance,  
as well as desirable consumer traits  
such as taste and appearance.

seminis tomato specialists, united states 
and Europe. Jaap Hoogstraten and Elaine 
graham examine the characteristics  
of tomatoes at Seminis’ research facility  
in California. graham’s research in genetic 
markers helps breeders like Hoogstraten  
better identify improvements. This approach 
allows Hoogstraten to add value to the products 
that he develops for farmers in the Middle  
East and Southern Europe.

Growing opportunities  13

Dave sheppard, u.s. tomato grower. 
Sheppard plants more than 60 acres of 
tomatoes each year and sells his harvest  
to local grocery stores and at roadside stands.  
He looks to Seminis to deliver new innovation 
to his farm, including enhancements such as  
disease resistance.



Monsanto representa-
tives Mohammadreza 
Ghaffarzadeh, Zhiling 
Zhang, and Ken Gruys 
monitor the perfor-
mance of our 
first-generation 
drought-tolerant corn 
technology. their work 
allows us to analyze 
the product in field-
testing environments 
to ensure that farmers 
will benefit once  
the product is 
commercialized.

R&D yields Drought-tolerant Corn technology

Monsanto researchers like Mohammadreza Ghaffarzadeh 
are supporting the development of our first-generation 
drought-tolerant corn technology. this project, which is  
in phase ii of our pipeline, is the first of several drought-
tolerant projects that we have under development. 

this year, we saw continued progress in the field trials 
supporting this project. the research demonstrates that  
our product consistently delivers yield improvements 
compared with controls in water-stressed environments. 

this research is a centerpiece of our technology  
collaboration with BAs�. this collaboration is poised to 
expand our drought-tolerant platform, allowing us to 
discover and deliver third- and fourth-generation products.

 Mohammadreza Ghaffarzadeh
 DAviS, CALiForniA
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growing innoVAtion

Monsanto’s high-performance  
products and innovative approaches  
to market are supported by our 
industry leadership in product  
development. This work creates  
a pipeline rich in products and 
supports new growth opportunities  
well into the next decade. 

in an increasingly competitive market-
place, our ability to extend our leadership 
through continuous development of 
higher-yielding seeds and yield-protecting 
trait technologies rests upon two  
crucial attributes:

  �irst, our outstanding record of  
turning good ideas into high-impact 
commercial products.

  second, our broad range of alliances 
and collaborations increases the flow  
of promising projects into the pipeline 
— enabling us to stock our pipeline  
with projects that have the greatest 
potential impact and highest probability 
of success.

simply put, our R&D leadership has 
created a constantly renewing pipeline 
rich in projects with the potential to fuel 
new growth. 

leadership in Research and 
Development

We have built our R&D leadership  
through a long-term focus on the science 
of agricultural yield and an ongoing  
commitment to invest about 10 percent  
of our revenues in research. the building 
blocks of our leadership are our advanced 
breeding technology, an unmatched global 
germplasm library, and biotechnology 
knowledge and skill.

underlying our R&D leadership is a 
culture of teamwork and collaboration. 
throughout the company, we combine  
a focus on product development with  
an openness to new ideas and an 
emphasis on bringing those ideas to 
market. We measure success by our 
ability to move projects steadily through 
the pipeline, and over the last two years 
more than 70 percent of products in our 
pipeline moved from one phase to the 
next, with the rest passing key mile-
stones in the development process. 

taken together, these attributes have 
established us as the leading innovator  
in seeds and traits. Monsanto was the 
first company to launch stacked and 
second-generation traits. these attributes 
are among the reasons Monsanto was 
selected by Science magazine as one  
of the top 10 places to work in the 
biotechnology industry.

Discovering Innovation for the Farm 

our R&D work begins in discovery.  
We have built a gene-screening engine 
with the ability — unmatched by our 
competitors — to screen thousands of 
genes efficiently and to identify those  
with the greatest potential. 

this year, our biotechnology program  
will screen and test more genes in crops 
than in any other year in our history. 
Combined with our advanced breeding 
techniques, this work enables us to 
generate tens of millions of critical data 
points that are the raw material for real 
enhancements across our crop platforms. 

While we’re constantly enhancing the 
high-throughput capabilities of our  
in-house R&D discovery work, we’re  
also enriching our discovery flow with  
an extensive network of third-party  
collaborators. We currently have active 
agreements with more than 500 entities 
in the private and public sector around  
the world. 

Monsanto has become the partner  
of choice for discovery companies both  
large and small because we are  
recognized as an established path to 
market for their best ideas. our multiyear 
collaboration with BAs�, discussed on 
page 17, is dramatic evidence of this.

Growing innovation  15
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TApping inTo THE nEXT wAvE oF innovATion

each year, we work with companies throughout the world  
to discover the next wave of innovation for the farm.  
our approach ensures that we’re constantly feeding our 
pipeline with rich, new discoveries — discoveries that  
complement our research and deliver a series of upgrades  
to the farm. �or example, we’re working with evogene ltd., 
based in israel, to improve nitrogen use efficiency in corn, 
soybeans, canola and cotton. nitrogen fertilizer represents 
one of the largest input costs in u.s. agriculture, accounting  
for approximately one-fifth of a farmer’s operating costs.  
on average, u.s. corn farmers spend more than $3 billion 
annually on nitrogen fertilizer applications, with plants 
typically absorbing less than half of the application. 

our third-party alliances deliver  
real benefits:

  �irst, they increase the flow of high-
performing genes into the pipeline, 
which enables us to identify better 
product candidates to advance. 

  second, alliances give us low-risk 
access to emerging technologies that 
have the potential to increase the 
efficiency of the development process. 

  �inally, our alliances in developing 
international markets such as europe, 
China, india, and south America allow  
us to establish relationships with the 
best and brightest people throughout 
the scientific and commercial  
community. these relationships not  
only complement our R&D program,  
but also provide allies who can be 
valuable advocates in the regulatory 
process and in gaining acceptance  
in areas where adoption of  
biotechnology is still nascent. 

Fueling Growth Across our Pipeline 
and in the Field

While our high-throughput screening 
capabilities and extensive technology 
network have fueled the discovery of  
new projects into our pipeline, they have 
also allowed us to extend and enhance 
our families of product offerings. 

Monsanto’s first-generation products 
focused on protecting crops from insects 
and weeds. our R&D focus now is on 
seeds and traits that deliver increased 
yield and stress protection. the pressures 
of finite resources and a growing 
population are putting great strain on 
water and other resources. the ability  
to better manage water and nitrogen 
resources will be a huge area of invest-
ment — and opportunity — for the  
next decade. 

the intensity of our research is reflected 
in the fact that we have more second-  
and third-generation products in 
development than any other company 
invested in agriculture biotechnology.

While our promising technologies 
progress steadily through the pipeline, 
results from field trials of our near-term 
technologies continue to demonstrate  
that our products will deliver real value  
to farmers and our business. this year,  
we tested more product concepts in the 
field than any other company and any 
other year in our history. 

the near-term projects that promise  
to deliver the greatest value to our  
farmer customers and our business 
include those that we have designated  
as High impact technologies (Hit) —  
high-potential, high-value projects that  
are given priority to accelerate their  
movement through the pipeline.

this year, we saw tremendous progress 
in our Hit projects. 

Roundup RReady2Yield soybeans, our 
second-generation herbicide-tolerant  
soybean project, was approved by u.s. 
and Canadian regulators. these approvals 
brought this technology one step closer 
to delivering new value to farmers and  
our business, and they pave the way for  
the first stacked offerings in soybeans.

Vistive iii soybeans combine breeding  
and technology to create oil with  
characteristics similar to olive oil, 
including a lower linolenic acid and 
saturate content. our southern 
Hemisphere field research continued  
to demonstrate that our lead event is 
meeting our oil composition targets and 
agronomic yield targets. We anticipate 
that the product’s health advantages 
could give it a strong presence on the 
40 million u.s. soybean acres that are 
crushed for oil annually. 

Drought-tolerant corn, one of the  
yield and stress projects included in 
Monsanto’s R&D collaboration with BAs�, 
applies technology that has consistently 
delivered yield improvements compared 
with controls under water-stressed 
conditions. Drought tolerance will 
become increasingly critical as population 
pressure and climate change combine  
to make water an increasingly scarce 
resource in many parts of the world.



bAsF CollAboRAtIon

Drought conditions and other environmental stresses occur throughout the world. These challenges 
have the potential to impact yield regardless of where one farms. Monsanto’s collaboration with BASF 
is working to identify and commercialize novel yield and stress trait technologies which offer farmers 
hope in the face of these challenges. By pairing our prowess in breeding and biotechnology with BASF’s 
highly-efficient gene-discovery platform, our collaboration is expected to deliver valuable technologies  
to corn, cotton, soybean, and canola farmers around the world. Together, our work has the potential 
to deliver substantial value, as it effectively doubles the risk-adjusted net present value of Monsanto’s 
yield and stress trait technology pipeline.

yield and  
stress trait 
Pipeline

Collaboration  
creates a new 
joint pipeline 
focused on  
increasing the  
volume of leads  
and certainty  
of commercial 
success in the 
category of 
“yield” traits for 
corn, soybeans, 
cotton, and 
canola.

Discovery Development Commercialization

•  Greater volume of leads and 
cost sharing reduces risk of 
failure, increasing probability  
of commercial success

•  successive upgrades 
emerge sooner, creating 
steady stream of traits in  
a “product family” in  
each crop

•  Broad licensing approach 
allows products to reach 
broadest market possible, 
allowing farmers to  
choose traits in the seed 
brands they prefer for the 
greatest performance

Monsanto Discovery Program

bAsF Discovery Program

Development of successive 
upgrades to create a  
“family” of products

Licensee Brands 
Corn states

regional Brands 
American seeds inc.

national Brands 
DEKALB • Asgrow

oFF To A STrong STArT

our early work already confirms that our  
collaboration with BAs� can accelerate the 
discovery of novel technologies, generating more 
viable research projects than either company could 
have achieved on its own. to date the companies 
have seen tremendous differentiation in the 
projects each is delivering, with less than 10 
percent overlap in priority gene leads emerging 
from each company’s discovery programs. 
Research at Monsanto and BAs� facilities has 
enabled the collaboration to get off to a strong 
start. in just the first few months, the companies 
have exchanged thousands of data points and 
developed hundreds of new gene constructs — 
product concepts that will be field tested in the 
coming years.

•  pairs two separate, but  
complementary discovery  
engines

•  increases rate of discovery,  
unlocking more sources of  
genes than ever before

•  Combined effort allows us  
to advance novel products  
at faster-than-average 
development timelines
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CropS

Corn 

Cotton 

oilseeds

Delivering a better seed to the Farm 
Monsanto breeders are constantly working to 
develop better seed offerings for farmers. our 
breeding research spans both large-acre crops, 
like corn, cotton and soybeans, as well as fruits 
and vegetables. today, we have more than 250 
breeders conducting research at hundreds of 
locations around the world. our researchers use 
both conventional and marker-assisted breeding 
technologies to unlock the yield potential of seeds.

oVERVIEW

Delivering innovation to the farm is the focus of Monsanto’s 
R&D platform. through investments in breeding and 
biotechnology, we’re working hard to deliver products that 
make farmers more productive and profitable. We invest 
more than $2 million a day to discover and deliver 
innovative technologies that make a difference to farmers 
and the land they farm. our research supports both the 
agronomic and value-added needs of our customers.  

Discovery

our R&D research begins in our discovery engine. this work helps  
our researchers uncover the next frontier of plant improvements and 
technologies for our farmer customers. this research ensures that new 
product concepts are constantly feeding our crop portfolio. As projects 
graduate from our discovery engine, they are characterized by the 
benefits they ultimately can deliver to the farm including agronomic 
benefits and value-added benefits. 

our primary discovery areas include: 

  Grain yield

  Grain quality

  environmental stress tolerance

  pest control

  Herbicide tolerance

  Disease resistance

  lipid enhancements  
 (increased oil, improved fatty- 
 acid composition)

  protein enhancements   
 (improved amino-acid content) 

  Carbohydrate enhancements

  Bioactive compounds

Key
  Crops with agronomic 
benefits

  Crops with value-added 
benefits

Monsanto’s High impact 
technologies (Hits) are  
identified in bold type in  
the product pipeline. 

see page 22 for notes  
1, 2, 3 and 4 on the  
product pipeline.

Agronomic benefits(1) 

these products work to deliver in-seed benefits like herbicide tolerance, 
disease resistance, insect protection, and yield enhancements.  
our research aims to increase productivity or reduce input costs, 
improve protection from insects and disease, or enable a plant  
to combat environmental stresses like drought.

Value-Added benefits(1) 

these products work to support the growing food, feed and fuel 
demands of farmers’ customers such as processors and consumers. 
our research focuses on greater efficiency and benefits for animal  
feed processors, ethanol and biodiesel plants, as well as nutritional 
improvements in oil and dietary components.

o
U

r
 p

ip
E

L
in

E
 (

o
p

e
n

)



Growing innovation 18

Corn 
our research in corn develops ways  
to increase and enhance yield, disease 
and insect tolerance, stalk and root 
strength, and kernel qualities — such  
as starch, oil and protein. 

Cotton 
  our research in cotton strives to develop 

and deliver value through yield, fiber 
quality and tolerance to environmental 
stress. our work is aimed at supplying 
varieties that are competitive with the 
best the marketplace has to offer. 

soybeans 
our research in soybeans focuses  
on improving the value and global 
competitiveness — through yield,  
yield stability, disease tolerance, and 
improved oil and protein composition. 

Fruits and Vegetables 
  our seminis breeders are working to 

improve products at both planting and  
harvest, by combating environmental 
factors that limit the plant’s output, and 
by enhancing the product’s end-market 
features — including appearance and 
quality. our research focuses on 
developing new benefits for growers  
and consumers.

CropS

pHASE i pHASE ii pHASE iii pHASE iv

 YieldGard Rootworm iii 

 second-generation 

drought-tolerant corn

 nitrogen utilization corn

 

 Drought-tolerant corn 

 Higher-yielding corn

 SmartStax corn  YieldGard VT PRO 

 extrax corn processing  

system(4)

 Drought-tolerant cotton

 Dicamba-tolerant cotton

 Cotton lygus control

 Bollgard iii

 soybean nematode- 

resistance

 Dicamba-tolerant soybeans

 insect-protected soybeans

 Higher-yielding soybeans

 Roundup RReady2Yield 

canola

 High stearate soybeans

 Vistive III low lin — mid 
oleic — low sat soybeans

 Vistive ii low lin —  

mid oleic soybeans

 omega-3 soybeans

 High-oil soybeans

 Roundup RReady2Yield 
soybeans
 improved-protein soybeans 

Proof of Concept 
Key activities:

 Gene optimization
 Crop transformation

Average duration(2)

12 to 24 months

Average probability  
of success(3)

25 percent

Early Product Development
Key activities:

 trait development
 pre-regulatory data
 large-scale transformation

Average duration(2)

12 to 24 months

Average probability  
of success(3)

50 percent

Advanced Development
Key activities:

 trait integration
 �ield testing
 Regulatory data generation

Average duration(2)

12 to 24 months

Average probability  
of success(3)

75 percent

Prelaunch
Key activities:

 Regulatory submission
 seed bulk-up
 pre-marketing

Average duration(2)

12 to 36 months

Average probability  
of success(3)

90 percent
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Frank V. Atlee III, 67, is a retired president  

of the former American Cyanamid Company 

and chairman of the former Cyanamid 

international. Both companies were involved 

in the discovery, development, manufacturing, 

and marketing of medical and agricultural 

products. Mr. Atlee served Monsanto as 

chairman of the board and chair of the 

executive Committee from June 2000 to 

october 2003. He was Monsanto’s interim 

president and chief executive officer from 

December 2002 to May 2003. He is a 

member of the Audit and �inance Committee 

and of the science and technology Committee. 

John W. bachmann, 68, is a senior partner of 

edward Jones, a major financial services firm 

that advises individual investors exclusively. 

�rom 1980 until 2004, Mr. Bachmann served 

as managing partner of edward Jones.  

Mr. Bachmann was elected to the Monsanto 

board in May 2004 and is a member of the 

Audit and �inance Committee and of the 

people and Compensation Committee. He also 

serves on the boards of AMR Corporation, and 

the u.s. Chamber of Commerce, where he 

was the chairman of the board for 2004-2005.

Hugh Grant, 49, is chairman of the board, 

president, and chief executive officer of 

Monsanto. He joined the former Monsanto 

as a product development representative for 

the company’s agricultural business in 1981. 

since 1991, he has held a variety of manage-

ment positions, most recently as executive 

vice president and chief operating officer.  

Mr. Grant chairs the executive Committee.  

He also serves on the board of ppG 

industries, inc. He has lived and worked in a 

number of international locations including 

Asia and europe, as well as the united states. 

Arthur H. Harper, 51, is Managing partner  

of Gennx360 Capital partners, a private equity 

firm focused on business-to-business 

companies. He served as president and Chief 

executive officer - equipment services 

Division, General electric Corporation from 

2002 to 2005 and executive Vice president — 

Ge Capital services, General electric 

Corporation from 2001 to 2002. Mr. Harper 

was elected to the Monsanto board in october 

2006 and is a member of the public policy and 

Corporate Responsibility Committee and of the 

science and technology Committee. He also 

serves on the board of Gannett Co., inc. 

Gwendolyn s. King, 67, is president of 

podium prose, a speakers bureau. Mrs. King 

was senior vice president, corporate and 

public affairs, for peCo energy Company,  

a diversified utility company. �rom 1989 

through 1992, Mrs. King served as the 11th 

Commissioner of social security. in 2001, 

she was appointed to president George  

W. Bush’s Commission to strengthen social 

security. Mrs. King has served as a director 

on the Monsanto board since �ebruary 2001. 

she chairs the board’s public policy and 

Corporate Responsibility Committee, and she 

is a member of the people and Compensation 

Committee and of the nominating and 

Corporate Governance Committee. Mrs. King 

also serves on the boards of lockheed Martin 

Corporation and Marsh and Mclennan 

Companies inc. 

sharon R. long, Ph.D., 56, is professor  

of biological sciences and dean emerita  

of the school of Humanities and sciences  

at stanford university where she holds the 

Wm. steere Jr. pfizer professorship. Dr. long 

was also an investigator for the Howard 

Hughes Medical institute. she is a member 

of the national Academy of sciences for 

which she serves on the council, is a fellow 

of the American Academy of Arts and 

sciences, and is a member of the American 

philosophical Association. Dr. long served as 

a director on the Monsanto board between 

�ebruary 2002 and october 2007. 

C. steven McMillan, 61, is a retired chairman 

of the board and chief executive officer of 

sara lee Corporation, a global consumer 

packaged goods company whose brands 

include sara lee, Hillshire �arm, earth Grains, 

Jimmy Dean and Douwe egberts. He has 

served as a director on the Monsanto board 

since June 2000. Mr. McMillan chairs the 

board’s people and Compensation 

Committee, and he is a member of the Audit 

and �inance Committee and of the nominating 

and Corporate Governance Committee. 

George H. Poste, Ph. D., D.V.M., 63, is chief 

executive of Health technology networks.  

in May 2003, he was named director of the 

Biodesign institute at Arizona state university. 

Dr. poste is a member of the Defense science 

Board of the u.s. Department of Defense,  

and he chairs that group’s task �orce on 

Bioterrorism. He is a Distinguished �ellow at 

the Hoover institution at stanford university. 

Dr. poste is also a member of the Council  

From left to right:
Hugh grant 
robert J. Stevens 
Sharon r. Long 
george H. poste 
John w. Bachmann 
william U. parfet 
gwendolyn S. king 
C. Steven McMillan 
Frank v. AtLee iii 
Arthur H. Harper
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on Foreign Relations. He has served on the 

Monsanto board since February 2003.  

Dr. Poste chairs the Science and Technology 

Committee and is a member of the Public 

Policy and Corporate Responsibility 

Committee. Dr. Poste also serves on the 

boards of Exelixis, Inc. and Orchid Cellmark Inc.

William U. Parfet, 61, is chairman of the 

board and chief executive officer of MPI 

Research Inc., a preclinical toxicology 

research laboratory. He has served as a 

director on the Monsanto board since June 

2000. Mr. Parfet chairs the board’s Audit and 

Finance Committee, and he is a member of 

the People and Compensation Committee 

and of the Executive Committee. He also 

serves on the boards of Stryker Corporation 

and Taubman Centers, Inc. 

Robert J. Stevens, 56, is chairman of the 

board, president and chief executive officer of 

Lockheed Martin Corporation, a firm engaged 

in the research, design, development, 

manufacture and integration of advanced-

technology systems, products and services. 

During 2001 and 2002, he served on 

President George W. Bush’s Commission  

to Examine the Future of the United States 

Aerospace Industry. Mr. Stevens has served 

as a director on the Monsanto board since 

August 2002. He chairs the board’s 

Nominating and Corporate Governance 

Committee, and he is a member of the Audit 

and Finance Committee and of the Executive 

Committee. He also serves as Monsanto’s 

presiding director. 

ExECUTIvE OFFICERS

Hugh Grant
Chairman of the Board, 

President and  

Chief Executive Officer

Brett D. Begemann 
Executive Vice President, 

Global Commercial

Carl M. Casale 
Executive Vice President, 

Strategy & Operations

Richard B. Clark
Vice President and Controller

Terrell K. Crews 
Executive Vice President, 

Chief Financial Officer and 

Seminis CEO

Scarlett L. Foster 
Vice President,  

Investor Relations

Robert T. Fraley, Ph.D. 
Executive Vice President and 

Chief Technology Officer

Janet M. Holloway 
Senior Vice President,  

Chief of Staff and 

Community Relations

Mark J. Leidy 
Executive Vice President, 

Manufacturing

Steven C. Mizell 
Executive Vice President, 

Human Resources

Cheryl P. Morley 
Senior Vice President, 

Corporate Strategy

Robert A. Paley 
Vice President and Treasurer

Nicole M. Ringenberg 
Vice President,  

Finance & Operations,  

Global Commercial

David F. Snively 
Senior Vice President, 

Secretary and  

General Counsel

Gerald A. Steiner 
Executive Vice President, 

Commercial Acceptance

This list includes executive 

officers as defined by the  

U.S. Securities and Exchange 

Commission. It is current as  

of Oct. 26, 2007. 

Additional information about 

the executive officers 

appears in Monsanto’s 

Form 10-K in Part III, Item 10. 

Note: Ages are current as of Oct. 26, 2007.
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NoTeS To 2007 FiNANCiAL HiGHLiGHTS AND CHARTS

eBiT, ongoing ePS and Free Cash Flow: The presentations  
of EBIT, ongoing EPS and free cash flow are non-GAAP financial  
measures intended to supplement investors’ understanding of our 
operating performance. The notes below define these non-GAAP 
measures and reconcile them to the most directly comparable  
financial measures calculated and presented in accordance  
with GAAP.

Reconciliation of eBiT to Net income: EBIT is defined as earnings 
(loss) before interest and taxes. Earnings (loss) is intended to mean 
net income (loss) as presented in the Statements of Consolidated 
Operations under GAAP. The following table reconciles EBIT to  
the most directly comparable financial measure, which is net  
income (loss). 

 12 Months Ended Aug. 31,

   2007  2006  2005

EBIT – Total(1) $1,376 $1,095  $347 
 Interest Expense – Net 17  79  75
Income Tax Provision(2) 366 327 17

Net Income  $  993  $  689 $255

(1)  Includes the income (loss) from operations of discontinued businesses, the 
pre-tax cumulative effect of accounting change and pre-tax minority interest.

(2)  Includes the income tax provision from continuing operations, the income  
tax benefit on minority interest, the income tax benefit provision on  
discontinued operations, and the income tax benefit on the cumulative  
effect of a change in accounting principle.

Reconciliation of ePS to ongoing ePS: Ongoing EPS is calculated 
excluding certain after-tax items which Monsanto does not consider 
part of ongoing operations. Monsanto’s EPS data for all periods has 
been adjusted to reflect the company’s two-for-one stock split which 
was paid on July 28, 2006. The reconciliation of EPS to ongoing EPS 
for each period is included in the table below. 

 12 Months Ended Aug. 31,

   2007  2006  2005

Diluted Earnings per Share $1.79 $1.25 $0.47
  Cumulative Effect of Change in  
    Accounting Principle  —  0.01 — 

Items Affecting Comparability — EPS Impact
  Tax Charge on Repatriated Earnings —  0.04 — 
  Delta & Pine Land IPR&D write off 0.34 —  — 
  Seminis In-Process R&D —  —  0.38
  Solutia-Related Charge —  —  0.32 
  Tax Benefit on Loss from European  
    Wheat and Barley Business —  —  (0.19)
  Restructuring Charges — Net  —  —  0.01
   Loss (Income) on Discontinued  

Operations (0.13) —  0.05
  Impairment of Goodwill —  —  — 

Diluted Earnings per Share from  
  Ongoing Business  $2.00 $1.30 $1.04

NOTES

(1)

(2)

Reconciliation of Free Cash Flow: Free cash flow represents the 
total of cash flows from operating activities and investing activities, 
as reflected in the Statements of Consolidated Cash Flows. 

 12 Months Ended Aug. 31,

   2007  2006  2005

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $1,854 $1,674 $ 1,737
Net Cash Required by Investing Activities (1,911) (625) (1,667)

Free Cash Flow (57) 1,049 70
Net Cash Required by Financing Activities (583) (117) (582)
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash  
  and Cash Equivalents 46 3 —

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and  
  Cash Equivalents $ (594) $  935 $  (512)

NoTeS To PRoDUCT PiPeLiNe

Pipeline candidates include research platforms in the discovery  
phase and specific product projects in phases one through four  
with a higher-than-average probability of success or market potential. 
The assessment is based on available information and technical  
progress to date. 

Time estimates are based on our experience; they can overlap.  
Total development time for any particular product may be shorter  
or longer than the time estimated here.

This is the estimated average probability that the traits will ultimately 
become commercial products, based on our experience. This figure 
applies to all product candidates in each phase, not just the  
candidates listed here. These probabilities may change over time. 
Commercialization is dependent on many factors, including  
successful conclusion of the regulatory process.

This product candidate is in the Renessen pipeline.  
Renessen is a Monsanto/Cargill joint venture.

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(3)
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INTRODUCTION 

This Annual Report on Form 10-K is a document that U.S. public Pfizer Inc. For more information on our history as a company,
companies file with the Securities and Exchange Commission please see ‘‘Relationships Among Monsanto Company,
every year. Part II of the Form 10-K contains the business Pharmacia Corporation, Pfizer Inc. and Solutia Inc.,’’ in Part I —
information and financial statements that many companies Item I — Business.
include in the financial sections of their annual reports. The ‘‘Monsanto,’’ the ‘‘company,’’ ‘‘we,’’ ‘‘our’’ and ‘‘us’’ are
other sections of the Form 10-K also include information about used interchangeably to refer to Monsanto Company or to
our business that we believe will be of interest to investors. We Monsanto Company and its subsidiaries, as appropriate to the
hope investors will find it useful to have all of this information context. With respect to the time period prior to Sept. 1, 2000,
available in a single document. these defined terms also refer to the agricultural business

The SEC allows us to report information in the Form 10-K of Pharmacia.
by ‘‘incorporating by reference’’ from another part of the Unless otherwise indicated, trademarks owned or licensed
Form 10-K or from the proxy statement. You will see that by Monsanto or its subsidiaries are shown in special type.
information is ‘‘incorporated by reference’’ in various parts of Unless otherwise indicated, references to ‘‘Roundup herbicides’’
our Form 10-K. The proxy statement will be available on our mean Roundup branded herbicides, excluding all lawn-and-
Web site after it is filed with the SEC in December 2007. garden herbicides, and references to ‘‘Roundup and other

Monsanto was incorporated in Delaware on Feb. 9, 2000, glyphosate-based herbicides’’ exclude all lawn-and-
as a subsidiary of Pharmacia Corporation. It includes the garden herbicides.
operations, assets and liabilities that were previously the Information in this Form 10-K is current as of Oct. 26, 2007,
agricultural business of Pharmacia, which is now a subsidiary of unless otherwise specified.

CAUTION REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

In this report, and from time to time throughout the year, we otherwise, and investors should not rely on us to do so. In the
share our expectations for our company’s future performance. interests of our investors, and in accordance with the ‘‘safe
These forward-looking statements include statements about our harbor’’ provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform
business plans; the potential development, regulatory approval, Act of 1995, this section of our report explains some of the
and public acceptance of our products; our expected financial important reasons that actual results may be materially different
performance, including sales performance, and the anticipated from those that we anticipate.
effect of our strategic actions; the anticipated benefits of recent
acquisitions; the outcome of contingencies, such as litigation;
domestic or international economic, political and market
conditions; and other factors that could affect our future results
of operations or financial position, including, without limitation,
statements under the captions ‘‘Legal Proceedings,’’
‘‘Overview — Executive Summary — Outlook,’’ ‘‘Seeds and
Genomics Segment,’’ ‘‘Agricultural Productivity Segment,’’
‘‘Financial Condition, Liquidity, and Capital Resources,’’ and
‘‘Outlook.’’ Any statements we make that are not matters of
current reportage or historical fact should be considered
forward-looking. Such statements often include words such as
‘‘believe,’’ ‘‘expect,’’ ‘‘anticipate,’’ ‘‘intend,’’ ‘‘plan,’’ ‘‘estimate,’’
‘‘will,’’ and similar expressions. By their nature, these types of
statements are uncertain and are not guarantees of our
future performance.

Our forward-looking statements represent our estimates
and expectations at the time that we make those statements.
However, circumstances change constantly, often unpredictably,
and investors should not place undue reliance on these
statements. Many events beyond our control will determine
whether our expectations will be realized. We disclaim any
current intention or obligation to revise or update any forward-
looking statements, or the factors that may affect their
realization, whether in light of new information, future events or

1
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Monsanto Company, along with its subsidiaries, is a leading lawn-and-garden herbicide products for the residential market
global provider of agricultural products for farmers. Our seeds, and animal agricultural products focused on improving dairy
biotechnology trait products, and herbicides provide farmers cow productivity.
with solutions that improve productivity, reduce the costs of The following information, which appears in other parts of
farming, and produce better foods for consumers and better this Form 10-K, is incorporated herein by reference:
feed for animals.

m Item 7 — Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
We manage our business in two segments: Seeds and Financial Condition and Results of Operations (MD&A) —

Genomics and Agricultural Productivity. Through our Seeds and Seeds and Genomics Segment — the tabular information
Genomics segment, we produce leading seed brands, including regarding net sales of our seeds and traits, and Agricultural
DEKALB, Asgrow, D&PL, Deltapine and Seminis, and we Productivity Segment — the tabular information regarding
develop biotechnology traits that assist farmers in controlling net sales of Roundup and other glyphosate-based
insects and weeds. We also provide other seed companies with herbicides and other agricultural productivity products
genetic material and biotechnology traits for their seed brands.

m Item 8 — Financial Statements and Supplementary Data —Through our Agricultural Productivity segment, we manufacture
Note 22 — Segment and Geographic DataRoundup brand herbicides and other herbicides and provide

PRINCIPAL PRODUCTS

Monsanto’s principal products in our two segments include the following:

SEEDS AND GENOMICS SEGMENT

Major Products End-Use Products and Applications

Roundup Ready traits in corn, soybeans, cotton and canola(1) Weed-control system for crops tolerant of Roundup and other glyphosate-based
herbicides

YieldGard Corn Borer and YieldGard Rootworm traits in corn(1)Bollgard and Traits that enable crops to protect themselves from certain insects, reducing the
Bollgard II traits in cotton;(1) need for applications of insecticides

Agroceres, Asgrow, DEKALB, D&PL, Deltapine and Vistive branded seeds; Holden’s Corn hybrids and foundation seed; soybean varieties and foundation seed; cotton
Foundation Seeds; Monsoy foundation seed; American Seeds, Inc. branded seed varieties, hybrids and foundation seed; sunflower hybrids; sorghum grain and

forage hybrids; and oilseed rape and canola varieties

Seminis, Royal Sluis, Asgrow, and Petoseed branded seeds Vegetable and fruit seeds, including tomato, pepper, eggplant, melon, cucumber,
pumpkin, squash, beans, broccoli, onions and lettuce

(1) Monsanto also offers farmers stacked-trait products, in which two or more traits are combined in a single seed product.

AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTIVITY SEGMENT

Major Products End-Use Products and Applications

Roundup and other glyphosate-based herbicides Nonselective agricultural, industrial, ornamental and turf applications for weed
control

Harness, Degree, Machete and other acetanilide-based herbicides and other Control of pre-emergent annual grass and small seeded broadleaf weeds in corn
selective herbicides, such as Maverick, Certainty, and Outrider and soybeans; control of specific weeds in rice, wheat, turf, cotton, and barley

and on roadsides

Lawn-and-garden herbicides Residential lawn-and-garden applications for weed control

Posilac bovine somatotropin Increase efficiency of milk production in dairy cows

The above products may be sold under different brand names outside the United States.

4



MONSANTO COMPANY 2007 FORM 10-K

COMPETITION lawn-and-garden herbicides and our bovine somatotropin
products is the United States.

The global markets for our products are competitive. With
continued development and commercialization of new

DISTRIBUTION OF PRODUCTS; CUSTOMERS
technologies and products, including biotechnology traits, we

We have a worldwide distribution and sales and marketingexpect competition to intensify.
organization for our seeds and traits and crop protectionIn our Seeds and Genomics segment, we compete with
operations. We market our DEKALB, Asgrow, D&PL andnumerous multinational companies globally and with hundreds of
Deltapine branded germplasm (both the conventional andsmaller companies regionally. With the exception of competitors
biotech varieties) and our vegetable and fruit seeds to farmersin our vegetable and fruit seed business, most of our seed
through distributors, independent retailers and dealers,competitors are also licensees of our germplasm or biotechnology
agricultural cooperatives, plant raisers and agents. We alsotraits. In certain countries, we also compete with government-
market our vegetable and fruit seeds direct to farmers. Ourowned seed companies. Farmers who save seed from one year
American Seeds, Inc. (ASI) family of branded seeds is marketedto the next, in violation of license or other commercial terms, also
to farmers primarily directly, as well as through dealers,affect competitive conditions. Product performance (in particular,
agricultural cooperatives and agents. We also license a broadcrop vigor and yield for our row crops and quality for our
package of our germplasm and trait technologies to seedvegetable and fruit seeds), customer support and service,
companies that do business in the United States and certainintellectual property protection, and price are important elements
international markets, which then market these products toof our market success. In addition, distributor, retailer and farmer
farmers. In Brazil and Paraguay, we have implemented arelationships are important in the United States and many
point-of-delivery, grain-based payment system through which weother countries.
contract with grain handlers to collect applicable biotech traitOur biotechnology traits compete as a system with other
fees when farmers deliver their grain.practices, including the application of agricultural chemicals, and

We sell our crop protection products through distributors,traits developed by other companies. Other agricultural and
independent retailers and dealers, agricultural cooperatives, and,seed marketers produce chemical and seed products that
in some cases outside the United States, directly to farmers.compete with our Roundup Ready and insect-control systems.
We also sell certain of the chemical intermediates of our cropOur consumer traits compete with other methods of managing
protection products to other major agricultural chemicaland improving food quality. Competition for the discovery of
producers, who then market their own branded productsnew traits based on biotechnology or genomics is likely to come
to farmers.from major global agrichemical companies, smaller

We sell and ship our Posilac bovine somatotropin directlybiotechnology research companies and institutions, state-funded
to U.S. dairy farmers. Outside the United States, we rely onprograms, and academic institutions. Enabling technologies to
a single exclusive distributor of this product. We market ourenhance biotechnology trait development may also come from
lawn-and-garden herbicide products through The Scottsacademic researchers and biotechnology research companies.
Miracle-Gro Company.The primary factors underlying the competitive success of traits

While no single customer (including affiliates) representedare performance and commercial viability; timeliness of
more than 10 percent of our consolidated worldwide net sales inintroduction; value compared with other practices and products;
2007, our three largest U.S. agricultural distributors and theirmarket coverage; service provided to distributors, retailers and
affiliates represented, in the aggregate, 14 percent of ourfarmers; governmental approvals; public acceptance; and
worldwide net sales and 25 percent of our U.S. net sales. Duringenvironmental characteristics.
2007, one major U.S. distributor and its affiliates represented aboutCompetitive success in crop protection products depends on
8 percent of the worldwide net sales for our Seeds and Genomicsprice, product performance, the scope of solutions offered to
segment, and about 8 percent of the worldwide net sales for ourfarmers, market coverage, and the service provided to
Agricultural Productivity segment.distributors, retailers and farmers. Our agricultural herbicide

products have numerous major global competitors. Competition
EMPLOYEE RELATIONSfrom local or regional companies may also be significant. For

additional information on competition for our agricultural As of Aug. 31, 2007, we employed approximately 18,800 regular
herbicides, see Item 7 — MD&A — Outlook — Agricultural employees worldwide and more than 4,800 temporary employees
Productivity, which is incorporated by reference herein. in various world areas. However, the number of temporary

Our lawn-and-garden herbicides compete on product employees varies greatly during the year because of the seasonal
performance and the brand value associated with our trademark nature of our business. We believe that relations between
Roundup. This business has fewer than five significant national Monsanto and its employees are satisfactory.
competitors and a larger number of regional competitors in the
United States. We are the only supplier of recombinant bovine
somatotropin in the United States. The largest market for our
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ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS from our legal and other outside advisors. For additional
information relating to Solutia and the charge recorded with

Our operations are subject to environmental laws and
respect to Solutia, see ‘‘Relationships Among Monsanto

regulations in the jurisdictions in which we operate. Some of
Company, Pharmacia Corporation, Pfizer, Inc., and Solutia Inc.’’

these laws restrict the amount and type of emissions that can
in this section and Note 21.

be released from our operations into the environment. Other
For information regarding certain environmental

laws, such as the Comprehensive Environmental Response,
proceedings, see Item 3 — Legal Proceedings. See also

Compensation and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. 9601 et seq.
information regarding remediation of waste disposal sites and

(Superfund), can impose liability for the entire cost of cleanup
reserves for remediation, appearing in Note 21 — Commitments

on any former or current site owners or operators or parties
and Contingencies, which is incorporated herein by reference.

who sent waste to these sites, without regard to fault or to the
lawfulness of the original disposal. These laws and regulations

INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS
may be amended from time to time; they may become more

See Item 1A under the heading ‘‘Our operations outside thestringent. We are committed to long-term environmental
United States are subject to special risks and restrictions, whichprotection and compliance programs that reduce and monitor
could negatively affect our results of operations andemissions of hazardous materials into the environment, and to
profitability’’ and Note 22 — Segment and Geographic Data,the remediation of identified existing environmental concerns. In
which are incorporated herein by reference. Approximatelyaccord with a consent order with the state of Idaho, we have
43 percent of Monsanto’s sales, including 36 percent of ourembarked on a multiyear project to design and install state-of-
Seeds and Genomics segment’s sales and 54 percent of ourthe-art air emission control equipment at our facility at Soda
Agricultural Productivity segment’s sales, originated from ourSprings, Idaho. Although the costs of our compliance with
legal entities outside the United States during fiscal year 2007.environmental laws and regulations cannot be predicted with

certainty, such costs are not expected to have a material
PATENTS, TRADEMARKS, LICENSES, FRANCHISESadverse effect on our earnings or competitive position, except
AND CONCESSIONSas noted below. Because of our investment in the Soda Springs

project, our capital expenditures for environmental control In the United States and many foreign countries, Monsanto
facilities should be higher than normal in the next few years. holds a broad portfolio of patents that provide intellectual
Current estimates indicate that total companywide capital property protection for its products and processes. Some of
expenditures for environmental compliance will be about Monsanto’s patents and licenses are currently the subject of
$17 million in fiscal year 2008 and $25 million in fiscal litigation; see Item 3 — Legal Proceedings.
year 2009. We routinely obtain patents and/or plant variety protection for

In addition to potential liability for our own manufacturing our breeding technology, germplasm, commercial varietal seed
locations and off-site disposal and formulation facilities, under products, and for the parents of our commercial hybrid seed
the terms of our Sept. 1, 2000, Separation Agreement with products. We also routinely obtain registrations for our
Pharmacia (Separation Agreement), we are required to germplasm and commercial seed products in registration
indemnify Pharmacia for any liability it may have for countries, such as Plant Variety Protection Act Certificates in the
environmental remediation or other environmental United States and equivalent plant breeders’ rights in other
responsibilities primarily related to Pharmacia’s former countries. Our insect-protection traits (including YieldGard Corn
agricultural and chemicals businesses. This includes, but is not Borer and YieldGard Corn Rootworm traits in corn seed and
limited to, environmental liabilities that Solutia Inc., the former Bollgard trait in cotton seed) are protected by patents that extend
chemicals business of Pharmacia, assumed from Pharmacia in at least until 2011. Having filed patent applications in 2002 and
connection with its spinoff on Sept. 1, 1997, to the extent that 2001, we anticipate that the Bollgard II insect-protection trait will
Solutia fails to pay, perform or discharge those liabilities. Both be patent-protected in the United States, and in other areas in
immediately prior to and since its filing for bankruptcy which patent protection is sought, through 2022. Our herbicide
protection, Solutia has taken the position that the bankruptcy tolerant products (Roundup Ready traits in soybean, corn, canola
proceeding prevents it from continuing to perform its and cotton seeds) are protected by U.S. patents that extend at
environmental obligations, except within the boundaries of its least until 2014; and our second-generation trait for cotton,
current operations. On an interim basis, we assumed the Roundup Ready Flex, is protected by U.S. patents through 2025.
management and defense of certain of Solutia’s environmental Patents protecting glyphosate, the active ingredient in
matters. In the process of managing such environmental Roundup herbicides, expired in the United States in 2000 and
liabilities, we determined that it was probable that we would have expired in all other countries. We have several patents on
incur some expenses related to such environmental liabilities our glyphosate formulations and manufacturing processes in the
and that the amount of such expenses could be reasonably United States and other countries, some of which extend
estimated. Accordingly, in fiscal year 2005, we recorded a beyond 2015. Posilac bovine somatotropin is protected by a
reserve including, but not limited to, environmental liabilities, U.S. patent that expires in 2008 but is no longer fully protected
based on the best estimates by our management with input by patents in other countries in which this product is sold.
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Other patents that we own protect various aspects of bovine income streams generated by the traditional dry grind ethanol
somatotropin manufacture in the United States and expire at manufacturing process. We own 50 percent of Renessen and
varying dates ending March 2012; corresponding patents in have equal governance and funding rights and responsibilities
other countries have varying terms. with Cargill. Cargill has agreed to grant Renessen an exclusive

Monsanto also holds licenses from other parties relating to right and license to Cargill’s intellectual property related to this
certain products and processes. We have obtained licenses to corn processing technology needed for Renessen to pursue its
protect certain technologies used in the production of Roundup business plan and receives rights to use intellectual property
Ready seeds and certain technologies relating to pipeline developed by Renessen in other specified areas. Both Cargill and
products from claims that we are infringing the patents of Monsanto provide specified services to Renessen for a fee. See
others. These licenses last for the lifetimes of the applicable information regarding Renessen in Note 24 — Equity Affiliate.
patents, after which no licenses will be required to use the

RAW MATERIALS AND ENERGY RESOURCESrespective patented technologies. We have also obtained
perpetual licenses to certain technologies contained in certain We are a significant purchaser of basic and intermediate raw
pipeline products (i.e., SmartStax), which combine insect control materials. We typically purchase our major raw materials and
traits with herbicide resistant traits. We hold numerous licenses the energy we need through long-term contracts. We do not
in connection with our genomics program. For example, we depend on any single outside supplier for a significant amount
hold a perpetual license to certain genomics technologies for of any raw materials, but a few major suppliers provide us with
use in plant and animal agriculture, perpetual licenses to patents certain important raw materials. The markets for our raw
expiring from 2018 to 2023 for classes of proprietary genes for materials are balanced and are expected to remain so. Although
the development of commercial traits in crops, perpetual some additional capacity does exist, pricing is substantially
licenses to functional characterizations of our proprietary genes, higher today than under existing contracts. Energy is available
and perpetual licenses to certain genomics sequences and as required, but pricing is subject to market fluctuations.
certain genomics technologies. We have also obtained perpetual We produce directly or contract with third-party growers for
licenses to chemicals used to make Harness herbicides and to corn seed, soybean seed, canola seed, vegetable seeds, fruit
manufacturing technology for Posilac bovine somatotropin. seeds, cotton seed, sunflower seed and sorghum seed in

We own trademark registrations, and we file trademark growing locations throughout the world. The availability and cost
applications for the names and many of the designs we use on of seed depends primarily on seed yields, weather conditions,
our branded products around the world. Important company farmer contract terms, commodity prices, and global supply and
trademarks include Roundup for herbicide products; Roundup demand. We manage commodity price fluctuations through the
Ready, Bollgard, Bollgard II, YieldGard, YieldGard VT, and use of futures contracts and other hedging mechanisms. Where
Roundup RReady2Yield for traits; DEKALB, Asgrow, Deltapine, practicable, we attempt to minimize the weather risks by
D&PL, and Vistive for agricultural seeds; Seminis, Royal Sluis, producing seed at multiple growing locations and under
Asgrow and Petoseed for fruit and vegetable seeds; and Posilac irrigated conditions.
for dairy productivity products. Different catalysts are used in various intermediate steps in

We hold (directly or by assignment) numerous phosphate the production of glyphosate. These are produced by two major
leases issued on behalf of or granted by the United States, the catalyst manufacturers who use our proprietary technology at
state of Idaho, and private parties. None of these leases is various sites globally. These suppliers have additional capacity at
material individually, although the leases are significant in the other manufacturing locations. We manufacture and purchase
aggregate because elemental phosphorus is a key raw material disodium iminodiacetic acid, a key ingredient in the production
for the production of glyphosate-based herbicides. The of glyphosate. We manufacture most of our global supply of
phosphate leases have varying terms. The leases obtained from elemental phosphorus, a key raw material for the production of
the United States are of indefinite duration, subject to the Roundup herbicides, and we purchase the remainder through a
modification of lease terms at 20-year intervals. third-party supplier.

PRINCIPAL EQUITY AFFILIATES
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Renessen LLC, our joint venture with Cargill, Incorporated, has Monsanto’s expenses for research and development were
developed and plans to commercialize a proprietary grain $780 million in 2007, $710 million in 2006, and $583 million in
processing technology, marketed under the name ExtraxTM. This 2005. In addition, we incurred charges of $193 million and
technology separates corn into three high-value fractions: a high- $230 million for acquired in-process research and development
starch fraction, ideal for ethanol fermentation; food-grade corn oil, (IPR&D) related to acquisitions during 2007 and 2005,
valuable as a non-trans fat oil solution or for biodiesel; and a respectively. See Note 4 — Business Combinations — for
nutrient-rich meal that can be used as a corn replacement in additional information regarding these acquisitions.
animal feed rations. The ExtraxTM technology will be licensed by During 2007, we and BASF announced a long-term joint
Renessen to North American ethanol manufacturers interested in research and development and commercialization collaboration
optimizing the operation of ethanol plants and diversifying the in plant biotechnology that will focus on the development of
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high-yielding crops and crops more tolerant to adverse SEASONALITY AND WORKING CAPITAL; BACKLOG

environmental conditions such as drought. Over the long-term
For information on seasonality and working capital and backlog

life of the collaboration, we and BASF will dedicate a joint
practices, see information in Item 7 — MD&A — Financial

budget of potentially $1.5 billion to fund a dedicated pipeline of
Condition, Liquidity, and Capital Resources, incorporated herein

yield and stress-tolerance traits for corn, soybeans, cotton
by reference.

and canola.

RELATIONSHIPS AMONG MONSANTO COMPANY, PHARMACIA CORPORATION, PFIZER INC., AND SOLUTIA INC.

Prior to Sept. 1, 1997, a corporation that was then known as the operations, assets and liabilities that were previously the Ag
Monsanto Company (Former Monsanto) operated an agricultural Business. Today’s Solutia comprises the operations, assets and
products business (the Ag Business), a pharmaceuticals and liabilities that were previously the Chemicals Business. The
nutrition business (the Pharmaceuticals Business) and a chemical following table sets forth a chronology of events that resulted in
products business (the Chemicals Business). Former Monsanto is the formation of Monsanto, Pharmacia and Solutia as three
today known as Pharmacia. Pharmacia is now a wholly owned separate and distinct corporations, and it provides a brief
subsidiary of Pfizer Inc., which together with its subsidiaries background on the relationships among these corporations.
operates the Pharmaceuticals Business. Today’s Monsanto includes

Date of Event Description of Event

Sept. 1, 1997 m Pharmacia (then known as Monsanto Company) entered into a Distribution Agreement (Distribution Agreement) with Solutia related to the transfer
of the operations, assets and liabilities of the Chemicals Business from Pharmacia (then known as Monsanto Company) to Solutia.

m Pursuant to the Distribution Agreement, Solutia assumed and agreed to indemnify Pharmacia (then known as Monsanto Company) for certain
liabilities related to the Chemicals Business.

Dec. 19, 1999 m Pharmacia (then known as Monsanto Company) entered into an agreement with Pharmacia & Upjohn, Inc. (PNU) relating to a merger (the
Merger).

Feb. 9, 2000 m We were incorporated in Delaware as a wholly owned subsidiary of Pharmacia (then known as Monsanto Company) under the name ‘‘Monsanto
Ag Company.’’

March 31, 2000 m Effective date of the Merger.

m In connection with the Merger, (1) PNU became a wholly owned subsidiary of Pharmacia (then known as Monsanto Company); (2) Pharmacia
(then known as Monsanto Company) changed its name from ‘‘Monsanto Company’’ to ‘‘Pharmacia Corporation;’’ and (3) we changed our name
from ‘‘Monsanto Ag Company’’ to ‘‘Monsanto Company.’’

Sept. 1, 2000 m We entered into a Separation Agreement (Separation Agreement) with Pharmacia related to the transfer of the operations, assets and liabilities
of the Ag Business from Pharmacia to us.

m Pursuant to the Separation Agreement, we were required to indemnify Pharmacia for any liabilities primarily related to the Ag Business or the
Chemicals Business, and for liabilities assumed by Solutia pursuant to the Distribution Agreement, to the extent that Solutia fails to pay, perform
or discharge those liabilities.

Oct. 23, 2000 m We completed an initial public offering in which we sold approximately 15 percent of the shares of our common stock to the public. Pharmacia
continued to own approximately 85 percent of our common stock.

July 1, 2002 m Pharmacia, Solutia and we amended the Distribution Agreement to provide that Solutia will indemnify us for the same liabilities for which it had
agreed to indemnify Pharmacia and to clarify the parties’ rights and obligations.

m Pharmacia and we amended the Separation Agreement to clarify our respective rights and obligations relating to our indemnification obligations.

Aug. 13, 2002 m Pharmacia distributed the shares of our common stock that it owned to its shareowners via a tax-free stock dividend (the Monsanto Spinoff).

m As a result of the Monsanto Spinoff, Pharmacia no longer owns any equity interest in Monsanto.

April 16, 2003 m Pursuant to a merger transaction, Pharmacia became a wholly owned subsidiary of Pfizer.

Dec. 17, 2003 m Solutia and 14 of its U.S. subsidiaries filed a voluntary petition for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code.

See Item 3 — Legal Proceedings for information concerning pursuant to our obligation under the Separation Agreement to
litigation matters that Monsanto is managing pursuant to its indemnify Pharmacia; Solutia’s bankruptcy; the related charge
obligation under the Separation Agreement to indemnify we recorded associated with certain of Solutia’s litigation and
Pharmacia. See Note 21 for further information regarding environmental obligations; and other arrangements between
litigation and environmental matters that we are managing Solutia and us.
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AVAILABLE INFORMATION Our Web site also includes the following corporate
governance materials, under the tab ‘‘Corporate Responsibility’’:

Our Internet address is www.monsanto.com. We make our Code of Business Conduct, our Code of Ethics for Chief
available, free of charge through our Web site, our annual report Executive and Senior Financial Officers, our Board of Directors’
on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports Charter and Corporate Governance Guidelines, and charters of
on Form 8-K, and any amendments to those reports, as soon as our Board committees. These materials are also available on
reasonably practicable after they have been filed with or paper. Any shareowner may request them by contacting the
furnished to the SEC pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Office of the General Counsel, Monsanto Company,
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Forms 3, 4 and 5 filed with 800 N. Lindbergh Blvd., St. Louis, Missouri, 63167. Information
respect to our equity securities under Section 16(a) of the on our Web site does not constitute part of this report.
Exchange Act are also available on our site by the end of the
business day after filing. All of these materials are located under
the ‘‘Investors’’ tab.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Competition in seeds and traits and agricultural chemicals addition, because of the rapid pace of technological change, and
has significantly affected, and will continue to affect, the confidentiality of patent applications in some jurisdictions,
our sales. competitors may be issued patents from applications that were

Many companies engage in research in plant biotechnology, unknown to us prior to issuance. These patents could reduce
breeding and agricultural chemicals, and speed in getting a new the value of our commercial or pipeline products or, to the
product to market can be a significant competitive advantage. extent they cover key technologies on which we have
Our competitors’ success could render our existing products unknowingly relied, require that we seek to obtain licenses or
less competitive, resulting in reduced sales compared to our cease using the technology, no matter how valuable to our
expectations or past results. We expect to see increasing business. We cannot assure we would be able to obtain such a
competition from agricultural biotechnology firms and from license on acceptable terms. The extent to which we succeed
major agrichemical, seed and food companies. We also expect or fail in our efforts to protect our intellectual property will affect
to face continued competition for our Roundup herbicides and our costs, sales and other results of operations.
selective herbicides product lines. The extent to which we can

We are subject to extensive regulation affecting our seedrealize cash and gross profit from these products will depend on
biotechnology and agricultural products and our researchour ability to: control manufacturing and marketing costs without
and manufacturing processes, which affects our salesadversely affecting sales; respond effectively to competitor
and profitability.pricing and marketing; provide marketing programs meeting the

Regulatory and legislative requirements affect theneeds of our customers and of the farmers who are our end
development, manufacture and distribution of our products,users; maintain an efficient distribution system; and develop
including the testing and planting of seeds containing ournew products with features attractive to our end users.
biotechnology traits and the import of crops grown from those

Efforts to protect our intellectual property rights and to seeds, and non-compliance can harm our sales and profitability.
defend claims against us can increase our costs and will not Obtaining testing, planting and import approvals can be lengthy
always succeed; any failures could adversely affect sales and and costly, with no guarantee of success. Planting approvals
profitability or restrict our ability to do business. may also include significant regulatory requirements that can

Intellectual property rights are crucial to our business, limit our sales. Lack of approval to import crops containing
particularly our Seeds and Genomics segment. We endeavor to biotechnology traits into key markets can affect sales of our
obtain and protect our intellectual property rights in jurisdictions traits, even in jurisdictions where planting has been approved.
in which our products are produced or used and in jurisdictions Concern about unintended but unavoidable trace amounts
into which our products are imported. However, we may be (sometimes called ‘‘adventitious presence’’) of commercial
unable to obtain protection for our intellectual property in key biotechnology traits in conventional (non-biotechnology) seed, or
jurisdictions. Even if protection is obtained, competitors, in the grain or products produced from conventional or organic
farmers, or others in the chain of commerce may raise legal crops, among other things, could lead to increased regulation or
challenges to our rights or illegally infringe on our rights, legislation, which may include: liability transfer mechanisms that
including through means that may be difficult to prevent or may include financial protection insurance; possible restrictions
detect. For example, the practice by some farmers of saving or moratoria on testing, planting or use of biotechnology traits;
seeds from non-hybrid crops (such as soybeans, canola and and requirements for labeling and traceability, which
cotton) containing our biotechnology traits has prevented and requirements may cause food processors and food companies
may continue to prevent us from realizing the full value of our to avoid biotechnology and select non-biotechnology crop
intellectual property, particularly outside the United States. In sources and can affect farmer seed purchase decisions and the

9



MONSANTO COMPANY 2007 FORM 10-K

sale of our products. Further, the detection of adventitious are also making considerable investments in similar new
presence of traits not approved in the importing country may biotechnology or improved germplasm products. Consequently,
result in the withdrawal of seed lots from sale or in compliance if we are not able to fund extensive research and development
actions, such as crop destruction or product recalls. Legislation activities and deliver new products to the markets we serve on
encouraging or discouraging the planting of specific crops can a timely basis, our growth and operations will be harmed.
also harm our sales. In addition, claims that increased use of

Adverse outcomes in legal proceedings could subject us toglyphosate-based herbicides or biotechnology traits increases
substantial damages and adversely affect our results ofthe potential for the development of glyphosate-resistant weeds
operations and profitability.or pests resistant to our traits could result in restrictions on the

We are involved in major lawsuits concerning intellectualuse of glyphosate-based herbicides or seeds containing our
property, biotechnology, torts, contracts, antitrust allegations,traits or otherwise reduce our sales.
employee benefits, and other matters, as well as governmental

The degree of public acceptance or perceived public inquiries and investigations, the outcomes of which may be
acceptance of our biotechnology products can affect our significant to results of operations in the period recognized or
sales and results of operations by affecting planting limit our ability to engage in our business activities. While we
approvals, regulatory requirements and customer have insurance related to our business operations, it may not
purchase decisions. apply to or fully cover any liabilities we incur as a result of these

Although all of our products go through rigorous testing, lawsuits. In addition, pursuant to the Separation Agreement, we
some opponents of our technology actively raise public concern are required to indemnify Pharmacia for Solutia’s Assumed
about the potential for adverse effects of our products on human Liabilities, to the extent that Solutia fails to pay, perform or
or animal health, other plants and the environment. The potential discharge those liabilities. We have recorded a reserve for
for adventitious presence of commercial biotechnology traits in certain estimated payments or costs related to third-party tort
conventional seed, or in the grain or products produced from litigation and environmental matters that we are managing
conventional or organic crops, is another factor that can affect following Solutia’s refusal to manage such matters, for which
general public acceptance of these traits. Public concern can the amount recorded in our Statement of Consolidated Financial
affect the timing of, and whether we are able to obtain, Position as of Aug. 31, 2007, was $182 million. We believe that
government approvals. Even after approvals are granted, public the recorded amount represents the estimated discounted cost
concern may lead to increased regulation or legislation, which that we would incur in the future in connection with these
could affect our sales and profitability, and may adversely affect litigation and environmental matters. However, our actual costs
sales of our products to farmers, due to their concerns about may be materially different from this estimate. The degree to
available markets for the sale of crops or other products derived which we may ultimately be responsible for the particular
from biotechnology. In addition, opponents of agricultural matters reflected in the reserve is uncertain. Further, additional
biotechnology have attacked farmers’ fields and facilities used by litigation or environmental matters that are not reflected in the
agricultural biotechnology companies, and may launch future reserve may arise in the future, and we may also assume the
attacks against farmers’ fields and our field testing sites and management of, settle, or pay judgments or damages with
research, production, or other facilities. respect to litigation or environmental matters in order to

mitigate contingent potential liability and protect Pharmacia and
The successful development and commercialization of our us, if Solutia refuses to do so. Additional information about
pipeline products will be necessary for our growth. Solutia and other litigation matters and the related risks to our

We use advanced breeding technologies to produce hybrids business may be found in Note 21 and in other sections of
and varieties with superior performance in the farmer’s field. this report.
The process of breeding and trait integration is lengthy, and less
than 1% of the pipeline is selected for commercialization. There Our operations outside the United States are subject to

are a number of reasons why a new product concept may be special risks and restrictions, which could negatively affect

abandoned, including greater than anticipated development our results of operations and profitability.

costs, technical difficulties, regulatory obstacles, competition, We engage in manufacturing, seed production, research
inability to prove the original concept, lack of demand, and the and development, and sales in many parts of the world.
need to divert focus, from time to time, to other initiatives with Although we have operations in virtually every region, our sales
perceived opportunities for better returns. The length of time outside the United States in fiscal year 2007 were principally to
and the risk associated with the breeding and biotech pipelines customers in Brazil, Argentina, Canada, Mexico and France.
are similar and interlinked because both are required as a Accordingly, developments in those parts of the world generally
package for commercial success in markets where biotech traits have a more significant effect on our operations than
are approved for growers. In countries where biotech traits are developments in other places. Our operations outside the
not approved for widespread use, our sales depend on our United States are subject to special risks and restrictions,
germplasm. Commercial success frequently depends on being including: fluctuations in currency values and foreign-currency
the first company to the market, and many of our competitors exchange rates; exchange control regulations; changes in local
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political or economic conditions; governmental pricing directives; contamination, and therefore to potential personal injury claims,
import and trade restrictions; import or export licensing remediation expenses and penalties. We have entered into
requirements and trade policy; restrictions on the ability to agreements with various regulatory agencies for the
repatriate funds; and other potentially detrimental domestic and management of many of our sites, and if we fail to comply with
foreign governmental practices or policies affecting such agreements, we could be subject to penalties and facility
U.S. companies doing business abroad. Acts of terror or war shutdowns. Should a catastrophic event occur at any of our
may impair our ability to operate in particular countries or facilities, we could face significant reconstruction or remediation
regions, and may impede the flow of goods and services costs, penalties, third party liability and loss of production
between countries. Customers in weakened economies may be capacity, which could affect our sales. In addition, lapses in
unable to purchase our products, or it could become more quality or other manufacturing controls could affect our sales
expensive for them to purchase imported products in their local and result in claims for defective products.
currency, or sell their commodity at prevailing international

Our ability to match our production to the level of productprices, and we may be unable to collect receivables from such
demanded by farmers or our licensed customers has acustomers. Further, changes in exchange rates may affect our
significant effect on our sales, costs, and growth potential.net income, the book value of our assets outside the United

Farmers’ decisions are affected by market, economic andStates, and our shareowners’ equity.
weather conditions that are not known in advance. Failure to

In the event of any diversion of management’s attention to provide distributors with enough inventory of our products will
matters related to acquisitions or any delays or difficulties reduce our current sales. However, product inventory levels at
encountered in connection with integrating acquired our distributors may reduce sales in future periods, as those
operations, our business, and in particular our results of distributor inventories are worked down. In addition, inadequate
operations and financial condition, may be harmed. distributor liquidity could affect distributors’ ability to pay for our

We have recently completed the acquisition of Delta and products and, therefore, affect our sales or our ability to collect
Pine Land, and we expect to make additional acquisitions. We on our receivables. With demand for our glyphosate products in
must fit such acquisitions into our long-term growth strategies recent years, we are producing near capacity and have a
to generate sufficient value to justify their cost. Acquisitions low inventory.
also present other challenges, including geographical

Our ability to issue short-term debt to fund our cash flowcoordination, personnel integration and retention of key
requirements and the cost of such debt may affect ourmanagement personnel, systems integration and the
financial condition.reconciliation of corporate cultures. Those operations could

We regularly extend credit to our customers in certain areasdivert management’s attention from our business or cause a
of the world so that they can buy agricultural products at thetemporary interruption of or loss of momentum in our business
beginning of their growing seasons. Because of these creditand the loss of key personnel from the acquired companies.
practices and the seasonality of our sales, we may need to issue

Fluctuations in commodity prices can increase our costs short-term debt at certain times of the year to fund our cash flow
and decrease our sales. requirements. The amount of short-term debt will be greater to

We purchase our seed inventories from production growers the extent that we are unable to collect customer receivables
at market prices and retain the seed in inventory until it is sold. when due, to repatriate funds from operations outside the United
These purchases constitute a significant portion of the States, and to manage our costs and expenses. Any downgrade
manufacturing costs for our seeds. We use hedging strategies to in our credit rating, or other limitation on our access to short-term
mitigate the risk of short-term changes in these prices but are financing or refinancing, would increase our interest cost and
unable to avoid the risk of medium- and long-term changes. adversely affect our profitability.
Accordingly, increases in commodity prices may negatively affect

Weather, natural disasters and accidents may significantlyour cost of goods sold or cause us to increase seed prices,
affect our results of operations and financial condition.which could adversely affect our sales. Farmers’ incomes are also

Weather conditions and natural disasters can affect theaffected by commodity prices; as a result, commodity prices
timing of planting and the acreage planted, as well as yields andcould have a negative effect on their ability to purchase
commodity prices. In turn, the quality, cost and volumes of theour products.
seed that we are able to produce and sell will be affected,

Compliance with quality controls and regulations affecting which will affect our sales and profitability. Natural disasters or
our manufacturing may be costly, and failure to comply industrial accidents could also affect our manufacturing facilities,
may result in decreased sales, penalties and or those of our major suppliers or major customers, which could
remediation obligations. affect our costs and our ability to meet supply. One of our

Because we use hazardous and other regulated materials in major U.S. glyphosate manufacturing facilities is located in
our chemical manufacturing processes and engage in mining Luling, Louisiana, which is an area subject to hurricanes.
operations, we are subject to risks of accidental environmental
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

At Aug. 31, 2007, there were no unresolved comments from
the staff of the SEC related to our periodic or current reports
under the Exchange Act.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We and our subsidiaries own or lease manufacturing facilities, Augusta, Georgia; Camaçari, Brazil; Luling, Louisiana; Muscatine,
laboratories, seed production and other agricultural facilities, Iowa; São José dos Campos, Brazil; Soda Springs, Idaho; and
office space, warehouses and other land parcels in North Zárate, Argentina. We lease the land underlying the facilities that
America, South America, Europe, Asia, Australia, and Africa. Our we own in Alvin, Texas, and in Antwerp, Belgium. We also lease
general offices, which we own, are located in St. Louis County, the manufacturing facility and land underlying the facility at
Missouri. We lease additional research facilities from Pfizer at Augusta, Georgia, with an option to buy it, pursuant to an
Chesterfield Village in St. Louis County. These office and industrial revenue bond financing. We own the other properties.
research facilities are principal properties. We believe that our principal properties are suitable and

Additional principal properties used by the Seeds and adequate for their use. Use of these facilities may vary with
Genomics segment include seed conditioning plants at seasonal, economic and other business conditions, but none of
Constantine, Michigan; Grinnell, Iowa; Kearney, Nebraska; the principal properties is substantially idle. Our facilities
Oxnard, California; Peyrehorade, France; Rojas, Argentina; Sinesti, generally have sufficient capacity for existing needs and
Romania; Trèbes, France; and Uberlândia, Brazil; and research expected near-term growth, and expansion projects are
sites at Ankeny, Iowa; Maui, Hawaii; Middleton, Wisconsin; undertaken as necessary to meet future needs. In particular, we
Mystic, Connecticut; and Woodland, California. We own all of plan to invest up to $610 million to expand our corn production
these properties, except the property in Maui. The Seeds and facilities in North America over the next three years to meet
Genomics segment also uses seed foundation and production anticipated increased demand for our corn seed and are
facilities, breeding facilities, and genomics and other research evaluating alternatives to increase our capacity to produce
laboratories at various locations worldwide. glyphosate through de-bottlenecking or the extension of existing

The Agricultural Productivity segment has principal chemicals facilities. In certain instances, we have leased to third parties
manufacturing facilities at Alvin, Texas; Antwerp, Belgium; portions of sites not required for current operations.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are involved in various legal proceedings that arise in the Patent and Commercial Proceedings

ordinary course of our business, as well as proceedings that we On Dec. 4, 2000, we filed suit in the U.S. District Court for the
have considered to be material under SEC regulations. These Eastern District of Missouri for a declaratory judgment against
include proceedings to which we are party in our own name, Bayer CropScience AG, a subsidiary of Bayer AG, and its affiliates
proceedings to which Pharmacia is a party but that we manage that four patents that involve claims to truncated Bt technology
and for which we are responsible, and proceedings that we are were invalid and not infringed by the MON810 corn product
managing related to Solutia’s Assumed Liabilities (as defined in contained in YieldGard corn. Bayer CropScience counterclaimed to
Note 21). We believe we have meritorious legal arguments and request royalties for prior sales of YieldGard corn and injunctive
will continue to represent our interests vigorously in all of the relief but later dismissed with prejudice its claims on three of the
proceedings that we are defending or prosecuting. Information four patents in dispute and agreed not to sue us, our affiliates or
regarding certain material proceedings and the possible effects our sublicensees under those patents for any of our current
on our business of proceedings we are defending is disclosed in commercial products. On Nov. 22, 2005, a jury returned a verdict
Note 21 under the subheading ‘‘Litigation and Indemnification’’ in our favor and determined that MON810 did not infringe the
and is incorporated by reference herein. Following is information remaining patent at issue and that the patent was invalid. On
regarding other material proceedings for which we Aug. 28, 2006, the Court entered an order also invalidating the
are responsible. patents on the basis of inequitable conduct. Bayer CropScience

filed a notice of appeal of the results of the jury trial and the
Court’s decision on Oct. 24, 2006. Oral argument on Bayer’s
appeal of the jury verdict is set for Nov. 5, 2007.
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The following proceedings involve Syngenta AG (Syngenta) agreements and seek recovery of damages and injunctive
and its affiliates: relief. This case has been set for trial commencing

Jan. 21, 2008.
m On May 10, 2004, we filed suit against Syngenta Seeds in

the Circuit Court of St. Louis County, Missouri, for a m On Aug. 7, 2006, acting on a long pending jury advisory
declaratory judgment seeking a determination that, under its verdict, the U.S. District Court for the Middle District of
license from us, Syngenta Seeds is limited to North Carolina ruled that scientists of Rhône Poulenc
commercializing its Roundup Ready soybeans under one Agrochimie S.A. were entitled to be named as co-inventors
product brand. On Feb. 8, 2006, after a bench trial, the Court of U.S. Patent No. 6,040,497 but were not entitled to be
ruled in our favor and permanently enjoined Syngenta from named as co-inventors of U.S. Patent No. 5,554,798 (the
using any brand other than the NK˛ brand in the production, ‘798 Patent). The ‘798 Patent covers glyphosate-tolerant
marketing, advertising, or sale of our Roundup Ready crops and fertile transgenic corn and was assigned to
soybean technology. On June 12, 2007, the Missouri Court DEKALB. On Aug. 9, 2006, DEKALB filed suit against
of Appeals reversed the judgment of the trial court and Syngenta Seeds and Syngenta Biotechnology in the
remanded for a new trial. The case currently has no U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Missouri. The
trial setting. suit alleges infringement of the ‘798 Patent by the making

and selling of GA21 corn. We are seeking an injunction
m On May 12, 2004, we filed suit against Syngenta Seeds and

against the sale of GA21 corn by Syngenta and its affiliatesSyngenta Biotechnology, Inc. in the U.S. District Court for
and damages for willful infringement of DEKALB’s patent.the District of Delaware (the Shah case). On July 27, 2004,
This case is currently set for trial beginning July 7, 2008.DEKALB filed suit against Syngenta Seeds and Syngenta

Biotechnology in the U.S. District Court for the Northern On July 26, 2005, American Seed Company (which is
District of Illinois (the Lundquist case). The suits allege unrelated to Monsanto or its ASI subsidiary) filed a purported
infringement of our patents involving glyphosate-tolerant class action suit against us in the U.S. District Court for the
crops and fertile transgenic corn and seek injunctions District of Delaware, supposedly on behalf of direct purchasers
against the sale of GA21 corn by Syngenta and its affiliates of corn seed containing our transgenic traits. American Seed
and damages for willful infringement of our patents. On essentially alleges that we have monopolized or attempted to
May 19, 2005, the U.S. District Court for the Northern monopolize markets for glyphosate-tolerant corn seed, European
District of Illinois transferred the Lundquist case to the corn borer-protected corn seed and foundation corn seed.
U.S. District Court for the District of Delaware. It was then Plaintiffs seek an unspecified amount of damages and injunctive
consolidated for discovery and trial with the Shah case. The relief. On Nov. 13, 2006, the trial court denied plaintiffs’ motion
District Court granted summary judgment in favor of for class certification. On Jan. 25, 2007, the U.S. Court of
Syngenta on May 11, 2006, ruling that the Shah patent was Appeal for the Third Circuit granted Plaintiffs’ motion to review
invalid and Syngenta did not infringe the Lundquist patents. the trial court’s decision denying class certification. The case
On June 8, 2006, we appealed the Court’s decision to the has been stayed pending the decision of the Third Circuit. There
U.S. Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit. On currently is no trial setting for this matter.
Oct. 4, 2007,  the Federal Circuit affirmed the decision of While efforts continue, discussions have failed to resolve
the District Court. outstanding issues related to the development of a payment

system for the use of our technology to produce soybean
m On July 28, 2004, Syngenta filed suit against us in the

products in Argentina or Uruguay containing our patentedU.S. District Court for the District of Delaware, alleging that
Roundup Ready technologies. We have initiated patentwe have monopolized or attempted to monopolize markets
infringement actions against importers of Argentine soy productsfor glyphosate-tolerant corn seed, European corn borer-
that were found to have contained our unlicensed glyphosate-protected corn seed and foundation corn seed (the Antitrust
tolerant technology, which is patented in the respective EuropeanAction). Syngenta seeks $57 million in supposed actual
countries. In June 2005, we filed cases against Cefetra, in Thedamages and requested treble damages, attorneys’ fees
Hague, the Netherlands, and Den Lokale, A.m.d.A., et al., in theand injunctive relief. In July 2005, we filed counterclaims
Danish High Court, Eastern Division. In February and Marchagainst Syngenta, Syngenta Seeds, and affiliated companies
2006, we filed cases against Bunge Iberica SA, Ceralto SL andfor misappropriation of property and false advertising. On
Sesostris SAE in Spain, and Cargill International SA and CargillNov. 8, 2006, the Court stayed the trial of this matter. It
plc in England. Further cases were filed in May and June 2006currently has no trial setting.
against Alfred C. Toepfer International GmbH and Glencore Grain

m On Sept. 21, 2004, Golden Harvest Seeds, Inc., a subsidiary BV and Glencore Grain Rotterdam BV, in the courts of The
of Syngenta, filed suit against us in the Circuit Court of Hague. A first trial is scheduled for The Hague in October 2007.
St. Louis County, Missouri, seeking a declaration with The trial in England took place in June 2007, and a decision was
respect to its right to sell-off certain corn products after the received in October 2007. The court found that our patent is
termination of its various corn trait licenses with us. We valid and that the patented sequence is present in the soy meal
counterclaimed for unjust enrichment and breach of the
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imported from Argentina but that there was no infringement on late February 2007, three additional suits were filed, alleging
the basis of an interpretation of our patent claim language. We similar claims. All of these suits were filed in the U.S. District
are appealing the decision. The hearing in the Sesostris case in Court for the District of Delaware. On July 18, 2007, the court
Spain took place in July 2007. An adverse decision was ruled that any such suit had to be filed in federal or state court
delivered in September 2007 and has since been appealed. The in Missouri and granted our motion to dismiss the two original
first Dutch case is scheduled for trial beginning Oct. 26, 2007. cases. On Aug. 8, 2007, plaintiffs in the remaining three cases
No trial has yet been scheduled in the Danish High Court. The voluntarily dismissed their complaints, which have not been re-
Argentine government has opposed our use of patent filed. On Aug. 10, 2007, the same set of counsel filed a parallel
infringement actions as a means of securing payment for the action in federal court in San Antonio, Texas, on behalf of a
use of our technology in Argentina and has been admitted as a retailer of glyphosate. Plaintiffs seek to certify a national class of
co-defendant to the proceedings in the Netherlands and as an all entities that purchased glyphosate directly from us since
observer to the proceedings in Denmark. Also in response to August 2003.
our actions, the Argentine Secretary of Agriculture has On Aug. 3, 2007, we filed an arbitration claim against
requested that the national competition commission in Argentina Sandoz GmbH, a subsidiary of the pharmaceutical company
(CNDC) proceed with a civil administrative action against us. The Novartis AG, in an International Chamber of Commerce
CNDC has initiated a market investigation, under which we proceeding. We seek to recover damages suffered while Sandoz
were given the opportunity to provide information to the CNDC made corrections and improvements at its facility in response to
before it would consider whether or not to initiate a formal deficiencies cited by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration
proceeding. We provided information to the CNDC in (FDA) in a Warning Letter to Sandoz following an inspection of
February 2007. its pharmaceutical facility in Kundl, Austria, which contracted to

On May 22, 2007, Iowa State University Research supply our dairy product, Posilac bovine somatotropin.
Foundation (ISURF) filed but did not serve an action in the

Agent Orange ProceedingsU.S. District Court for the Southern District of Iowa, alleging
Various manufacturers of herbicides used by the U.S. armedthat our low linolenic acid soybean product, commercialized
services during the Vietnam War, including the formerunder the trade name Vistive, infringes two ISURF patents
Monsanto Company, have been parties to lawsuits filed onrelating to the use of certain varieties to create low linolenic
behalf of veterans and others alleging injury from exposure toacid soybeans. ISURF sought damages, including treble
the herbicides. In re Agent Orange Product Liability Litigation,damages for willful infringement, and an injunction. ISURF also
MDL 381 (MDL), a multidistrict litigation proceeding establishedseeks a declaration that it did not enter into an enforceable
in 1977 to coordinate Agent Orange-related litigation in thesettlement agreement with us. On Aug. 31, 2007, ISURF, Iowa
United States, was settled in 1984, concluding all class actionState University (ISU), and we entered into agreements under
litigation filed on behalf of U.S. and certain other groups ofwhich we received a commercial license from ISURF for current
plaintiffs. After the U.S. Supreme Court allowed new claims toand future low linolenic acid soybean products developed by
proceed notwithstanding the settlement, this litigation was sentISU, while ISU received a research license for use of our next
back to Judge Weinstein of the U.S. District Court for thegeneration glyphosate tolerant soybean technology. As part of
Eastern District of New York, who originally presided over thethose agreements, ISURF dismissed with prejudice all of its
MDL. After a hearing during the week of Feb. 28, 2005, theclaims in the lawsuit.
District Court granted the motions for summary judgment filedStarting the week of March 7, 2004, a series of purported
by Monsanto and other defendants in all pending cases arisingclass action cases were filed in 14 different state courts against
out of claims from U.S. veterans on the basis of thePioneer Hi-Bred International, Inc. and us. The suits allege that
government contractor defense. Plaintiffs have appealed thewe conspired with Pioneer to violate various state competition
District Court’s judgment to the U.S. Court of Appeals for theand consumer protection laws by allegedly fixing and artificially
Second Circuit, which heard oral argument on June 18, 2007.inflating the prices and fees for our various biotechnology traits

A purported class action suit, styled VAVAO, et al. v. Theand seeds containing those traits and imposing certain use
Dow Chemical Company, et al., was filed in the U.S. Districtrestrictions. All of these cases have been transferred to the
Court for the Eastern District of New York by the VietnamU.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Missouri and
Association of Victims of Agent Orange (VAVAO) alleging thatconsolidated, except for one case that was pending in state
the manufacturers of Agent Orange conspired with thecourt in Tennessee, which has been dismissed. No trial dates
U.S. government to commit war crimes and crimes againsthave been set for these matters.
humanity in connection with the spraying of Agent Orange. ThisTwo purported class action suits were filed against us on
case was also assigned to Judge Weinstein. On March 10,Sept. 26, 2006, supposedly on behalf of all farmers who
2005, the District Court granted the motions to dismiss and forpurchased our Roundup brand herbicides in the United States
summary judgment filed by Monsanto and other defendants infor commercial agricultural purposes since Sept. 26, 2002.
this case. Plaintiffs have appealed the District Court’s judgmentPlaintiffs essentially allege that we have monopolized the
to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit, which heardmarket for glyphosate for commercial agricultural purposes, and
oral argument on June 18, 2007.seek an unspecified amount of damages and injunctive relief. In

14



MONSANTO COMPANY 2007 FORM 10-K

In a purported class action suit styled Dobbie, et al. v. The Land reported to the SEC and the DOJ immaterial potential
Attorney General of Canada, pending in the Federal Court of FCPA compliance issues, including payments that were not
Canada in Ottawa, Canada, individuals who either served at or properly recorded in a subsidiary’s books and records. Delta and
live by a Canadian Forces Base in Gagetown, New Brunswick, Pine Land has entered into an agreement with the SEC to pay
brought an action against the Canadian government for injuries penalties of $300,000 and to retain for a period of one year an
supposedly suffered as the result of exposure to a variety of independent consultant to review and evaluate its policies and
chemicals used by it during the course of a 30-year program to procedures to ensure compliance with the FCPA. Delta and Pine
control weeds and vegetation at the facility. Thereafter, Land has retained the same independent consultant retained by
purported class action lawsuits have been filed by plaintiffs Monsanto. As the acquiring company, we have assumed
against the Canadian government in at least four provinces, responsibility for that agreement.
including Manitoba, New Brunswick, Newfoundland, and On April 18, 2005, we received a subpoena from the Illinois
Ontario. On Jan. 12, 2007, in the New Brunswick action, the Attorney General for the production of documents relating to
Canadian government filed a third party action against Dow the prices and terms upon which we license technology for
Chemical and us, as manufacturers of Agent Orange, seeking genetically modified seeds, and upon which we sell or license
contribution for any injuries plaintiffs may have suffered as the genetically modified seeds to farmers. We are cooperating with
result of the spraying of Agent Orange chemicals in 1967 and the production of the requested materials.
1968. On Aug. 1, 2007, the trial court in the case pending in On Sept. 4, 2007, we received a civil investigative demand
Newfoundland certified a class of all individuals who were at from the Iowa Attorney General seeking information regarding
CFB Gagetown between 1956 and the present and who claim the production and marketing of glyphosate and the
they were exposed to dangerous levels of dioxin or HCB while development, production, marketing, or licensing of soybean,
on the base. On Sept. 18, 2007, the Court of Appeal granted corn, or cotton germplasm containing transgenic traits. We are
the application of the Canadian government, Dow, and cooperating with the production of the requested materials.
Monsanto for leave to appeal the trial court’s class Iowa is coordinating with several other states that are also
certification decision. interested in receiving the requested materials.

On Dec. 2, 2005, the Federal Revenue Service of the
Governmental Proceedings and Undertakings Ministry of Finance of Brazil issued a tax assessment against
On Oct. 20, 2004, the EPA issued a Notice of Violation to us, our wholly owned subsidiary, Monsanto do Brasil Ltda.,
alleging violations of federal and state hazardous waste challenging the tax treatment of $575 million of notes issued in
management regulations at our phosphorus manufacturing plant 1998 on the basis that the transactions involving the notes
in Soda Springs, Idaho. The EPA has asserted that the alleged represented contributions to the capital of Monsanto do Brasil
violations may subject us to civil penalties. We are working with rather than funding through issuance of notes. The assessment
the EPA to reach a resolution of this matter. denies tax deductions for approximately $1.13 billion (subject to

On Sept. 17, 2007, the EPA issued a Notice of Violation currency exchange rates) of interest expense and currency
to us, alleging violations of the Clean Water Act at the South exchange losses that were claimed by Monsanto do Brasil
Rasmussen Mine located near Soda Springs, Idaho. The EPA under the notes. The assessment seeks payment of
has asserted that the alleged violations may subject us to civil approximately $52 million (subject to currency exchange rates)
penalties. We are working with the EPA to reach a resolution of of tax, excluding penalties and interest, related to the notes, and
this matter. would preclude Monsanto do Brasil from using a net operating

In January 2005, we consented to an SEC Order and loss carryforward of approximately $986 million (subject to
entered into a Deferred Prosecution Agreement (DPA) with the currency exchange rates). The issuance of the notes was
Department of Justice concerning their investigations of properly registered with the Central Bank of Brazil and we
improper payments and related financial irregularities in believe that there is no basis in law for this tax assessment. On
connection with our Indonesian affiliates. We paid penalties of Dec. 29, 2005, Monsanto do Brasil filed an appeal of this
$1.5 million, agreed to certain enhancements of our compliance assessment with the Federal Revenue Service. Under the terms
program, and are required to cease and desist from any further of a tax sharing agreement concluded with Pharmacia at the
violations of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (FCPA) and to time of our separation from Pharmacia, Pharmacia would be
retain for a period of three years an independent consultant to responsible for a portion of any liability incurred by virtue of the
review and evaluate our policies and procedures to ensure tax assessment. As noted, certain dollar amounts have been
compliance with the FCPA. If we comply with the terms of the calculated based on an exchange rate of 1.79 Brazilian reais per
DPA for three years, we fully expect the charges deferred under U.S. dollar, and will fluctuate with exchange rates in the future.
the DPA to be permanently dismissed. The independent Mahyco Monsanto Biotech Ltd. (MMB), a joint venture of our
consultant began his review in March 2005. We continue to subsidiary Monsanto Holdings Private Limited and MAHYCO
work with the independent consultant and also continue to Seeds Limited, is currently defending complaints before the
implement improvements to our FCPA compliance program. Monopoly and Restrictive Trade Practice Commission in India

Prior to our acquisition of Delta and Pine Land Company, (MRTP), relating to the fees it charges on Bollgard technology.
through our due diligence, we discovered and Delta and Pine Additionally, approximately seven individual states in India have
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issued letters/orders prospectively setting a maximum amount at and future investigation and cleanup costs in Anniston, Alabama,
which seed companies may sell cotton seed packets containing under the Comprehensive Environmental Response
Bt cotton, including Bollgard cotton. On May 11, 2006, the MRTP Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA). The defendants are
concluded that MMB was in violation of law by engaging in owners and operators of manufacturing facilities that Solutia/
restrictive trade practices by charging unreasonable trait fees, Pharmacia believed were responsible for a major share of the
granted a temporary injunction and directed MMB not to charge PCB contamination found throughout Anniston. EPA has entered
Rupees 900 as a trait fee and to set a reasonable trait fee. into agreements with certain of the defendants to this suit,
Appeal was taken to India’s Supreme Court. Pending purporting to grant contribution protection under CERCLA for
determination of any appeal, MMB has complied with the both lead and PCB related cleanup costs in Anniston. On
directions of the order. MMB has also filed writs with the India Jan. 27, 2006, those defendants filed a motion for summary
Supreme Court challenging the state government orders. judgment in our contribution suit on the basis of the EPA

agreement, to which we responded. We have reached de
Proceedings Related to Solutia’s Assumed Liabilities minimis settlements with two of the defendants who did not
On June 5, 2003, in an action styled Solutia Inc. and Pharmacia sign the agreement with the EPA.
Corporation v. McWane, Inc. et al., Solutia and Pharmacia filed See Note 21 for additional information regarding legal
suit in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of proceedings related to Solutia’s Assumed Liabilities.
Alabama against 19 parties to force them to pay a share of past

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

Not applicable.

Executive Officers

See Part III — Item 10 of this Report on Form 10-K for information about our Executive Officers.
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS, AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES 

Monsanto’s common stock is traded principally on the New York Stock Exchange, under the symbol MON. The number of
shareowners of record as of Oct. 23, 2007, was 47,396.

On June 27, 2006, the board of directors approved a two-for-one split of the company’s common shares. The additional shares
resulting from the stock split were paid on July 28, 2006, to shareowners of record on July 7, 2006. All share and per share information
herein reflects this stock split.

The original dividend rate adopted by the board of directors following the initial public offering (IPO) in October 2000 was  $0.06. The
board of directors increased the company’s quarterly dividend rate in April 2003 to $0.065, in May 2004 to $0.0725, in December 2004 to
$0.085, in December 2005 to $0.10, in December 2006 to $0.125, and in August 2007 to $0.175.

The following table sets forth dividend declarations, as well as the high and low sales prices for Monsanto’s common stock, for
the fiscal year 2007 and 2006 quarters indicated.

1st 2nd 3rd 4th Fiscal
Dividends per Share Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year

2007 $  — $ 0.25(1) $ — $ 0.30(1) $ 0.55

2006 $ — $ 0.20(2) $ — $ 0.20(2) $ 0.40

1st 2nd 3rd 4th Fiscal
Common Stock Price Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year

2007 High $49.44 $57.08 $63.90 $70.88 $70.88
Low 42.75 47.12 50.01 58.50 42.75

2006 High $37.48 $43.98 $44.88 $47.58 $47.58
Low 27.80 36.80 39.63 37.91 27.80

(1) During the period from Dec. 1, 2006, through Feb. 28, 2007, Monsanto declared two dividends, $0.125 per share on Dec. 12, 2006, and $0.125 per share on Jan. 17, 2007.
During the period from June 1, 2007, through Aug. 31, 2007, Monsanto declared two dividends, $0.125 per share on June 15, 2007, and $0.175 per share on Aug. 7, 2007.

(2) During the period from Dec. 1, 2005, through Feb. 28, 2006, Monsanto declared two dividends, $0.10 per share on Dec. 12, 2005, and $0.10 per share on Jan. 17, 2006.
During the period from June 1,  2006, through Aug. 31, 2006, Monsanto declared two dividends, $0.10 per share on June 27, 2006, and $0.10 per share on Aug. 7, 2006.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table summarizes purchases of equity securities during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2007 by Monsanto and affiliated
purchasers, pursuant to SEC rules.

(c) Total Number of Shares (d) Approximate Dollar
Purchased as Part of Value of Shares that May

(a) Total Number of (b) Average Price Publicly Announced Plans Yet Be Purchased Under
Period Shares Purchased Paid per Share(1) or Programs the Plans or Programs

June 2007:
June 1, 2007, through June 30, 2007 953(2) $66.23 — $585,541,572

July 2007:
July 1, 2007, through July 31, 2007 1,402,690 $67.69 1,402,690 $490,588,851

August 2007:
Aug. 1, 2007, through Aug. 31, 2007 — — — $490,588,851

Total 1,403,643 $67.69 1,402,690 $490,588,851
(1) The average price paid per share is calculated on a settlement basis and excludes commission.
(2) Represents shares withheld to cover the withholding taxes upon the vesting of restricted stock.

On Oct. 25, 2005, the board of directors authorized the purchase of up to $800 million of the company’s common stock over a four-
year period. The plan expires on Oct. 25, 2009. There were no other publicly announced plans outstanding as of Aug. 31, 2007.
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Stock Price Performance Graph

The graph below compares the performance of Monsanto’s common stock with the performance of the Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock
Index (a broad-based market index) and a peer group index over a 68-month period extending through the end of the 2007 fiscal year.
In July 2003, we changed from a calendar year end to a fiscal year ending August 31. Monsanto therefore had an eight-month
transition period from Jan. 1, 2003, through Aug. 31, 2003. The measurement periods shown in the performance graph below
correspond to our calendar year ends prior to our change in fiscal year, our transition period that ended on Aug. 31, 2003, and our
subsequent Aug. 31 fiscal year ends. The graph assumes that $100 was invested on Jan. 1, 2002, in our common stock, in the
Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock Index and the peer group index, and that all dividends were reinvested.

Because we are involved both in the agricultural products business and in the seeds and genomics business, no published peer
group accurately mirrors our portfolio of businesses. Accordingly, we created a peer group index that includes Bayer AG ADR, Dow
Chemical Company, DuPont (E.I.) de Nemours and Company, BASF AG and Syngenta AG. The Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock Index
and the peer group index are included for comparative purposes only. They do not necessarily reflect management’s opinion that
such indices are an appropriate measure of the relative performance of the stock involved, and they are not intended to forecast or
be indicative of possible future performance of our common stock.

Comparison of Cumulative Total Return

MONSANTO COMPANY S&P 500 INDEX PEER GROUP
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12/31/01 12/31/02 08/31/03 08/31/04 08/31/05 08/31/06 08/31/07

MONSANTO COMPANY 100 58.25 79.32 114.87 202.77 304.31 451.22

S&P 500 INDEX 100 77.90 90.32 100.67 113.31 123.38 142.05

PEER GROUP 100 94.66 107.17 125.34 144.32 164.79 234.25

In accordance with the rules of the SEC, the information contained in the Stock Price Performance Graph on this page shall not
be deemed to be ‘‘soliciting material,’’ or to be ‘‘filed’’ with the SEC or subject to the SEC’s Regulation 14A, or to the liabilities of
Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, except to the extent that Monsanto specifically requests that the
information be treated as soliciting material or specifically incorporates it by reference into a document filed under the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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ITEM 6.  SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Year
Eight Months Ended

Year Ended Aug. 31, Ended Aug. 31, Dec. 31,

(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2003 2002 2002

Operating Results:
Net sales(1) $ 8,563 $ 7,294 $ 6,275 $ 5,423 $ 4,924 $ 3,378 $ 3,129 $ 4,674
Income from operations 1,418 1,171 778 603 676 483 151 344
Income from continuing operations 922 695 193 266 98 — 48 146
Income (loss) on discontinued operations(2) 71 — 62 1 (18) (11) (11) (17)
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, net of tax

benefit(3,4,5) — (6) — — (12) (12) (1,822) (1,822)
Net income (loss) 993 689 255 267 68 (23) (1,785) (1,693)

Basic Earnings (Loss) per Share(6):
Income from continuing operations $ 1.70 $ 1.29 $ 0.36 $ 0.50 $ 0.19 $  — $ 0.09 $ 0.28
Income (loss) on discontinued operations(2) 0.13 — 0.12 — (0.04) (0.02) (0.02) (0.03)
Cumulative effect of accounting change(3,4,5) — (0.01) — — (0.02) (0.02) (3.50) (3.50)
Net income (loss) 1.83 1.28 0.48 0.50 0.13 (0.04) (3.43) (3.25)

Diluted Earnings (Loss) per Share(6):
Income from continuing operations $ 1.66 $ 1.26 $ 0.35 $ 0.50 $ 0.19 $  — $ 0.09 $ 0.28
Income (loss) on discontinued operations(2) 0.13 — 0.12 — (0.04) (0.02) (0.02) (0.03)
Cumulative effect of accounting change(3,4,5) — (0.01) — — (0.02) (0.02) (3.46) (3.47)
Net income (loss) 1.79 1.25 0.47 0.50 0.13 (0.04) (3.39) (3.22)

Financial Position at end of Period:
Total assets $12,983 $ 11,728 $ 10,579 $ 9,164 $ 9,536 $ 9,536 $ 9,175 $ 8,949
Working capital(7) 2,009 3,182 2,485 3,037 2,920 2,920 2,804 2,537
Current ratio(7) 1.65:1 2.40:1 2.15:1 2.60:1 2.45:1 2.45:1 2.62:1 2.36:1
Long-term debt 1,150 1,639 1,458 1,075 1,258 1,258 1,148 851
Debt-to-capital ratio(8) 16% 20% 22% 21% 22% 22% 26% 19%

Other Data(6):
Dividends per share $ 0.55 $ 0.40 $ 0.34 $ 0.34 $ 0.25 $ 0.13 $ 0.12 $ 0.24
Stock price per share:

High $ 70.88 $ 47.58 $ 34.62 $ 19.25 $ 13.18 $ 13.18 $ 16.65 $ 16.65
Low $ 42.75 $ 27.80 $ 17.08 $ 11.54 $ 6.78 $ 6.78 $ 6.51 $ 6.51
End of period $ 69.74 $ 47.44 $ 31.92 $ 18.30 $ 12.86 $ 12.86 $ 9.19 $ 9.57

Basic shares outstanding 544.1 540.0 533.6 528.8 523.2 523.3 520.6 521.3
Diluted shares outstanding 555.0 551.6 545.3 538.4 523.7 524.3 526.4 525.2

See Item 7 — Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — for information regarding
the factors that have affected or may affect the comparability of our business results. In July 2003, Monsanto’s board of directors
approved a change in the company’s fiscal year end from December 31 to August 31. Accordingly, data presented in this report from
Jan. 1, 2003, through Aug. 31, 2003, is otherwise known as the transition period. For all periods except the 12 months ended
Aug. 31, 2003, and the eight months ended Aug. 31, 2002, the operating results data, earnings (loss) per share data, and financial
position data set forth above are derived from Monsanto Company’s audited consolidated financial statements. For the 12-month
period ended Aug. 31, 2003, and the eight-month period ended Aug. 31, 2002, this data is derived from unaudited consolidated
financial statements.
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(1) In 2005, Monsanto acquired Channel Bio Corp., and the North American canola seed businesses of Advanta Seeds. In 2005, Monsanto completed three acquisitions:
Seminis Inc., Stoneville, and NC+ Hybrids Inc. In 2006 and 2007, ASI acquired several regional seed companies. In 2007, Monsanto acquired Delta and Pine Land Company
(DPL) and divested the Stoneville˛ and NexGen˛ cotton seed brands and related business assets. See Note 4 — Business Combinations for further details of these
acquisitions and Note 26 — Discontinued Operations for further details of these divestitures.

(2) In 2007, we sold the Stoneville and NexGen businesses as part of the U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ) approval for the acquisition of DPL. In 2005, Monsanto sold
substantially all of the environmental technologies businesses. In 2004, Monsanto discontinued the plant-made pharmaceuticals program and finalized the sale of assets
associated with the company’s European wheat and barley business. Accordingly, these businesses have been presented as discontinued operations in the Statements of
Consolidated Operations for all periods presented above. In 2006, Monsanto recorded an additional write-down of $3 million aftertax related to the remaining assets
associated with the environmental technologies businesses. See Note 26 — Discontinued Operations for further details of these dispositions.

(3) In 2002, Monsanto adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. In connection with the adoption of this new
accounting standard, Monsanto recognized a transitional goodwill impairment charge of $1.8 billion aftertax effective Jan. 1, 2002.

(4) In 2003, Monsanto adopted SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations. In connection with the adoption of this new accounting standard, Monsanto
recorded a cumulative effect of accounting change of $12 million aftertax effective Jan. 1, 2003.

(5) In 2006, Monsanto adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation No. 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations — an interpretation
of FASB Statement No. 143. In connection with the adoption of this new accounting guidance, Monsanto recorded a cumulative effect of accounting change of
$6 million aftertax.

(6) For all periods presented, the share and per share amounts (including stock price) reflect the effect of the two-for-one stock split (in the form of a 100 percent stock
dividend) that was completed on July 28, 2006.

(7) Working capital is total current assets less total current liabilities; current ratio represents total current assets divided by total current liabilities.
(8) Debt-to-capital ratio is the sum of short-term and long-term debt, divided by the sum of short-term and long-term debt and shareowners’ equity. Fluctuations in our debt-to-

capital ratio from December 31 to August 31 were affected by the seasonality of our business.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

OVERVIEW Non-GAAP Financial Measures

MD&A includes financial information prepared in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), as well as

Background
two other financial measures, EBIT and free cash flow, that areMonsanto Company, along with its subsidiaries, is a leading
considered ‘‘non-GAAP financial measures.’’ Generally, a non-global provider of agricultural products for farmers. Our seeds,
GAAP financial measure is a numerical measure of a company’sbiotechnology trait products, and herbicides provide farmers
financial performance, financial position or cash flows thatwith solutions that improve productivity, reduce the costs of
excludes (or includes) amounts that are included in (or excludedfarming, and produce better foods for consumers and better
from) the most directly comparable measure calculated andfeed for animals.
presented in accordance with GAAP. The presentation of EBITWe manage our business in two segments: Seeds and
and free cash flow information is intended to supplementGenomics, and Agricultural Productivity. Through our Seeds and
investors’ understanding of our operating performance andGenomics segment, we produce leading seed brands, including
liquidity. Our EBIT and free cash flow measures may not beDEKALB, Asgrow, D&PL, Deltapine and Seminis, and we
comparable to other companies’ EBIT and free cash flowdevelop biotechnology traits that assist farmers in controlling
measures. Furthermore, these measures are not intended toinsects and weeds. We also provide other seed companies with
replace net income (loss), cash flows, financial position, orgenetic material and biotechnology traits for their seed brands.
comprehensive income (loss), as determined in accordance withThrough our Agricultural Productivity segment, we manufacture
U.S. GAAP.Roundup brand herbicides and other herbicides and provide

EBIT is defined as earnings (loss) before interest and taxes.lawn-and-garden herbicide products for the residential market
Earnings (loss) is intended to mean net income (loss) asand animal agricultural products focused on improving dairy cow
presented in the Statements of Consolidated Operations underproductivity. Approximately 43 percent of our total company
GAAP. EBIT is the primary operating performance measure forsales, 36 percent of our Seeds and Genomics segment sales,
our two business segments. We believe that EBIT is useful toand 54 percent of our Agricultural Productivity segment sales
investors and management to demonstrate the operationaloriginated from our legal entities outside the United States
profitability of our segments by excluding interest and taxes,during fiscal year 2007.
which are generally accounted for across the entire company onIn the fourth quarter of 2007, we sold our U.S. Stoneville˛
a consolidated basis. EBIT is also one of the measures used byand NexGen˛ cotton seed brands and related business assets
Monsanto management to determine resource allocations within(divested cotton businesses) as part of the U.S. Department of
the company. See Note 22 — Segment and Geographic Data —Justice (DOJ) approval for the acquisition of Delta and Pine Land
for a reconciliation of EBIT to net income (loss) for fiscal yearsCompany (DPL). In 2005, we sold substantially all of our
2007, 2006 and 2005.environmental technologies businesses. As a result, financial

We also provide information regarding free cash flow, andata for these businesses have been presented as discontinued
important liquidity measure for Monsanto. We define free cashoperations. The financial statements have been recast and
flow as the total of net cash provided or required by operatingprepared in compliance with the provisions of Statement of
activities and provided or required by investing activities. WeFinancial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 144, Accounting for
believe that free cash flow is useful to investors and managementthe Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets (SFAS 144).
as a measure of the ability of our business to generate cash. ThisAccordingly, for 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Statements of
cash can be used to meet business needs and obligations, toConsolidated Operations have been conformed to this
reinvest in the company for future growth, or to return to ourpresentation. The divested cotton businesses were previously
shareowners through dividend payments or share repurchases.reported as part of the Seeds and Genomics segment. The
Free cash flow is also used by management as one of theenvironmental technologies businesses were previously
performance measures in determining incentive compensation. Seereported as part of the Agricultural Productivity segment. See
the ‘‘Financial Condition, Liquidity, and Capital Resources — CashNote 26 — Discontinued Operations — for further details.
Flow’’ section of MD&A for a reconciliation of free cash flow toThis MD&A should be read in conjunction with Monsanto’s
net cash provided by operating activities and net cash required byconsolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes.
investing activities on the Statements of Consolidated Cash Flows.The notes to the consolidated financial statements referred to

throughout this MD&A are included in Part II — Item 8 —
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data — of this Report
on Form 10-K. Unless otherwise indicated, ‘‘earnings (loss) per
share’’ and ‘‘per share’’ mean diluted earnings (loss) per share.
Unless otherwise noted, all amounts and analyses are based on
continuing operations.
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Executive Summary Interpretation (FIN) No. 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset
Retirement Obligations (FIN 47).

Discontinued Operations — As discussed in Note 26 —
Discontinued Operations, in conjunction with the DOJ consent Financial Condition, Liquidity, and Capital Resources — In
decree, we sold our divested cotton businesses for $317 million 2007, net cash provided by operating activities was
during fourth quarter 2007. We recorded income of discontinued $1,854 million, compared with $1,674 million in 2006. Net cash
operations of $71 million aftertax, or $0.13 per share, primarily required by investing activities was $1,911 million in 2007,
related to the gain on the sale of the divested cotton businesses compared with $625 million in 2006. As a result, our free cash
which were part of the Seeds and Genomics segment. flow, as defined in the ‘‘Overview — Non-GAAP Financial

Measures’’ section of MD&A, was a use of cash of $57 million
Consolidated Operating Results, — Net sales in 2007 in 2007, compared with a source of cash of $1,049 million in
increased $1.3 billion from 2006. This improvement was a result 2006. We used cash for acquisitions of businesses of
of a $1.0 billion increase in sales of global corn seed and traits $1,679 million in 2007, compared with $258 million in 2006. For
and increased sales of global Roundup and other glyphosate- a more detailed discussion of the factors affecting the free cash
based herbicides sales, which were partially offset by a decline flow comparison, see the ‘‘Cash Flow’’ section of the ‘‘Financial
in U.S. soybean seed and trait sales and cotton trait sales in Condition, Liquidity, and Capital Resources’’ section in
Australia and the United States. Net income in 2007 was $1.79 this MD&A.
per share, compared with $1.25 per share in 2006.

The following factors affected the two-year comparison: Outlook — We aim to continue to improve our products in
order to maintain market leadership and to support near-term

2007:
performance. We are focused on applying innovation and

m In 2007, we expensed non-taxdeductible acquired in- technology to make our farmer customers more productive and
process research and development (IPR&D) of $193 million profitable by protecting yields and improving the ways they can
related to acquisitions. produce food, fiber and feed. We use the tools of modern

biology to make seeds easier to grow, to allow farmers to do
m We recorded income on discontinued operations of

more with fewer resources, and to produce healthier foods for$71 million aftertax, or $0.13 per share, in 2007, primarily
consumers. Our current research-and-development (R&D)related to the gain on the sale of the divested
strategy and commercial priorities are focused on bringing ourcotton businesses.
farmer customers second-generation traits, on delivering

m A tax benefit of $79 million was recorded in 2007 for multiple solutions in one seed (‘‘stacking’’), and on developing
several discrete tax adjustments. This benefit is primarily new pipeline products. Our capabilities in biotechnology and
the result of audit settlements, including the conclusion of breeding research are generating a rich product pipeline that is
an Internal Revenue Service (IRS) audit, an ex-U.S. audit, expected to drive long-term growth. The viability of our product
and the resolution of various state income tax matters. We pipeline depends in part on the speed of regulatory approvals
also recorded an additional tax benefit of $33 million in globally, and on continued patent and legal rights to offer
2007 and $15 million in 2006 for the reversal of a portion of our products.
our valuation allowance in Argentina. We aim to improve and to grow our vegetable and fruit

seed business. We have applied our molecular breeding and2006:
marker capabilities to our library of vegetable and fruit

m We adopted SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based germplasm. Our purchase of DPL will expand our cotton
Payments (SFAS 123R) on Sept. 1, 2005. As a result, the breeding operation. In the future, we will continue to focus on
2006 results included incremental after-tax stock-based accelerating the potential growth of these new businesses and
compensation expense of $32 million, or $0.06 per share. executing our business plans.
See Note 16 — Stock-Based Compensation Plans — for Roundup herbicides remain the market leader. We have
additional discussion. increased our average selling prices and experienced increased

demand in recent years. We are implementing strategies tom We recorded a tax charge of $21 million, or $0.04 per
meet the future demand for Roundup. We are focused onshare, in the fourth quarter of 2006, in conjunction with our
managing the costs associated with our agricultural chemistryrepatriation of $437 million of foreign earnings under the
business as that sector matures globally. Our selectiveAmerican Jobs Creation Act of 2004.
acetochlor herbicide products face increasing competitive

m We recorded a charge of $3 million aftertax, or $0.01 per
pressures and a declining market, in part because of the rapid

share, in 2006 associated with a write-down to fair value of
penetration of Roundup Ready corn in the United States.

assets of discontinued businesses held for sale.
We are required to indemnify Pharmacia for Solutia’s

m We recorded a charge of $6 million aftertax, or $0.01 per Assumed Liabilities (defined in Note 21), to the extent that
share, in 2006 for the cumulative effect of a change in Solutia fails to pay, perform or discharge those liabilities. Prior to
accounting principle as a result of adopting FASB and following its filing for bankruptcy protection, Solutia has
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disclaimed responsibility for some of Solutia’s Assumed associated with the bankruptcy proceedings. The degree to
Liabilities. In 2005, we recorded a pre-tax charge of $284 million which we may ultimately be responsible for the particular
for estimated litigation and environmental costs we expect to matters reflected in the reserve or other of Solutia’s Assumed
incur in connection with Solutia’s bankruptcy. As of Liabilities or Solutia-related expenses is uncertain until the
Aug. 31, 2007, the remaining Solutia-related reserve was outcome of all matters in the Chapter 11 proceeding are
$182 million. We believe that the reserve represents the resolved. Additional information about Solutia and other litigation
discounted cost that we expect to incur in connection with matters and the related risks to our business may be found in
these litigation and environmental matters. However, our actual Note 21. See the ‘‘Outlook’’ section of MD&A for a more
costs may differ materially from this estimate. In addition, the detailed discussion of some of the opportunities and risks we
reserve may not reflect all potential liabilities that we may incur have identified for our business. For additional information
in connection with Solutia’s bankruptcy and does not reflect any related to the outlook for Monsanto, see ‘‘Caution Regarding
insurance reimbursements or other recoveries that we might Forward-Looking Statements’’ above and Part I — Item 1A —
receive. We also continue to incur legal and other expenses Risk Factors of this Form 10-K.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

% ChangeYear Ended Aug. 31,

(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts) 2007 2006 2005 2007 vs. 2006 2006 vs. 2005

Net Sales $8,563 $7,294 $6,275 17% 16%
Gross Profit 4,286 3,519 2,995 22% 17%
Operating Expenses:

Selling, general and administrative expenses 1,895 1,638 1,404 16% 17%
Research and development expenses 780 710 583 10% 22%
Acquired in-process research and development (see Note 4) 193 — 230 NM NM

Total Operating Expenses 2,868 2,348 2,217 22% 6%

Income from Operations 1,418 1,171 778 21% 51%
Interest expense 139 134 115 4% 17%
Interest income (122) (55) (40) 122% 38%
Solutia-related expenses (see Note 21) 40 29 309 38% (91)%
Other expense — net 25 14 79 79% (82)%

Income from Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes and Minority Interest 1,336 1,049 315 27% 233%
Income tax provision 402 337 104 19% 224%
Minority interest expense 12 17 18 (29)% (6)%

Income from Continuing Operations 922 695 193 33% 260%
Discontinued Operations (see Note 26):

Income (loss) from operations of discontinued businesses 43 1 (25) NM NM
Income tax provision (benefit) (28) 1 (87) NM NM

Income on Discontinued Operations 71 — 62 NM NM

Income Before Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change 993 695 255 43% 173%
Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle, Net of Tax Benefit (see Note 2) — (6) — NM NM

Net Income $ 993 $ 689 $ 255 44% 170%

Diluted Earnings per Share:
Income from continuing operations $ 1.66 $ 1.26 $ 0.35 32% 260%
Income on discontinued operations 0.13 — 0.12 NM NM
Cumulative effect of accounting change — (0.01) — NM NM

Net Income $ 1.79 $ 1.25 $ 0.47 43% 166%
NM = Not Meaningful

Effective Tax Rate (continuing operations) 30% 32% 33%
Comparison as a Percent of Net Sales:

Gross profit 50% 48% 48%
Selling, general and administrative expenses 22% 22% 22%
Research and development expenses (excluding acquired IPR&D) 9% 10% 9%
Total operating expenses 33% 32% 35%
Income from continuing operations before income taxes and minority interest expense 16% 14% 5%
Net income 12% 9% 4%
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Overview of Financial Performance (2007 compared Interest expense increased 4 percent, or $5 million, in fiscal
with 2006) year 2007 from 2006. The increased expense was primarily

from higher average commercial paper borrowings outstanding
The following section discusses the significant components of during 2007.
our results of operations that affected the comparison of fiscal
year 2007 with fiscal year 2006. Interest income increased 122 percent, or $67 million, in 2007

because of interest earned on higher cash balances in Brazil and
Net sales increased 17 percent in 2007 from 2006. Our Seeds the United States and interest earned on past-due trade
and Genomics segment net sales improved 25 percent, and our receivables in Brazil.
Agricultural Productivity segment net sales improved 9 percent.
The following table presents the percentage changes in 2007 We recorded Solutia-related expenses of $40 million in 2007
worldwide net sales by segment compared with net sales in and $29 million in 2006. See Note 21 — Commitments and
2006, including the effect that volume, price, currency and Contingencies — for further details.
acquisitions had on these percentage changes:

Income tax provision for 2007 increased to $402 million. The
2007 Percentage Change in Net Sales vs. 2006 effective tax rate on continuing operations was 30 percent, a

Impact of Net decrease of 2 percentage points from 2006. This difference was
Volume Price Currency SubTotal Acquisitions(1) Change primarily the result of the following items:

Seeds and Genomics
m A tax benefit of $79 million was recorded in 2007 forSegment 16% 3% 2% 21% 4% 25%

several discrete tax adjustments. This benefit is primarily
Agricultural Productivity

the result of audit settlements, including the conclusion ofSegment 6% — 3% 9% — 9%
an IRS audit for tax years 2003 and 2004, an ex-U.S. audit,

Total Monsanto Company 11% 2% 2% 15% 2% 17% the resolution of various state income tax matters and, to a
(1) See Note 4 — Business Combinations — and ‘‘Financial Condition, Liquidity, and

lesser extent, a benefit related to the retroactive extensionCapital Resources’’ in MD&A for details of our acquisitions in fiscal years 2007
and 2006. In this presentation, acquisitions are segregated for one year from the of the R&D tax credit that was enacted as part of the Tax
acquisition date.

Relief and Health Care Act of 2006 on Dec. 20, 2006. We
also recorded an additional tax benefit of $33 million inFor a more detailed discussion of the factors affecting the net
2007 and $15 million in 2006 for the reversal of a portion ofsales comparison, see the ‘‘Seeds and Genomics Segment’’ and
our valuation allowance in Argentina.the ‘‘Agricultural Productivity Segment’’ sections.

m Nondeductible acquired IPR&D charges of $193 million
Gross profit increased 22 percent, or $767 million. Total were recorded in 2007.
company gross profit as a percent of net sales increased

m A tax charge of $21 million was recorded in 2006, in2 percentage points to 50 percent in 2007, driven by the
conjunction with the repatriation of $437 million of foreignincrease in higher margin traits, particularly in U.S. corn, and an
earnings under the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004increase in the average selling price of Roundup and other
(see discussion in Note 10 — Income Taxes).glyphosate-based herbicides. Gross profit as a percent of sales

for the Seeds and Genomics Segment remained at 61 percent. m A tax benefit of $32 million was recorded in 2006 as a
Gross profit as a percent of sales for the Agriculture Productivity result of the conclusion of an audit of Pharmacia for tax
segment increased 2 percentage points to 35 percent in the years 2000 to 2002 (when we were a member of
12-month comparison. See the ‘‘Seeds and Genomics Pharmacia’s consolidated group) by the IRS and, to a lesser
Segment’’ and ‘‘Agricultural Productivity Segment’’ sections of extent, favorable adjustments related to various state
MD&A for details. income tax issues.

Without these items, our effective tax rate for 2007 would
Operating expenses increased 22 percent, or $520 million, in have been lower than the 2006 rate, primarily driven by a full-
2007 from 2006, primarily because of the $193 million acquired year benefit of the R&D tax credit in 2007 and a shift in our
IPR&D charge in 2007. Selling, general and administrative earnings mix to lower tax-rate jurisdictions.
(SG&A) expenses increased 16 percent, and R&D expenses
increased 10 percent, primarily because of the Seeds and The factors noted above explain the change in income from
Genomics business growth and acquisitions in the United States continuing operations. In 2007, we recorded income on

and the increase in our investment in our product pipeline. Also, discontinued operations of $71 million. As discussed in
SG&A expenses increased because of higher charitable Note 26 — Discontinued Operations, in conjunction with the
contribution expense in 2007 related to the donation of DOJ consent decree received in 2007, we agreed to sell our
$18 million of equity securities. As a percent of net sales, SG&A divested cotton businesses, which were part of the Seeds and
expenses remained at 22, and R&D expenses decreased 1 point Genomics segment. We completed our acquisition of DPL and
to 9 in 2007. sold our divested cotton businesses during the fourth quarter of

2007 for $317 million. We also divested certain cotton
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germplasm that was acquired from DPL’s cotton breeding Stock-Based Compensation Plans). As a percent of net sales,
program, as required by the consent decree. We have retained SG&A expenses remained at 22 percent, and R&D expenses
certain rights to this germplasm. The buyers of these assets are increased 1 percentage point to 10 percent in 2006.
licensed to use our traits in their brands prospectively under a

Interest expense increased 17 percent, or $19 million, in 2006royalty bearing agreement. We realized a pre-tax gain of
from 2005. The increased expense was primarily from the July$46 million, and a tax benefit of $27 million, in 2007 related to
2005 $400 million long-term debt issuance. There was a fullthese divestitures. The tax benefit was driven by a higher tax
year of interest expense in 2006 on the July 2005 debt issuancebasis in the businesses sold, compared with the book basis.
compared with less than two months in 2005. We also incurred

Overview of Financial Performance (2006 compared additional interest expense for a $251 million three-year term
with 2005) bank loan completed in July 2006.

The following section discusses the significant components of Interest income increased 38 percent, or $15 million, in 2006
our results of operations that affected the comparison of 2006 because of interest earned on higher cash balances in Brazil
with 2005. and Europe.

Net sales increased 16 percent in 2006 from 2005. Our Seeds We recorded Solutia-related expenses of $29 million in 2006
and Genomics segment net sales improved 23 percent, and our and $309 million in 2005. In the first quarter 2005, we recorded
Agricultural Productivity segment net sales improved 9 percent. a Solutia-related charge of $284 million pretax in anticipation of
The following table presents the percentage changes in 2006 certain litigation and environmental liabilities reverting to
worldwide net sales by segment compared with net sales in Pharmacia, and by extension, to Monsanto. This charge was
2005, including the effect that volume, price, currency and based on the best estimates by our management with input
acquisitions had on these percentage changes: from our legal and other outside advisors. We believe that this

charge represented the estimated discounted cost that we
2006 Percentage Change in Net Sales vs. 2005 would expect to incur in connection with these litigation and

Impact of Net environmental matters. However, actual costs to the company
Volume Price Currency SubTotal Acquisitions(1) Change may be materially different from this estimate. See Note 21 —

Seeds and Genomics Commitments and Contingencies — for further details.
Segment 10% — — 10% 13% 23%

Agricultural Productivity
Other expense — net decreased $65 million, to $14 million in

Segment 5% 3% 1% 9% — 9%
2006. In first quarter 2005, we established a $15 million reserve

Total Monsanto Company 6% 2% 1% 9% 7% 16%
for litigation related to our lawn-and-garden business, which was(1) See Note 4 — Business Combinations — and ‘‘Financial Condition, Liquidity, and
paid out in second quarter 2005. Net foreign-currencyCapital Resources’’ in MD&A for details of our acquisitions in fiscal years 2007

and 2006. In this presentation, acquisitions are segregated for one year from the transaction losses decreased $15 million, to $9 million.
acquisition date.

Income tax provision for fiscal year 2006 increased toFor a more detailed discussion of the factors affecting the net
$337 million. The effective tax rate was 32 percent, a decreasesales comparison, see the ‘‘Seeds and Genomics Segment’’ and
of 1 percentage point from fiscal year 2005. This difference wasthe ‘‘Agricultural Productivity Segment’’ sections of MD&A.
primarily the result of the following items:

Gross profit increased 17 percent, or $524 million. Total
m A tax charge of $21 million was recorded in 2006, in

company gross profit as a percent of net sales remained at conjunction with the repatriation of $437 million of foreign
48 percent in 2006. Gross profit as a percent of sales for the earnings under the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004
Seeds and Genomics Segment remained at 61 percent. Gross (see discussion in Note 10 — Income Taxes).
profit as a percent of sales for the Agriculture Productivity

m A tax benefit of $32 million was recorded in 2006 as asegment declined 1 percentage point, to 33 percent in 2006.
result of the conclusion of an audit of Pharmacia for taxSee the ‘‘Seeds and Genomics Segment’’ and ‘‘Agricultural
years 2000 to 2002 (when we were a member ofProductivity Segment’’ sections of MD&A for details.
Pharmacia’s consolidated group) by the IRS and, to a lesser
extent, favorable adjustments related to various stateOperating expenses increased 6 percent, or $131 million, in
income tax issues.2006 from 2005 because our increases more than offset the

$230 million acquired IPR&D charge in 2005. SG&A expenses
m The effective tax rate for 2005 was affected by the

increased 17 percent, and R&D expenses increased 22 percent, $284 million Solutia-related charge ($175 million aftertax).
primarily because of expenses of the businesses we acquired in

m Nondeductible acquired IPR&D charges of $230 million2006, higher staffing levels, and stock-based compensation. In
were recorded in 2005.accordance with SFAS 123R, we recorded an incremental

$34 million in SG&A expenses and an incremental $12 million in m A tax benefit of $20 million was recorded in continuing
R&D expenses for stock-based compensation (see Note 16 — operations in 2005 as a result of the loss incurred on the
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European wheat and barley business (see the discontinued 2004. As a result, Monsanto recorded a deferred tax benefit of
operations discussion in this section and Note 10 — $106 million, or $0.20 per share, in 2005. Of this tax benefit,
Income Taxes). $20 million was recorded in continuing operations, and the

remaining $86 million was recorded in discontinued operations. The
m A favorable adjustment was recorded in 2005 resulting from

tax benefit of $20 million recorded in continuing operations wasthe conclusion of an audit of Monsanto’s export subsidiary
related to the $69 million goodwill impairment related to our globalby the IRS for tax years 2000-2001.
wheat business recorded in continuing operations in 2004. SinceWithout these items, our effective tax rate for 2006 would
the goodwill impairment was recorded in continuing operations, thehave been higher than the 2005 rate, primarily driven by a shift
related tax benefit was also recorded in continuing operations. Thein our earnings mix to higher tax-rate jurisdictions.
tax benefit of $86 million recorded in discontinued operations was
primarily related to the wheat reporting unit goodwill impairmentThe factors noted above explain the change in income from
loss at the date of adoption of SFAS 142 on Jan. 1, 2002, whichcontinuing operations. In 2005, we recorded income on
was recorded as a cumulative effect of a change in accountingdiscontinued operations of $62 million. As discussed in the 2007
principle. The recognition of this tax benefit in the United Statesoverview above, the results of our divested cotton businesses
effectively precludes us from claiming any U.K. benefit for the U.K.have been presented as discontinued operations. As discussed in
tax loss. Accordingly, the U.K. deferred tax asset of $71 million,Note 10, the sale of the European wheat and barley business in
which had a full valuation allowance against it, was written offfiscal year 2004 generated a tax loss deductible in either the
during first quarter 2005. Also, in August 2006, we recorded anUnited Kingdom or the United States. As of Aug. 31, 2004, a
after-tax charge of $3 million to adjust the carrying amount of adeferred tax asset had not been recorded for the tax loss incurred
miscellaneous receivable of the environmentalin the United States because of the existence of a number of
technologies businesses.uncertainties. These uncertainties diminished with the enactment

of the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (AJCA) on Oct. 22,

SEEDS AND GENOMICS SEGMENT

Year Ended Aug. 31, Change

(Dollars in millions) 2007 2006 2005 2007 vs. 2006 2006 vs. 2005

Net Sales
Corn seed and traits $2,807 $1,793 $1,494 57% 20%
Soybean seed and traits 901 960 889 (6)% 8%
Cotton seed and traits 319 376 335 (15)% 12%
Vegetable and fruit seed 612 569 226 8% 152%
All other crops seeds and traits 325 280 289 16% (3)%

Total Net Sales $4,964 $3,978 $3,233 25% 23%

Gross Profit
Corn seed and traits $1,721 $1,019 $ 825 69% 24%
Soybean seed and traits 588 667 613 (12)% 9%
Cotton seed and traits 267 305 281 (12)% 9%
Vegetable and fruit seed 267 296 113 (10)% 162%
All other crops seeds and traits 171 146 141 17% 4%

Total Gross Profit $3,014 $2,433 $1,973 24% 23%

EBIT(1) $ 905 $ 794 $ 374 14% 112%
(1) EBIT is defined as earnings (loss) before interest and taxes. Interest and taxes are recorded on a total company basis. We do not record these items at the segment level.

See Note 22 — Segment and Geographic Data and the ‘‘Overview — Non-GAAP Financial Measures’’ section of MD&A for further details.

Seeds and Genomics Financial Performance for Fiscal operations in 2006. Further, net sales of corn seed in Europe,
Year 2007 Argentina and Brazil also increased because of growth in sales
Net sales of corn seed and traits increased 57 percent, or volumes related to stronger customer demand.
$1,014 million, in the 12-month comparison. In 2007, our Soybean seed and traits net sales decreased 6 percent, or
U.S. corn seed and traits sales volume and sales mix improved $59 million, in 2007. This sales decrease was driven by a
because of stronger customer demand, increased trait decrease in sales volumes of U.S. soybean seed and traits
penetration, growth in stacked traits, and additional acres in because fewer soybean acres were planted. This decrease was
2007, compared with 2006. Our U.S. national branded corn partially offset by the incremental soybean seed and traits
business increased to 23 share points in 2007, a 4 percentage revenue from the recently acquired ASI subsidiaries, which
point improvement compared with 2006 results. Net sales of were not part of the company’s operations in 2006. Further, this
U.S. corn seed and traits also increased because of incremental decrease was partially offset by the increase in net sales of
revenues from the recently acquired American Seeds Inc. soybean traits in Brazil, primarily resulting from a volume
(ASI) subsidiaries, which were not part of the company’s
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increase in the grain-based payment system related to saved seed and traits sales volume and sales mix improved because
and replanted Roundup Ready soybeans. of stronger customer demand. Our U.S. national branded corn

Cotton seed and traits net sales decreased 15 percent, or business increased to 19 share points in 2006, a 3 percentage
$57 million, in 2007. This sales decrease was driven by lower point improvement over 2005 results. Increased trait penetration
cotton trait sales volumes in Australia resulting from a decline in and growth in stacked traits also favorably affected our licensed
cotton acres. Planted cotton acres declined 54 percent there in and ASI channels in the United States. Net sales of U.S. corn
the 12-month comparison because of a severe drought in seed and traits increased because of incremental revenues from
certain parts of Australia in first quarter 2007. In addition, there the recently acquired ASI subsidiaries, which were not part of
was a decline in net sales of cotton seed and traits related to the company’s operations in 2005.
the decline in cotton acres in the United States. Soybean seed and traits net sales increased 8 percent, or

In 2007, vegetable and fruit seed net sales increased $71 million, in 2006. This sales increase was driven by an
8 percent, or $43 million, in the 12-month comparison because increase in the average net selling price of Roundup Ready
of higher average net selling prices and the favorable effect of soybean traits in the United States, stemming from lower sales
the exchange rate of the European euro. discounts. Net sales of U.S. soybean seed and traits improved

All other crops seeds and traits net sales increased because of revenues from the recently acquired ASI
16 percent, or $45 million, in 2007, primarily because of higher subsidiaries, which were not part of the company’s operations
canola seed volumes driven by stronger customer demand in in 2005. Further, net sales of soybean traits increased in Brazil
Europe and higher canola trait volumes driven by an increase in because of a volume increase in the grain-based payment
acres planted to canola in Canada. system related to saved and replanted Roundup

Gross profit as a percent of sales for this segment Ready soybeans.
remained at 61 percent. The positive factor of increased In 2006, vegetable and fruit seed net sales increased
penetration of higher margin traits, particularly in U.S. corn, was $343 million because of our March 2005 acquisition of Seminis.
offset by declines in the gross profit percentage in vegetable The full-year results of Seminis are included in 2006. We owned
and fruit seed and soybean seed and traits. Vegetable and fruit Seminis for approximately five months in 2005.
seed gross profit percentage decreased in 2007 primarily Cotton seed and traits net sales increased 12 percent, or
because of certain charges to cost of goods sold for write $41 million, in 2006, primarily because of higher cotton trait
downs of inventory to the lower of cost or market. The volume in the United States, stemming from an improved
decrease in vegetable and fruit seeds gross profit as a percent product mix consisting of more stacked traits and from an
of sales was partially offset by the effect on cost of goods sold increase in total cotton acres. Somewhat offsetting these
associated with the inventory step-up for the Seminis increases in the United States was an increase in sales
acquisition, which was $5 million in 2007 and $50 million in discounts stemming from the drought in Texas. Other
2006. Soybean seed and trait gross profit percentage decreased contributing factors to this net sales increase were higher
in the 12-month comparison, primarily because of the cotton trait sales in Australia because of increased cotton trait
unfavorable impact of higher soybean commodity prices and penetration and an improvement in our cotton sales mix to
lower soybean volumes on our cost of production. include a higher percentage of the Bollgard II with Roundup

EBIT for the Seeds and Genomics segment increased Ready cotton stacked offering.
$111 million to $905 million in 2007. The acquired IPR&D write- Gross profit as a percent of sales for this segment
offs that resulted from the DPL and Western Seed acquisitions remained at 61 percent. The positive factor of increased
negatively affected EBIT by $193 million in 2007. In the penetration of higher margin traits, particularly in U.S. corn, was
12-month comparison, incremental SG&A and R&D expenses partially offset by the effect on cost of goods sold associated
related to the growth of the business and the 2007 acquisitions with the inventory step-up for the Seminis acquisition, which
partially offset the gross profit improvement. was $50 million in 2006 and $19 million in 2005. EBIT for the

Seeds and Genomics segment increased $420 million, to
Seeds and Genomics Financial Performance for Fiscal $794 million in 2006. The IPR&D write offs that resulted from
Year 2006 the 2005 acquisitions negatively affected EBIT by $230 million in
Net sales of corn seed and traits increased 20 percent, or 2005. In the 12-month comparison, incremental SG&A and R&D
$299 million, in 2006, primarily because of an increase in sales expenses related to the 2005 and 2006 acquisitions partially
of U.S. corn seed and traits. In 2006, our U.S. branded corn offset the gross profit improvement.
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AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTIVITY SEGMENT

Year Ended Aug. 31, Change

(Dollars in millions) 2007 2006 2005 2007 vs. 2006 2006 vs. 2005

Net Sales
Roundup and other glyphosate-based herbicides $2,568 $2,262 $2,049 14% 10%
All other agricultural productivity products 1,031 1,054 993 (2)% 6%

Total Net Sales $3,599 $3,316 $3,042 9% 9%
Gross Profit
Roundup and other glyphosate-based herbicides $ 854 $ 648 $ 637 32% 2%
All other agricultural productivity products 418 438 385 (5)% 14%

Total Gross Profit $1,272 $1,086 $1,022 17% 6%

EBIT(1) $ 471 $ 301 $ (27) 56% NM
NM = Not Meaningful
(1) EBIT is defined as earnings (loss) before interest and taxes. Interest and taxes are recorded on a total company basis. We do not record these items at the segment level.

See Note 22 — Segment and Geographic Data and the ‘‘Overview — Non-GAAP Financial Measures’’ section of MD&A for further details.

Agricultural Productivity Financial Performance for Fiscal Agricultural Productivity Financial Performance for Fiscal

Year 2007 Year 2006

Net sales of Roundup and other glyphosate-based herbicides Net sales of Roundup and other glyphosate-based herbicides
increased 14 percent, or $306 million, in 2007. In the 12-month increased 10 percent, or $213 million, in 2006. In the 12-month
comparison, sales of Roundup and other glyphosate-based comparison, sales volumes of Roundup herbicides increased in
herbicides increased globally, especially in Brazil, Europe and the the United States and Argentina, but were partially offset by
United States. Sales volumes of Roundup and other glyphosate- declines in Brazil.
based herbicides increased 6 percent in 2007 from 2006. The In 2005, we made logistical changes that aligned inventory
average net selling price remained relatively flat in the United levels of Roundup herbicides in the United States closer to
States, but it increased moderately in most other regions. market demand, which resulted in lower sales volumes in 2005.

Sales volumes of Roundup and other glyphosate-based As a result of these 2005 actions, the sales volume of
herbicides increased in Brazil because of the improvement in U.S. Roundup herbicides increased in 2006. In addition, the
the market for Roundup and other glyphosate-based herbicides sales volume of Roundup and other glyphosate-based herbicides
in Brazil. Key contributors to the increase in the herbicide increased in the United States because of the increase in
market there were an improvement in farmer liquidity resulting Roundup Ready corn acres.
from higher soybean commodity prices and the increase in In the 12-month comparison, the Argentine sales volume of
acres planted with Roundup Ready soybeans and sugarcane in Roundup herbicides increased, primarily because of a successful
2007 over 2006. Further, net sales of Roundup and other October 2005 launch of the Roundup UltraMax brand and
glyphosate-based herbicides increased in the 12-month greater acceptance of lower-tiered brands. A change in
comparison because of the favorable effect of the exchange distribution strategy also contributed to the increase. In
rate of the Brazilian real and, to a lesser extent, because of Argentina, we previously sold our crop protection products
higher average net selling prices. primarily through distributors. In fiscal year 2004, we changed

Sales of Roundup and other glyphosate-based herbicides our Argentine distribution strategy to sell directly to growers.
increased in Europe because of the favorable effect of the Our sales were lower in 2005 than in 2006, primarily because
exchange rate of the European euro. Sales volumes of Roundup Argentine distributors still had some of our products on hand for
and other glyphosate-based herbicides increased in Europe, sale in 2005.
primarily because of more favorable weather conditions in 2007 Sales of Roundup herbicides in Brazil decreased in the
than in 2006. 12-month comparison. The average net selling price was lower

Sales volumes of Roundup and other glyphosate-based in 2006 because of price decreases in response to competitive
herbicides improved in the United States because of an increase conditions. These decreases were partially offset by the positive
in customer demand resulting from an increase in Roundup effect from the strengthening of the Brazilian real compared
Ready corn acres. with the U.S. dollar. Sales volume of Roundup and other

Gross profit as a percent of sales increased 2 percentage glyphosate-based herbicides in Brazil decreased because of
points for the Agricultural Productivity segment to 35 percent in competitive conditions and because lower commodity prices
2007. The primary contributor to this increase was higher and the strength of the Brazilian real had an adverse effect on
average selling prices. customer liquidity.

The sales increases discussed in this section resulted in Sales of all other agricultural productivity products increased
$186 million higher gross profit in 2007. EBIT for the Agricultural 6 percent, or $61 million, in the 12-month comparison. In 2005,
Productivity segment increased $170 million, to $471 million we made logistical changes that aligned inventory levels of
in 2007. acetanilide-based herbicides in the United States closer to
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market demand, which resulted in lower sales volumes in 2005. Working capital decreased $1.2 billion between
We continue to refine the supply chain to improve our working Aug. 31, 2006, and Aug. 31, 2007, primarily because of the
capital. As a result of these 2005 actions, the sales volume of following factors:
U.S. acetanilide-based herbicides increased in 2006. In the

m Cash and cash equivalents decreased $594 million. The
12-month comparison, the average net selling price of our higher use of cash for acquisitions was the primary driver of
U.S. acetanilide-based herbicides increased as a result of lower this decline. For a more detailed discussion of the factors
sales discounts. Sales of our Posilac product increased because affecting the cash flow comparison, see the ‘‘Cash Flow’’
we were able to increase the number of finished doses section in this section of MD&A.
allocated among our customers.

m Accrued liabilities and accounts payable increasedGross profit as a percent of sales declined 1 percentage
$419 million and $135 million, respectively, primarilypoint for the Agricultural Productivity segment, to 33 percent in
because of higher activity levels in 2007 resulting from the2006. A key contributor to this decline was higher cost of goods
increase in sales and the 2007 acquisitions. In addition,sold for herbicides because of price increases for certain raw
deferred revenue increased related to certain customermaterials and energy required for herbicide production. During
prepayments, primarily in Brazil and Argentina.2006, we established a reserve for certain value-added tax

credits in Brazil, because the realization of these assets was
m Short-term debt increased $242 million, primarily because

determined to be unlikely. Also, as a percent of net sales, $236 million of 4% Senior Notes, due May 15, 2008, was
Posilac gross profit declined in the 12-month comparison classified as short-term debt as of Aug. 31, 2007.
because of increased cost of goods sold primarily driven by

These working capital decreases were partially offset by theactions implemented to reduce bulk powder production to
increase in other current assets, receivables and inventory thatbetter manage working capital. A favorable mix and a price
primarily relate to the increased activity levels in 2007 with theincrease for our U.S. acetanilide-based herbicides, coupled with
growth of both segments and the 2007 acquisitions.a 2005 portfolio rationalization of other selective herbicides in

Argentina, offset these factors. EBIT for the Agricultural
Backlog: Inventories of finished goods, goods in process, andProductivity segment was $301 million in 2006, compared with
raw materials and supplies are maintained to meet customera loss of $27 million in the prior year. In 2005, the largest driver
requirements and our scheduled production. As is consistentof the EBIT loss was the $284 million Solutia-related charge.
with the nature of the seed industry, we generally produce inOther key contributors to the EBIT change were higher sales
one growing season the seed inventories we expect to sell theand gross profit.
following season. In general, we do not manufacture our
products against a backlog of firm orders; production is gearedFINANCIAL CONDITION, LIQUIDITY, AND
to projected demand.CAPITAL RESOURCES

Customer Financing Programs: We refer certain interested
Working Capital and Financial Condition U.S. customers to a third-party specialty lender that makes

As of Aug. 31, loans directly to our customers. In April 2002, we established
(Dollars in millions) 2007 2006 this revolving financing program of up to $500 million, which

allows certain U.S. customers to finance their productCash and Cash Equivalents $ 866 $1,460
Trade Receivables — Net 1,499 1,455 purchases, royalties and licensing fee obligations. The funding
Inventories 1,719 1,688 availability may be less than $500 million if certain program
Other Current Assets(1) 1,000 858 requirements are not met. It also allows us to reduce our
Total Current Assets $5,084 $5,461 reliance on commercial paper borrowings. We received
Short-Term Debt $ 270 $ 28 $305 million in 2007, $286 million in 2006 and $236 million in
Accounts Payable 649 514 2005 from the proceeds of loans made to our customers
Accrued Liabilities(2) 2,156 1,737

through this financing program. These proceeds are included in
Total Current Liabilities $3,075 $2,279

the net cash provided by operating activities in the Statements
Working Capital(3) $2,009 $3,182 of Consolidated Cash Flows. We originate these customer loans
Current Ratio(3) 1.65:1 2.40:1

on behalf of the third-party specialty lender, a special purpose(1) Includes miscellaneous receivables, current deferred tax assets and other
current assets. entity (SPE) that we consolidate, using our credit and other

(2) Includes income taxes payable, accrued compensation and benefits, accrued underwriting guidelines approved by the lender. We service the
marketing programs, deferred revenues, grower production accruals, dividends
payable and miscellaneous short-term accruals. loans and provide a first-loss guarantee of up to $130 million.

(3) Working capital is total current assets less total current liabilities; current ratio Following origination, the lender transfers the loans to multi-
represents total current assets divided by total current liabilities.

seller commercial paper conduits through a nonconsolidated
qualifying special purpose entity (QSPE). We have no ownership
interest in the lender, in the QSPE, or in the loans. We account
for this transaction as a sale, in accordance with SFAS No. 140,
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Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and of customer default. The maximum potential amount of future
Extinguishment of Liabilities (SFAS 140). payments under the guarantees was $66 million as of

As of Aug. 31, 2007, and Aug. 31, 2006, the customer Aug. 31, 2007. The liability for the guarantee is recorded at an
loans held by the QSPE and the QSPE’s liability to the conduits amount that approximates fair value and is primarily based on
were $301 million and $268 million, respectively. The lender or our historical collection experience with customers that
the conduits may restrict or discontinue the facility at any time. participate in the program and a current assessment of credit
If the facility were to terminate, existing loans would be exposure. Our guarantee liability was $2 million and $1 million
collected by the QSPE over their remaining terms (generally as of Aug. 31, 2007, and Aug. 31, 2006, respectively. If
12 months or less), and we would revert to our past practice of performance is required under the guarantee, we may retain
providing these customers with direct credit purchase terms. amounts that are subsequently collected from customers.
Our servicing fee revenues from the program were not We also sell accounts receivable, both with and without
significant. As of Aug. 31, 2007, and Aug. 31, 2006, our recourse. These sales qualify for sales treatment under
recorded guarantee liability was less than $1 million, primarily SFAS 140 and, accordingly, the proceeds are included in net
based on our historical collection experience with these cash provided by operating activities in the Statements of
customers and a current assessment of credit exposure. Consolidated Cash Flows. The gross amounts of accounts
Adverse changes in the actual loss rate would increase receivable sold totaled $46 million, $49 million and $33 million
the liability. for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The liability for the

In November 2004, we entered into an agreement with a guarantees for sales with recourse is recorded at an amount
lender to establish a program to provide financing of up to that approximates fair value and is based on the company’s
$40 million for selected customers in Brazil. The agreement as historical collection experience for the customers associated
amended in May 2005 qualified for sales treatment under with the sale of the accounts receivable and a current
SFAS 140. Proceeds from the transfer of the receivables assessment of credit exposure. Our guarantee liability was less
subsequent to the May 2005 amendment are included in net than $1 million as of Aug. 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The
cash provided by operating activities in the Statements of maximum potential amount of future payments under the
Consolidated Cash Flows. Total funds available under the recourse provisions of the agreements was $28 million as of
program have increased to $140 million under subsequent Aug. 31, 2007. The outstanding balance of the receivables sold
amendments. We received $139 million, $73 million and was $28 million and $37 million as of Aug. 31, 2007, and
$22 million of proceeds through these customer financing Aug. 31, 2006, respectively.
programs in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The amount of
loans outstanding was $86 million and $64 million as of Cash Flow

Aug. 31, 2007, and Aug. 31, 2006, respectively. In this program, Year Ended Aug. 31,
we provide a full guarantee of the loans in the event of (Dollars in millions) 2007 2006 2005
customer default. The maximum potential amount of future Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 1,854 $1,674 $ 1,737
payments under the guarantees was $86 million as of Net Cash Required by Investing Activities (1,911) (625) (1,667)
Aug. 31, 2007. The liability for the guarantee is recorded at an Free Cash Flow(1) (57) 1,049 70
amount that approximates fair value and is primarily based on Net Cash Required by Financing Activities (583) (117) (582)
our historical collection experience with customers that Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and
participate in the program and a current assessment of credit Cash Equivalents 46 3 —
exposure. Our guarantee liability was $3 million and $2 million Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash

Equivalents (594) 935 (512)as of Aug. 31, 2007, and Aug. 31, 2006, respectively. If
performance is required under the guarantee, we may retain Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of

Period 1,460 525 1,037amounts that are subsequently collected from customers.
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period $ 866 $1,460 $ 525We also have similar agreements with banks that provide
(1) Free cash flow represents the total of net cash provided or required by operatingfinancing to our customers in Brazil through credit programs that activities and provided or required by investing activities (see the ‘‘Overview —

Non-GAAP Financial Measures’’ section of MD&A for a further discussion).are subsidized by the Brazilian government. In addition, there
are similar financing programs in Europe and Argentina. All of

2007 compared with 2006: In 2007, our free cash flow was a use ofthese programs also qualify for sales treatment under
cash of $57 million, compared with a source of cash ofSFAS 140. Accordingly, proceeds from the transfer of
$1,049 million in 2006. Cash provided by operating activitiesreceivables through the programs described above are included
increased 11 percent, or $180 million, in 2007, primarily becausein net cash provided by operating activities in the Statements of
of the increase in earnings. This positive factor was partiallyConsolidated Cash Flows. We received $115 million, $65 million
offset by an unfavorable change in trade receivables because ofand $73 million of proceeds through these customer financing
the increase in sales activity in 2007 and the significantprograms in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The amount of
collections improvement made in 2006.loans outstanding was $66 million and $47 million as of

Cash required by investing activities was $1,911 million inAug. 31, 2007, and Aug. 31, 2006, respectively. For most
2007 compared with $625 million in 2006. In 2007, we usedprograms, we provide a full guarantee of the loans in the event
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cash for acquisitions of businesses of $1,679 million compared Capital Resources and Liquidity

with $258 million in 2006. As of Aug. 31,
Cash required by financing activities was $583 million in (Dollars in millions) 2007 2006

2007, compared with $117 million in 2006. The net change in Short-Term Debt $ 270 $ 28
short-term financing required cash of $5 million in 2007 Long-Term Debt 1,150 1,639
compared with $139 million in 2006. Cash proceeds from long- Total Shareowners’ Equity 7,503 6,525

Debt-to-Capital Ratio 16% 20%term debt decreased $248 million in 2007 from 2006. Cash
required for long-term debt reductions was $281 million in 2007, A major source of our liquidity is operating cash flows,
compared with $118 million in 2006. The 12-month comparison which are derived from net income. This cash-generating
of changes in long-term debt proceeds and reductions are capability provides us with the financial flexibility we need to
affected because a $251 million three-year term bank loan was meet operating, investing and financing needs. To the extent
obtained in 2006 and repaid in 2007. We purchased shares that cash provided by operating activities is not sufficient to
under the four-year $800 million share repurchase program fund our cash needs, which generally occurs during the second
authorized by our board of directors in October 2005. Our and third quarters of the fiscal year because of the seasonal
purchases under this plan required cash of $197 million in 2007, nature of our business, short-term commercial paper borrowings
compared with $114 million in 2006. are used to finance these requirements.

Total debt outstanding decreased by $247 million between
2006 compared with 2005: In 2006, our free cash flow was Aug. 31, 2006, and Aug. 31, 2007. During 2006, we obtained a
$1.0 billion, compared with $70 million in 2005. Cash provided $251 million three-year term bank loan in Europe through a
by operating activities decreased 4 percent, from $1,737 million private placement. During 2007, we repaid this three-year 
in 2005 to $1,674 million in 2006. Trade receivables were a term bank loan. See Note 11 — Debt and Other Credit
contributor to this decrease because of the significant Arrangements — for additional information on this debt.
collections improvement in 2005 and the increase in sales Our August 2007 debt-to-capital ratio was 4 percentage
activity in 2006. Cash required by investing activities was points lower than the August 2006 ratio, primarily because of
$625 million in 2006, compared with $1.7 billion in 2005. In the increase in shareowners’ equity and the decrease in total
2006, we used cash for acquisitions of businesses of debt outstanding.
$258 million, compared with $1.5 billion in 2005. In 2006, we In connection with the acquisition of DPL, we borrowed
used cash of $125 million for a contingent payment related to $1.5 billion pursuant to the terms of a 15-day term bank loan
the Seminis acquisition. Our capital expenditures increased (Bank Loan), dated June 1, 2007. On June 5, 2007, we repaid
$89 million in the 12-month comparison, to $370 million, the entire principal amount outstanding under the Bank Loan,
primarily for the expansion of seed production and research together with all accrued and unpaid interest thereon. The
facilities for corn and cotton. Cash required for technology and repayment of the indebtedness outstanding under the Bank
other investments increased $82 million, primarily because of a Loan was funded through borrowings under our existing
$100 million animal agriculture upfront royalty payment in the commercial paper program. During the fourth quarter of 2007,
second quarter of 2006. this commercial paper was repaid with cash from operating

Cash required by financing activities was $117 million in activities and the $317 million of proceeds from the sale of our
2006, compared with $582 million in 2005. The net change in divested cotton businesses on June 19, 2007.
short-term financing required cash of $139 million in 2006, We plan to issue new fixed-rate debt on or before
compared with a source of cash of $44 million in 2005. Cash May 1, 2008 to repay $236 million of 4% Senior Notes that are
required for long-term debt reductions was $118 million in due May 15, 2008, and to finance our expansion of corn seed
2006, compared with $794 million in 2005. The 2005 amount production facilities. In September 2007, we entered into
included $495 million to fund the tender offer of the Seminis forward starting interest rate swaps with a total notional amount
Senior Subordinated Notes and to retire other Seminis debt of $500 million. Our purpose was to hedge the variability of the
after the acquisition closed. Cash proceeds from long-term debt forecasted interest payments on this expected debt issuance
decreased $219 million in 2006 from 2005, primarily because a that may result from changes in our benchmark interest rates
$251 million three-year term bank loan was secured in until the debt is issued.
July 2006 and $400 million of 51/2% Senior Notes due 2035 In May 2002, we filed a shelf registration with the SEC for
were issued in July 2005. We purchased shares in 2006 under the issuance of up to $2.0 billion of registered debt (2002 shelf
the four-year $800 million share repurchase program. Our registration). In August 2002, we issued $800 million in 73/8%
purchases under this plan required cash of $114 million in 2006. Senior Notes under the 2002 shelf registration (73/8% Senior
In 2005, treasury stock purchases required cash of $234 million Notes). As of Aug. 31, 2007, $486 million of the 73/8% Senior
under the $500 million share repurchase program, which was Notes are due on Aug. 15, 2012 (see the discussion later in this
completed in July 2005. section regarding a debt exchange for $314 million of the

73/8% Senior Notes). In May 2003, we issued $250 million of
4% Senior Notes (4% Senior Notes) under the 2002 shelf
registration. During 2006, we repurchased $12 million of these
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4% Senior Notes. The 4% Senior Notes are due on corn seed production and seed research facilities. We expect
May 15, 2008. fiscal year 2008 capital expenditures to be in the range of

In May 2005, we filed a new shelf registration with the $700 million. The primary driver of this increase compared with
SEC (2005 shelf registration) that allowed us to issue up to 2007 is projects to expand corn seed production facilities.
$2.0 billion of debt, equity and hybrid offerings (including debt

Pension Contributions: In addition to contributing amounts to oursecurities of $950 million that remained available under the
pension plans if required by pension plan regulations, we2002 shelf registration). In July 2005, we issued 51/2% 2035
continue to also make discretionary contributions if we believeSenior Notes of $400 million under the 2005 shelf registration.
they are merited. Although contributions to the U.S. qualifiedThe net proceeds from the sale of the 51/2% 2035 Senior Notes
plan were not required, we contributed $60 million annually inwere used to reduce commercial paper borrowings. As of
2007, 2006 and 2005. In September 2007, we voluntarilyAug. 31, 2007, $1.6 billion remained available under the 2005
contributed $60 million to the U.S. qualified pension plan inshelf registration.
order to maintain the future contribution flexibility allowed byIn August 2005, we exchanged $314 million of new
regulations. No additional contributions are planned for fiscal51/2% Senior Notes due 2025 (51/2% 2025 Senior Notes) for
year 2008 for the U.S. qualified pension plan. Although the level$314 million of our outstanding 73/8% Senior Notes due 2012,
of required future contributions is unpredictable and dependswhich were issued in 2002. The exchange was conducted as a
heavily on plan asset experience and interest rates, we expectprivate transaction with holders of the outstanding 73/8% Senior
to continue to contribute to the plan on a regular basis in theNotes who certified to the company that they were ‘‘qualified
near term.institutional buyers’’ within the meaning of Rule 144A under the

Securities Act of 1933. Under the terms of the exchange, the
Share Repurchases: In July 2003, the Executive Committee company paid a premium of $53 million to holders participating
of the board of directors authorized the purchase of up toin the exchange. The $53 million premium was included in the
$500 million of our common stock over a three-year period. Incash flows required by financing activities in the Statement of
2005, we purchased $234 million of our common stock underConsolidated Cash Flows. The transaction has been accounted
the $500 million authorization. A total of 25.3 million sharesfor as an exchange of debt under Emerging Issues Task Force
were repurchased under this program. In July 2005, the(EITF) 96-19, Debtor’s Accounting for a Modification or
$500 million repurchase program was completed. InExchange of Debt Instruments, and the $53 million premium
October 2005, the board of directors authorized the purchase ofwill be amortized over the life of the new 51/2% 2025 Senior
up to $800 million of our common stock over a four-year period.Notes. As a result of the debt premium, the effective interest
In 2007 and 2006, we purchased $191 million and $120 million,rate on the 51/2% 2025 Senior Notes will be 7.035% over the
respectively, of our common stock under the $800 millionlife of the debt. The exchange of debt allowed the company to
authorization. A total of 6.2 million shares have beenadjust its debt-maturity schedule while also allowing it to take
repurchased under this program.advantage of market conditions which the company considered

favorable. In February 2006, we issued $314 million aggregate
Dividends: We paid dividends totaling $258 million in 2007,

principal amount of our 51/2% Senior Notes due 2025 in
$207 million in 2006 and $174 million in 2005. In August 2007,

exchange for the same principal amount of our 51/2% Senior
we increased our dividend 40 percent to $0.175 per share. We

Notes due 2025, which had been issued in the private
continue to review our options for returning additional value to

placement transaction in August 2005. The offering of the notes
shareowners, including the possibility of a dividend increase.

issued in February was registered under the Securities Act of
1933 through a Form S-4 filing. 2008 Acquisition: In September 2007, we acquired 100 percent of

During February 2007, we finalized a new $2 billion credit the outstanding stock of Agroeste Sementes, a leading Brazilian
facility agreement with a group of banks. This agreement corn seed company, for approximately $90 million, net of cash
provides a five-year senior unsecured revolving credit facility, acquired. Agroeste focuses on hybrid corn seed production and
which replaced the $1 billion credit facility established in 2004. serves farmers throughout Brazil. We consummated the
This facility was initiated to be used for general corporate transaction with cash.
purposes, which may include working capital requirements,
acquisitions, capital expenditures, refinancing and support of 2007 Acquisitions: On June 1, 2007, we completed the purchase
commercial paper borrowings. This facility, which was unused of all the outstanding stock of DPL for a cash purchase price of
as of Aug. 31, 2007, gives us the financial flexibility to satisfy $42 per share, or approximately $1.5 billion (net of cash
short- and medium-term funding requirements. As of acquired and debt assumed). The transaction was reviewed by
Aug. 31, 2007, we were in compliance with all debt covenants federal and state authorities, including the DOJ pursuant to the
under this credit facility. Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976. In order

to complete the transaction, we entered into an agreement with
Capital Expenditures: Our capital expenditures increased by the DOJ. See Note 26 — Discontinued Operations — for further
38 percent, or $139 million, to $509 million in 2007, compared discussion of this agreement. After the acquisition of DPL, the
with 2006. This increase was primarily for the expansion of legal proceedings related to DPL were terminated. See
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Note 4 — Business Combinations — for further discussion of acquisition. For all fiscal year 2006 acquisitions, the business
this acquisition. operations of the acquired entities were included in the 

During 2007, our ASI subsidiary acquired 10 regional Seeds and Genomics segment. See Note 4 — Business
U.S. seed companies in separate transactions for an aggregate Combinations — for the purchase price allocations as of
purchase price of $87 million (net of cash acquired), inclusive of Aug. 31, 2007.
transaction costs of $3 million, with potential additional earn-out

Solutia Contingency: On Feb. 14, 2006, Solutia filed its Plan ofamounts of up to $6 million. In conjunction with one of these
Reorganization with the Bankruptcy Court. Among other things,acquisitions, we entered into a five-year global technology
that Plan of Reorganization provided for $250 million of newlicense agreement. See Note 8 — Goodwill and Other Intangible
investment in a reorganized Solutia in the form of a rightsAssets — for further discussion of the agreement. Also during
offering to certain unsecured creditors, which we had agreed to2007, we acquired two European vegetable and fruit seed
backstop. However, on Oct. 15, 2007, Solutia filed a revisedbusinesses for $57 million, inclusive of transaction costs of
Plan of Reorganization, which does not include any obligation of$6 million. Additional contingent purchase price may be payable
Monsanto to backstop the rights offering. The Bankruptcy Courtin the future if certain earnings targets are met. Such amounts
has determined that the Revised Disclosure Statement whichare not expected to be material.
accompanies the Revised Plan of Reorganization providesFor all fiscal year 2007 acquisitions described above, the
sufficient information for creditors and other parties to vote on,business operations and employees of the acquired entities
and has scheduled a hearing for confirmation of, the Revisedwere added into the Seeds and Genomics segment results
Plan of Reorganization. See Note 21 for further details.upon acquisition. These acquisitions were accounted for as

See the ‘‘Solutia Contingency’’ discussion in the precedingpurchase transactions. Accordingly, the assets and liabilities 
section of MD&A. These potential obligations are not included inof the acquired entities were recorded at their estimated fair
the following table as they are contingent upon the approvalvalues at the dates of the acquisitions.
requirements described therein.

2006 Acquisitions: In 2006, ASI acquired 12 regional U.S. seed We have certain obligations and commitments to make
companies for an aggregate purchase price of $133 million (net future payments under contracts. The following table sets forth
of cash acquired), inclusive of transaction costs of $4 million. our estimates of future payments under contracts as of
The financial results of these acquisitions were included in the Aug. 31, 2007. See Note 21 of the consolidated financial
company’s consolidated financial statements from their statements for a further description of our
respective dates of acquisition. Also, in 2006, we used cash of contractual obligations.
$125 million for a contingent payment related to the Seminis

Payments Due by Fiscal Year Ending Aug. 31,

2013 and
(Dollars in millions) Total 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 beyond

Total Debt $1,420 $ 270 $ 3 $ 1 $ 1 $485 $ 660
Interest Payments Relating to Total Debt(1) 1,124 93 75 75 75 75 731
Operating Lease Obligations 205 91 30 21 15 13 35
Purchase Obligations:

Uncompleted additions to property 293 290 1 1 1 — —
Commitments to purchase inventories 668 521 36 31 29 23 28
Commitments to purchase breeding research 938 45 45 45 44 44 715
R&D alliances and joint venture obligations 94 27 23 17 17 8 2
Other purchase obligations 92 53 25 12 1 — 1

Other Liabilities 150 71 6 6 6 5 56

Total Contractual Obligations $4,984 $1,461 $244 $209 $189 $653 $ 2,228
(1) For variable rate debt, interest is calculated using the applicable rates as of Aug. 31, 2007.

Contingent Liabilities Relating to Solutia Inc. relating to Solutia’s Assumed Liabilities and has taken the
(Off-Balance Sheet Arrangement) position that the bankruptcy proceeding prevents it from
Under the Separation Agreement, we were required to continuing to perform its environmental obligations, except
indemnify Pharmacia for Solutia’s Assumed Liabilities, to the within the boundaries of its current operations. On an interim
extent that Solutia fails to pay, perform or discharge those basis, we assumed the management and defense of certain of
liabilities. Solutia and 14 of its U.S. subsidiaries filed a voluntary Solutia’s third-party tort litigation and environmental matters. In
petition for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the U.S. the process of managing such litigation and environmental
Bankruptcy Code and have sought relief from paying certain liabilities, we determined that it was probable that we would
liabilities, including Solutia’s Assumed Liabilities. Solutia incur some expenses related to such litigation and
disclaimed its obligations to defend pending or future litigation environmental liabilities and that the amount of such expenses
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could be reasonably estimated. Accordingly, in first quarter income may shift somewhat between quarters, depending on
2005, we recorded a charge in the amount of $284 million planting and growing conditions. Our inventory is at its lowest
based on the best estimates by our management with input level at the end of our fiscal year, which is consistent with the
from our legal and other outside advisors. As of Aug. 31, 2007, agricultural cycles in our major markets. Additionally, our trade
the remaining Solutia-related reserve was $182 million. accounts receivable are at their lowest levels in our first quarter,

We believe that the charge represents the discounted cost primarily because of prepayments received on behalf of both
that we would expect to incur in connection with these litigation segments in the United States, and the seasonality of our sales.
and environmental matters. However, the charge may not As is the practice in our industry, we regularly extend credit
reflect all potential liabilities and expenses that we may incur in to enable our customers to acquire crop protection products and
connection with Solutia’s bankruptcy and does not reflect any seeds at the beginning of the growing season. Because of the
insurance reimbursements or any recoveries we might receive seasonality of our business and the need to extend credit to
through the bankruptcy process. Accordingly, our actual costs customers, we use short-term borrowings to finance working
may be materially different from this estimate. Under the rules capital requirements. Our need for such financing is generally
of the SEC, these contingent liabilities are considered to be an higher in the second and third quarters of the fiscal year and
off-balance sheet arrangement. See Note 21 under the lower in the first and fourth quarters of the fiscal year. Our
subheading ‘‘Solutia Inc.’’ for further information regarding customer financing programs are expected to continue to
Solutia’s Assumed Liabilities, the charge discussed above, and reduce our reliance on commercial paper borrowings.
the status of Solutia’s bankruptcy proceeding. Also see Part I —
Item 3 — Legal Proceedings and Item 1 — Relationships Among

OUTLOOK
Monsanto Company, Pharmacia Corporation, Pfizer Inc. and

We have achieved an industry-leading position in the areas inSolutia Inc. for further information.
which we compete in both of our business segments. However,

Other Information the outlook for each part of our business is quite different. In
As discussed in Note 21 — Commitments and Contingencies the Seeds and Genomics segment, our seeds and traits
and Item 3 — Legal Proceedings, Monsanto is involved in a business is expected to expand. In the Agricultural Productivity
number of lawsuits and claims relating to a variety of issues. segment, our glyphosate business is stable, and our selective
Many of these lawsuits relate to intellectual property disputes. chemistry business is expected to decline. As a result, we are
We expect that such disputes will continue to occur as the striving to expand our seeds and traits business and working to
agricultural biotechnology industry evolves. We are required to maintain our position in our chemistry business.
indemnify Pharmacia for Solutia’s Assumed Liabilities; this We believe that our company is positioned to sustain
obligation is discussed in Note 21. earnings growth and strong cash flow, and we remain

committed to returning value to shareowners through vehicles
Seasonality such as investments that expand the business, dividends and
Our fiscal year end of August 31 synchronizes our quarterly and share repurchases. We will remain focused on cost and cash
annual results with the natural flow of the agricultural cycle in management for each segment, both to support the progress
our major markets. It provides a more complete picture of the we have made in managing our investment in working capital
North American and South American growing seasons in the and to realize the full earnings potential of our businesses. We
same fiscal year. Sales by our Seeds and Genomics segment, plan to continue to seek additional external financing
and to a lesser extent, by our Agricultural Productivity segment, opportunities for our customers as a way to manage receivables
are seasonal. In fiscal year 2007, approximately 71 percent of for each of our segments. We also expect to see increased
our Seeds and Genomics segment sales occurred in the second gross profit as our higher-margin seeds and traits
and third quarters. This segment’s seasonality is primarily a business grows.
function of the purchasing and growing patterns in North We expect to continue to implement locally responsive
America. Agricultural Productivity segment sales were more business strategies for our businesses in each world area.
evenly spread across our fiscal year quarters in 2007, with Outside of the United States, our businesses will continue to
approximately 54 percent of these sales occurring in the second face additional challenges related to the risks inherent in
half of the year. Seasonality varies by the world areas where operating in emerging markets. We have taken steps to reduce
our Agricultural Productivity businesses operate. For example, our credit exposure in those areas, which has the potential to
the United States, Europe and Brazil were the largest affect sales negatively in the near term.
contributors to Agricultural Productivity sales in 2007. The
United States and Europe experienced most of their sales in the Seeds and Genomics

second half of 2007. Brazil had a higher concentration of sales Our capabilities in plant breeding and biotechnology research are
in the first half of 2007. generating a rich and balanced product pipeline that we expect

Net income in 2007 was the highest in second and third will drive long-term growth. We plan to continue to invest more
quarters, which correlated with the sales of the Seeds and than 85 percent of our R&D in the areas of seeds, genomics
Genomics segment and its gross profit contribution. Sales and and biotechnology and to invest in technology arrangements
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that have the potential to increase the efficiency and dedicate a joint budget of potentially $1.5 billion to fund a
effectiveness of our R&D efforts. We believe that our U.S. and dedicated pipeline of yield and stress tolerance traits for corn,
international seeds and traits businesses will have significant soybeans, cotton and canola.
near-term growth opportunities through a combination of Our international traits businesses, in particular, will
improved breeding, continued growth of stacked and second- probably continue to face unpredictable regulatory environments
generation biotech traits, and acquisitions. that may be highly politicized. We operate in volatile, and often

We expect advanced breeding techniques combined with difficult, economic environments. Although we see growth
improved production practices and capital investments to potential in our India cotton business with the ongoing
continue to contribute to improved germplasm quality and yields conversion to new hybrids and Bollgard II, this business is
for our seed offerings, leading to increased global demand for currently operating under state governmental pricing directives
both our branded germplasm and our licensed germplasm. Our that we believe limit near-term earnings growth.
vegetable and fruit portfolio will focus on 25 crops. We plan to In Brazil, we expect to continue to operate our dual-track
continue to apply our molecular breeding and marker capabilities business model of certified seeds and our point-of-delivery
to our vegetable and fruit seed germplasm, and we expect that payment system to ensure that we capture value on all
to lead to growth in that business. We also plan to make Monsanto Roundup Ready soybeans and Bollgard cotton crops
strategic acquisitions by our corn, soybean, and cotton grown there. Income is expected to grow as farmers choose to
businesses and our vegetable and fruit seed business, to grow plant more of these approved traits. However, full regulatory
our branded seed market share or expand our germplasm library system approval of additional traits must be realized for us to
and strengthen our global breeding programs. When we see a step change in contributions from seeds and traits. The
acquired DPL on June 1, 2007, which will provide us a agricultural economy in Brazil is benefiting from strong global
leadership position in the U.S. cotton market, we were required commodity prices, particularly for soybeans. Although farmer
by regulatory authorities to sell our existing branded U.S. cotton liquidity has improved from last year, we continue to monitor
business. We expect to see continued competition in seeds and our credit policy, expand our grain-based collection system, and
genomics in the near term. We believe we will have a increase cash sales, as part of a continuous effort to manage
competitive advantage because of our breeding capabilities and our Brazilian risk against possible market and foreign
our three-channel sales approach for corn and soybean seeds. exchange volatility.

Commercialization of second-generation traits and the It is likely that rulings of patent infringement from several
stacking of multiple traits in corn and cotton are expected to ongoing court cases in Europe will be required before we can
increase penetration in approved markets, particularly as we expect to capture value from our Roundup Ready soybeans
continue to price our traits in line with the value growers have grown in Argentina. One Spanish case and a U.K. case have had
experienced. In 2008, we expect that higher-value, stacked-trait adverse early results and will be appealed. Additional cases are
products will represent a larger share of our total U.S. corn seed expected to provide rulings in the next several quarters. We are
sales than they did in 2007. Acquisitions may also present near- continuing to discuss alternative arrangements with various
term opportunities to increase penetration of our traits. In stakeholders. However, we have no certainty that any of these
particular, we expect that our acquisition of DPL will enable us discussions will lead to an income producing outcome in the
to accelerate penetration of our second-generation cotton traits. near term. We do not plan to commercialize new soybean or
We expect the competition in biotechnology to increase, as cotton traits in Argentina until we can achieve more certainty
more competitors launch traits in the United States and that we would be compensated for the technology.
internationally by the end of the decade. However, we believe

Agricultural Productivitywe will have a competitive advantage because we will be
We believe our Roundup herbicide business will continue topoised to deliver second- and third-generation traits when our
generate a sustainable source of cash and gross profit. Pricingcompetitors are delivering their first-generation traits.
of generic formulations of glyphosate herbicides has increasedRegulatory approvals have been obtained in the United
during 2007. The generic pricing can be somewhat unstableStates and Canada for Roundup RReady2Yield soybeans (RR2Y),
during the short-term, but we believe both the short- and long-our second-generation glyphosate-tolerant soybean product. In
term trends will be favorable. We have experienced increasedaddition, regulatory submissions for RR2Y have been filed in at
demand in recent years, and we are implementing strategies toleast 10 soybean-importing countries, with notable progress in
meet the future demands for Roundup, as well as for ourJapan and other key export markets. Cultivation opportunities
licensed glyphosate. To sustain the cash and income generationwere expanded for corn in South America with Argentina’s
of our Roundup business, we will continue to actively manageregulatory approvals for YieldGard Corn Borer stacked with
our inventory and other costs and offer product innovations,Roundup Ready 2 Corn.
superior customer service and logistics and marketing programsDuring 2007, we and BASF announced a long-term joint
to support or allow us to increase prices. Further expansion ofresearch and development and commercialization collaboration
crops with our Roundup Ready traits may also incrementallyin plant biotechnology that will focus on high-yielding crops and
increase sales of our Roundup products.crops that are tolerant to adverse conditions such as drought.

Over the long-term life of the collaboration, we and BASF will
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Like most other selective herbicides, our selective changes in financial condition for the current period could have
acetochlor herbicide products face increasing competitive been materially different from those presented.
pressures and a declining market, in part because of the rapid

Goodwill: The majority of our goodwill relates to our seedpenetration of Roundup Ready corn in the United States. We
company acquisitions. We are required to assess whether anywill continue to seek ways to optimize our selective herbicides
of our goodwill is impaired. In order to do this, we applybusiness, as we believe it is important to offer fully integrated
judgment in determining our reporting units, which representcrop-protection solutions, particularly in Roundup Ready corn.
component parts of our business. Our annual goodwillWe anticipate a continued decline in this business in the near
impairment assessment involves estimating the fair value of aterm, but the gross profit from the Roundup Ready traits and
reporting unit and comparing it with its carrying amount. If thefrom the Roundup herbicides used on these acres is
carrying value of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value,significantly higher than the gross profit from the lost selective
additional steps are required to calculate a potential impairmentherbicide sales.
loss. Calculating the fair value of the reporting units requiresWe expect that our lawn-and-garden herbicide products will
significant estimates and long-term assumptions. Any changesremain a strong cash generator and support our Roundup brand
in key assumptions about the business and its prospects, or anyequity in the marketplace. However, we anticipate continued
changes in market conditions, interest rates or othercompetition from generic and private-label products and, as a
externalities, could result in an impairment charge. We estimateresult, cost pressures from major retailers.
the fair value of our reporting units by applying discounted cashDuring 2008, our Posilac business will continue to reduce
flow methodologies. The annual goodwill impairment tests werebulk powder inventory. Sandoz GmbH, which manufactures the
performed as of March 1, 2007, and March 1, 2006. Noactive ingredient and the finished dose formulation for Posilac,
indications of goodwill impairment existed as of either date. Inhas notified us of its intention to terminate its agreement with
2007 and 2006, we recorded goodwill related to our acquisitionsus, effective Dec. 31, 2008. We do not expect the termination
(see Note 4 — Business Combinations). Future declines in theto have a significant effect on our supplies because in 2006 we
fair value of our reporting units could result in an impairment ofreceived FDA approval for the Augusta, Georgia facility for
goodwill and reduce shareowners’ equity.finished formulation and packaging of Posilac. We believe some

processor requests for ‘‘r-BST-free’’ milk will limit our
Litigation and Other Contingencies: We are involved in variousfuture sales.
intellectual property, biotechnology, tort, contract, antitrust,
employee benefit, environmental and other litigation, claims andCRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

legal proceedings; environmental remediation; and government
In preparing our financial statements, we must select and apply investigations. We routinely assess the likelihood of adverse
various accounting policies. Our most significant policies are judgments or outcomes to those matters, as well as ranges of
described in Note 2 — Significant Accounting Policies. In order probable losses, to the extent losses are reasonably estimable.
to apply our accounting policies, we often need to make We record accruals for such contingencies to the extent that we
estimates based on judgments about future events. In making conclude their occurrence is probable and the financial impact,
such estimates, we rely on historical experience, market and should an adverse outcome occur, is reasonably estimable.
other conditions, and on assumptions that we believe to be Disclosure for specific legal contingencies is provided if the
reasonable. However, the estimation process is by its nature likelihood of occurrence is at least reasonably possible and the
uncertain given that estimates depend on events over which we exposure is considered material to the consolidated financial
may not have control. If market and other conditions change statements. In making determinations of likely outcomes of
from those that we anticipate, our results of operations, litigation matters, management considers many factors. These
financial condition and changes in financial condition may be factors include, but are not limited to, past history, scientific and
materially affected. In addition, if our assumptions change, we other evidence, and the specifics and status of each matter. If
may need to revise our estimates, or to take other corrective our assessment of the various factors changes, we may change
actions, either of which may also have a material effect on our our estimates. That may result in the recording of an accrual or
results of operations, financial condition or changes in financial a change in a previously recorded accrual. Predicting the
condition. Members of our senior management have discussed outcome of claims and litigation, and estimating related costs
the development and selection of our critical accounting and exposure involves substantial uncertainties that could cause
estimates, and our disclosure regarding them, with the audit actual costs to vary materially from estimates and accruals.
and finance committee of our board of directors, and do so on a In the process of managing certain litigation and
regular basis. environmental liabilities related to Solutia, and through our

We believe that the following estimates have a higher involvement in Solutia’s bankruptcy process, we determined
degree of inherent uncertainty and require our most significant that it was probable that we would incur some expenses related
judgments. In addition, had we used estimates different from to Solutia’s third-party tort litigation and environmental liabilities
any of these, our results of operations, financial condition or and that the amount of certain of these expenses could be

reasonably estimated. In December 2004, we determined that it
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was appropriate to establish a reserve for such expenses based necessary to keep the recorded pension liability at least equal to
on the best estimates by our management with input from our the unfunded accumulated benefit obligation for the plan. These
legal and other outside advisors. Accordingly, a charge in the noncash adjustments to adjust the additional minimum pension
amount of $284 million was recorded in first quarter fiscal 2005. liability affected shareowners’ equity, but did not affect our
As of Aug. 31, 2007, the remaining Solutia-related reserve is results of operations. In addition, in 2007, we adopted SFAS 158
$182 million. We believe that this reserve represents the and recognized the under funded status which resulted in a
discounted cost that we would expect to incur in connection pre-tax charge of $72 million to accumulated other
with these litigation and environmental matters. We expect to comprehensive income.
pay for these potential liabilities over time as the various legal Fiscal year 2008 pension expense, which will be
proceedings are resolved and remediation is performed at the determined using assumptions as of Aug. 31, 2007, is expected
various environmental sites. Actual costs to us may differ to increase compared with fiscal year 2007 because we
materially from this estimate. Further, additional litigation or decreased our expected rate of return on assets assumption as
environmental matters that are not reflected in this reserve may of Aug. 31, 2007, to 8.25 percent. This assumption was
arise or become probable and reasonably estimable in the 8.5 percent in 2007, and 8.75 percent in both 2006 and 2005.
future, and we may also manage, settle, or pay judgments or To determine the rate of return, we consider the historical
damages with respect to litigation or environmental matters in experience and expected future performance of the plan assets,
order to mitigate contingent potential liability and protect as well as the current and expected allocation of the plan
Pharmacia and us, if Solutia refuses to do so. This reserve may assets. The U.S. qualified pension plan’s asset allocation as of
not reflect all potential liabilities that we may incur in connection Aug. 31, 2007, was approximately 67 percent equity securities,
with Solutia’s bankruptcy and does not reflect any insurance 28 percent debt securities and 5 percent other investments, in
reimbursements, any recoveries we might receive through the line with policy ranges. We periodically evaluate the allocation of
bankruptcy process, or any recoveries we might receive through plan assets among the different investment classes to ensure
the contribution actions that we are pursuing on Pharmacia’s that they are within policy guidelines and ranges. While we do
behalf. See Note 21 — Commitments and Contingencies and not currently expect to further reduce the assumed rate of
the section captioned Financial Condition, Liquidity, and Capital return in the near term, holding all other assumptions constant,
Resources — ‘‘Contingent Liabilities Relating to Solutia Inc. we estimate that a half-percent decrease in the expected return
(Off-Balance Sheet Arrangement)’’ of MD&A for additional on plan assets would lower our fiscal year 2008 pretax income
information on Solutia’s Assumed Liabilities and the Solutia- by approximately $7 million.
related reserve. Our discount rate assumption for the 2008 pension

expense is 6.05 percent. This assumption was 5.9 percent,
Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits: The actuarial 5.0 percent and 5.8 percent in 2007, 2006 and 2005,
valuations of our pension and other postretirement benefit respectively. In determining the discount rate, we use yields on
costs, assets and obligations affect our financial position, results high-quality fixed-income investments (including among other
of operations and cash flows. These valuations require the use things, Moody’s Aa corporate bond yields) that match the
of assumptions and long-range estimates. These assumptions duration of the pension obligations. To the extent the discount
include, among others: assumptions regarding interest and rate increases or decreases, our pension obligation is decreased
discount rates, assumed long-term rates of return on pension or increased accordingly. Holding all other assumptions
plan assets, health care cost trends, and projected rates of constant, we estimate that a half-percent decrease in the
salary increases. We regularly evaluate these assumptions and discount rate will decrease our fiscal year 2008 pretax income
estimates as new information becomes available. Changes in by approximately $4 million. Our salary rate assumption as of
assumptions (caused by conditions in the debt and equity Aug. 31, 2007, was approximately 6 percent for the next two
markets, changes in asset mix, and plan experience, for years and then 4 percent prospectively on all plans. Holding all
example) could have a material effect on our pension obligations other assumptions constant, we estimate that a half-percent
and expenses, and can affect our net income (loss), intangible increase in the salary rate assumption would decrease our fiscal
assets, liabilities, and shareowners’ equity. In addition, changes year 2008 pretax income $2 million.
in assumptions such as rates of return, fixed income rates used
to value liabilities or declines in the fair value of plan assets, Deferred Income Tax Assets: Management regularly assesses
may result in voluntary decisions or mandatory requirements to the likelihood that deferred tax assets will be recovered from
make additional contributions to our qualified pension plan. future taxable income. To the extent management believes that
Because of the design of our postretirement health care plans, it is more likely than not that a deferred tax asset will not be
our liabilities associated with these plans are not highly sensitive realized, a valuation allowance is established. When a valuation
to assumptions regarding health care cost trends. allowance is established or increased, an income tax charge is

In fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, we recorded a included in the consolidated financial statements and net
$79 million decrease, a $148 million decrease, and a $20 million deferred tax assets are adjusted accordingly. Changes in tax
increase, respectively, to adjust the additional minimum pension laws, statutory tax rates, and estimates of the company’s future
liability in our financial statements. These adjustments were taxable income levels could result in actual realization of the
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deferred tax assets being materially different from the amounts economic and market conditions are different from those we
anticipated, actual returns and inventory obsolescence could beprovided for in the consolidated financial statements. If the
materially different from the amounts provided for in ouractual recovery amount of the deferred tax asset is less than
consolidated financial statements. If seed returns are higheranticipated, we would be required to write off the remaining
than anticipated, our net sales, net trade receivables, netdeferred tax asset and increase the tax provision, resulting in a
income and shareowners’ equity for future periods will bereduction of net income and shareowners’ equity.
reduced. If inventory obsolescence is higher than expected, ourAs of Aug. 31, 2007, management has recorded a deferred
cost of goods sold will be increased, and our inventorytax asset of $413 million in Brazil primarily related to net tax
valuations, net income, and shareowners’ equity willoperating loss carryforwards (NOLs) that have no expiration
be reduced.date. Management continues to believe it is more likely than not

that we will realize our deferred tax assets in Brazil. Stock-Based Compensation: On Sept. 1, 2005, we adopted
As of Aug. 31, 2005, management had recorded a valuation SFAS 123R, which requires the measurement and recognition of

allowance of $103 million in Argentina related to NOLs. Monsanto compensation expense for all share-based payment awards
Argentina generated taxable income in its 2006 tax year (calendar made to employees and directors based on estimated fair
2006). Management is also projecting taxable income for the values. We adopted SFAS 123R using the modified prospective
current tax year (calendar 2007) and, accordingly, reversed transition method. Under this method, our consolidated financial
$33 million and $15 million of the valuation allowance as a statements as of and for the years ended Aug. 31, 2007, and
favorable adjustment to our 2007 and 2006 tax provision, Aug. 31, 2006, reflect the impact of SFAS 123R, while the
respectively. Also, during 2007 and 2006, the valuation allowance consolidated financial statements for prior periods have not
changed slightly because of foreign currency fluctuations. As of been restated to reflect, and do not include, the impact of
Aug. 31, 2007, we have a valuation allowance of $43 million SFAS 123R. Pre-tax stock-based compensation expense

recognized under SFAS 123R was $73 million and $63 million inrelated to the remaining NOLs which expire from 2008 to 2010.
2007 and 2006, respectively (including $16 million andA valuation allowance is still necessary based on the recent
$13 million in 2007 and 2006, respectively, related to share-history of losses through 2005, the uncertainty of capturing value
based awards for which compensation expense was beingfrom our technology, and also the limited tax carryforward period
recognized prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R).of five years. We are taking actions to attempt to realize such

Upon adoption of SFAS 123R, we began estimating the valuedeferred tax assets; however, such actions are dependent, in
of employee stock options on the date of grant using a lattice-part, on conditions that are not entirely in our control. We also
binomial model. Prior to adoption of SFAS 123R, the value ofconcluded that it is more likely than not that we will realize our
employee stock options was estimated on the date of grant usingdeferred tax assets in Argentina that are not related to the NOLs
the Black-Scholes model, for the disclosures of pro forma financialnoted above through future projected taxable income.
information required under SFAS 123. Pre-tax unrecognized
compensation expense, net of estimated forfeitures, for stockAllowance for Doubtful Trade Receivables: We maintain an
options, nonvested restricted stock and nonvested restricted stockallowance for doubtful trade receivables. This allowance
units was $61 million as of Aug. 31, 2007, which will berepresents our estimate of accounts receivable that, subsequent
recognized over weighted-average periods of two to three years.to the time of sale, we have estimated to be of doubtful
The determination of fair value of share-based payment awards oncollectibility because our customers may not be able to pay. In
the date of grant using an option-pricing model is affected by ourdetermining the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful
stock price as well as assumptions regarding a number of highlyaccounts, we consider historical bad-debt experience, customer
complex and subjective variables. These variables include, but arecreditworthiness, market conditions, and economic conditions.
not limited to, the expected stock price volatility over the term ofWe perform ongoing evaluations of our allowance for doubtful
the awards, and actual and projected employee stock optionaccounts, and we increase the allowance as required. Increases
exercise behaviors. The use of a lattice-binomial model requiresin this allowance will reduce the recorded amount of our net
extensive actual employee exercise behavior data and a number oftrade receivables, net income and shareowners’ equity, and
complex assumptions including expected volatility, risk-free interestincrease our bad-debt expense.
rate, and expected dividends. The weighted-average estimated
value of employee stock options granted during 2007 wasAllowances for Returns and Inventory Obsolescence: Where
$13.63 per share, using the lattice-binomial model. We based ourthe right of return exists in our seed business, sales revenues
estimate of future volatility on a combination of historical volatilityare reduced at the time of sale to reflect expected returns. In
on our stock and implied volatility on publicly traded options on ourorder to estimate the expected returns, management analyzes
stock. The risk-free interest rate assumption is based on observedhistorical returns, economic trends, market conditions, and
interest rates appropriate for the term of our employee stockchanges in customer demand. In addition, we establish
options. The dividend yield assumption is based on the history andallowances for obsolescence of inventory equal to the
expectation of dividend payouts. If factors change and we employdifference between the cost of inventory and the estimated
different assumptions in the application of SFAS 123R in futuremarket value, based on assumptions about future demand and
periods, the compensation expense that we record undermarket conditions. We regularly evaluate the adequacy of our
SFAS 123R may differ significantly from what we have recorded inreturn allowances and inventory obsolescence reserves. If
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the current period. See Note 16 — Stock-Based Compensation Significant Accounting Guidance Adopted in 2007:

Plans — for pro forma disclosure of stock-based compensation In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 158, Employers’
expense for 2005. Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other

Postretirement Benefit Plans (SFAS 158). As required, we
NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS adopted this statement effective Aug. 31, 2007. The initial

recognition of the underfunded status resulted in a pre-taxIn February 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
charge of $72 million ($44 million after tax) to accumulatedissued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets
other comprehensive loss. The following table provides aand Financial Liabilities (SFAS 159). SFAS 159 permits entities to
breakdown of the incremental effect of applying this statementchoose to measure many financial instruments and certain other
on individual line items in the Consolidated Statement ofitems at fair value. The objective is to improve financial reporting
Financial Position as of Aug. 31, 2007:by providing entities with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in

reported earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities
Year Ended Aug. 31, 2007using different measurement techniques. SFAS 159 requires

Increase/additional disclosures related to the fair value measurements
Before (Decrease) After

included in the entity’s financial statements. This statement is Adoption of Required by  Adoption of
(Dollars in millions) SFAS 158 SFAS 158 SFAS 158effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning
Other Intangible Assets — Net $1,427 $ (12) $1,415after Nov. 15, 2007. Accordingly, we will adopt SFAS 159 in fiscal
Noncurrent Deferred Tax Assets 700 30 730year 2009. We are currently evaluating the impact of SFAS 159 on
Other Assets 477 (4) 473the consolidated financial statements.
Miscellaneous Short-term Accruals 689 9 698

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Postretirement Liabilities 496 46 542
Value Measurement (SFAS 157). SFAS 157 defines fair value, Other Liabilities 591 3 594

Accumulated Other Comprehensiveestablishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally
Loss (333) (44) (377)accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures about

fair value measurements. This statement is effective for The pre-tax components of the amount recognized in
financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after accumulated other comprehensive loss at Aug. 31, 2007, follow:
Nov. 15, 2007. We are currently evaluating the impact of
adopting SFAS 157 on the consolidated financial statements. Pension Plans Postretirement

In June 2006, the FASB issued FIN No. 48, Accounting for (Dollars in millions) U.S. Outside the U.S. Plans
Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an Interpretation of FASB Net loss (gain) $325 $13 $ (3)
Statement No. 109 (FIN 48), which clarifies the accounting for Prior service cost (credit) 11 (2) (7)
uncertainty in tax positions. This Interpretation requires financial Total $336 $11 $ (10)
statement recognition of the impact of a tax position, if that
position is more likely than not to be sustained on examination, The estimated net loss and prior service cost for the
based on the technical merits of the position. The provisions defined benefit pension plans that will be amortized from
of FIN 48 will be effective for fiscal years beginning after accumulated other comprehensive loss into net periodic benefit
Dec. 15, 2006, with the cumulative effect of the change in cost over the next fiscal year are $37 million and $3 million,
accounting principle recorded as an adjustment to opening retained respectively. The estimated net gain and prior service credit for
deficit. We currently estimate the cumulative effect adjustment of the other defined benefit postretirement plans that will be
the adoption of FIN 48 to be a charge of $25 million to $35 million. amortized from accumulated other comprehensive loss into net

In March 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 156, Accounting periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year are $1 million and
for Servicing of Financial Assets — an amendment of FASB $1 million, respectively.
Statement No. 140 (SFAS 156). SFAS 156 requires recognition
of a servicing asset or liability at fair value each time an
obligation is undertaken to service a financial asset by entering
into a servicing contract. SFAS 156 also provides guidance on
subsequent measurement methods for each class of servicing
assets and liabilities and specifies financial statement
presentation and disclosure requirements. This statement is
effective for fiscal years beginning after Sept. 15, 2006. We do
not believe the adoption of SFAS 156 will have a material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 

We are exposed to the effect of interest rate changes, foreign Rate (LIBOR), plus a spread of 39 basis points. During 2006, we
currency fluctuations, and changes in commodity and equity bought back $12 million of these 4% Senior Notes. As of
prices. Market risk represents the risk of a change in the value Aug. 31, 2007, the fair value of the 4% Senior Notes (including
of a financial instrument, derivative or nonderivative, caused by the effect of the swap) was $236 million. A 1 percentage point
fluctuations in interest rates, currency exchange rates, and change in the interest rates would change the fair value of the
commodity and equity prices. Monsanto handles market risk in 4% Senior Notes by $2 million.
accordance with established policies by engaging in various In July 2005, Monsanto issued $400 million of 51/2% Senior
derivative transactions. Such transactions are not entered into Notes due 2035. As of Aug. 31, 2007, the fair value of the 51/2%
for trading purposes. 2035 Senior Notes was $364 million. A 1 percentage point

See Notes 2 and 12 to the consolidated financial change in the interest rates would change the fair value of the
statements for further details regarding the accounting and 51/2% 2035 Senior Notes by $55 million.
disclosure of our derivative instruments and hedging activities.

Foreign Currency Fluctuations: In managing foreign currency risk,The sensitivity analysis discussed below presents the
Monsanto focuses on reducing the volatility in consolidated cashhypothetical change in fair value of those financial instruments
flow and earnings caused by fluctuations in exchange rates. Weheld by the company as of Aug. 31, 2007, that are sensitive to
use foreign-currency forward exchange contracts and foreign-changes in interest rates, currency exchange rates, and
currency options to manage the net currency exposure, incommodity and equity prices. Actual changes may prove to be
accordance with established hedging policies. Monsanto hedgesgreater or less than those hypothesized.
recorded commercial transaction exposures, intercompany

Changes in Interest Rates: Because the company’s short- and loans, net investments in foreign subsidiaries, and forecasted
long-term debt exceeds cash and investments, Monsanto’s transactions. The company’s significant hedged positions
interest-rate risk exposure pertains primarily to the debt included the euro, the Canadian dollar, the Brazilian real, the
portfolio. To the extent that we have cash available for Australian dollar, and the Mexican peso. Unfavorable currency
investment to ensure liquidity, we will invest that cash only movements of 10 percent would negatively affect the fair
in short-term instruments. The majority of our debt as of market values of the derivatives held to hedge currency
Aug. 31, 2007, consisted of fixed-rate long-term obligations. exposures by $104 million.

Market risk with respect to interest rates is estimated as
Changes in Commodity Prices: Monsanto uses futures contractsthe potential change in fair value resulting from an immediate
to protect itself against commodity price increases and useshypothetical 1 percentage point parallel shift in the yield curve.
options contracts to limit the unfavorable effect that priceThe fair values of the company’s investments and loans are
changes could have on these purchases. The company’s futuresbased on quoted market prices or discounted future cash flows.
and options contracts are accounted for as cash flow hedgesWe currently hold debt and investments that mature in less
and are mainly in the Seeds and Genomics segment. Thethan 360 days, and variable rate medium-term notes. As the
majority of these contracts hedge the committed or futurecarrying amounts on short-term loans and investments maturing
purchases of, and the carrying value of payables to growers for,in less than 360 days and the carrying amounts of variable-rate
soybean and corn inventories. A 10 percent decrease in themedium-term notes approximate their respective fair values, a
prices would have a negative effect on the fair value of these1 percentage point change in the interest rates would not result
instruments of $17 million. We also use natural gas, crude oilin a material change in the fair value of our debt and
and heating oil swaps and heating oil options to manage energyinvestments portfolio.
input costs. A 10 percent decrease in price of gas, crude oil andOn Aug. 14, 2002, Monsanto issued $600 million of 73/8%
heating oil would have a negative effect on the fair value ofSenior Notes, and on Aug. 23, 2002, the aggregate principal
these instruments of $10 million.amount of the outstanding notes was increased to $800 million.

In August 2005, the company exchanged $314 million of new
51/2% Senior Notes due 2025 for $314 million of the company’s
outstanding 73/8% Senior Notes. As of Aug. 31, 2007, the fair
value of the 73/8% Senior Notes was $530 million, and the fair
value of the 51/2% 2025 Senior Notes was $294 million. A
1 percentage point change in the interest rates would change
the fair value of the remaining 73/8% Senior Notes by
approximately $23 million, and the fair value of the 51/2% 2025
Senior Notes by $35 million.

In May 2003, Monsanto issued $250 million of 4% Senior
Notes. The interest rate on the 4% Senior Notes was
subsequently swapped to six-month London Interbank Offered
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Management Report

Monsanto Company’s management is responsible for the fair presentation and consistency, in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, of all the financial information included in this Form 10-K. Where necessary, the
information reflects management’s best estimates and judgments.

Management is also responsible for establishing and maintaining an effective system of internal control over financial reporting.
The purpose of this system is to provide reasonable assurance that Monsanto’s assets are safeguarded against material loss from
unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition, that authorized transactions are properly recorded to permit the preparation of accurate
financial information in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, that records are maintained which accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the company, and that receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of the company. This system of internal control over financial reporting is supported
by formal policies and procedures, including a Business Conduct program designed to encourage and assist employees in living up to
high standards of integrity, as well as a Code of Ethics for Chief Executive and Senior Financial Officers. Management seeks to
maintain the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting by careful personnel selection and training, division of
responsibilities, establishment and communication of policies, and ongoing internal reviews and audits. See Management’s Annual
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting for Management’s conclusion of the effectiveness of Monsanto’s internal control
over financial reporting as of Aug. 31, 2007.

Monsanto’s consolidated financial statements have been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent registered public
accounting firm. Their audits were conducted in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), and included a test of financial controls, tests of accounting records, and such other procedures as they considered
necessary in the circumstances.

The Audit and Finance Committee, composed entirely of outside directors, meets regularly with management, with the internal
auditors and with the independent registered public accounting firm to review accounting, financial reporting, auditing and internal
control matters. The committee has direct and private access to the registered public accounting firm and internal auditors.

Hugh Grant
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Terrell K. Crews
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Oct. 25, 2007
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Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management of Monsanto Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting
as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Under the supervision and with the participation of our
management, including the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness
of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework and criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

In conducting our evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of Aug. 31, 2007, we have
excluded the acquisition of Delta and Pine Land Company (DPL), as permitted by the guidance issued by the Office of the Chief
Accountant of the Securities and Exchange Commission. The acquisition of DPL was completed on June 1, 2007. DPL constituted
12 percent of total assets as of Aug. 31, 2007, and less than 1 percent of total revenues for the fiscal year then ended. See
Note 4 — Business Combinations — for a further discussion of this acquisition and its impact on Monsanto’s Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Based on our evaluation under the COSO framework, management concluded that the company maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of Aug. 31, 2007.

The company’s independent registered public accounting firm, Deloitte & Touche LLP, was appointed by the Audit and Finance
Committee of the company’s Board of Directors, and ratified by the company’s shareowners. Deloitte & Touche LLP has audited and
reported on the Consolidated Financial Statements of Monsanto Company and subsidiaries and the effectiveness of the company’s
internal control over financial reporting. The reports of the independent registered public accounting firm are contained in Item 8 of
this Annual Report.

Hugh Grant
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Terrell K. Crews
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Oct. 25, 2007
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Shareowners of Monsanto Company:

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Monsanto Company and subsidiaries (the ‘‘Company’’) as of
August 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. As described in Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting, management excluded from its assessment the internal control over financial reporting at Delta & Pine Land Company,
which was acquired on June 1, 2007 and whose financial statements constitute 12% of total assets and less than 1% of total
revenues of the consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the year ended August 31, 2007. Accordingly, our audit did
not include the internal control over financial reporting at Delta & Pine Land Company. The Company’s management is responsible
for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s
principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company’s board of
directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s
internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to
the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
August 31, 2007, based on the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
statement of consolidated financial position as of August 31, 2007 and the related statements of consolidated operations, cash flows,
shareowners’ equity, and comprehensive income for the year ended August 31, 2007, of the Company and our report dated
October 25, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements and included an explanatory paragraph regarding the
Company’s adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension
and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans — an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R), Financial Accounting
Standards Board Interpretation No. 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations — an interpretation of FASB
Statement No. 143, and Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment, effective August 31, 2007,
August 31, 2006, and September 1, 2005, respectively.

St. Louis, Missouri
October 25, 2007
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Shareowners of Monsanto Company:

We have audited the accompanying statements of consolidated financial position of Monsanto Company and subsidiaries (the
‘‘Company’’) as of August 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related statements of consolidated operations, cash flows, shareowners’
equity, and comprehensive income for each of the three years in the period ended August 31, 2007. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Monsanto
Company and subsidiaries as of August 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended August 31, 2007, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans — an amendment of
FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R), Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 47, Accounting for Conditional
Asset Retirement Obligations — an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143, and Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment, effective August 31, 2007, August 31, 2006, and September 1, 2005, respectively.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of August 31, 2007, based on the criteria established in Internal Control —
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated
October 25, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

St. Louis, Missouri
October 25, 2007
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Statements of Consolidated Operations
Year Ended Aug. 31,

(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts) 2007 2006 2005

Net Sales $8,563 $7,294 $6,275
Cost of goods sold 4,277 3,775 3,280

Gross Profit 4,286 3,519 2,995
Operating Expenses:

Selling, general and administrative expenses 1,895 1,638 1,404
Research and development expenses 780 710 583
Acquired in-process research and development (see Note 4) 193 — 230

Total Operating Expenses 2,868 2,348 2,217
Income from Operations 1,418 1,171 778

Interest expense 139 134 115
Interest income (122) (55) (40)
Solutia-related expenses (see Note 21) 40 29 309
Other expense — net 25 14 79

Income from Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes and Minority Interest 1,336 1,049 315
Income tax provision 402 337 104
Minority interest expense 12 17 18

Income from Continuing Operations 922 695 193

Discontinued Operations (see Note 26):
Income (loss) from operations of discontinued businesses 43 1 (25)
Income tax provision (benefit) (28) 1 (87)

Income on Discontinued Operations 71 — 62

Income Before Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change 993 695 255
Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle, Net of Tax Benefit (see Note 2) — (6) —

Net Income $ 993 $ 689 $ 255

Basic Earnings (Loss) per Share:
Income from continuing operations $ 1.70 $ 1.29 $ 0.36
Income on discontinued operations 0.13 — 0.12
Cumulative effect of accounting change — (0.01) —

Net Income $ 1.83 $ 1.28 $ 0.48

Diluted Earnings (Loss) per Share:
Income from continuing operations $ 1.66 $ 1.26 $ 0.35
Income on discontinued operations 0.13 — 0.12
Cumulative effect of accounting change — (0.01) —

Net Income $ 1.79 $ 1.25 $ 0.47
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Statements of Consolidated Financial Position
As of Aug. 31,

(Dollars in millions, except share amounts) 2007 2006

Assets
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 866 $ 1,460
Trade receivables — net (see Note 5) 1,499 1,455
Miscellaneous receivables 407 344
Deferred tax assets 449 390
Inventories (see Note 7) 1,719 1,688
Other current assets 144 124

Total Current Assets 5,084 5,461
Property, Plant and Equipment:

Land and improvements 259 221
Buildings and improvements 1,206 1,114
Machinery and equipment 3,525 3,337
Computer software 384 347
Construction in progress and other 542 398

Total Property, Plant and Equipment 5,916 5,417
Less Accumulated Depreciation 3,260 2,999

Property, Plant and Equipment — Net 2,656 2,418
Goodwill (see Note 8) 2,625 1,522
Other Intangible Assets — Net (see Note 8) 1,415 1,229
Noncurrent Deferred Tax Assets 730 625
Other Assets 473 473

Total Assets $12,983 $11,728

Liabilities and Shareowners’ Equity
Current Liabilities:

Short-term debt, including current portion of long-term debt $ 270 $ 28
Accounts payable 649 514
Income taxes payable 150 234
Accrued compensation and benefits 349 295
Accrued marketing programs 517 494
Deferred revenues 260 120
Grower production accruals 86 26
Dividends payable 96 55
Miscellaneous short-term accruals 698 513

Total Current Liabilities 3,075 2,279
Long-Term Debt 1,150 1,639
Postretirement Liabilities 542 600
Long-Term Portion of Solutia-Related Reserve (see Note 21) 119 155
Other Liabilities 594 530
Commitments and Contingencies (see Note 21)
Shareowners’ Equity:

Common stock (authorized: 1,500,000,000 shares, par value $0.01)
Issued 577,244,601 and 571,377,639 shares, respectively;
Outstanding 545,609,310 and 543,177,133 shares, respectively 6 6

Treasury stock 31,635,291 and 28,200,506 shares, respectively, at cost (814) (623)
Additional contributed capital 9,106 8,879
Retained deficit (405) (1,099)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (377) (623)
Reserve for ESOP debt retirement (13) (15)

Total Shareowners’ Equity 7,503 6,525

Total Liabilities and Shareowners’ Equity $12,983 $11,728
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Statements of Consolidated Cash Flows
Year Ended Aug. 31,

(Dollars in millions) 2007 2006 2005

Operating Activities:
Net Income $ 993 $ 689 $ 255

Adjustments to reconcile cash provided by operating activities:
Items that did not require (provide) cash:

Pre-tax cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (see Note 2) — 9 —
Depreciation and amortization expense 527 519 488
Bad-debt expense 70 47 67
Stock-based compensation expense 73 63 —
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation (83) (98) —
Tax benefit on employee stock options — — 94
Deferred income taxes (89) 39 (86)
Equity affiliate expense — net 34 31 31
Acquired in-process research and development (see Note 4) 193 — 266
Solutia-related charge (see Note 21) — — 284
Net gain on sale of Stoneville and NexGen businesses (see Note 26) (73) — —
Other items 15 26 70

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of the effects of acquisitions:
Trade receivables (2) 218 394
Inventories 60 (25) 6
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities 276 135 (46)
Solutia-related payments (see Note 21) (33) (34) (49)
PCB litigation settlement proceeds (see Note 21) 27 27 14
Net investment hedge settlement (23) (1) (48)
Other items (111) 29 (3)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 1,854 1,674 1,737

Cash Flows Provided (Required) by Investing Activities:
Purchases of short-term investments (59) (171) (150)
Maturities of short-term investments 22 300 300
Capital expenditures (509) (370) (281)
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired (1,679) (258) (1,541)
Technology and other investments (54) (147) (65)
Proceeds from sale of Stoneville and NexGen businesses (see Note 26) 317 — —
Other investments and property disposal proceeds 51 21 70

Net Cash Required by Investing Activities (1,911) (625) (1,667)

Cash Flows Provided (Required) by Financing Activities:
Net change in financing with less than 90-day maturities (5) (106) 28
Short-term debt proceeds 8 6 68
Short-term debt reductions (8) (39) (52)
Long-term debt proceeds 8 256 475
Long-term debt reductions (281) (118) (299)
Payments on debt assumed in Seminis acquisition — — (495)
Payments on other financing (16) (9) (15)
Payment of premium to exchange notes payable — — (53)
Debt issuance costs — — (4)
Treasury stock purchases (197) (114) (234)
Stock option exercises 83 116 173
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation 83 98 —
Dividend payments (258) (207) (174)

Net Cash Required by Financing Activities (583) (117) (582)

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents 46 3 —

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (594) 935 (512)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period 1,460 525 1,037

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period $ 866 $1,460 $ 525
See Note 20 — Supplemental Cash Flow Information — for further details.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Statements of Consolidated Shareowners’ Equity
Additional Retained Accumulated Other

Common Treasury Contributed Earnings Comprehensive Reserve for
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts) Stock Stock Capital (Deficit) Income (Loss)(1) ESOP Debt Total

Balance as of Sept. 1, 2004 $ 3 $ (266) $ 8,315 $(1,645) $(1,132) $ (17) $5,258
Net income — — — 255 — — 255
Treasury stock purchases — (234) — — — — (234)
Grants of restricted stock (49,400 shares) — — 1 — — — 1
Issuance of shares under employee stock plans — — 173 — — — 173
Tax benefit on employee stock options — — 94 — — — 94
Cash dividends of $0.34 per common share — — — (182) — — (182)
Foreign currency translation — — — — 231 — 231
Minimum pension liability, net of tax — — — — (2) — (2)
Net unrealized loss on investments, net of tax — — — — (2) — (2)
Accumulated derivative gain, net of tax — — — — 16 — 16
Other adjustments(2) — — 5 — — — 5

Balance as of Aug. 31, 2005 $ 3 $ (500) $ 8,588 $(1,572) $ (889) $ (17) $5,613
Net income — — — 689 — — 689
Treasury stock purchases — (120) — — — — (120)
Restricted stock withholding — (3) — — — — (3)
Grants of restricted stock (48,200 shares) — — 1 — — — 1
Issuance of shares under employee stock plans — — 116 — — — 116
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation — — 98 — — — 98
Stock-based compensation expense — — 64 — — — 64
Cash dividends of $0.40 per common share — — — (216) — — (216)
Foreign currency translation — — — — 191 — 191
Minimum pension liability, net of tax — — — — 90 — 90
Net unrealized gain on investments, net of tax — — — — 11 — 11
Accumulated derivative loss, net of tax — — — — (26) — (26)
Allocation of ESOP shares, net of dividends received — — — — — 2 2
Two-for-one stock split (See Note 1) 3 — (3) — — — —
Other adjustments(3) — — 15 — — — 15

Balance as of Aug. 31, 2006 $ 6 $ (623) $ 8,879 $(1,099) $ (623) $ (15) $6,525
Net income — — — 993 — — 993
Treasury stock purchases — (191) — — — — (191)
Restricted stock withholding — — (11) — — — (11)
Grants of restricted stock (83,500 shares) — — 1 — — — 1
Issuance of shares under employee stock plans — — 83 — — — 83
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation — — 83 — — — 83
Stock-based compensation expense — — 71 — — — 71
Cash dividends of $0.55 per common share — — — (299) — — (299)
Foreign currency translation — — — — 248 — 248
Minimum pension liability, net of tax — — — — 46 — 46
Realized and unrealized gain on investments, net of tax — — — — (18) — (18)
Accumulated derivative gain, net of tax — — — — 14 — 14
Allocation of ESOP shares, net of dividends received — — — — — 2 2
Adjustment to initially apply SFAS 158, net of tax(4) — — — — (44) — (44)

Balance as of Aug. 31, 2007 $ 6 $ (814) $ 9,106 $ (405) $ (377) $ (13) $7,503
(1) See Note 18 — Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss — for further details of the components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).
(2) Includes adjustments to deferred tax liabilities and other assets associated with the separation from Pharmacia in 2000.
(3) Includes prior year balance reclassifications upon adoption of SFAS 123(R). Also, includes adjustments to deferred tax assets associated with the spinoff from Pharmacia in

2002.
(4) Component of ending Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss, and not a component of comprehensive income per SFAS 158. Refer to Statements of Consolidated

Comprehensive Income.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Statements of Consolidated Comprehensive Income
Year Ended Aug. 31,

(Dollars in millions) 2007 2006 2005

Net Income $ 993 $689 $255
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss):

Foreign currency translation adjustments 248 191 231
Unrealized net holding gains (net of tax of $5 in 2007, $7 in 2006 and $3 in 2005) 7 11 4
Realized net holding gains (net of tax of $(16) in 2007 and $(4) in 2005) (25) — (6)
Unrealized net derivative gains (losses) (net of tax of $14 in 2007, $(17) in 2006 and $(1) in 2005) 5 (28) (2)
Realized net derivative losses (net of tax of $1 in 2007, $1 in 2006 and $11 in 2005) 9 2 18
Additional minimum pension liability adjustment (net of tax of $33 in 2007, $56 in 2006 and $(21) in 2005(1)) 46 90 (2)

Total Other Comprehensive Income 290 266 243

Total Comprehensive Income $1,283 $955 $498
(1) Includes adjustment to record deferred state income tax benefit on the minimum pension liability.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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common stock at $10 per share in an initial public offering (IPO).NOTE 1. BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
On Aug. 13, 2002, Pharmacia completed a spinoff of Monsanto

Monsanto Company, along with its subsidiaries, is a leading by distributing its entire ownership interest via a tax-free
global provider of agricultural products for farmers. Monsanto’s dividend to Pharmacia’s shareowners.
seeds, biotechnology trait products, and herbicides provide Unless otherwise indicated, ‘‘Monsanto’’ and the
farmers with solutions that improve productivity, reduce the ‘‘company’’ are used interchangeably to refer to Monsanto
costs of farming, and produce better foods for consumers and Company or to Monsanto Company and its consolidated
better feed for animals. subsidiaries, as appropriate to the context.

Monsanto manages its business in two segments: Seeds On June 27, 2006, the board of directors approved a two-
and Genomics, and Agricultural Productivity. Through the Seeds for-one split of the company’s common shares. The additional
and Genomics segment, Monsanto produces leading seed shares resulting from the stock split were paid on
brands, including DEKALB, Asgrow, D&PL, Deltapine and July 28, 2006, to shareowners of record on July 7, 2006. All
Seminis, and Monsanto develops biotechnology traits that assist share and per share information herein reflect this stock split.
farmers in controlling insects and weeds. Monsanto also
provides other seed companies with genetic material and
biotechnology traits for their seed brands. Through the NOTE 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
Agricultural Productivity segment, the company manufactures

Basis of Consolidation
Roundup brand herbicides and other herbicides and provides

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
lawn-and-garden herbicide products for the residential market

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
and animal agricultural products focused on improving dairy cow

United States. These statements pertain to Monsanto and its
productivity. See Note 22 — Segment and Geographic Data —

controlled subsidiaries. Intercompany accounts and transactions
for further details.

have been eliminated in consolidation. Investments in other
In the fourth quarter of 2007, the company sold its

companies in which Monsanto has the ability to exercise
U.S. Stoneville˛ and NexGen˛ businesses (divested cotton

significant influence (generally through an ownership interest
businesses) as part of the U.S. Department of Justice

greater than 20 percent) are included in the other assets item in
(DOJ) approval for the acquisition of Delta and Pine Land

the Statements of Consolidated Financial Position. The company
Company (DPL). In 2005, the company sold substantially all of

records minority interest expense in the Statements of
the environmental technologies businesses. As a result, financial

Consolidated Operations for any non-owned portion of
data for these businesses have been presented as discontinued

consolidated subsidiaries. Minority interest is recorded in other
operations as outlined below. The financial statements have

liabilities in the Statements of Consolidated Financial Position.
been recast and prepared in compliance with the provisions of

Arrangements with other business enterprises are also
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 144,

evaluated, and those in which Monsanto is determined to have
Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets

controlling financial interest are consolidated. In January 2003,
(SFAS 144). Accordingly, for all periods presented herein, the

the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB
Statements of Consolidated Operations have been conformed to

Interpretation (FIN) No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest
this presentation. The Stoneville and NexGen businesses were

Entities (FIN 46), and amended it by issuing FIN 46R in
previously reported as part of the Seeds and Genomics

December 2003. FIN 46R addresses the consolidation of
segment, and the environmental technologies businesses were

business enterprises to which the usual condition of
previously reported as part of the Agricultural Productivity

consolidation (ownership of a majority voting interest) does not
segment. See Note 26 — Discontinued Operations — for

apply. This interpretation focuses on controlling financial
further details.

interests that may be achieved through arrangements that do
Monsanto includes the operations, assets and liabilities that

not involve voting interests. It concludes that, in the absence of
were previously the agricultural business of Pharmacia

clear control through voting interests, a company’s exposure
Corporation, which is now a subsidiary of Pfizer Inc. Monsanto

(variable interest) to the economic risks and potential rewards
was incorporated as a subsidiary of Pharmacia in February 2000.

from the variable interest entity’s assets and activities are the
On Sept. 1, 2000, the assets and liabilities of the agricultural

best evidence of control. If an enterprise holds a majority of the
business were transferred from Pharmacia to Monsanto,

variable interests of an entity, it would be considered the
pursuant to the terms of a separation agreement dated as of

primary beneficiary. The primary beneficiary is required to
that date (the Separation Agreement), from which time the

consolidate the assets, liabilities and results of operations of the
consolidated financial statements reflect the results of

variable interest entity in its financial statements.
operations, financial position, and cash flows of the company as

Monsanto has an arrangement with a special-purpose entity
a separate entity responsible for procuring or providing the

to provide a financing program for selected Monsanto
services and financing previously provided by Pharmacia. In

customers. See Note 6 — Customer Financing Programs — for a
October 2000, Monsanto sold approximately 15 percent of its
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description of this arrangement. This special-purpose entity was Revenue Recognition

consolidated. For other types of variable interest entities, the The company derives most of its revenue from three main
company has evaluated its relationships with two entities and sources: sales of branded conventional seed and branded seed
has determined that, although the entities are variable interest with biotechnology traits; royalties and license revenues from
entities and Monsanto holds variable interests in the entities, licensed biotechnology traits and genetic material; and sales of
these entities are not required to be consolidated in the agricultural chemical products.
company’s financial statements pursuant to FIN 46R because Revenues from all branded seed sales are recognized when
Monsanto is not the primary beneficiary. One entity is a the title to the products is transferred. When the right of return
biotechnology company focused on plant gene research, exists in the company’s seed business, sales revenues are
development and commercialization, in which the company had reduced at the time of sale to reflect expected returns. In order
a 9 percent equity investment as of Aug. 31, 2007. Monsanto to estimate the expected returns, management analyzes
had an agreement in place under which Monsanto made historical returns, economic trends, market conditions, and
payments for research services and receives rights to changes in customer demand.
intellectual property developed within funded research. The Revenues for agricultural chemical products are recognized
entity reported total assets of $18 million and total liabilities of when title to the products is transferred. The company
$5 million as of Aug. 31, 2007, and revenues of $13 million for recognizes revenue on products it sells to distributors when,
the 12 months ended Aug. 31, 2007. The second entity is a according to the terms of the sales agreements, delivery has
joint venture in which the company has a 49 percent equity occurred, performance is complete, no right of return exists,
investment. This joint venture packages and sells seeds, with a and pricing is fixed or determinable at the time of sale.
focus on corn and sunflower seeds, and also sells and There are several additional conditions for recognition of
distributes agricultural chemical products. The joint venture revenue: that the collection of sales proceeds be reasonably
reported total assets of $24 million and total liabilities of assured based on historical experience and current market
$10 million as of Aug. 31, 2007, and revenues of $17 million for conditions, that pricing be fixed or determinable, and that there
the 12 months ended Aug. 31, 2007. As of Aug. 31, 2007, be no further performance obligations under the sale or the
Monsanto’s total estimate of maximum exposure to loss as a royalty or license agreement.
result of its relationships with these entities was approximately Monsanto follows Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 104,
$22 million, which represents Monsanto’s equity investments in Revenue Recognition, the SEC interpretation of accounting
these entities. No other commitments were required to these guidelines on revenue recognition. SAB 104 primarily affects
entities as of Aug. 31, 2007. Monsanto’s recognition of license revenues from biotechnology

traits sold through third-party seed companies. Trait royalties and
Use of Estimates license revenues are recorded when earned, usually when the
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with third-party seed companies sell their seeds containing Monsanto
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States traits to growers.
requires management to make certain estimates and To reduce credit exposure in Latin America, Monsanto
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the collects payments on certain customer accounts in grain.
consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Monsanto does not take ownership of the grain or the
Estimates are adjusted to reflect actual experience when associated inventory risk and therefore does not record revenue
necessary. Significant estimates and assumptions affect many or the related cost of sales for the grain. Such payments in
items in the financial statements, for example: allowance for grain are negotiated at the time Monsanto’s products are sold
doubtful trade receivables, sales returns and allowances, to the customers and are valued at the prevailing grain
inventory obsolescence, income tax liabilities and assets and commodity prices on that day. By entering into forward sales
related valuation allowances, asset impairments, valuations of contracts with grain merchants, Monsanto mitigates the
goodwill and other intangible assets, employee benefit plan commodity price exposure from the time a contract is signed
liabilities, value of equity-based awards, marketing program with a customer until the time the grain is collected from the
liabilities, grower accruals (an estimate of amounts payable to customer by a grain merchant on Monsanto’s behalf. The grain
farmers who grow seed for Monsanto), restructuring reserves, merchant converts the grain to cash for Monsanto.
self-insurance reserves, environmental reserves, deferred
revenue, contingencies, litigation, incentives, and the allocation Shipping and Handling Costs

of corporate costs to segments. Significant estimates and Following the guidance of Emerging Issues Task Force
assumptions are also used to establish the useful lives of (EITF) Issue No. 00-10, Accounting for Shipping and Handling
depreciable tangible and certain intangible assets. Actual results Fees and Costs, Monsanto records outward freight, purchasing
may differ from those estimates and assumptions, and such and receiving costs, inspection costs, warehousing costs,
results may affect income, financial position, or cash flows. internal transfer costs, and other costs of the company’s

distribution network in cost of goods sold.
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Marketing and Advertising Costs estimated future tax benefits to be received from taxing
Promotional and advertising costs are expensed as incurred and authorities or future reductions of taxes payable.
are included in selling, general and administrative expenses in

Cash and Cash Equivalentsthe Statements of Consolidated Operations. Accrued marketing
All highly liquid investments (defined as investments with aprograms are recorded in accordance with EITF Issue No. 01-9,
maturity of three months or less when purchased) areAccounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor to a Customer,
considered cash equivalents.based on specific performance criteria met by distributors,

dealers and farmers, such as purchase volumes, promptness of
Accounts Receivablepayment, and market share increases. The associated cost of
The company provides an allowance for doubtful trademarketing programs is recognized as a reduction of gross sales
receivables equal to the estimated uncollectible amounts. Thatin the Statements of Consolidated Operations. In addition,
estimate is based on historical collection experience, currentproduct performance, certain marketing programs, and variations
economic and market conditions, and a review of the currentin weather can result in free product to customers. The
status of each customer’s trade accounts receivable.associated cost of free product is recognized as cost of goods

sold in the Statements of Consolidated Operations.
Long-Term Investments

Monsanto previously had long-term investments in equity
Research and Development Costs

securities, which were considered available-for-sale. They wereThe company accounts for research and development (R&D)
classified as other assets in the Statements of Consolidatedcosts in accordance with SFAS No. 2, Accounting for Research
Financial Position, and they were carried at fair value, withand Development Costs (SFAS 2). Under SFAS 2, all R&D costs
unrealized gains and losses reported in the Statements ofmust be charged to expense as incurred. Accordingly, internal
Consolidated Shareowners’ Equity in accumulated otherR&D costs are expensed as incurred. Third-party R&D costs are
comprehensive income (loss). During 2007, Monsanto made aexpensed when the contracted work has been performed or as
donation of its long-term equity securities. Monsanto has othermilestone results have been achieved. Acquired in-process R&D
long-term investments in equity securities for which marketcosts with no alternative future uses are expensed in the period
values are not readily available. These other securities andacquired. The costs of purchased in-process R&D that have
investments are carried at cost, and they are reviewed regularlyalternative future uses are capitalized and amortized over the
to evaluate whether they have experienced an other-than-estimated useful life of the asset. The costs associated with
temporary decline in fair value. If Monsanto believes that anequipment or facilities acquired or constructed for R&D activities
other-than-temporary decline exists, the investment in questionthat have alternative future uses are capitalized and depreciated
is written down to market value in accordance with EITF Issueon a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the
No. 03-01, The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairmentasset. The amortization and depreciation for such capitalized
and Its Application to Certain Investments (EITF 03-01). Theassets are charged to R&D expenses. In fiscal year 2007,
write-down is recorded in the Statements of ConsolidatedMonsanto and BASF announced a long-term joint R&D and
Operations as an impairment of securities.commercialization collaboration in plant technology that will

focus on high yielding crops and crops that are tolerant to
Fair Values of Financial Instruments

adverse conditions. The collaboration has resulted in shared
The recorded amounts of cash, trade receivables, investments

R&D costs. Only Monsanto’s portion has been included in
in securities, miscellaneous receivables, third-party guarantees,

research and development expenses in the Statements of
commodity futures contracts, accounts payable, grower

Consolidated Operations.
accruals, accrued marketing programs, miscellaneous short-term
accruals, and short-term debt approximate their fair values. Fair

Income Taxes
values are based on quoted market prices, estimates fromDeferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the
brokers, and other appropriate valuation techniques. The fairexpected tax consequences of temporary differences between
value estimates do not necessarily reflect the values that couldthe tax bases of assets and liabilities and their reported
be realized in the current market on any one day. Seeamounts. Management regularly assesses the likelihood that
Note 12 — Financial Instruments — for further details.deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable

income, and to the extent management believes that it is more
Inventory Valuation

likely than not that a deferred tax asset will not be realized, a
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, and the

valuation allowance is established. When a valuation allowance
inventory reserve reduces the cost basis of inventory.

is established, increased or decreased, an income tax charge or
Inventories are valued as follows:

benefit is included in the consolidated financial statements and
m Seeds and Genomics: Actual cost is used to value rawnet deferred tax assets are adjusted accordingly. The net

materials such as treatment chemicals and packaging, asdeferred tax assets as of Aug. 31, 2007, represent the
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well as goods in process. Costs for substantially all finished Other Intangible Assets

goods, which include the cost of carry-over crops from the Other intangible assets consist primarily of acquired seed
previous year, are valued at weighted-average actual cost. germplasm, acquired biotechnology intellectual property,
Weighted-average actual cost includes field growing and trademarks and customer relationships. Seed germplasm is the
harvesting costs, plant conditioning and packaging costs, genetic material used in new seed varieties. Germplasm is
and manufacturing overhead costs. amortized on a straight-line basis over useful lives ranging from

seven years for completed technology germplasm to a
m Agricultural Productivity: Actual cost is used to value raw

maximum of 30 years for certain core technology germplasm.materials and supplies. Standard cost, which approximates
Completed technology germplasm consists of seed hybrids andactual cost, is used to value finished goods and goods in
varieties that are commercially available. Core technologyprocess. Variances, exclusive of unusual volume and
germplasm is the collective germplasm of inbred and hybridoperating performance, are capitalized into inventory.
seeds and has a longer useful life as it is used to develop newStandard cost includes direct labor and raw materials, and
seed hybrids and varieties. Acquired biotechnology intellectualmanufacturing overhead based on normal capacity. The cost
property includes intangible assets related to acquisitions andof the Agricultural Productivity segment inventories in the
licenses through which Monsanto has acquired the rights toUnited States, excluding supplies (approximately one-fourth
various research and discovery technologies. These encompassof total inventories as of Aug. 31, 2007, and Aug. 31, 2006)
intangible assets such as enabling processes and data librariesis determined by using the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method,
necessary to support the integrated genomics andwhich generally reflects the effects of inflation or deflation
biotechnology platforms. These intangible assets haveon cost of goods sold sooner than other inventory cost
alternative future uses and are amortized over useful livesmethods. The cost of inventories outside of the United
ranging from five to 13 years. The useful lives of acquiredStates, as well as supplies inventories in the United States,
germplasm and acquired biotechnology intellectual property areis determined by using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method;
determined based on consideration of several factors includingFIFO is used outside of the United States because the
the nature of the asset, its expected use, length of licensingrequirements in the countries where Monsanto maintains
agreement or patent and the period over which benefits areinventories generally do not allow the use of the LIFO
expected to be received from the use of the asset.method. Inventories at FIFO approximate current cost.

Monsanto has a broad portfolio of trademarks and patents
including trademarks for Roundup (for herbicide products),Goodwill
Roundup Ready, Bollgard, and YieldGard (for traits), DEKALB,Monsanto follows the guidance of SFAS No. 141, Business
Asgrow, and Seminis (for agricultural seeds), Posilac (for dairyCombinations (SFAS 141), in recording the goodwill arising from
productivity products), and patents for our insect-protectiona business combination as the excess of purchase price and
traits, formulations used to make our herbicides and variousrelated costs over the fair value of identifiable assets acquired
manufacturing processes. The amortization period forand liabilities assumed.
trademarks and patents ranges from nine to 30 years.Under SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
Trademarks are amortized on a straight-line basis over their(SFAS 142), goodwill is not amortized and is subject to annual
useful lives. The useful life of a trademark is determined basedimpairment tests. A fair-value-based test is applied at the
on the estimated market-life of the associated company, brandreporting unit level, which is generally at or one level below the
or product. Patents are amortized on a straight-line basis overoperating segment level. The test compares the fair value of the
the period in which the patent is legally protected, the periodcompany’s reporting units to the carrying value of those
over which benefits are expected to be received, or thereporting units. This test requires various judgments and
estimated market-life of the product with which the patent isestimates. The fair value of goodwill is determined using an
associated, whichever is less.estimate of future cash flows of the reporting unit and a risk-

In conjunction with acquisitions, Monsanto has access toadjusted discount rate to compute a net present value of future
the distribution channels and customer relationships of thecash flows. An adjustment to goodwill will be recorded for any
acquired companies. These relationships are expected togoodwill that is determined to be impaired. Impairment of
provide economic benefits to Monsanto. The amortization periodgoodwill is measured as the excess of the carrying amount of
for customer relationships ranges from five to 13 years, andgoodwill over the fair values of recognized and unrecognized
amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over theseassets and liabilities of the reporting unit. Goodwill is tested for
periods. The amortization period of customer relationshipsimpairment at least annually, or more frequently if events or
represents management’s best estimate of the expected usagecircumstances indicate it might be impaired. Goodwill was last
or consumption of the economic benefits of the acquiredtested for impairment as of March 1, 2007. See Note 8 —
assets, which is based on the company’s historical experienceGoodwill and Other Intangible Assets — for further discussion of
of customer attrition rates.the annual impairment test.
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In accordance with SFAS 144, all amortizable intangible carrying amount of the obligation would have been $10 million
assets are assessed for impairment whenever events indicate a as of Aug. 31, 2005.
possible loss. Such an assessment involves estimating

Environmental Remediation Liabilitiesundiscounted cash flows over the remaining useful life of the
Monsanto follows AICPA Statement of Position 96-1,intangible. If the review indicates that undiscounted cash flows
Environmental Remediation Liabilities, which provides guidanceare less than the recorded value of the intangible asset, the
for recognizing, measuring and disclosing environmentalcarrying amount of the intangible is reduced by the estimated
remediation liabilities. Monsanto accrues these costs in thecash-flow shortfall on a discounted basis, and a corresponding
period when responsibility is established and when such costsloss is charged to the Statement of Consolidated Operations.
are probable and reasonably estimable based on current law andSee Note 8 — Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets — for
existing technology. Postclosure and remediation costs forfurther discussion of Monsanto’s intangible assets.
hazardous waste sites and other waste facilities at operating

Property, Plant and Equipment locations are accrued over the estimated life of the facility, as
Property, plant and equipment is recorded at cost. Additions and part of its anticipated closure cost.
improvements are capitalized; these include all material, labor,

Litigation and Other Contingenciesand engineering costs to design, install or improve the asset
Monsanto is involved in various intellectual property,and interest costs on construction projects. Such costs are not
biotechnology, tort, contract, antitrust, employee benefit,depreciated until they are placed in service. Routine repairs and
environmental and other litigation, claims and legal proceedings,maintenance are expensed as incurred. The cost of plant and
such as, proceedings relating to Solutia’s bankruptcy filing (seeequipment is depreciated using the straight-line method over
Note 21 — Commitments and Contingencies); environmentalthe estimated useful life of the asset — weighted-average
remediation; and government investigations. Managementperiods of approximately 25 years for buildings, and 10 years
routinely assesses the likelihood of adverse judgments orfor machinery and equipment. In compliance with SFAS 144,
outcomes to those matters, as well as ranges of probablelong-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever in
losses, to the extent losses are reasonably estimable. Inmanagement’s judgment conditions indicate a possible loss.
accordance with SFAS No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies,Such impairment tests compare estimated undiscounted cash
accruals for such contingencies are recorded to the extent thatflows to the recorded value of the asset. If an impairment is
management concludes their occurrence is probable and theindicated, the asset is written down to its fair market value or, if
financial impact, should an adverse outcome occur, isfair market value is not readily determinable, to an estimated fair
reasonably estimable. Disclosure for specific legal contingenciesvalue based on discounted cash flows.
is provided if the likelihood of occurrence is at least reasonablyMonsanto follows SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset
possible and the exposure is considered material to theRetirement Obligations (SFAS 143), which addresses financial
consolidated financial statements. In making determinations ofaccounting for and reporting of costs and obligations associated
likely outcomes of litigation matters, management considerswith the retirement of tangible long-lived assets. Monsanto has
many factors. These factors include, but are not limited to, pastasset retirement obligations with carrying amounts totaling
experience, scientific and other evidence, interpretation of$54 million and $49 million as of Aug. 31, 2007, and
relevant laws or regulations, and the specifics and status ofAug. 31, 2006, respectively, primarily relating to its
each matter. If the assessment of the various factors changes,manufacturing facilities. The change in carrying value as of
the estimates may change. That may result in the recording ofAug. 31, 2007, consisted of $4 million for accretion expense,
an accrual or a change in a previously recorded accrual.and $1 million related to increased costs.
Predicting the outcome of claims and litigation, and estimatingAs of Aug. 31, 2006, Monsanto adopted the provisions of
related costs and exposure involves substantial uncertaintiesFIN No. 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement
that could cause actual costs to vary materially from estimatesObligations — an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143
and accruals.(FIN 47). FIN 47 clarifies that conditional obligations meet the

definition of an asset retirement obligation in SFAS 143, and
Guaranteestherefore should be recognized if their fair value is reasonably
Monsanto is subject to various commitments under contractualestimable. As a result of adopting FIN 47, Monsanto recorded a
and other commercial obligations. The company recognizesnoncash pre-tax charge of $9 million ($6 million after-tax). This
liabilities for contingencies and commitments under FIN No. 45,charge is reported as a cumulative effect of a change in
Guarantors Accounting and Disclosure Requirements foraccounting principle in the fourth quarter of 2006. If FIN 47
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees and Indebtedness ofwould have been effective for all periods presented, net income
Others, an interpretation of SFAS No. 5, 57 and 107, andwould have been reduced by less than $1 million for fiscal year
rescission of FIN No. 34 (FIN 45). For additional information on2005, or less than $0.01 per diluted share, and the aggregate
the company’s commitments and other contractual and
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commercial obligations, see Note 21 — Commitments as a cash-flow hedge, to the extent that the hedge is effective,
and Contingencies. are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss),

until net income is affected by the variability from cash flows of
Foreign Currency Translation the hedged item. Any hedge ineffectiveness is included in
The financial statements for most of Monsanto’s ex-U.S. current-period net income. Changes in the fair value of a
operations are translated to U.S. dollars at current exchange derivative that is highly effective, and that is designated as and
rates. For assets and liabilities, the year-end rate is used. For qualifies as a foreign-currency hedge, are recorded either in
revenues, expenses, gains and losses, the average rate for the current-period earnings or in accumulated other comprehensive
period is used. Unrealized currency adjustments in the income (loss), depending on whether the hedging relationship
Statements of Consolidated Financial Position are accumulated satisfies the criteria for a fair-value or cash-flow hedge. Changes
in equity as a component of accumulated other comprehensive in the fair value of a derivative that is highly effective, and that
income (loss). The financial statements of ex-U.S. operations in is designated as a foreign-currency hedge of the net investment
highly inflationary economies are translated at either current or in a foreign subsidiary, are recorded in the accumulated foreign
historical exchange rates, in accordance with SFAS No. 52, currency translation. Changes in the fair value of derivative
Foreign Currency Translation. These currency adjustments are instruments not designated as hedges are reported currently
included in net income. Since Sept. 1, 2005, the company had in earnings.
no significant entities designated as highly inflationary. Monsanto formally documents all relationships between

Significant translation exposures include the Brazilian real, hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk-
the euro, the Canadian dollar, Romanian leu, and the Argentine management objective and its strategy for undertaking various
peso. Currency restrictions are not expected to have a hedge transactions. This includes linking all derivatives that are
significant effect on Monsanto’s cash flow, liquidity, or designated as fair-value, cash-flow, or foreign-currency hedges
capital resources. either to specific assets and liabilities on the Statements of

Consolidated Financial Position, or to firm commitments or
Derivatives and Other Financial Instruments forecasted transactions. Monsanto formally assesses a hedge at
Monsanto uses financial derivative instruments to limit its its inception and on an ongoing basis thereafter to determine
exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange rates, whether the hedging relationship between the derivative and
commodity prices, and interest rates. Monsanto does not use the hedged item is still highly effective, and whether it is
financial derivative instruments for the purpose of speculating in expected to remain highly effective in future periods, in
foreign currencies, commodities or interest rates. Monsanto offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows. When derivatives
continually monitors its underlying market risk exposures and cease to be highly effective hedges, Monsanto discontinues
believes that it can modify or adapt its hedging strategies hedge accounting prospectively.
as needed. Monsanto uses interest rate derivatives to reduce interest

In accordance with SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative rate risk and to manage the interest rate sensitivity of its debt.
Instruments and Hedging Activities (SFAS 133), and By entering into these agreements, Monsanto changes the
SFAS No. 149, Amendment of Statement 133 Derivative interest rate mix (fixed/variable) of its debt portfolio. During
Instruments and Hedging Activities (SFAS 149), all derivatives, fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, the company also used
whether designated for hedging relationships or not, are natural gas swaps to manage risk associated with energy
recognized in the Statements of Consolidated Financial Position input costs.
at their fair value. At the time a derivative contract is entered
into, Monsanto designates each derivative as: (1) a hedge of the Pension and Postretirement Plans

fair value of a recognized asset or liability (a fair-value hedge), Monsanto has various defined benefit and postretirement plans.
(2) a hedge of a forecasted transaction or of the variability of Monsanto generally amortizes unrecognized actuarial gains and
cash flows that are to be received or paid in connection with a losses on a straight-line basis over the remaining estimated
recognized asset or liability (a cash-flow hedge), (3) a foreign- service life of participants. The measurement date for most
currency fair-value or cash-flow hedge (a foreign-currency plans is August 31. See Note 13 — Postretirement Benefits —
hedge), (4) a foreign-currency hedge of the net investment in a Pensions and Note 14 — Postretirement Benefits — Health Care
foreign subsidiary, or (5) a derivative that does not qualify for and Other — for a full description of these plans and the
hedge accounting treatment. accounting and funding policies.

Changes in the fair value of a derivative that is highly
effective, and that is designated as and qualifies as a fair-value Adoption of SFAS 158

hedge, along with changes in the fair value of the hedged asset In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 158, Employers’
or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk, are recorded Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other
currently in net income. Changes in the fair value of a derivative Postretirement Benefit Plans (SFAS 158). As required, the
that is highly effective, and that is designated as and qualifies company adopted this statement effective Aug. 31, 2007. The
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initial recognition of the underfunded status resulted in a pre-tax years ended Aug. 31, 2007 and Aug. 31, 2006, reflect the
charge of $72 million ($44 million after tax) to accumulated impact of SFAS 123R, while the consolidated financial
other comprehensive loss. The following table provides a statements for prior periods have not been restated to reflect,
breakdown of the incremental effect of applying this statement and do not include, the impact of SFAS 123R. See Note 16 —
on individual line items in the Consolidated Statement of Stock-Based Compensation Plans — for pro forma disclosure of
Financial Position as of Aug. 31, 2007: stock-based compensation expense for 2005.

Compensation expense for restricted stock is based on the
Year Ended Aug. 31, 2007

fair value of Monsanto’s restricted stock at the grant date and is
Increase/

recognized throughout the vesting period as calculated inBefore (Decrease) After
Adoption of Required by Adoption of accordance with SFAS 123R.

(Dollars in millions) SFAS 158 SFAS 158 SFAS 158

Other Intangible Assets — Net $1,427 $(12) $1,415
Noncurrent Deferred Tax Assets 700 30 730 NOTE 3. NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 
Other Assets 477 (4) 473

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The FairMiscellaneous Short-term Accruals 689 9 698
Postretirement Liabilities 496 46 542 Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Other Liabilities 591 3 594 (SFAS 159). SFAS 159 permits entities to choose to measure
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss (333) (44) (377) many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value.

The objective is to improve financial reporting by providingThe pre-tax components of the amount recognized in
entities with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in reportedaccumulated other comprehensive loss at Aug. 31, 2007, follow:
earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities using
different measurement techniques. SFAS 159 requires additionalPension Plans
disclosures related to the fair value measurements included inOutside Postretirement

(Dollars in millions) U.S. the U.S. Plans the entity’s financial statements. This statement is effective for
financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning afterNet loss (gain) $325 $13 $ (3)
Nov. 15, 2007. Accordingly, Monsanto will adopt SFAS 159 in

Prior service cost (credit) 11 (2) (7) fiscal year 2009. The company is currently evaluating the impact
Total $336 $11 $(10) of SFAS 159 on the consolidated financial statements.
The estimated net loss and prior service cost for the defined In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair
benefit pension plans that will be amortized from accumulated Value Measurements (SFAS 157). SFAS 157 defines fair value,
other comprehensive loss into net periodic benefit cost over the establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally
next fiscal year are $37 million and $3 million, respectively. The accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures about
estimated net gain and prior service credit for the other defined fair value measurements. This statement is effective for
benefit postretirement plans that will be amortized from financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after
accumulated other comprehensive loss into net periodic benefit Nov. 15, 2007. The company is currently evaluating the impact
cost over the next fiscal year are $1 million and of SFAS 157 on the consolidated financial statements.
$1 million, respectively. In June 2006, the FASB issued FIN No. 48, Accounting for

Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an Interpretation of FASB
Stock-Based Compensation Statement No. 109 (FIN 48), which clarifies the accounting for
In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised uncertainty in tax positions. FIN 48 requires financial statement
2004), Share-Based Payment (SFAS 123R). SFAS 123R replaced recognition of the impact of a tax position, if that position is
SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation more likely than not to be sustained on examination, based on
(SFAS 123), and superseded APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting the technical merits of the position. The provisions of FIN 48
for Stock Issued to Employees (APB 25). In March 2005, the will be effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years
SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107 (SAB 107), which beginning after Dec. 15, 2006, with the cumulative effect of the
expresses views of the SEC staff regarding the interaction change in accounting principle recorded as an adjustment to
between SFAS 123R and certain SEC rules and regulations, and opening retained deficit. The company currently estimates the
provides the staff’s views regarding the valuation of share-based cumulative effect adjustment of the adoption of FIN 48 to be a
payment arrangements for public companies. On Sept. 1, 2005, charge of $25 million to $35 million.
Monsanto adopted SFAS 123R, which requires the In March 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 156, Accounting
measurement and recognition of compensation expense for all for Servicing of Financial Assets — an amendment of FASB
share-based payment awards made to employees and directors Statement No. 140 (SFAS 156). SFAS 156 requires recognition
based on estimated fair values. Monsanto adopted SFAS 123R of a servicing asset or liability at fair value each time an
using the modified prospective transition method. Under this obligation is undertaken to service a financial asset by entering
method, the consolidated financial statements as of and for the
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into a servicing contract. SFAS 156 also provides guidance on upon acquisition. These acquisitions were accounted for as
subsequent measurement methods for each class of servicing purchase transactions. Accordingly, the assets and liabilities of
assets and liabilities and specifies financial statement the acquired entities were recorded at their estimated fair
presentation and disclosure requirements. This statement is values at the dates of the acquisitions. The purchase price
effective for fiscal years beginning after Sept. 15, 2006. The allocations for all fiscal year 2007 acquisitions as of
company does not currently believe the adoption of SFAS 156 Aug. 31, 2007, are preliminary and are summarized in the
will have a material impact on the consolidated following table. These allocations are subject to adjustment
financial statements. pending further assessments, including the valuation of

intangible assets. In addition, other assets and liabilities may
be identified to which a portion of the purchase price could

NOTE 4. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS be allocated.

2007 Acquisitions: On June 1, 2007, Monsanto completed the
All Other Aggregatepurchase of all the outstanding stock of DPL for a cash

(Dollars in millions) DPL Acquisitions Acquisitions
purchase price of $42 per share, or approximately $1.5 billion

Current Assets $ 380 $ 45 $ 425
(net of cash acquired and debt assumed). The company Property, Plant and Equipment 63 16 79
financed the transaction using cash reserves and a short-term Goodwill 1,097 114 1,211
loan, which was subsequently refinanced with commercial Other Intangible Assets 415 54 469

Acquired In-process Research andpaper. All commercial paper was repaid during fourth quarter
Development 186 7 1932007. The transaction was reviewed by federal and state

Other Assets 174 — 174
authorities including the DOJ pursuant to the Hart-Scott-Rodino

Total Assets Acquired 2,315 236 2,551Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976. In order to complete the
Current Liabilities 410 71 481transaction, Monsanto entered into an agreement with the DOJ.
Other Liabilities 290 21 311

See Note 26 — Discontinued Operations — for further
Total Liabilities Assumed 700 92 792discussion of this agreement. Prior to the acquisition, Monsanto
Net Assets Acquired $1,615 $144 $1,759owned an investment in preferred stock of DPL in the amount
Supplemental Information:of $20 million, which is included in the purchase price allocation

Net assets acquired $1,615 $144 $1,759below. After the acquisition of DPL, the legal proceedings
Cash acquired 60 — 60

related to DPL were terminated.
Cash paid, net of cash acquired $1,555 $144 $1,699

In December 2006, Monsanto’s American Seeds, Inc.
The primary items that generated the goodwill were the(ASI) subsidiary acquired Fielder’s Choice Direct, a U.S. seed

premium paid by the company for the right to control thecompany, for $50 million (net of cash acquired), inclusive of
businesses acquired and for the direct-to-farmer and farmer-transaction costs of $1 million, with a potential additional earn-
dealer distribution networks (specific to the ASI acquisitions),out amount of up to $5 million. In conjunction with this
and the value of the acquired assembled workforces. Theacquisition, Monsanto entered into a five-year global technology
majority of the goodwill is not deductible for tax purposes.license agreement. See Note 8 — Goodwill and Other Intangible

As of the acquisition dates, management began to assessAssets — for further discussion of the agreement. In January
and formulate plans to restructure the acquired entities. Theseand May 2007, Monsanto acquired two European vegetable and
activities are accounted for in accordance with EITF 95-3,fruit seed companies in separate transactions for an aggregate
Recognition of Liabilities in Connection with a Purchasepurchase price of $57 million, inclusive of transaction costs of
Business Combination (EITF 95-3), and primarily include the$6 million. Additional contingent purchase price may be payable
potential closure of facilities, the abandonment or redeploymentin the future if certain earnings targets are met. Such amounts
of equipment, and employee terminations or relocations.are not expected to be material. Also, in fiscal year 2007, ASI
Through Aug. 31, 2007, estimated costs of $6 million have beenacquired nine regional U.S. seed companies in separate
recognized as current liabilities in the purchase price allocationstransactions for an aggregate purchase price of $37 million,
above, and $4 million has been charged against these liabilities,inclusive of transaction costs of $2 million, with a potential
primarily related to payments for employee terminations. Asadditional earn-out amount of up to $1 million.
management finalizes plans to integrate or restructure certainFor all fiscal year 2007 acquisitions described above, the
activities of the acquired entities, further liabilities may bebusiness operations and employees of the acquired entities
recorded as part of the purchase price allocation.were added into the Seeds and Genomics segment results
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The following table presents details of the acquired identifiable intangible assets:

Weighted
Average Life Useful Life All Other Aggregate

(Dollars in millions) (Years) (Years) DPL Acquisitions Acquisitions

Acquired Germplasm 20 10-30 $205 $ 12 $ 217
Acquired Biotechnology Intellectual Property 5 5-7 94 5 99
Trademarks 28 2-30 101 11 112
Customer Relationships 12 3-20 15 24 39
Other 5 3-7 — 2 2

Other Intangible Assets $415 $ 54 $ 469

Charges of $193 million were recorded in research and 2006 Acquisitions: In fiscal year 2006, ASI acquired 12 regional
development expenses in fiscal year 2007, for the write-off of U.S. seed companies for an aggregate purchase price of
acquired in-process R&D (IPR&D). Management believed that the $133 million (net of cash acquired), inclusive of transaction costs
technological feasibility of the IPR&D was not established and of $4 million. The financial results of these acquisitions were
that the research had no alternative future uses. Accordingly, the included within the Seeds and Genomics segment from their
amounts allocated to IPR&D were expensed immediately, in respective dates of acquisition.
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

2005 Acquisitions: In first quarter fiscal year 2005, MonsantoThe following unaudited pro forma financial information
acquired the canola seed businesses of Advanta Seedspresents the combined results of operations of the company
(Advanta) for $52 million in cash (net of cash acquired), and ASIand DPL as if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of
acquired Channel Bio Corp. for $104 million in cash (net of cashthe periods presented. The pro forma results are not necessarily
acquired) and $15 million in liabilities paid in second quarterindicative of what actually would have occurred had the
2005. In third quarter 2005, ASI, through Channel Bio Corp.,acquisition been in effect for the periods presented and should
acquired NC+ Hybrids, Inc. for $40 million in cash (net of cashnot be taken as representative of Monsanto’s future
acquired). In third quarter fiscal year 2005, Monsanto acquiredconsolidated results of operations. Pro forma information related
Seminis, Inc. for $1.0 billion in cash (net of cash acquired) andto other fiscal 2007 acquisitions is not presented because the
paid $495 million for the repayment of its outstanding debt. Theimpact of these acquisitions, either individually or in the
acquisition also included a contingent payment of $125 million,aggregate, on the company’s consolidated results of operations
which was paid during second quarter 2006, resulting inis not considered to be significant. Pro forma results were as
additional purchase price and goodwill. In third quarter fiscalfollows for fiscal years 2007 and 2006:
year 2005, Monsanto acquired Stoneville Pedigreed Seed Co.

Year Ended Aug. 31, (formerly known as Emergent Genetics, Inc.) and Emergent
(Dollars in millions, except per share) 2007 2006 Genetics India Ltd. for $305 million (net of cash acquired). Debt

of $16 million was also assumed in the transaction.Net Sales $8,754 $7,543
Income Before Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change 986 672 In fiscal year 2005, charges of $266 million, including
Net Income 986 666 $36 million related to operations discontinued during fiscal 2007,
Net Income per Basic Share $ 1.81 $ 1.23 were recorded in R&D expenses for the write-off of IPR&D.
Net Income per Diluted Share 1.78 1.21 Management believed that the technological feasibility of the

The pro forma information contains the actual combined IPR&D was not established and that the research had no
operating results of Monsanto and DPL, with the results prior to alternative future uses. Accordingly, the amounts allocated to
the acquisition date adjusted to include the amortization of the IPR&D were required to be expensed immediately under
acquired intangible assets presented above. The pro forma generally accepted accounting principles.
results exclude the write-off of acquired IPR&D and the increase As of the acquisition dates, management began to assess
in cost of goods sold due to the revaluation of inventory related and formulate plans to integrate or restructure the acquired
to the DPL acquisition. entities in accordance with EITF 95-3. The plans for Seminis and

The historical financial information for DPL includes the acquired India cotton business included employee
nonrecurring IPR&D write-off charges of $28 million in the terminations and relocations, exiting certain product lines and
12 months ended Aug. 31, 2006, related to prior DPL facility closures. As of Aug. 31, 2007, estimated restructuring
technology acquisitions. The historical financial information for costs of $18 million have been recognized as current liabilities in
DPL also includes nonrecurring legal expenses of $14 million in the purchase price allocations, and $18 million has been charged
the 12 months ended Aug. 31, 2006, related to suits, disputes against these liabilities, primarily related to payments for
and arbitration with Monsanto. employee terminations and relocations.
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All fiscal year 2005 acquisitions described above were not have an effect on Monsanto’s accounting for the
included within the Seeds and Genomics segment from their U.S. customer financing program.
respective dates of acquisition. Their estimated fair values, Monsanto accounts for the guarantee in accordance with
including the EITF 95-3 liabilities discussed above, were FIN 45, which requires that a guarantor recognize, at the
adjusted during fiscal year 2006, resulting in additional goodwill inception of the guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the
of $36 million. guarantee obligation undertaken. Monsanto records its

guarantee liability at a value that approximates fair value (except
that it does not discount credit losses because of the short-term

NOTE 5. TRADE RECEIVABLES nature of the loans), primarily driven by expected future credit
losses. Monsanto does not recognize any servicing asset orThe following table displays a roll forward of the allowance for
liability because the servicing fee is considered adequatedoubtful trade receivables for fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005.
compensation for the servicing activities. Discounts on the sale

(Dollars in millions) of the customer loans and servicing revenues collected and
earned were not significant during fiscal years 2007, 2006Balance Sept. 1, 2004 $ 250

Additions — charged to expense 67 and 2005.
Deductions and other(1) (42) Proceeds from customer loans sold through the financing

Balance Aug. 31, 2005 $ 275 program totaled $305 million for fiscal year 2007, $286 million for
Additions — charged to expense 47 fiscal year 2006, and $236 million for fiscal year 2005. These
Deductions and other(1) (24)

proceeds are included in net cash provided by operating activities
Balance Aug. 31, 2006 $ 298 in the Statements of Consolidated Cash Flows. The loan balance

Additions — charged to expense 70
outstanding as of Aug. 31, 2007, and Aug. 31, 2006, wasDeductions and other(1) (151)
$301 million and $268 million, respectively. Loans are considered

Balance Aug. 31, 2007 $ 217 delinquent when payments are 31 days past due. If a customer
(1) Includes foreign currency translation adjustments.

fails to pay an obligation when due, Monsanto would incur a
liability to perform under the first-loss guarantee. As ofSee Note 21 — Commitments and Contingencies — for
Aug. 31, 2007, and Aug. 31, 2006, less than $1 million of loansfurther discussion of trade receivables and the increase in the
sold through this financing program were delinquent, andallowance for doubtful accounts deductions in 2007.
Monsanto recorded its guarantee liability at less than $1 million,
based on the company’s historical collection experience with

NOTE 6. CUSTOMER FINANCING PROGRAMS these customers and a current assessment of credit exposure.
Adverse changes in the actual loss rate would increase the

In April 2002, Monsanto established a revolving financing
liability. If Monsanto is called upon to make payments under 

program to provide financing of up to $500 million for selected
the first-loss guarantee, it would have the benefit under the

customers in the United States through a third-party specialty
financing program of any amounts subsequently collected from

lender. Under the financing program, Monsanto originates
the customer.

customer loans on behalf of the lender, which is a special
In November 2004, Monsanto entered into an agreement

purpose entity (SPE) that Monsanto consolidates, pursuant to
with a lender to establish a program to provide financing of up

Monsanto’s credit and other underwriting guidelines approved
to $40 million for selected customers in Brazil. The agreement,

by the lender. Under the program as amended in August 2006,
as amended in May 2005, qualifies for sales treatment under

Monsanto services the loans and provides a first-loss guarantee
SFAS 140. Proceeds from the transfer of receivables

of up to $130 million. Following origination, the lender transfers
subsequent to the May 2005 amendment are included in net

the loans to multi-seller commercial paper conduits through a
cash provided by operating activities in the Statements of

nonconsolidated qualifying special purpose entity (QSPE).
Consolidated Cash Flows. Total funds available under the

Monsanto accounts for this transaction as a sale, in accordance
program have increased to $140 million under subsequent

with SFAS No. 140, Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of
amendments. Proceeds from the transfer of receivables through

Financial Assets and Extinguishment of Liabilities (SFAS 140).
the program totaled $139 million, $73 million and $22 million for

Monsanto has no ownership interest in the lender, the
fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Monsanto

QSPE, or the loans. However, because Monsanto substantively
provides a guarantee of the loans in the event of customer

originates the loans through the SPE (which it consolidates) and
default. The term of the guarantee is equivalent to the term of

partially guarantees and services the loans, Monsanto accounts
the bank loans. The liability for the guarantees is recorded at an

for the program as if it were the originator of the loans and the
amount that approximates fair value and is based on the

transferor selling the loans to the QSPE. Because QSPEs are
company’s historical collection experience with customers that

excluded from the scope of FIN 46R, and Monsanto does not
participate in the program and a current assessment of credit

have the unilateral right to liquidate the QSPE, FIN 46R does
exposure. The guarantee liability recorded by Monsanto was
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$3 million and $2 million as of Aug. 31, 2007, and NOTE 7. INVENTORIES 
Aug. 31, 2006, respectively. If performance is required under

Components of inventories were:the guarantee, Monsanto may retain amounts that are
subsequently collected from customers. The maximum potential

As of Aug. 31,
amount of future payments under the guarantee was

(Dollars in millions) 2007 2006
$86 million as of Aug. 31, 2007. The loan balance outstanding

Finished Goods $ 635 $ 719
for these programs was $86 million and $64 million as of Goods In Process 893 836
Aug. 31, 2007, and Aug. 31, 2006, respectively. Raw Materials and Supplies 253 216

Monsanto also has similar agreements with banks that Inventories at FIFO Cost 1,781 1,771
provide financing to its customers in Brazil through credit Excess of FIFO over LIFO Cost (62) (83)
programs that are subsidized by the Brazilian government. In

Total $1,719 $1,688
addition, there are similar financing programs in Europe and
Argentina. All of these programs also qualify for sales treatment Monsanto uses commodity futures and options contracts to
under SFAS 140. Accordingly, proceeds from the transfer of hedge the price volatility of certain commodities, primarily
receivables are included in net cash provided by operating soybeans and corn. This hedging activity is intended to manage
activities in the Statements of Consolidated Cash Flows and the price paid to production growers for corn and soybean seeds.
totaled $115 million, $65 million and $73 million for fiscal years The decrease in the excess of FIFO over LIFO cost is
2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Under most of these primarily the result of cost decreases of certain raw material and
programs, Monsanto provides a guarantee of the loans in the energy required for glyphosate and selective chemistry herbicide
event of customer default. The terms of the guarantees are production. Early in fiscal year 2006, the supply of petrochemical
equivalent to the terms of the bank loans. The liability for the feedstocks and natural gas in the Gulf Coast region of the
guarantees is recorded at an amount that approximates fair United States were impacted by hurricanes. These natural
value and is based on the company’s historical collection disasters and the global energy cost escalations contributed to
experience with customers that participate in the program and a price escalations for certain raw materials and energy in 2006.
current assessment of credit exposure. The guarantee liability In 2007, certain raw materials and energy prices started to
recorded by Monsanto was $2 million and $1 million as of decline as the factors impacting these costs stabilized.
Aug. 31, 2007, and Aug. 31, 2006, respectively. If performance In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151,
is required under the guarantee, Monsanto may retain amounts Inventory Costs — an amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4
that are subsequently collected from customers. The maximum (SFAS 151), to clarify that abnormal amounts of idle facility
potential amount of future payments under the guarantees was expense, freight, handling costs, and wasted material
$66 million as of Aug. 31, 2007. The loan balance outstanding (spoilage) should be recognized as current period charges and to
for these programs was $66 million and $47 million as of require the allocation of fixed production overhead to the costs
Aug. 31, 2007, and Aug. 31, 2006, respectively. of conversion based on the normal capacity of the production

Monsanto also sells accounts receivable, both with and facilities. SFAS 151 was effective for Monsanto for inventory
without recourse. These sales qualify for sales treatment under costs incurred after Sept. 1, 2005. The adoption of SFAS 151
SFAS 140 and accordingly, the proceeds are included in net did not have a material impact on the company’s consolidated
cash provided by operating activities in the Statements of financial statements.
Consolidated Cash Flows. The gross amounts of receivables The following table displays a roll forward of the inventory
sold totaled $46 million, $49 million and $33 million for fiscal obsolescence reserve for fiscal years 2005, 2006 and 2007.
years 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The liability for the

(Dollars in millions)guarantees for sales with recourse is recorded at an amount
that approximates fair value and is based on the company’s Balance Sept. 1, 2004 $ 73

Additions — charged to expense 103historical collection experience for the customers associated
Deductions and other(1) (85)with the sale of the receivables and a current assessment of

Balance Aug. 31, 2005 $ 91credit exposure. The liability recorded by Monsanto was less
Additions — charged to expense 107than $1 million as of Aug. 31, 2007, and Aug. 31, 2006. The
Deductions and other(1) (81)

maximum potential amount of future payments under the
Balance Aug. 31, 2006 $117

recourse provisions of the agreements was $28 million as of Additions — charged to expense 121
Aug. 31, 2007. The outstanding balance of the receivables sold Deductions and other(1) (69)
was $28 million and $37 million as of Aug. 31, 2007, and Balance Aug. 31, 2007 $169
Aug. 31, 2006, respectively. (1) Includes foreign currency translation adjustments.
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NOTE 8. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The fiscal year 2007 and 2006 annual goodwill impairment tests were performed as of March 1, 2007 and 2006, and no indications of
goodwill impairment existed as of either date. There were no events or changes in circumstances indicating that goodwill might be
impaired as of Aug. 31, 2007.

Changes in the net carrying amount of goodwill for fiscal years 2006 and 2007, by segment, are as follows:

Seeds and Agricultural
(Dollars in millions) Genomics Productivity Total

Balance as of Sept. 1, 2005 $1,183 $ 65 $1,248
Acquisition Activity 262 — 262
Foreign Currency Translation 12 — 12

Balance as of Aug. 31, 2006 $1,457 $ 65 $1,522
Acquisition Activity (see Note 4) 1,130 — 1,130
Divested Cotton Businesses (see Note 26) (67) — (67)
Foreign Currency Translation 39 1 40

Balance as of Aug. 31, 2007 $2,559 $ 66 $2,625

In fiscal year 2007, a $78 million reduction in Seminis, Inc. goodwill was recorded. This reduction was primarily related to the
reversal of certain income tax liabilities.

Information regarding the company’s other intangible assets is as follows:

As of Aug. 31, 2007 As of Aug. 31, 2006

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
(Dollars in millions) Amount Amortization Net Amount Amortization Net

Acquired Germplasm $1,028 $ (547) $ 481 $932 $(518) $ 414
Acquired Biotechnology Intellectual Property 900 (457) 443 823 (376) 447
Trademarks 320 (60) 260 211 (48) 163
Customer Relationships 250 (40) 210 208 (21) 187
Other 39 (18) 21 32 (14) 18

Total $2,537 $ (1,122) $1,415 $2,206 $(977) $1,229

In fiscal year 2007, Monsanto entered into a five-year global partially offset by the divestiture of certain cotton businesses.
technology license for certain seed coating technology and See Note 26 — Discontinued Operations — for further
received an option to purchase technology. Related to this discussion of the divested cotton businesses.
agreement, Monsanto recorded intangible assets and a As of Aug. 31, 2006, other intangible assets included the
corresponding liability in the amount of $15 million for company’s only nonamortizing intangible asset of $13 million
discounted minimum future payments, of which $2.5 million associated with minimum pension liabilities. The minimum
was paid in January 2007. pension liability adjustment is discussed in Note 13 —

The increase in acquired biotechnology intellectual property Postretirement Benefits — Pensions. During fiscal year 2007,
during fiscal year 2006 primarily resulted from a license this asset was adjusted due to the adoption of SFAS 158. See
agreement with the Regents of the University of California (UC), Note 2 — Significant Accounting Policies — for further
under which Monsanto is granted an exclusive commercial discussion of the adoption of SFAS 158.
license for the manufacture of bovine somatotropin in exchange Total amortization expense of other intangible assets was
for an upfront payment plus future royalties. Monsanto sells $150 million in fiscal year 2007, $149 million in fiscal year 2006
bovine somatotropin under the brand name Posilac, which is and $135 million in fiscal year 2005.
used to improve dairy cow productivity. In second quarter 2006, The estimated intangible asset amortization expense for
Monsanto paid a $100 million upfront royalty and recorded an each of the five succeeding fiscal years is as follows:
additional asset and corresponding liability of $61 million for

(Dollars in millions) Amountdiscounted minimum royalty obligations of $5 million annually
2008 $145through the 2023 expiration of UC’s patent estate. As of
2009 120Aug. 31, 2007, $59 million was included in liabilities related to
2010 105this agreement.
2011 90

The increases in other intangible assets as of 2012 75
Aug. 31, 2007, primarily resulted from the acquisitions described
in Note 4 — Business Combinations. These increases were
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The components of income tax provision from continuingNOTE 9. INVESTMENTS 
operations were:

Other current assets as of Aug. 31, 2007, and Aug. 31, 2006,
included $59 million and $22 million, respectively, of short-term Year Ended Aug. 31,
investments of U.S. Treasury bills, other government securities, (Dollars in millions) 2007 2006 2005
and commercial paper with original maturities of one year or Current:
less, stated at fair value. U.S. federal $ 365 $163 $ 135

U.S. state 31 7 1
Outside United States 121 84 101Long-Term Investments

As of Aug. 31, 2007, there were no long-term equity securities Total Current 517 254 237
classified as available-for-sale. As of Aug. 31, 2006, Monsanto Deferred:

U.S. federal (113) 65 (109)had equity securities available-for-sale with a cost of $21 million
U.S. state (11) 14 (24)and a fair value of $50 million, which resulted in unrealized
Outside United States 9 4 —gains of $29 million.

Total Deferred (115) 83 (133)Long-term equity securities available-for-sale as of
Total $ 402 $337 $ 104Aug. 31, 2006, related primarily to an investment in DPL. In

June 2007, Monsanto acquired all of the outstanding stock of
Factors causing Monsanto’s income tax provision fromDPL. See Note 4 — Business Combinations — for further

continuing operations to differ from the U.S. federal statutorydiscussion of the acquisition.
rate were:There were no unrealized gains or losses on long-term

investments as of Aug. 31, 2007. Net unrealized gains on
Year Ended Aug. 31,long-term investments (net of deferred taxes) included in

(Dollars in millions) 2007 2006 2005shareowners’ equity amounted to $18 million as of
U.S. Federal Statutory Rate $468 $367 $110Aug. 31, 2006.
U.S. Export Earnings (1) (6) (9)Monsanto realized gains of $11 million net of $6 million tax
U.S. R&D Tax Credit (17) (2) (5)

expense in 2007 as a result of a donation of equity securities. Lower Ex-U.S. Rates (49) (18) (24)
There were no sales of equity securities in fiscal year 2006. One-Time Dividend Repatriation — 21 —

European Wheat and Barley Tax Benefit — — (20)Proceeds from sales of equity securities were $16 million in
State Income Taxes 21 21 22005. Realized gains of $6 million net of $4 million tax expense
Valuation Allowances (33) (14) (13)in 2005, were determined using the specific identification
Effect of U.S. State Tax Rate Change — — (6)

method, and were included in net income. In fiscal year 2005, Acquired IPR&D 67 — 80
an impairment loss of $2 million was recognized in the Tax Reserve (38) (25) (11)

Other (16) (7) —Statement of Consolidated Operations in accordance with
EITF 03-01. Income Tax Provision $402 $337 $104

Deferred income tax balances are related to:
NOTE 10. INCOME TAXES 

As of Aug. 31,The components of income from continuing operations before
(Dollars in millions) 2007 2006income taxes and minority interest were:
Net Operating Loss and Other Carryforwards $ 717 $ 746
Employee Fringe Benefits 316 304Year Ended Aug. 31,
Intangible Assets 119 101(Dollars in millions) 2007 2006 2005
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 130 111

United States $ 665 $ 689 $ (87) Inventories 104 101
Outside United States 671 360 402 Litigation Reserves 137 129
Total $1,336 $1,049 $315 Other 341 226

Valuation Allowance (93) (131)

Total Deferred Tax Assets $1,771 $1,587

Property, Plant and Equipment $ 221 $ 275
Intangibles 452 336
Other 8 40

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities $ 681 $ 651

Net Deferred Tax Assets $1,090 $ 936
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As of Aug. 31, 2007, Monsanto had available approximately 2005. Of this tax benefit, $20 million was recorded in continuing
$1.2 billion in net operating loss carryforwards (NOLs), most of operations related to the impairment of goodwill in the global
which related to Brazilian, Belgian and Argentine operations. wheat business recorded in first quarter 2004. The remaining
Management regularly assesses the likelihood that deferred tax $86 million recorded in discontinued operations was primarily
assets will be recovered from future taxable income. To the related to the goodwill impairment loss at the date of adoption
extent management believes that it is more likely than not that of SFAS 142 on Jan. 1, 2002, which was recorded as a
a deferred tax asset will not be realized, a valuation allowance is cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle. The
established. As of Aug. 31, 2007, management continues to recognition of this tax benefit in the United States effectively
believe it is more likely than not that the company will realize precludes Monsanto from claiming any U.K. benefit for the U.K.
the deferred tax assets in Brazil and Belgium. As of tax loss. Accordingly, the U.K. deferred tax asset of $71 million,
Aug. 31, 2005, management had recorded a valuation allowance which had a full valuation allowance against it, was written off
of $103 million in Argentina related to NOLs. Monsanto during first quarter 2005.
Argentina generated taxable income in its 2006 tax year The AJCA created a temporary incentive for U.S.
(calendar 2006). Management is also projecting taxable income multinationals to repatriate accumulated earnings outside the
for the current tax year (calendar 2007) and, accordingly, United States by providing an 85 percent dividends received
reversed $33 million and $15 million of the valuation allowance deduction for certain dividends from controlled foreign
as a favorable adjustment to the 2007 and 2006 tax provision, corporations. In order to benefit from this incentive, the
respectively. Also, during 2007 and 2006, the valuation company must reinvest the qualifying dividends in the United
allowance changed slightly because of foreign currency States under a domestic reinvestment plan approved by the
fluctuations. As of Aug. 31, 2007, Monsanto has a valuation chief executive officer and board of directors. In the fourth
allowance of $43 million related to the remaining NOLs which quarter 2006, after the company’s chief executive officer and
expire from 2008 to 2010. A valuation allowance is still board of directors approved the company’s domestic
necessary based on the recent history of losses through 2005, reinvestment plan, the company repatriated $437 million of
the uncertainty of capturing value from the company’s foreign earnings under the AJCA. Accordingly, the company
technology, and also the limited tax carryforward period of five recorded income tax expense of $21 million associated with
years. The company is taking actions to attempt to realize such this repatriation. The repatriated funds were used for research
deferred tax assets; however, such actions are dependent, in and development, capital expenditures, and other
part, on conditions that are not entirely in management’s permitted activities.
control. Monsanto also concluded that it is more likely than not Income taxes and remittance taxes have not been recorded
that it will realize its deferred tax assets in Argentina that are on approximately $1.7 billion of undistributed earnings of foreign
not related to the NOLs noted above through future projected operations of Monsanto, either because any taxes on dividends
taxable income. would be substantially offset by foreign tax credits, or because

Monsanto generated a taxable loss in the United States in Monsanto intends to reinvest those earnings indefinitely. It is
fiscal year 2004. The company has not recorded a valuation not practicable to estimate the income tax liability that might be
allowance on the federal NOL, which expires in 2024, because incurred if such earnings were remitted to the United States.
management believes it is more likely than not that this Tax authorities regularly examine the company’s returns in
deferred tax asset will be realized. For state purposes the NOL the jurisdictions in which Monsanto does business. Due to the
expires between 2009 and 2024. As of Aug. 31, 2004, a nature of the examinations, it may take several years before
valuation allowance of $15 million was recorded for the portion they are completed. Management regularly assesses the tax
of the state NOL that management believed would not be risk of the company’s return filing positions for all open years.
realized. During fiscal 2005, management realigned its domestic During fiscal year 2007, Monsanto has recorded a favorable
operations and, as a result of this realignment, management has adjustment to the income tax reserve as a result of the
concluded it is more likely than not that it will realize its conclusion of an IRS audit for tax years 2003 and 2004, an
deferred tax assets on the state NOL. Accordingly, the ex-U.S. audit and the resolution of various state income tax
$15 million valuation allowance was reversed in fiscal year 2005. matters. During fiscal year 2006, the IRS completed an audit of

The sale of the European wheat and barley business in Pharmacia Corporation for tax years 2000 to 2002 (for which
fiscal year 2004 generated a tax loss that was deductible in period Monsanto was a member of Pharmacia’s consolidated
either the United Kingdom or the United States. As of group). As a result of the conclusion of this audit, and to a
Aug. 31, 2004, a deferred tax asset had not been recorded for lesser extent, the resolution of various state income tax issues,
the tax loss incurred in the United States because of the Monsanto has recorded a favorable adjustment to the income
existence of a number of uncertainties. These uncertainties tax reserve in fiscal year 2006. During fiscal year 2005, the IRS
diminished with the enactment of the American Jobs Creation completed their audit of the company’s export subsidiary for
Act of 2004 (AJCA) on Oct. 22, 2004. As a result, Monsanto 2000 and 2001 and issued a no-change report for these periods.
recorded a deferred tax benefit of $106 million in first quarter As a result of the conclusion of this audit, Monsanto has
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recorded a favorable adjustment to the income tax reserve in Long-Term Debt

fiscal year 2005. As of Aug. 31, 2007, management believes As of Aug. 31,

that its accruals for income tax liabilities are adequate. (Dollars in millions) 2007 2006

73/8% Senior Notes, Due 2012(1) $ 484 $ 484
4% Senior Notes, Due 2008(1,2) — 232

NOTE 11. DEBT AND OTHER CREDIT ARRANGEMENTS 51/2% Senior Notes, Due 2035(1) 394 394
51/2% Senior Notes, Due 2025(1) 265 263

Effective Feb. 28, 2007, Monsanto finalized a new $2 billion Euro Bank Facility, Due 2009(3) — 257
credit facility agreement with a group of banks. This agreement Other 7 9
provides a five-year senior unsecured revolving credit facility, Total Long-Term Debt $1,150 $1,639
which replaces the existing $1 billion credit facility established in (1) Amounts are net of unamortized discounts. For the 51/2% Senior Notes due

2025, amount is also net of the unamortized premium of $48 million and2004. This facility was initiated to be used for general corporate
$50 million as of Aug. 31, 2007, and Aug. 31, 2006, respectively.

purposes, which may include working capital requirements, (2) In connection with this debt, the company entered into certain interest rate
hedging contracts, which effectively exchange the fixed interest rate to variableacquisitions, capital expenditures, refinancing and support of
interest at the six-month London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR), plus a

commercial paper borrowings. The new Agreement also weighted-average spread of 0.39 percentage points.
(3) The interest rate is a floating rated based on the Euro Interbank Offered Rateprovides for Euro denominated loans, letters of credit, and

(Euribor).
swingline borrowings, and allows certain designated subsidiaries
to borrow with a company guarantee. Covenants under this In 2002, Monsanto filed a shelf registration with the SEC
credit facility restrict maximum borrowings. There are no for the issuance of up to $2.0 billion of registered debt (2002
compensating balances, but the facility is subject to various shelf registration) and issued $800 million in 73/8% Senior Notes.
fees, which are based on the company’s credit ratings. As of As of Aug. 31, 2007, $486 million of the 73/8% Senior Notes are
Aug. 31, 2007, Monsanto was in compliance with all debt due on Aug. 15, 2012 (see discussion below regarding a debt
covenants and there were no outstanding borrowings under this exchange for $314 million of the 73/8% Senior Notes).
credit facility. In May 2005, Monsanto filed a new shelf registration with

the SEC (2005 shelf registration) that allowed the company to
Short-Term Debt issue up to $2.0 billion of debt, equity and hybrid offerings

As of Aug. 31, (including debt securities of $950 million remaining available
(Dollars in millions) 2007 2006 under the 2002 shelf registration statement). In July 2005,
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt $236 $ 4 Monsanto issued $400 million of 51/2% Senior Notes under the
Notes Payable to Banks 34 24

2005 shelf registration, which are due on July 15, 2035 (51/2%
Total Short-Term Debt $270 $28 2035 Senior Notes). As of Aug. 31, 2007, $1.6 billion remained

available under the 2005 shelf registration.
As of Aug. 31, In August 2005, Monsanto exchanged $314 million of new

2007 2006 51/2% Senior Notes due 2025 (51/2% 2025 Senior Notes) for
Weighted-Average Interest Rate on Notes Payable to Banks at $314 million of its outstanding 73/8% Senior Notes due 2012,

End of Period 9.3% 8.8% which were issued in 2002. The exchange was conducted as a
private transaction with holders of the outstanding 73/8% SeniorIn May 2003, Monsanto issued $250 million of 4% Senior
Notes who certified to the company that they were ‘‘qualifiedNotes under the 2002 shelf registration, which are due on
institutional buyers’’ within the meaning of Rule 144A under theMay 15, 2008. As of Aug. 31, 2007, $236 million of these notes
Securities Act of 1933. The transaction has been accounted forare outstanding and were reclassified to Current Maturities of
as an exchange of debt under EITF Issue No. 96-19, Debtor’sLong-Term Debt.
Accounting for a Modification or Exchange of Debt Instruments.As of Aug. 31, 2007, the company did not have any
Under the terms of the exchange, the company paid a premiumoutstanding commercial paper, but it had several short-term
of $53 million to holders participating in the exchange, and theborrowings to support ex-U.S. operations, which had weighted-
$53 million premium will be amortized over the life of the newaverage interest rates as indicated above. Certain of these bank
51/2% 2025 Senior Notes. As a result of the debt premium, theloans also act to limit exposure to changes in foreign-currency
effective interest rate on the 51/2% 2025 Senior Notes will beexchange rates.
7.035% over the life of the debt. The exchange of debt allowed
the company to adjust its debt-maturity schedule while also
allowing it to take advantage of market conditions which the
company considered to be favorable.
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In October 2005, the company filed a registration statement During fiscal year 2005, $60 million in debt was issued in
with the SEC on Form S-4 with the intention to commence a Brazil to finance fiscal year 2006 working capital needs at a
registered exchange offer during fiscal year 2006 to provide term of 18 months. As of Aug. 31, 2007, none of this debt
holders of the newly issued privately placed notes with the was outstanding.
opportunity to exchange such notes for substantially identical Interest rate swap agreements are used to reduce interest
notes registered under the Securities Act of 1933. In February rate risk and to manage the interest rate sensitivity of the
2006, Monsanto issued $314 million aggregate principal amount company’s debt. For a more complete discussion of interest
of its 51/2% Senior Notes due 2025, in exchange for the same rate management, see Note 12 — Financial Instruments.
principal amount of its 51/2% Senior Notes due 2025 which had The information regarding interest expense below reflects
been issued in the private placement transaction in August Monsanto’s interest expense on debt, accretion expense, and
2005. The offering of the notes issued in February was amortization of debt issuance costs:
registered under the Securities Act of 1933.

Year Ended Aug. 31,In July 2006, Monsanto issued $251 million of additional
(Dollars in millions) 2007 2006 2005debt in Europe through a private placement in order to fund
Interest Cost Incurred $153 $143 $121repatriated foreign earnings. See Note 10 — Income Taxes — for
Less: Capitalized on Construction (14) (9) (6)additional discussion of the repatriated earnings. The interest
Interest Expense $139 $134 $115rate was a variable rate based on the Euro Interbank Offered

Rate (Euribor). In 2007, the outstanding balance was repaid.

NOTE 12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The notional amounts, carrying amounts, and estimated fair values of the company’s financial instruments were as follows as of
Aug. 31, 2007, and Aug. 31, 2006:

As of Aug. 31,

2007 2006

Notional Carrying Fair Notional Carrying Fair
(Dollars in millions) Amount Amount Value Amount Amount Value

Financial Assets:
Foreign-currency contracts:

Forward purchases $ 872 $ 10 $ 10 $ 691 $ 1 $ 1
Forward sales 1,105 (16) (16) 939 (14) (14)
Options 510 5 5 216 (7) (7)

Commodity futures:
Futures purchased — net 150 (1) (1) 153 (5) (5)
Options purchased 117 (1) (1) 32 — —

Swaps 98 (6) (6) 74 (1) (1)
Other derivative contracts 19 (1) (1) 3 — —

Financial Liabilities:
Interest rate derivatives 250 2 2 250 6 6
Short-term debt — 270 267 — 28 28
Long-term debt — 1,150 1,138 — 1,639 1,627

Monsanto’s business and activities expose it to a variety of cross-border transactions that involve sales and inventory
market risks, including risks related to changes in commodity purchases denominated in foreign currencies. Monsanto is
prices, foreign-currency exchange rates, interest rates and, to a exposed to this risk both on an intercompany basis and on a
lesser degree, security prices. These financial exposures are third-party basis. Additionally, the company is exposed to
monitored and managed by the company as an integral part of foreign-currency exchange risks for recognized assets and
its market risk management program. This program recognizes liabilities, royalties, and net investments in subsidiaries that are
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to reduce the denominated in currencies other than its functional currency, the
potentially adverse effects that market volatility could have on U.S. dollar. Monsanto uses forward-currency exchange
operating results. contracts, swaps, and options to manage these risks.

As part of its market risk management strategy, Monsanto All foreign-currency contracts outstanding at Aug. 31, 2007,
uses derivative instruments to protect fair values and cash flows have maturities of less than 12 months, and they require
from fluctuations caused by volatility in currency exchange Monsanto to exchange currencies at agreed-upon rates at
rates, interest rates, and commodity prices. This volatility affects maturity. The company does not expect any losses from credit
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exposure related to these instruments because these are with change in the fair value of foreign currency derivatives that have
large financial institutions. been designated as hedges of foreign currency cash flows.

Monsanto’s commodity price risk management strategy is These derivatives all expire or mature within the next
to use derivative instruments to minimize significant 22 months, and any realized gain or loss will be reclassified
unanticipated earnings fluctuations that may arise from volatility to earnings.
in commodity prices. Price fluctuations in commodities, mainly

Fair-Value Hedgesin corn and soybeans, can cause the actual prices paid to
Monsanto uses futures and options contracts to manage theproduction growers for corn and soybean seeds to differ from
value of the corn and soybean seed inventories that it buysanticipated cash outlays. Monsanto uses commodity futures and
from growers. Generally, the company hedges from 70 percentoptions contracts to manage these risks. The company also
to 100 percent of the corn and soybean inventory value,uses commodity futures and options contracts to manage the
depending on the crop and grower pricing.value of its corn and soybean inventories.

Interest rate swap agreements are used to reduce interestMonsanto’s energy risk management strategy is to use
rate risk and to manage the interest rate sensitivity of its debt.derivative instruments to minimize significant unanticipated
Monsanto may use interest rate swaps to convert its fixed-rateearnings fluctuations that may arise from volatility in natural gas
debt to variable-rate debt. The resulting cost of funds may beprices and diesel prices.
lower or higher than it would have been if variable-rate debt hadMonsanto’s interest rate risk management strategy is to
been issued directly. Under the interest rate swap contracts, theuse derivative instruments to minimize significant unanticipated
company agrees with other parties to exchange, at specifiedearnings fluctuations that may arise from volatility in interest
intervals, the difference between fixed-rate and floating-raterates of the company’s borrowings and to manage the interest
interest amounts, which is calculated based on an agreed-uponrate sensitivity of its debt.
notional amount. In connection with the 4% Senior Notes,By using derivative financial instruments to manage
Monsanto entered into a $250 million notional amount interestexposures to changes in exchange rates, commodity prices, and
rate swap maturing in May 2008. The fair value of Monsanto’sinterest rates, Monsanto exposes itself to the risk that the
interest rate swap agreement was a liability of $2 million as ofcounterparty might fail to perform its obligations under the
Aug. 31, 2007, and a liability of $6 million as of Aug. 31, 2006.terms of the derivative contract. Monsanto minimizes this risk in
The company estimates the fair value of its interest ratederivative instruments by entering into transactions with high-
management derivative based on quoted market prices.quality counterparties and by limiting the amount of exposure in

The difference between the carrying value and the faireach instrument. Such financial instruments are neither held nor
value of hedged items classified as fair-value hedges was offsetissued by the company for trading purposes.
by the change in fair value of the related derivatives. Accordingly,

Foreign-Currency Hedges hedge ineffectiveness for fair-value hedges, determined in
The company sometimes uses foreign-currency options and accordance with SFAS 133 and SFAS 149, had an immaterial
foreign-currency forward contracts as hedges against anticipated effect on earnings in fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005. No fair-
sales and /or purchases denominated in foreign currencies. The value hedges were discontinued during fiscal years 2007, 2006
company enters into these contracts to protect itself against the or 2005.
risk that the eventual dollar-net-cash flows will be adversely

Cash-Flow Hedgesaffected by changes in exchange rates. The company also uses
The company enters into contracts with a number of its seedforeign-currency contracts to hedge the effects of fluctuations in
growers to purchase their output at the market prices in effectexchange rates on foreign-currency-denominated third-party and
when the individual growers elect to fix their contract prices. Asintercompany receivables and payables.
a hedge against possible commodity price fluctuations,The company hedges a portion of its net investment in
Monsanto purchases futures and options contracts for corn andBrazilian subsidiaries and recorded an after-tax loss of
soybeans. The futures contracts hedge the commodity prices$14 million, $5 million and $23 million in fiscal years 2007, 2006
paid, while the options contracts limit the unfavorable effectand 2005, respectively, all of which are included in accumulated
that price changes could have on these purchases.foreign currency translation.

Monsanto recognized net gains of less than $1 million inForeign currencies in which Monsanto has significant
fiscal years 2007 and 2006, and a net loss of $2 million in fiscalhedged exposures are the Brazilian real, the euro, the Canadian
year 2005, in cost of goods sold, which represented thedollar, the Romanian leu and the Argentine peso. The aggregate
ineffectiveness of all cash-flow hedges. These amountsnet transaction loss, net of related hedging gains and losses,
represent the portion of the derivatives’ fair value that wasincluded in net earnings for fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005,
excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness. Nowas $14 million, $9 million and $24 million, respectively.
cash-flow hedges were discontinued during fiscal years 2007,As of Aug. 31, 2007, $9 million has been recorded in
2006 or 2005.accumulated other comprehensive loss to reflect the after-tax
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As of Aug. 31, 2007, $8 million of after-tax deferred net Credit Risk Management

gains on derivative instruments was recorded in accumulated Monsanto invests its excess cash in deposits with major banks
other comprehensive loss and is expected to be reclassified into throughout the world and in high-quality short-term debt
earnings in fiscal year 2008. The actual sales of the inventory, instruments. Such investments are made only in instruments
which are expected to occur during the next 12 months, will issued or enhanced by high-quality institutions. As of
necessitate the reclassification of the derivative gains into Aug. 31, 2007, the company had no financial instruments that
earnings. As of Aug. 31, 2006 and 2005, after-tax deferred net represented a significant concentration of credit risk. Limited
gains on derivative instruments accumulated in other amounts are invested in any single institution to minimize risk.
comprehensive loss were $3 million and $11 million, The company has not incurred any credit risk losses related to
respectively. The maximum term over which the company is those investments.
hedging exposures to the variability of cash flow (for all The company sells a broad range of agricultural products to
forecasted transactions, excluding interest payments on variable- a diverse group of customers throughout the world. In the
rate debt) is 60 months. United States, the company makes substantial sales to a

In May 2005, the company entered into treasury rate lock relatively few large wholesale customers. The company’s
agreements with several banks to hedge against changes agricultural products business is highly seasonal, and it is
in long-term interest rates in anticipation of a long-term subject to weather conditions that affect commodity prices and
debt issuance. The closing of these agreements in July 2005 seed yields. Credit limits, ongoing credit evaluation, and account
resulted in a pre-tax loss of $10 million because of a decrease monitoring procedures are used to minimize the risk of loss.
in interest rates. Monsanto designated these rate lock Collateral is secured when it is deemed appropriate by the
agreements as cash-flow hedges. The net loss on the rate locks company. For example, in Latin America, the company collects
is recognized in other comprehensive loss until the hedged payments on certain customer accounts in grain.
interest costs are recognized in earnings. As of Aug. 31, 2007, Monsanto regularly evaluates its business practices to
$6 million of after-tax deferred net losses on the interest rate minimize its credit risk. During fiscal years 2007 and 2006, the
lock accumulated in other comprehensive loss is expected to be company engaged multiple banks in Argentina and Brazil in the
reclassified into earnings during the next 28 years, which is the development of new customer financing options that involve
remaining term of the underlying debt. direct bank financing of customer purchases. For further

information on these programs, see Note 6 — Customer
Financing Programs.

NOTE 13. POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS — PENSIONS

Most of Monsanto’s U.S. employees are covered by Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost

noncontributory pension plans sponsored by the company. Total pension cost for Monsanto employees included in the
Pension benefits are based on an employee’s years of service Statements of Consolidated Operations was $62 million,
and compensation level. Pension plans were funded in $73 million and $57 million in fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005,
accordance with Monsanto’s long-range projections of the plans’ respectively. The information that follows relates to all of the
financial condition. These projections took into account benefits pension plans in which Monsanto employees participated. The
earned and expected to be earned, anticipated returns on components of pension cost for these plans were:
pension plan assets, and income tax and other regulations.

Year Ended Aug. 31, 2007 Year Ended Aug. 31, 2006 Year Ended Aug. 31, 2005

Outside Outside Outside
(Dollars in millions) U.S. the U.S. Total U.S. the U.S. Total U.S. the U.S. Total

Service Cost for Benefits Earned During the Year $ 34 $ 6 $ 40 $ 36 $ 7 $ 43 $ 32 $ 4 $ 36
Interest Cost on Benefit Obligation 89 11 100 83 10 93 87 9 96
Assumed Return on Plan Assets (104) (15) (119) (104) (15) (119) (104) (12) (116)
Amortization of Unrecognized Amounts 38 3 41 50 5 55 36 3 39
SFAS 88 Settlement Charge(1) — — — — 1 1 — 2 2
Total $ 57 $ 5 $ 62 $ 65 $ 8 $ 73 $ 51 $ 6 $ 57
(1) SFAS 88 refers to SFAS No. 88, Employers’ Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for Termination Benefits.
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The following assumptions, calculated on a weighted-average basis, were used to determine pension costs for the principal plans
in which Monsanto employees participated:

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
Aug. 31, 2007 Aug. 31, 2006 Aug. 31, 2005

Outside Outside Outside
U.S. the U.S. U.S. the U.S. U.S. the U.S.

Discount Rate 5.90% 4.96% 5.00% 4.29% 5.80% 5.56%
Assumed Long-Term Rate of Return on Assets 8.50% 7.18% 8.75% 7.43% 8.75% 8.34%
Annual Rates of Salary Increase (for plans that base benefits on final compensation level) 4.00% 3.54% 4.00% 3.60% 3.25% 4.52%

Obligations and Funded Status

Monsanto uses a measurement date of August 31 for its pension plans. The funded status of the pension plans as of Aug. 31, 2007,
and Aug. 31, 2006, was as follows:

U.S. Outside the U.S. Total

Year Ended Aug. 31, Year Ended Aug. 31, Year Ended Aug. 31,

(Dollars in millions) 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

Change in Benefit Obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of period $ 1,535 $1,671 $252 $270 $ 1,787 $1,941
Service cost 34 36 5 7 39 43
Interest cost 89 83 11 10 100 93
Plan participants’ contributions — — 1 1 1 1
Actuarial loss (gain) 33 (126) (8) (28) 25 (154)
Acquisitions(1) 23 — — — 23 —
Benefits paid (129) (129) (11) (18) (140) (147)
Plan amendments 2 — — (2) 2 (2)
Currency loss — — 14 12 14 12

Benefit Obligation at End of Period $ 1,587 $1,535 $264 $252 $ 1,851 $1,787
Change in Plan Assets:

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period $ 1,271 $1,232 $204 $189 $ 1,475 $1,421
Actual return on plan assets 168 105 17 13 185 118
Employer contribution(2) 65 63 8 9 73 72
Plan participants’ contributions — — 1 1 1 1
Acquisitions(1) 23 — — — 23 —
Fair value of benefits paid(2) (129) (129) (11) (18) (140) (147)
Currency gain — — 14 10 14 10

Plan Assets at End of Period $ 1,398 $1,271 $233 $204 $ 1,631 $1,475
Funded Status 189 264 31 48 220 312
Unrecognized Prior Service Cost(3) N/A (12) N/A 1 N/A (11)
Unrecognized Subsequent Loss(3) N/A (391) N/A (23) N/A (414)
Net Amount Recognized $ 189 $ (139) $ 31 $ 26 $ 220 $ (113)
(1) Includes DPL acquisition in 2007.
(2) Employer contributions and benefits paid include $6 million and $4 million paid from employer assets for unfunded plans in each of fiscal years 2007 and 2006, respectively.
(3) On Aug. 31, 2007, the company adopted prospectively SFAS 158 and as required the Aug. 31, 2007 effects are recognized as a component of the ending balance of

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss.

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations as of Aug. 31, 2007, and Aug. 31, 2006, were as follows:

U.S. Outside the U.S.

Year Ended Aug. 31, Year Ended Aug. 31,

2007 2006 2007 2006

Discount Rate 6.05% 5.90% 5.38% 4.96%
Rate of Compensation Increase 4.30% 4.00% 3.22% 3.54%
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In fiscal year 2008, pension expense, which will be determined using assumptions as of Aug. 31, 2007, is expected to increase
compared with fiscal year 2007 expense. The company increased its discount rate assumption as of Aug. 31, 2007, to reflect current
economic conditions of market interest rates.

The U.S. accumulated benefit obligation (ABO) as of Aug. 31, 2007, and Aug. 31, 2006, was $1.5 billion. The ABO for plans
outside of the United States was $203 million and $195 million as of Aug. 31, 2007, and Aug. 31, 2006, respectively.

The projected benefit obligation (PBO), ABO, and the fair value of the plan assets for pension plans with PBOs in excess of plan
assets as of Aug. 31, 2007, and Aug. 31, 2006, were as follows:

U.S. Outside the U.S. Total

As of Aug. 31, As of Aug. 31, As of Aug. 31,

(Dollars in millions) 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

PBO $1,564 $1,535 $107 $107 $1,671 $1,642
ABO 1,497 1,478 98 98 1,595 1,576
Fair Value of Plan Assets with PBOs in Excess of Plan Assets 1,374 1,271 82 80 1,456 1,351

The PBO, ABO, and the fair value of the plan assets for pension plans with ABOs in excess of plan assets as of Aug. 31, 2007,
and Aug. 31, 2006, were as follows:

U.S. Outside the U.S. Total

As of Aug. 31, As of Aug. 31, As of Aug. 31,

(Dollars in millions) 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

PBO $1,564 $1,535 $ 27 $107 $1,591 $1,642
ABO 1,497 1,478 23 98 1,520 1,576
Fair Value of Plan Assets with ABOs in Excess of Plan Assets 1,374 1,271 7 80 1,381 1,351

As of Aug. 31, 2007, and Aug. 31, 2006, amounts recognized in the Statements of Consolidated Financial Position were included
in the following balance sheet accounts:

Net Amount Recognized

U.S. Outside the U.S. Total

As of Aug. 31, As of Aug. 31, As of Aug. 31,

(Dollars in millions) 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

Short-Term Pension Liability $ 5 $ — $ 5 $ 4 $ 10 $ 4
Long-Term Pension Liability 185 25 49 54 234 79
Additional Minimum Liability N/A 183 N/A 4 N/A 187
Pre-Tax Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss N/A (335) N/A (3) N/A (338)
Long-Term Pension Asset (1) — (23) (32) (24) (32)
Other Intangible Assets N/A (12) N/A (1) N/A (13)

Net Amount Recognized $ 189 $ (139) $ 31 $ 26 $ 220 $ (113)

As of Aug. 31, 2007, Monsanto adopted SFAS 158, which approximately $56 million and decreased intangible assets for
requires employers to recognize the underfunded or overfunded prior service costs by approximately $2 million. These
status of a pension plan as an asset or liability and recognize adjustments were necessary to keep the recorded pension
changes in the funded status in the year in which the changes liability at least equal to the unfunded accumulated benefit
occur through accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), obligation for the plans. The noncash charges to shareowners’
which is a component of shareowners’ equity. As a result of the equity for these adjustments did not affect Monsanto’s results
implementation of SFAS 158, Monsanto recognized an after-tax of operations, but they are reflected in other comprehensive
increase in accumulated other comprehensive loss of income (loss) at Aug. 31, 2006.
$44 million. Monsanto also follows SFAS No. 87, Employers’

Plan AssetsAccounting for Pensions (SFAS 87). In accordance with
U.S. Plans: The asset allocations for Monsanto’s U.S. pensionSFAS 87, Monsanto recorded an additional minimum pension
plans as of Aug. 31, 2007, and Aug. 31, 2006, and the targetliability adjustment during fiscal years 2007 and 2006. The
allocation range for fiscal year 2008, by asset category, follow.noncash adjustment recorded in fiscal year 2006 decreased
The fair value of assets for these plans was $1.4 billion

postretirement liabilities by approximately $148 million,
increased shareowners’ equity by approximately $90 million
after-tax, decreased deferred income tax assets by
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and $1.3 billion as of Aug. 31, 2007, and plans was $233 million and $204 million as of Aug. 31, 2007,
Aug. 31, 2006, respectively. and Aug. 31, 2006, respectively.

Percentage of Percentage of
Plan Assets Plan AssetsTarget Target

Allocation As of Aug. 31, Allocation(1) As of Aug. 31,

Asset Category 2008 2007 2006 Asset Category 2008 2007 2006

Equity Securities 60-70% 66.8% 66.5% Equity Securities 47% 44.6% 50.4%
Debt Securities 25-35% 28.5% 28.1% Debt Securities 51% 52.2% 48.3%
Real Estate 2-8% 3.8% 4.0% Other 2% 3.2% 1.3%
Other 0-3% 0.9% 1.4%

Total 100.0% 100.0%Total 100.0% 100.0%
(1) Monsanto’s plans outside the U.S. have a wide range of target allocations, and

therefore the 2008 target allocations shown above reflect a weighted-average
calculation of the target allocations of each of the plans.The expected long-term rate of return on these plan assets

was 8.50 percent in fiscal year 2007 and 8.75 percent in fiscal The weighted-average expected long-term rate of return on
years 2006 and 2005. The expected long-term rate of return on

the plans’ assets was 7.2 percent in fiscal year 2007,plan assets is based on historical and projected rates of return
7.4 percent in fiscal year 2006 and 8.3 percent in fiscal yearfor current and planned asset classes in the plan’s investment
2005. See the discussion in the U.S. Plans section of this noteportfolio. Assumed projected rates of return for each asset class
related to the determination of the expected long-term rate ofwere selected after analyzing historical experience and future
return on plan assets.expectations of the returns and volatility of the various asset

classes. The overall expected rate of return for the portfolio is
Expected Cash Flowsbased on the target asset allocation for each asset class and is

adjusted for historical and expected experience of active Information about the expected cash flows for the pension
portfolio management results compared to benchmark returns benefit plans follows:
and the effect of expenses paid for plan assets.

The general principles guiding investment of U.S. pension Outside
(Dollars in millions) U.S. the U.S.plan assets are embodied in the Employee Retirement Income
Employer Contributions 2008 $ 64 $ 7Security Act of 1974 (ERISA). These principles include
Benefit Paymentsdischarging the company’s investment responsibilities for the

2008 141 15
exclusive benefit of plan participants and in accordance with the 2009 137 17
‘‘prudent expert’’ standards and other ERISA rules and 2010 137 16
regulations. Investment objectives for the company’s U.S. 2011 141 16

2012 144 16pension plan assets are to optimize the long-term return on plan
2013-2017 749 76assets while maintaining an acceptable level of risk, to diversify

assets among asset classes and investment styles, and to
In September 2007, Monsanto voluntarily contributedmaintain a long-term focus.

$60 million to the U.S. qualified plan. No additional contributionsIn 2007, the company conducted an asset/liability study to
to the U.S. qualified plan are currently planned in fiscal yeardetermine the optimal strategic asset allocation to meet the
2008. The company may contribute additional amounts to theplan’s projected long-term benefit obligations and desired
plan depending on the level of future contributions required. Thefunding status. The target asset allocation resulting from the
remaining portion of expected contributions in 2008 relates toasset/liability study is outlined in the previous table.
the non-qualified U.S. plan and plans outside of the UnitedThe plan’s investment fiduciaries are responsible for
States. Total benefits expected to be paid include both theselecting investment managers, commissioning periodic
company’s share of the benefit cost and the participants’ shareasset/liability studies, setting asset allocation targets, and
of the cost, which is funded by participant contributions tomonitoring asset allocation and investment performance. The
the plans.company’s pension investment professionals have discretion to

manage assets within established asset allocation ranges
approved by the plan fiduciaries.

Plans Outside the United States: The weighted-average asset
allocation for Monsanto’s pension plans outside of the United
States as of Aug. 31, 2007, and Aug. 31, 2006, and the
weighted-average target allocation range for fiscal year 2008, by
asset category, follows. The fair value of plan assets for these
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NOTE 14. POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS — HEALTH CARE The following assumptions, calculated on a weighted-
AND OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS average basis, were used to determine the postretirement

costs for the principal plans in which Monsanto
Monsanto-Sponsored Plans

employees participated:
Substantially all regular full-time U.S. employees hired prior to
May 1, 2002, and certain employees in other countries become

Year Ended Aug. 31,
eligible for company-subsidized postretirement health care

2007 2006 2005
benefits if they reach retirement age while employed by

Discount Rate 5.90% 5.00% 5.80%
Monsanto and have the requisite service history. Employees Initial Trend Rate for Health Care Costs 7.00% 7.00% 8.00%
who retired from Monsanto prior to Jan. 1, 2003, were eligible Ultimate Trend Rate for Health Care Costs 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
for retiree life insurance benefits. These postretirement benefits

A 7 percent annual rate of increase in the per capita cost ofare unfunded and are generally based on the employees’ years
covered health care benefits was assumed for 2007. Thisof service or compensation levels, or both. The costs of
assumption is consistent with the plans’ recent experience andpostretirement benefits are accrued by the date the employees
expectations of future growth. The rate is assumed to decreasebecome eligible for the benefits. Total postretirement benefit
gradually to 5 percent for 2011 and remain at that levelcosts for Monsanto employees and the former employees
thereafter. Assumed health care cost trend rates have an included in Monsanto’s Statements of Consolidated Operations
effect on the amounts reported for the health care plans. Ain fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, were $18 million,
1 percentage-point change in assumed health care cost trend$33 million and $34 million, respectively.
rates would have the following effects:In May 2004, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position

No. 106-2, Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related to
1 Percentage-Point 1 Percentage-Pointthe Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and

(Dollars in millions) Increase Decrease
Modernization Act of 2003 (FSP 106-2). FSP 106-2 provides

Effect on Total of Service and Interest
authoritative guidance on the accounting for the effects of the Cost $1 $(1)
Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization

Effect on Postretirement Benefit
Act of 2003 (the Act), which was signed into law on Obligation $5 $(5)
Dec. 8, 2003. The Act introduced a prescription drug benefit
under Medicare, as well as a federal subsidy to sponsors of Monsanto uses a measurement date of August 31 for its
retiree health care benefit plans that provide a benefit that is at other postretirement benefit plans. The status of the
least actuarially equivalent to Medicare. FSP 106-2 was effective postretirement health care, life insurance, and employee
for Monsanto’s first quarter of fiscal year 2005. Final regulations disability benefit plans in which Monsanto employees
necessary to implement the Act were released in January 2005, participated was as follows for the periods indicated:
which resulted in a remeasurement of postretirement

Year Ended Aug. 31,obligations. Accordingly, Monsanto estimated a reduction of the
(Dollars in millions) 2007 2006postretirement benefit obligation of approximately $46 million as
Change in Benefit Obligation:of Aug. 31, 2005. The reduction in annual benefit cost recorded

Benefit obligation at beginning of period $ 287 $319in fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, was $4 million, $5 million
Service cost 11 13and $4 million, respectively.
Interest cost 17 16

The following information pertains to the postretirement Actuarial gain (8) (34)
benefit plans in which Monsanto employees and certain former Plan participant contributions 1 1

Medicare Part D subsidy receipts 1 1employees of Pharmacia allocated to Monsanto participated,
Benefits paid(1) (30) (29)principally health care plans and life insurance plans. The cost

Benefit Obligation at End of Period $ 279 $287components of these plans were:
Funded Status $ 279 $287
Unrecognized Prior Service Credit(2) N/A 8Year Ended Aug. 31,
Unrecognized Subsequent Gain(2) N/A 4(Dollars in millions) 2007 2006 2005

Net Amount Recognized $ 279 $299Service Cost for Benefits Earned During the Year $ 11 $13 $12
(1) Benefits paid under the other postretirement benefit plans include $30 million andInterest Cost on Benefit Obligation 17 16 18

$29 million from employer assets in fiscal years 2007 and 2006, respectively.Amortization of Unrecognized Net (Gain) Loss (10) 4 4 (2) On Aug. 31, 2007, the company adopted SFAS 158 and as required the Aug. 31,
2007 effects are recognized as a component of the ending balance ofTotal $ 18 $33 $34
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss.
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Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit established. The related accrual for anticipated payments to be
obligations as of Aug. 31, 2007, and Aug. 31, 2006, were made to foreign employees upon retirement or termination
as follows: recognized in the Statements of Consolidated Financial Position

was $22 million and $17 million as of Aug. 31, 2007, and
Year Ended Aug. 31, Aug. 31, 2006, respectively.

2007 2006

Discount Rate 6.05% 5.90%
NOTE 15. EMPLOYEE SAVINGS PLANSInitial Trend Rate for Health Care Costs(1) 7.00% 7.00%

Ultimate Trend Rate for Health Care Costs 5.00% 5.00%
Monsanto-Sponsored Plans(1) As of Aug. 31, 2007, this rate is assumed to decrease gradually to 5 percent for

2012 and remain at that level thereafter. Previously, the rate was assumed to The U.S. tax-qualified Monsanto Savings and Investment Plan
decrease gradually to 5 percent for 2011. (Monsanto SIP) was established in June 2001 as a successor to

a portion of the Pharmacia Corporation Savings and InvestmentAs of Aug. 31, 2007, and Aug. 31, 2006, amounts
Plan. The Monsanto SIP is a defined contribution profit-sharingrecognized in the Statements of Consolidated Financial 
plan with an individual account for each participant. EmployeesPosition were as follows:
who are 18 years of age or older are generally eligible to

As of Aug. 31, participate in the plan. The Monsanto SIP provides for voluntary
(Dollars in millions) 2007 2006 contributions, generally ranging from 1 percent to 25 percent of
Miscellaneous Short-Term Accruals $ 25 $ 24 an employee’s eligible pay. Monsanto matches employee
Postretirement Liabilities 254 275 contributions to the plan with shares released from the

leveraged employee stock ownership plan (Monsanto ESOP).
Asset allocation is not applicable to the company’s other

The Monsanto ESOP is leveraged by debt due to Monsanto.
postretirement benefit plans because these plans are unfunded.

The debt, which was $12 million as of Aug. 31, 2007, is repaid
primarily through company contributions and dividends paid on

Expected Cash Flows
Monsanto common stock held in the ESOP. The MonsantoInformation about the expected cash flows for the other
ESOP debt was restructured in December 2004 to level out thepostretirement benefit plans follows:
future allocation of stock in an impartial manner intended to
ensure equitable treatment for and generally to be in the best(Dollars in millions) U.S.

interests of current and future plan participants consistent withEmployer Contributions 2008 $ 25
the level of benefits that Monsanto intended for the plan toBenefit Payments(1)

2008 26 provide to participants. To that end, the terms of the
2009 26 restructuring were determined pursuant to an arm’s length
2010 27 negotiation between Monsanto and an independent trust
2011 27

company as fiduciary for the plan. In this role, the independent2012 26
fiduciary determined that the restructuring, including certain2013-2017 121

(1) Benefit payments are net of expected federal subsidy receipts related to financial commitments and enhancements that were or will be
prescription drug benefits granted under the Act (as discussed above), which are made in the future by Monsanto to benefit participants and
estimated to be $2 million to $3 million annually from 2008 through 2012, and
$11 million for the period 2013 through 2017. beneficiaries of the plan, including the increased diversification

rights that were provided to certain participants, was completedExpected contributions include other postretirement
in accordance with the best interests of plan participants. As abenefits of $25 million to be paid from employer assets in 2008.
result of these enhancements related to the restructuring, aTotal benefits expected to be paid include both the company’s
liability of $40 million was recorded as of Aug. 31, 2006, toshare of the benefit cost and the participants’ share of the cost,
reflect the ESOP enhancement. The liability balance as ofwhich is funded by participant contributions to the plan.
Aug. 31, 2007, was $41 million.

As of Aug. 31, 2007, the Monsanto ESOP held 10.2 millionOther Sponsored Plans
shares of Monsanto common stock (allocated and unallocated).Other plans are offered to certain eligible employees. There is
The unallocated shares of Monsanto common stock held by thean accrual of $35 million and $42 million as of Aug. 31, 2007,
ESOP are allocated each year to employee savings accounts asand Aug. 31, 2006, respectively, in the Statements of
matching contributions in accordance with the terms of theConsolidated Financial Position for anticipated payments to
Monsanto SIP. During fiscal year 2007, 0.9 million Monsantoemployees who have retired or terminated employment.
shares were allocated specifically to Monsanto participants,In accordance with local statutory requirements, Seminis
leaving 3.7 million shares of Monsanto common stock remainingsponsors retirement and severance plans at several of its
in the Monsanto ESOP and unallocated as of Aug. 31, 2007.foreign locations. The plans are administered based on the

legislative and tax requirements in the country in which they are
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Contributions to the plan, representing compensation SFAS 123 and (2) compensation expense for share-based
expense, are made annually in amounts sufficient to fund ESOP awards granted subsequent to adoption based on the grant date
debt repayment. Monsanto contributed $2 million, less than fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of
$1 million and $1 million to the plan in 2007, 2006 and 2005, SFAS 123R. Stock-based compensation expense of $73 million
respectively. Dividends paid on the shares held by the was recognized under SFAS 123R in fiscal year 2007. Stock-
Monsanto ESOP were $5 million in 2007 and $4 million in both based compensation expense recognized during the period is
2006 and 2005. These dividends were greater than the cost of based on the value of the portion of share-based payment
the shares allocated to the participants and the Monsanto awards that are ultimately expected to vest. Compensation cost
contributions resulting in total ESOP expense of less than capitalized as part of inventory was $3 million as of
$1 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005. Aug. 31, 2007 and Aug. 31, 2006. No compensation cost was

capitalized during fiscal year 2005. SFAS 123R amends
Other Sponsored Plans SFAS No. 95, Statements of Cash Flows, to require that excess
Seminis maintains a qualified company-sponsored defined tax benefits be reported as a financing cash inflow rather than
contribution savings plan covering eligible employees. Effective as a reduction of taxes paid, which is included within operating
Jan. 1, 2006, this plan was frozen. Company contributions are cash flows. The following table shows the impact of the
based on a percentage of employee contributions and on adoption of SFAS 123R on the Statement of Consolidated
employee salaries. Company contributions were $1 million for Operations and Statement of Consolidated Cash Flows.
fiscal year 2006 and less than $1 million for the period from the

Year Endeddate of acquisition through Aug. 31, 2005. The defined
Aug. 31,contribution savings plan also contains a profit-sharing provision.

(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts) 2007 2006
Annual contributions are based on employee age and salaries

Cost of Goods Sold $ (7) $ (4)and totaled $1 million for fiscal year 2006 and $2 million for the
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses(1) (52) (47)

period from the date of acquisition through Aug. 31, 2005. Research and Development Expenses(2) (14) (12)
Effective Jan. 1, 2006, Seminis employees became eligible to Total stock-based compensation expense included in
participate in the Monsanto SIP. The company has not yet operating expenses (73) (63)
determined when the assets of the Seminis Vegetable Seeds Income From Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes (73) (63)

Income Tax Benefit (26) (23)Retirement Plan that were allocated to the participants will be
Net Loss $ (47) $ (40)transferred to the Monsanto SIP.

DPL maintains a qualified company-sponsored defined Basic and Diluted Loss per Share $(0.09) $(0.07)
contribution savings plan covering eligible employees. Effective Net Cash Required by Operating Activities $ (83) $ (98)

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities $ 83 $ 98Aug. 5, 2007, this plan was frozen. While the plan permits
(1) Includes $15 million and $13 million related to share-based awards for whichannual discretionary employer matching contributions up to 6%

compensation expense was being recognized prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R
of pay, no Company contributions have been made to the plan. for fiscal years 2007 and 2006, respectively.

(2) Includes $1 million related to share-based awards for which compensationEffective Aug. 6, 2007, DPL employees became eligible to
expense was being recognized prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R for fiscal

participate in the Monsanto SIP. It is anticipated that the assets year 2007.

of the DPL Company Savings Plan that were allocated to the
participants will be transferred to the Monsanto SIP on Plan Descriptions: Share-based awards are designed to reward
Jan. 1, 2008. employees for their long-term contributions to the company and

provide incentives for them to remain with the company.
Monsanto issues stock option awards, restricted stock, and

NOTE 16. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS restricted stock units with performance conditions under three
stock plans. Under the Monsanto Company Long-Term IncentiveOn Sept. 1, 2005, Monsanto adopted SFAS 123R, which
Plan, as amended (LTIP), formerly known as the Monsanto 2000requires the measurement and recognition of compensation
Management Incentive Plan, the company may grant awards toexpense for all share-based payment awards made to
key officers, directors and employees of Monsanto, includingemployees and directors based on estimated fair values.
stock options, of up to 78.5 million shares of MonsantoSFAS 123R supersedes Monsanto’s previous accounting under
common stock. Other employees may be granted options underAPB 25 for periods beginning in fiscal 2006. In March 2005, the
the Monsanto Company Broad-Based Stock Option Plan (Broad-SEC issued SAB 107 relating to SFAS 123R. Monsanto has
Based Plan), which permits the granting of a maximum ofapplied the provisions of SAB 107 in its adoption of SFAS 123R.
5.4 million shares of Monsanto common stock to employeesStock-based compensation expense recognized under
other than officers and other employees subject to specialSFAS 123R was $63 million for 2006, which consisted of:
reporting requirements. In January 2005, shareowners approved(1) compensation expense for all unvested share-based awards
the Monsanto Company 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan (2005outstanding as of Aug. 31, 2005, based on the grant date fair
LTIP), under which the company may grant awards to keyvalue estimated in accordance with the pro forma provisions of
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officers, directors and employees of Monsanto, including stock Monsanto also issues share-based awards under the
options, of up to 24.0 million shares of Monsanto common Monsanto Non-Employee Director Equity Incentive Compensation
stock. Under the LTIP, the option exercise price equals the fair Plan (Director Plan) for directors who are not employees of
market value of the common stock on the date of grant. Monsanto or its affiliates. Under the Director Plan, half of the

The plans provide that the term of any option granted may annual retainer for each nonemployee director is paid in the form
not exceed 10 years and that each option may be exercised for of deferred stock — shares of common stock to be delivered at a
such period as may be specified in the terms and conditions of specified future time. The remainder is payable, at the election of
the grant, as approved by the People and Compensation each director, in the form of restricted common stock, deferred
Committee of the board of directors. Generally, the options vest common stock, current cash and / or deferred cash. The Director
over three years, with one-third of the total award vesting each Plan also provides that a nonemployee director will receive a
year. Grants of restricted stock generally vest at the end of a grant of 3,000 shares of restricted stock upon commencement of
three-year or five-year service period as specified in the terms service as a member of Monsanto’s board of directors which
and conditions of the grant, as approved by the Restricted Stock vest on the third anniversary of the grant date. Awards of
Grant Committee of the board of directors. Restricted stock deferred stock and restricted stock under the Director Plan are
units represent the right to receive a number of shares of stock automatically granted under the LTIP as provided for in the
dependent upon vesting requirements. Vesting is subject to the Director Plan. The fair value of awards granted under the Director
employees’ continued employment during the designated Plan was $9 million as of Aug. 31, 2007. Compensation expense
service period and may also be subject to Monsanto’s for most awards under the Director Plan is measured at fair value
attainment of specified performance criteria during the at the date of grant, net of estimated forfeitures, and recognized
designated performance period. Shares related to restricted over the vesting period of the award. There were no share-based
stock and restricted stock units are released to employees upon liabilities paid under the Director Plan in 2007, 2006 or 2005.
satisfaction of all vesting requirements. Compensation expense Additionally, 244,207 shares of directors’ deferred stock related to
for stock options, restricted stock and restricted stock units is grants and dividend equivalents received in prior years were
measured at fair value on the date of grant, net of estimated vested and outstanding at Aug. 31, 2007.
forfeitures, and recognized over the vesting period of the award. A summary of the status of the Monsanto plans for the

Certain Monsanto employees outside the United States periods from Sept. 1, 2004, through Aug. 31, 2007, follows:
may receive stock appreciation rights as part of Monsanto’s

Outstanding
stock compensation plans. In addition, certain employees on Weighted-Average
international assignment may receive phantom stock awards. Shares Exercise Price

Both awards entitle those employees to receive a cash amount Balance Outstanding Sept. 1, 2004 38,820,610 $11.16
Granted 7,717,948 21.15determined by the appreciation in the fair market value of the
Exercised (16,231,368) 10.69company’s common stock between the date of the award and
Forfeited (941,598) 17.34the date of exercise. As of Aug. 31, 2007, the fair value of stock

appreciation rights and phantom stock was $1 million and Balance Outstanding Aug. 31, 2005 29,365,592 13.86
Granted 5,994,560 29.60$2 million, respectively. The fair value is remeasured at the end
Exercised (9,468,690) 12.15of each reporting period until exercised, and compensation
Forfeited (448,686) 24.83expense is recognized over the requisite service period in

accordance with SFAS 123R. Share-based liabilities paid related Balance Outstanding Aug. 31, 2006 25,442,776 18.01
Granted 4,326,010 44.35to stock appreciation rights was less than $1 million, $2 million
Exercised (5,623,543) 14.90and $1 million during fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005,
Forfeited (343,749) 36.46respectively. Additionally, $1 million was paid related to

phantom stock in fiscal 2007 and less than $1 million per year Balance Outstanding Aug. 31, 2007 23,801,494 $23.27
was paid in fiscal years 2006 and 2005.
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Monsanto stock options outstanding as of Aug. 31, 2007, are summarized as follows:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted-Average Aggregate Intrinsic Aggregate Intrinsic
Remaining Weighted-Average Value(1) Weighted-Average Weighted-Average Value(1)

Range of Contractual Life Exercise Price (dollars in Remaining Contractual Exercise Price (dollars in
Exercise Price Shares (Years) per Share millions) Shares Life (Years) per Share millions)

$ 7.32 - $10.00 5,488,887 4.38 $ 8.86 $ 334 5,488,887 4.38 $ 8.86 $334
$10.01 - $20.00 3,932,770 5.73 $15.74 $ 212 3,932,770 5.73 $15.74 $212
$20.01 - $30.00 9,979,717 7.43 $25.06 $ 446 4,415,337 7.09 $23.82 $203
$30.01 - $70.06 4,400,120 9.03 $43.89 $ 114 102,205 7.68 $36.29 $ 4

23,801,494 6.74 $23.27 $1,106 13,939,199 5.64 $15.74 $753
(1) The aggregate intrinsic value represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value, based on Monsanto’s closing stock price of $69.74 as of Aug. 31, 2007, which would have been

received by the option holders had all option holders exercised their options as of that date.

At Aug. 31, 2007, 21,198,978 non-qualified stock options were intrinsic value of options exercised during the fiscal years ended
vested or expected to vest. The weighted average remaining 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $238 million, $270 million and
contractual life of these stock options was 6.66 years and the $268 million, respectively. Pre-tax unrecognized compensation
weighted average exercise price was $23.13 per share. The expense for stock options, net of estimated forfeitures, was
aggregate intrinsic value of these stock options was $38 million as of Aug. 31, 2007, and will be recognized as
$988 million at Aug. 31, 2007. expense over a weighted-average period of 1.8 years.

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of non-qualified A summary of the status of Monsanto’s restricted stock,
stock options granted during fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005 was restricted stock units, and directors’ deferred stock
$13.63, $9.59 and $5.08, respectively, per share. The total pre-tax compensation plans for fiscal year 2007 follows:

Weighted-Average Restricted Weighted-Average Weighted-Average
Restricted Grant Date Stock Grant Date Directors’ Grant Date

Stock Fair Values Units Fair Values Deferred Stock Fair Value

Nonvested as of Aug. 31, 2006 156,600 $23.46 569,600 $30.86 — —
Granted 83,500 $50.13 304,380 $48.00 19,471 $46.90
Vested 64,768 $16.64 327,120 $31.93 19,471 $46.90
Forfeitures 7,832 $30.64 4,628 $31.48 — —

Nonvested as of Aug. 31, 2007 167,500 $39.05 542,232 $39.83 — —

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of restricted stock periods. At Aug. 31, 2007, there was no unrecognized
granted during fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $50.13, compensation expense related to directors’ deferred stock. The
$30.09 and $27.23, respectively, per share. The weighted weighted-average remaining requisite service periods for
average fair value for restricted stock units was $48.00 and nonvested restricted stock and restricted stock units were
$29.44 on the grant date for those granted during fiscal years 2.3 years and 1.8 years, respectively, as of Aug. 31, 2007.
2007 and 2006, respectively, and $31.92 upon adoption of

Valuation and Expense Information under SFAS 123R: UponSFAS 123R for those granted during fiscal year 2005. The
adoption of SFAS 123R, Monsanto began estimating the valueweighted-average grant-date fair value of directors’ deferred
of employee stock options on the date of grant using a lattice-stock granted during fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $46.90,
binomial model. Prior to adoption of SFAS 123R, the value of$31.46 and $18.27, respectively, per share. The total fair value
employee stock options was estimated on the date of grantof restricted stock that vested during fiscal years 2007, 2006,
using the Black-Scholes model, for the disclosures of pro formaand 2005 was $1 million, $3 million and less than $1 million,
financial information required under SFAS 123. A lattice-binomialrespectively. The total fair value of restricted stock units that
model requires the use of extensive actual employee exercisevested during fiscal years 2007 and 2006 was $10 million and
behavior data and a number of complex assumptions including$7 million, respectively. No restricted stock units vested during
volatility, risk-free interest rate and expected dividends.fiscal year 2005. The total fair value of directors’ deferred stock
Expected volatilities used in the model are based on impliedvested during fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $1 million
volatilities from traded options on Monsanto’s stock andper year.
historical volatility of Monsanto’s stock price. The expected lifePre-tax unrecognized compensation expense, net of
represents the weighted-average period the stock options areestimated forfeitures, for nonvested restricted stock and
expected to remain outstanding and is a derived output of therestricted stock units was $4 million and $19 million,
model. The lattice-binomial model incorporates exercise andrespectively, as of Aug. 31, 2007, which will be recognized as
post-vesting forfeiture assumptions based on an analysis ofexpense over the weighted-average remaining requisite service
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historical data. The following assumptions were used to SFAS 123R requires compensation costs to be recognized over
calculate the estimated value of employee stock options: the requisite service period of the award instead of ratably over

the vesting period stated in the grant. For awards granted prior
to adoption, the SEC clarified that companies should continue to

2007 2006 2005 follow the vesting method they had previously been using. As a
Assumptions Lattice-binomial Black-Scholes

result, for awards granted prior to adoption, Monsanto will
Expected Dividend Yield 1.0% 1.1% 1.44% continue to recognize compensation costs ratably over the
Expected Volatility 28%-33% 32%-36% 32.81%

vesting period with accelerated recognition of the unvestedWeighted-Average Volatility 29.5% 33.2% N/A
portion upon actual retirement. The impact of acceleratedRisk-Free Interest Rates 4.42%-5.05% 4.22%-5.02% 2.62%

Weighted-Average Risk-Free vesting on the pro forma disclosure shown above is immaterial.
Interest Rate 4.6% 4.4% N/A Monsanto has followed the guidance of SFAS 123R for awards

Expected Option Life (in granted subsequent to the adoption date.
years) 5.8 5.9 4.0

Monsanto’s income taxes currently payable have been
reduced by the tax benefits from employee stock optionIn accordance with the modified prospective transition
exercises. The excess benefits totaled $83 million, $98 millionmethod, Monsanto’s consolidated financial statements for
and $94 million for the fiscal years ended 2007, 2006 and 2005,periods prior to fiscal year 2006 have not been restated and do
respectively, and were recorded as an increase to additionalnot include the impact of SFAS 123R. Accordingly, no
paid-in capital.compensation expense related to stock option awards was

recognized in 2005, as all stock options granted had an exercise
price equal to the fair market value of the underlying common

NOTE 17. CAPITAL STOCKstock on the date of grant. The following table shows the effect
on net income and income per share as if the fair-value-based Monsanto is authorized to issue 1.5 billion shares of common
method of accounting had been applied to all outstanding and stock, $0.01 par value, and 20 million shares of undesignated
unvested stock option awards prior to adoption for SFAS 123R. preferred stock, $0.01 par value. The board of directors has the
Stock-based compensation expense of $15 million included in authority, without action by the shareowners, to designate and
net income for 2005 was related to expense for awards of issue preferred stock in one or more series and to designate
restricted stock, restricted stock units, stock appreciation rights the rights, preferences and privileges of each series, which may
and awards granted under the Director Plan. For purposes of be greater than the rights of the company’s common stock. It is
this pro forma disclosure, the estimated fair value of the award not possible to state the actual effect of the issuance of any
is assumed to be expensed over the award’s vesting periods shares of preferred stock upon the rights of holders of common
using the Black-Scholes model. stock until the board of directors determines the specific rights

of the holders of preferred stock.
The authorization of undesignated preferred stock makes it

Year Ended Aug. 31, possible for Monsanto’s board of directors to issue preferred
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts) 2005 stock with voting or other rights or preferences that could
Net Income: impede the success of any attempt to change control of the

As reported $255
company. These and other provisions may deter hostileAdd: Stock-based compensation expense included in
takeovers or delay attempts to change management control.reported Net Income, net of tax 9

Less: Total stock-based compensation expense determined There were no shares of preferred stock outstanding as of
under the fair-value-based method for all awards, net of Aug. 31, 2007, or Aug. 31, 2006. As of Aug. 31, 2007, and
tax (33) Aug. 31, 2006, 545.6 and 543.2 million shares of common stock

Pro forma $231 were outstanding, respectively. In addition, 108 million shares of
Basic Income per Share: common stock were approved for employee and director stock

As reported $0.48 options, of which 22 million and 26 million were remaining in
Pro forma $0.43

reserve at Aug. 31, 2007, and Aug. 31, 2006, respectively.Diluted Income per Share:
In October 2005, the board of directors authorized theAs reported $0.47

Pro forma $0.42 purchase of up to $800 million of the company’s common stock
over a four-year period. Through Aug. 31, 2007, a total ofFor stock option awards with accelerated vesting provisions
6.2 million shares for $311 million, excluding commissions, hadthat are granted to retirement-eligible employees and to
been repurchased under the $800 million authorization.employees that become eligible for retirement subsequent to

the grant date, Monsanto previously followed the guidance of
APB 25 and SFAS 123, which allowed compensation costs to be
recognized ratably over the vesting period of the award.
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NOTE 18. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS NOTE 20. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Comprehensive income (loss) includes all nonshareowner Cash payments for interest and taxes during fiscal years 2007,
changes in equity and consists of net income (loss), foreign 2006 and 2005 were as follows:
currency translation adjustments, net unrealized gains and

Year Ended Aug. 31,losses on available-for-sale securities, additional minimum
(Dollars in millions) 2007 2006 2005pension liability adjustments, and net accumulated derivative
Interest $111 $118 $128gains or losses on cash flow hedges not yet realized.
Taxes 482 180 83Information regarding accumulated other comprehensive income

(loss) is as follows: During fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, the company
recorded the following noncash investing and

As of Aug. 31,
financing transactions:

(Dollars in millions) 2007 2006 2005

m In fourth quarter 2007, 2006 and 2005, the board ofAccumulated Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments $(154) $(402) $(593)
Net Unrealized Gains on Investments, directors declared a dividend payable in first quarter 2008,

Net of Tax — 18 7 2007 and 2006, respectively. As of Aug. 31, 2007, 2006 and
Net Accumulated Derivative Loss, 2005, a dividend payable of $96 million, $55 million and

Net of Tax (14) (28) (2)
$46 million, respectively, was recorded.Minimum Pension Liability,

Net of Tax (165) (211) (301)
m During fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, the company

Impact of Adoption of SFAS 158,
recognized noncash transactions related to acquisitions. SeeNet of Tax (44) — —
Note 4 — Business Combinations — for details of

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss $(377) $(623) $(889)
adjustments to goodwill.

m In October 2005, the board of directors authorized the
NOTE 19. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE purchase of up to $800 million of the company’s common

stock over a four-year period. Through Aug. 31, 2007, theBasic earnings per share (EPS) was computed using the
company acquired 6.2 million shares for $311 million. As ofweighted-average number of common shares outstanding during
Aug. 31, 2006, $6 million was included in accrued liabilities.the period shown in the table below. Diluted EPS was

computed taking into account the effect of dilutive potential m In second quarter 2007, intangible assets and a liability in
common shares, as shown in the table below. Potential the amount of $15 million were recorded as a result of
common shares consist of stock options, restricted stock, minimum payment provisions under a license agreement.
restricted stock units and directors’ deferred shares calculated See Note 8 — Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets — for
using the treasury stock method and are excluded if their effect further discussion of the agreement.
is antidilutive. These dilutive potential common shares consisted

m In second quarter 2006, an intangible asset and a liability in
of 11 million, 12 million and 12 million, in fiscal years 2007, the amount of $61 million were recorded as a result of
2006 and 2005, respectively. Less than 0.1 million stock options minimum annual royalty provisions in the UC license
were excluded from the computations of dilutive potential agreement described in Note 8 — Goodwill and Other
common shares for the years ended Aug. 31, 2007 and 2006. Intangible Assets.
Similarly, approximately 0.2 million stock options were excluded

m During fiscal year 2005, the company recognized a noncashfrom the computation for the year ended Aug. 31, 2005. Of
transaction related to a customer financing program inthose antidilutive options, less than 0.1 million stock options
Brazil. See Note 6 — Customer Financing Programs — forwere excluded from the computations of dilutive potential
further discussion of the program and the relatedcommon shares for the fiscal years ended Aug. 31, 2007 and
noncash transaction.2006, and approximately 0.2 million stock options were

excluded at Aug. 31, 2005, as their exercise prices were greater
than the average market price of common shares for the period.

Year Ended Aug. 31,

(Shares in millions) 2007 2006 2005

Weighted-Average Number of Common Shares 544.1 540.0 533.6
Dilutive Potential Common Shares 10.9 11.6 11.7

78



MONSANTO COMPANY 2007 FORM 10-K

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

NOTE 21. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Contractual obligations: The following table sets forth the company’s estimates of future payments under contracts as of Aug. 31, 2007.

Payments Due by Fiscal Year Ending Aug. 31,

2013 and
(Dollars in millions) Total 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 beyond

Total Debt $1,420 $ 270 $ 3 $ 1 $ 1 $485 $ 660
Interest Payments Relating to Total Debt(1) 1,124 93 75 75 75 75 731
Operating Lease Obligations 205 91 30 21 15 13 35
Purchase Obligations:

Uncompleted additions to property 293 290 1 1 1 — —
Commitments to purchase inventories 668 521 36 31 29 23 28
Commitments to purchase breeding research 938 45 45 45 44 44 715
R&D alliances and joint venture obligations 94 27 23 17 17 8 2
Other purchase obligations 92 53 25 12 1 — 1

Other Liabilities 150 71 6 6 6 5 56

Total Contractual Obligations $4,984 $1,461 $244 $209 $189 $653 $2,228
(1) For variable rate debt, interest is calculated using the applicable rates as of Aug. 31, 2007.

Rent expense was $133 million for fiscal year 2007, Monsanto warrants the performance of certain products
$99 million for fiscal year 2006, and $83 million for fiscal through standard product warranties. In addition, Monsanto
year 2005. provides extensive marketing programs to increase sales and

enhance customer satisfaction. These programs may include
Guarantees: Monsanto provides guarantees on behalf of certain performance warranty features and indemnification for risks not
suppliers. As of Aug. 31, 2007, a guarantee is outstanding to a related to performance, both of which are provided to qualifying
bank that financed construction of a supplier’s plant. This plant customers on a contractual basis. The cost of payments for
supplies certain raw materials to a Monsanto facility in Brazil. claims based on performance warranties has been, and is
The term of this guarantee is equivalent to the term of the expected to continue to be, insignificant. It is not possible to
financing agreements, which are to be paid during calendar year predict the maximum potential amount of future payments for
2008. If the supplier fails to pay the obligations when due, indemnification for losses not related to the performance of our
Monsanto would incur a liability to make these payments. As of products (for example, replanting due to extreme weather
Aug. 31, 2007, the maximum potential amount of future conditions), because it is not possible to predict whether the
payments under this guarantee was $5 million with respect to specified contingencies will occur and if so, to what extent.
principal, plus additional amounts with respect to interest and In various circumstances, Monsanto has agreed to
related expenses. Monsanto believes that it is not likely to incur indemnify or reimburse other parties for various losses or
a loss under this guarantee, and it has therefore not recorded expenses. For example, like many other companies, Monsanto
any liability related to its obligation under this guarantee. If has agreed to indemnify its officers and directors for liabilities
Monsanto were to incur a loss under this guarantee, Monsanto incurred by reason of their position with Monsanto. Contracts
would have recourse against the supplier and the shareowners for the sale or purchase of a business or line of business may
of the supplier’s parent company pursuant to an agreement require indemnification for various events, including certain
entered into by the parties. events that arose before the sale, or tax liabilities that arise

Monsanto may provide and has provided guarantees on before, after or in connection with the sale. Certain seed
behalf of its consolidated subsidiaries for obligations incurred in licensee arrangements indemnify the licensee against liability
the normal course of business. Because these are guarantees and damages, including legal defense costs, arising from any
of obligations of consolidated subsidiaries, Monsanto’s claims of patent, copyright, trademark, or trade secret
consolidated financial position is not affected by the issuance of infringement related to Monsanto’s trait technology. Germplasm
these guarantees. licenses generally indemnify the licensee against claims related

In fiscal year 2005, Monsanto established a 100% owned to the source or ownership of the licensed germplasm.
finance subsidiary in Canada. The new subsidiary issued debt Litigation settlement agreements may contain indemnification
securities of $150 million, which are outstanding as of provisions covering future issues associated with the settled
Aug. 31, 2007, and which are fully and unconditionally matter. Credit agreements and other financial agreements
guaranteed by Monsanto. There are no significant restrictions on frequently require reimbursement for certain unanticipated costs
Monsanto’s ability to obtain funds from the finance subsidiary resulting from changes in legal or regulatory requirements or
by dividend or loan. guidelines. These agreements may also require reimbursement
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of withheld taxes, and additional payments that provide on the key agricultural markets of Argentina and Brazil. Net
recipients amounts equal to the sums they would have received trade receivables in Argentina and Brazil were as follows:
had no such withholding been made. Indemnities like those in

As of Aug. 31,this paragraph may be found in many types of agreements,
(Dollars in millions) 2007 2006including, for example, operating agreements, leases, purchase
Argentina $81 $ 77or sale agreements, and other licenses. Leases may require
Brazil 57 198indemnification for liabilities Monsanto’s operations may

potentially create for the lessor or lessee. It is not possible to In fiscal 2007, the agriculture economy in Brazil benefited
predict the maximum future payments possible under these or from strong global commodity prices. As part of Monsanto’s
similar provisions because it is not possible to predict whether continuous effort to manage its Brazilian risk against possible
any of these contingencies will come to pass and if so, to what market and foreign exchange volatility, Monsanto continued to
extent. Historically, these types of provisions did not have a monitor its credit policy, expanded its grain-based collection
material effect on Monsanto’s financial position, profitability or system, and increased cash sales in 2007. Net trade receivables
liquidity. Monsanto believes that if it were to incur a loss in any related to Brazil decreased in 2007 compared to 2006 primarily
of these matters, it would not have a material effect on its as a result of higher customer collections and a reclassification
financial position, profitability or liquidity. Based on the of certain trade receivables which were determined to not be
company’s current assessment of exposure, Monsanto has collected within one year. As a result of this determination, the
recorded a liability of $3 million as of fiscal years 2007 and gross trade receivables and the related allowance for doubtful
2006, related to these indemnifications. trade receivables were reclassified to long-term notes

Monsanto provides guarantees for certain customer loans in receivable. For further details on the allowance for doubtful
the United States, Brazil, Europe and Argentina. See Note 6 — trade receivables, see Note 5 — Trade Receivables. Net
Customer Financing Programs — for additional information. receivables as a percent of sales in Brazil have improved from

Information regarding Monsanto’s indemnification 36% in 2006 to 8% in 2007.
obligations to Pharmacia under the Separation Agreement can

Remediation Obligations: Monsanto’s Statements ofbe found below in the ‘‘Litigation and Indemnification’’ section
Consolidated Financial Position include accrued liabilities ofof this note.
$33 million as of Aug. 31, 2007, and $26 million as of

Customer Concentrations in Gross Trade Receivables: The Aug. 31, 2006, for the remediation of Monsanto’s existing and
following table sets forth Monsanto’s gross trade receivables as Pharmacia’s former agricultural manufacturing facilities and
of Aug. 31, 2007, and Aug. 31, 2006, by significant certain off-site disposal and formulation facilities. There is
customer concentrations: currently no material range of loss in excess of the amount

recorded for these sites. It is possible that new information
As of Aug. 31, about these sites for which the accrual has been established,

(Dollars in millions) 2007 2006 such as results of investigations by regulatory agencies,
U.S. Agricultural Product Distributors $ 654 $ 504 Monsanto, or other parties, could require Monsanto to reassess
European Agricultural Product Distributors 456 413 its potential exposure related to environmental matters.
Argentina(1) 132 126 Monsanto’s future remediation expenses at these sites may be
Brazil(1) 65 315

affected by a number of uncertainties. These uncertaintiesMexico(1) 53 63
include, but are not limited to, the method and extent ofAsia-Pacific(1) 149 125

Canada(1) 70 80 remediation, the percentage of material attributable to Monsanto
Other 137 127 at the sites relative to that attributable to other parties, and the
Gross Trade Receivables 1,716 1,753 financial capabilities of the other potentially responsible parties.
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (217) (298) Monsanto does not expect the resolution of such uncertainties
Net Trade Receivables $1,499 $1,455 to have a material adverse effect on its financial position,
(1) Represents customer receivables within the specified geography. profitability, or liquidity. The amounts described above do not

In fiscal year 2007, trade receivables related to U.S. include Solutia environmental liabilities that Monsanto expects
agricultural product distributors increased primarily because of to fund on behalf of Pharmacia. See ‘‘Litigation and
higher sales. The company’s receivables focus continues to be Indemnification’’ below for a discussion of amounts accrued in

connection with Solutia’s environmental liabilities.
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Litigation and Indemnification: Monsanto is involved in employees of Pharmacia filed a similar purported class action
various legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of its lawsuit in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of
business, as well as proceedings that management has Illinois against Pharmacia, the Pharmacia Cash Balance Plan, and
considered to be material under SEC regulations. These include other defendants. On July 7, 2006, the plaintiffs amended their
proceedings to which Monsanto is a party in its own name, lawsuit to add Monsanto and the Pension Plan as additional
proceedings to which Pharmacia is a party but that Monsanto defendants. On Sept. 1, 2006, the Court consolidated these
manages and for which Monsanto is responsible, and lawsuits with two purported class action lawsuits also pending
proceedings that Monsanto is managing related to Solutia’s in the same Court against the Solutia Company Pension Plan,
Assumed Liabilities (defined below). Some of the lawsuits seek under Walker v. Monsanto, the first filed case. The court
damages in very large amounts, or seek to restrict the conducted a class certification hearing on Sept. 12, 2007. Prior
company’s business activities. Monsanto believes that it has to the hearing, all parties agreed the case should proceed as a
meritorious legal arguments and will continue to represent its class action and also agreed on a definition of the respective
interests vigorously in all of the proceedings that it is defending classes. The court will now set a schedule for proceeding on
or prosecuting. Although the ultimate liabilities resulting from the merits of the case.
such proceedings may be significant to profitability in the period

Solutia Inc.: The following discussion provides informationrecognized, management does not anticipate they will have a
regarding proceedings related to Solutia Inc. Pursuant to thematerial adverse effect on Monsanto’s consolidated financial
Sept. 1, 2000, Separation Agreement between Monsanto andposition or liquidity, excluding liabilities relating to Solutia.
Pharmacia, as amended (Separation Agreement), Monsanto wasSpecific information with respect to these proceedings appears
required to indemnify Pharmacia for liabilities that Solutiabelow and in Part I — Item 3 — Legal Proceedings of this report.
assumed from Pharmacia under a Distribution AgreementCertain Korean veterans of the Vietnam War have filed suit
entered into between those companies in connection with thein Seoul, South Korea, against The Dow Chemical Company and
spinoff of Solutia on Sept. 1, 1997, as amended (Distributionthe former Monsanto Company. Three complaints filed in
Agreement), to the extent that Solutia fails to pay, perform orOctober 1999 are being handled collectively and involve
discharge those liabilities. Those liabilities are referred to asapproximately 16,800 plaintiffs. The plaintiffs allege that they
‘‘Solutia’s Assumed Liabilities.’’ Solutia’s Assumed Liabilitieswere exposed to Agent Orange and that as a result they
may include, among others, litigation, environmentalsuffered injuries or their children suffered birth defects. In 2002,
remediation, and certain retiree liabilities relating to individualsthe Seoul District Court ruled in favor of the defendants and
who were employed by Pharmacia prior to the Solutia spinoff.dismissed all claims on the basis of lack of causation and

On Dec. 17, 2003, Solutia and 14 of its U.S. subsidiariesstatutes of limitations. On Jan. 26, 2006, the Seoul High Court
filed voluntary petitions for reorganization under Chapter 11 ofaffirmed the denial of any recovery for approximately 10,000
the U.S. Bankruptcy Code in the U.S. Bankruptcy Court for theplaintiffs, stating they had failed to show that any injuries they
Southern District of New York. In the Chapter 11 proceeding,claimed were caused by exposure to the Agent Orange. In
Solutia is seeking relief from paying certain liabilities, includingaddition, for approximately 6,800 plaintiffs, the Seoul High Court
some or all of Solutia’s Assumed Liabilities. Solutia may retainreversed the decision of the Seoul District Court and awarded
responsibility for all or a portion of Solutia’s Assumed Liabilities.damages jointly against Dow Chemical and the former
However, if Solutia is discharged from all or a portion ofMonsanto Company in the amount of $62 million, plus
Solutia’s Assumed Liabilities, Monsanto may be required toprejudgment interest in the amount of approximately $30 million
indemnify Pharmacia for all or a portion of them. Monsanto isand post judgment interest at the rate of 20 percent per annum.
participating in the Chapter 11 proceeding as a creditor ofOn Feb. 17, 2006, Dow Chemical and the former Monsanto
Solutia and will act as appropriate to protect Monsanto’sCompany filed a notice of appeal with the Korean Supreme
interests and the interests of its shareowners. Pharmacia orCourt, as did the plaintiffs. Management does not believe it is
Monsanto may have defenses to payment obligations for someprobable that Monsanto will incur this liability, and accordingly,
or all of Solutia’s Assumed Liabilities, and Monsanto has legalhas not recorded a charge for the judgment.
claims against Solutia. Following is a description of the currentOn June 23, 2004, two former employees of Monsanto and
status of Monsanto’s claims against Solutia, the treatment ofPharmacia filed a purported class action lawsuit in the
such claims and certain of the proceedings related toU.S. District Court for the Southern District of Illinois against
Solutia’s bankruptcy:Monsanto and the Monsanto Company Pension Plan, which is

referred to as the ‘‘Pension Plan.’’ The suit claims that the
m On April 20, 2004, Solutia filed a complaint for declaratory

Pension Plan has violated the age discrimination and other rules judgment against Pharmacia and Monsanto that, among
under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 other things: (i) any and all rights that Pharmacia and
from Jan. 1, 1997 (when the Pension Plan was sponsored by Monsanto have against Solutia for indemnification pursuant
Pharmacia, then known as Monsanto Company) and continuing to the Distribution Agreement are ‘‘claims’’ that arose
to the present. In January 2006, a separate group of former
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before Solutia filed its bankruptcy petition and may be related to environmental contamination allegedly caused by
discharged in the Chapter 11 proceeding; and (ii) the Pharmacia to Monsanto and Pharmacia and obtain a
Distribution Agreement has been fully performed. On declaration that Solutia is entitled to an implied indemnity in
May 7, 2004, the Official Committee of Retirees (Retirees’ contract or in tort from Pharmacia and Monsanto for any
Committee) filed a complaint for declaratory judgment liability of Solutia arising from the legacy liabilities of
against Solutia, Pharmacia and Monsanto that Pharmacia Pharmacia. On Sept. 14, 2006, the Bankruptcy Court
and Monsanto share responsibility for providing certain determined that the Equity Committee lacks standing to
benefits to certain retirees and must pay certain benefits to pursue Solutia’s claims against Pharmacia and Monsanto
certain retirees if Solutia reduces or terminates retiree but that the Equity Committee has standing to pursue its
benefits. The Retirees’ Committee also seeks to have the own objections to the claims of Pharmacia and Monsanto.
Bankruptcy Court declare all claims held by Pharmacia and Pharmacia and Monsanto intend to challenge any pursuit of
Monsanto subordinate to the retiree claims. Monsanto claims by the Equity Committee. This litigation is also being
believes it has meritorious defenses to assert in each of stayed because the AIP has been reached to support a
these matters. This litigation is being stayed because an consensual reorganization plan for Solutia. The AIP and the
agreement in principle (AIP) (described more fully below) Revised Plan (defined and described more fully below)
has been reached to support a consensual reorganization provide for a settlement and release for Monsanto and
plan for Solutia. The AIP and the Revised Plan (defined and Pharmacia for the matters raised in the Equity Committee’s
described more fully below) provide for a settlement and Complaint and Objection to Claim. As part of the
release for Monsanto and Pharmacia for the matters raised confirmation process for the Revised Plan, Solutia has filed
in Solutia’s complaint and the Retirees’ Committee’s a motion to approve its settlement with Monsanto and
complaint. As part of the confirmation process for the Pharmacia and seek Bankruptcy Court authority to settle
Revised Plan, Solutia has filed a motion to approve its the same claims alleged by the Equity Committee in its
settlement with Monsanto and Pharmacia and seek Court lawsuit against Monsanto and Pharmacia.
authority to settle the same matters raised in Solutia’s

m On Dec. 16, 2005, Solutia filed a complaint against
complaint and the Retirees’ Committee’s complaint. Pharmacia and Monsanto to recover alleged preferential

m Monsanto filed its initial proof of claim on Nov. 29, 2004. transfers from Monsanto and avoid the transfers of certain
By order of the Bankruptcy Court, Monsanto and Pharmacia liabilities allegedly fraudulently transferred to Solutia by
amended their initial proofs of claim by June 30, 2007, for Pharmacia and Monsanto. Concurrent with this filing,
additional out-of-pocket costs incurred, which claims are Solutia announced that it filed this action to preserve the
subject to further amendment(s) as additional costs are legal rights of its bankruptcy estate, and it has made no
incurred. Monsanto and Pharmacia have reserved the right decision to pursue this action. The complaint is redundant
to file additional claims on behalf of third parties who have in many respects to other pending actions filed against
not previously filed claims against Solutia, as may be Monsanto and Pharmacia by other constituents in the case
permitted under the Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure. (including the Equity Committee and the Retirees’

Committee). This litigation is also currently stayed, and the
m On March 7, 2005, the Official Committee of Equity

matters raised in Solutia’s complaint are being resolvedSecurity Holders of Solutia (Equity Committee) filed a
under the AIP. As part of the confirmation process for theComplaint and Objection to Claim against Monsanto and
Revised Plan, Solutia has filed a motion to approve itsPharmacia, objecting to the claims filed by Monsanto and
settlement of these claims with Pharmacia and MonsantoPharmacia against Solutia on the grounds that Solutia was
and seek Bankruptcy Court authority to settle the sameundercapitalized at its inception, Pharmacia failed to
matters raised in Solutia’s complaint.disclose the full extent of the potential legacy liabilities at

the time of Solutia’s spinoff, and Solutia’s indemnity m Solutia, the Official Committee of Unsecured Creditors
obligations to Pharmacia and Monsanto are unduly (Creditors’ Committee), the Retirees’ Committee, Monsanto
burdensome. The Equity Committee’s Complaint and and Pharmacia have agreed to stay all litigation in the
Objection to Claim seeks, among other things, to: bankruptcy proceedings, which stay remains in force and
(i) recharacterize Monsanto’s and Pharmacia’s claims as effect, subject to any party’s right to issue a termination
equity interests and subordinate these equity interests; notice. No termination notice has been issued and no such
(ii) disallow and expunge any claims of Monsanto and notice is expected to be issued in the near term, because
Pharmacia related to the spinoff; (iii) obtain a declaration the AIP has been reached to support a consensual
that the provisions of the Distribution Agreement requiring reorganization plan for Solutia.
Solutia to assume the legacy liabilities and requiring Solutia

m On Aug. 17, 2007, the AIP was reached among Solutia,
to indemnify Monsanto and Pharmacia were unconscionable Monsanto, Pharmacia, the Creditors’ Committee, the
and may be avoided; and (iv) allocate all liability for claims
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Retirees’ Committee, the Ad Hoc Solutia Trade Claims Sept. 1, 1997. In consideration for Monsanto’s contributions
Committee, the Ad Hoc Committee of Solutia Noteholders, in the Revised Plan, the resolution of Monsanto’s claims in
and the Equity Committee. The AIP (i) forms the basis for a Solutia’s Chapter 11 case, and settlement of ongoing and
consensual plan of reorganization for Solutia; (ii) resolves all potential litigation in the case, among other things, on the
pending litigation and objections including Solutia’s, the effective date of the Revised Plan, Monsanto would receive
Retirees’ Committee’s and the Equity Committee’s $175 million in cash from Solutia from the proceeds of an
complaints against Monsanto and Pharmacia (described offering of approximately 17 percent of common stock of
above); and (iii) provides Solutia with significant relief from Reorganized Solutia for eligible Solutia equity holders;
certain of Solutia’s Assumed Liabilities. The AIP has been provided, however, that if the proceeds from the offering
incorporated into a revised plan of reorganization (Revised are less than $175 million, Monsanto would receive (i) cash
Plan) and revised disclosure statement (Revised Disclosure equal to the aggregate proceeds of the sale of Solutia’s
Statement) which were filed in the Bankruptcy Court on new common stock to eligible Solutia equity holders, plus
Oct. 15, 2007. The Revised Plan will ultimately be subject (ii) a number of shares of Solutia’s new common stock
to approval by the Court. equal to the difference between the number of shares

equal to 17 percent of Solutia’s new common stock and the
m The terms of the AIP have been incorporated into the

number of shares of Solutia’s new common stock thatRevised Plan and Revised Disclosure Statement.
were sold to eligible equity holders in the offering. TheMonsanto’s contribution commitment to Solutia under the
Revised Plan would also provide for a settlement andRevised Plan would be similar to that described in Solutia’s
release for Monsanto and Pharmacia for the litigation filedoriginal Plan of Reorganization filed on Feb. 14, 2006, with
by Solutia, the Retirees’ Committee, and the matters raisedthe exception that Monsanto will not backstop a
in the Equity Committee’s Complaint and Objection to$250 million rights offering to certain unsecured creditors
Claim, as discussed above.who will be given the opportunity to purchase the common

stock of Reorganized Solutia. Consistent with Solutia’s m The Bankruptcy Court held a hearing on Oct. 19, 2007, to
original reorganization plan, under the Revised Plan with consider the legal adequacy of the Revised Disclosure
regard to Solutia’s Assumed Liabilities, Monsanto will Statement which accompanies the Revised Plan. At that
(i) accept financial responsibility for toxic tort litigation hearing, the Court determined that the Revised Disclosure
relating to Pharmacia’s chemical business that occurred Statement provides sufficient information for creditors and
prior to Sept. 1, 1997; (ii) accept financial responsibility for other parties to make an informed decision to vote on the
environmental remediation obligations at sites relating to Revised Plan, and has scheduled Nov. 29, 2007, as the date
Pharmacia’s chemical business which Solutia never owned for confirmation hearings to consider (i) approval or
or operated; and (iii) share financial responsibility for off-site ‘‘confirmation’’ of the Revised Plan, and (ii) the various
environmental remediation costs in Anniston, Alabama, and settlements by and between Solutia, Pharmacia, Monsanto,
Sauget, Illinois, provided that Solutia would pay the first the Retirees’ Committee, the Equity Committee, and
$50 million, Monsanto would pay the next $50 million others, which are integrated into the Revised Plan. Prior to
minus amounts Monsanto paid toward these sites during conducting confirmation hearings, the Revised Plan and
Solutia’s Chapter 11 case, and Solutia would pay the next Revised Disclosure Statement would be distributed to all
$325 million, if needed, after which Monsanto and Solutia parties for voting purposes. If the Court confirms the
would share responsibility for costs equally. However, Revised Plan (or further amendments to the Revised Plan)
because of the length of Solutia’s bankruptcy proceeding, and the various settlements which are integrated into the
Monsanto has already spent $70 million for offsite Revised Plan, Solutia would emerge from Chapter 11
environmental remediation and related legal costs in thereafter. If the Bankruptcy Court determines that Solutia’s
Anniston, Alabama, and Sauget, Illinois, as of proposed settlement with Monsanto and Pharmacia does
Aug. 31, 2007. Under the Revised Plan, Monsanto would not meet the requisite legal standard and/or the requisite
receive cash reimbursement for environmental remediation number or amount of Solutia’s creditors do not vote to
payments made at Anniston, Alabama, and Sauget, Illinois, accept the Revised Plan, the Revised Plan will not be
during the course of Solutia’s Chapter 11 case in excess of approved. In such event, it is unknown whether or when an
$50 million. The Revised Plan also provides for a amended reorganization plan would be filed, or if an
comprehensive retiree settlement and includes a release for amended reorganization plan is filed, what the terms of an
Monsanto and Pharmacia from certain legacy liabilities amended plan of reorganization might include. However, in
associated with Pharmacia’s chemical business that arose such event, Monsanto would continue to discuss a
prior to Sept. 1, 1997, including liabilities related to retiree negotiated resolution of unresolved issues in Solutia’s
medical, retiree life insurance, and disability benefits for Chapter 11 proceeding and support Solutia’s efforts to
individuals who retired or became disabled prior to reorganize as a viable company.
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Both immediately prior to and since its Chapter 11 filing, amount. The following table provides a detailed summary of the
Solutia failed to perform its obligations relating to some of discounted and undiscounted amounts included in the charge.
Solutia’s Assumed Liabilities. Monsanto believes Solutia is

(Dollars in millions)required to meet its obligations unless and until those
Undiscounted Portion:obligations are discharged by the Bankruptcy Court. However, in

Amount accrued in first quarter fiscal year 2005 $ 86order to protect Pharmacia’s and Monsanto’s interests until that
Amount accrued and paid during first quarter fiscal year 2005 21issue is resolved, pursuant to Monsanto’s obligation to

Aggregate Undiscounted Amount 107indemnify Pharmacia and on an interim basis, Monsanto has
Discounted Portion:assumed the management and defense of certain third-party

Expected payment (undiscounted) for: 2005 29tort litigation and funded some of Solutia’s environmental
 2006 26

obligations. In the process of managing such litigation and  2007 18
environmental liabilities, and through Monsanto’s involvement in  2008 7

 2009 5the bankruptcy process, Monsanto determined that it was
Undiscounted aggregate expected payments after 2009 137probable that Monsanto would incur some expenses related to

Aggregate Amount to be Discounted as of Nov. 30, 2004 222third-party tort litigation and environmental liabilities and that the
Discount, as of Nov. 30, 2004 (45)amount of certain of these expenses could be reasonably
Aggregate Discounted Amount Accrued in First Quarterestimated. In December 2004, Monsanto determined that it was

Fiscal Year 2005 177appropriate to establish a reserve for such expenses based on
Total Charge Recognized in First Quarter Fiscal Year 2005 $ 284the best estimates by Monsanto’s management with input from

Payments (49)its legal and other outside advisors. Accordingly, a charge in the
Accretion 4amount of $284 million (the Solutia-related charge or the charge)

Balance Aug. 31, 2005 $ 239was recorded in Monsanto’s first quarter fiscal 2005 results. As
Payments (34)

of Aug. 31, 2007, $182 million was recorded in the Statement Accretion 5
of Consolidated Financial Position ($63 million in current

Balance Aug. 31, 2006 $ 210
liabilities and $119 million in other liabilities). Payments (33)

A portion of the charge was discounted, using a risk-free Accretion 3
Additional charge recognized in fiscal year 2007 2discount rate of 3.5 percent. The remaining portion of the

charge was not subject to discounting because of uncertainties Balance Aug. 31, 2007 $ 182
in the timing of cash outlay or was paid during first quarter of
fiscal year 2005. In fiscal year 2007, interest expense of Monsanto believes that the Solutia-related charge
$3 million was recognized for the accretion of the discounted represents the discounted cost that Monsanto would expect to

incur in connection with these litigation and environmental
matters. Monsanto expects to pay for these potential liabilities
over time as the various legal proceedings are resolved and
remediation is performed at the various environmental sites.
Actual costs to Monsanto may differ materially from this
estimate. Further, additional litigation or environmental matters
that are not reflected in the charge may arise in the future, and
Monsanto may also manage, settle, or pay judgments or
damages with respect to litigation or environmental matters in
order to mitigate contingent potential liability and protect
Pharmacia and Monsanto.

The charge does not reflect any insurance reimbursements,
any recoveries Monsanto might receive through the bankruptcy
process, or any recoveries Monsanto might receive through
actions that it is pursuing on Pharmacia’s behalf with regard to
the Anniston, Alabama, Sauget, Illinois, and Lower Passaic
River, New Jersey, sites. Receivables of $19 million were
recorded as of Aug. 31, 2007 ($16 million was recorded in
miscellaneous receivables and $3 million was recorded in other
assets), for the anticipated insurance reimbursement of a
portion of Monsanto’s settlement payments for certain litigation
related to Anniston, Alabama. Monsanto expects these
receivables to be paid over three years, in quarterly installments,
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which began in March 2005. Monsanto has received net the successor in interest to the liabilities of Pharmacia. The
insurance proceeds of $140 million. alleged class consists of all current and former residents,

In September 2003, the state and federal courts approved a workers, and students who, between 1949 and the present,
global settlement of certain PCB litigation: Sabrina Abernathy et were allegedly exposed to dioxins/furans contamination in
al. v. Monsanto Company et al. (a group of consolidated cases counties surrounding Nitro, West Virginia. The complaint alleges
in the Circuit Court of Etowah County, Alabama); and Antonia that the source of the contamination is a chemical plant in Nitro,
Tolbert et al. v. Monsanto Company et al. (in the U.S. District formerly owned and operated by Pharmacia and later by
Court for the Northern District of Alabama). Monsanto, Solutia Flexsys, a joint venture between Solutia and Akzo Nobel
and Pharmacia are each responsible for paying the full amount Chemicals, Inc. (Akzo Nobel). Akzo Nobel and Flexsys are
of the settlement. However, they agreed among themselves named defendants in the case but Solutia is not, due to its
that Solutia would pay $50 million of the settlement amount pending bankruptcy proceeding. The suit seeks damages for
over the next 11 years or more. Solutia has made four property cleanup costs, loss of real estate value, funds to test
payments of $5 million each through September 2007, and is property for contamination levels, funds to test for human
obligated to continue making its settlement payments under the contamination, and future medical monitoring costs. The
terms of the AIP and the Revised Plan. Monsanto paid complaint also seeks an injunction against further contamination
$150 million of its share of the $550 million cash settlement in and punitive damages. Akzo Nobel and the Flexsys group of
August 2003, and the remaining $400 million was paid in defendants tendered their cases to Monsanto for
September 2003. Also in connection with that settlement, indemnification and defense. Monsanto agreed to indemnify and
Solutia agreed to issue warrants to Monsanto for the purchase defend Akzo Nobel and the Flexsys defendant group. The class
of up to 10 million shares of Solutia common stock, at an action certification hearing is set for Oct. 29, 2007. On
exercise price of $1.104 per share. Solutia did not execute a Oct. 1, 2007, 78 separate, single plaintiff civil actions were filed
final warrant agreement or issue or deliver the warrants and, in Putnam County, West Virginia, against Monsanto, Pharmacia,
therefore, Monsanto has not recorded the warrants in its Akzo Nobel (and several of its affiliates), Flexsys America Co.
financial statements. Monsanto has made a claim for its (and several of its affiliates), Solutia and Apogee Coal Company,
unreimbursed settlement contribution in the course of the LLC. Except for the name of the plaintiff, each complaint is
Chapter 11 proceeding. Solutia’s obligation to issue the warrants identical and each alleges personal injury occasioned by
would be resolved if the AIP and the Revised Plan become exposure to dioxin generated by the Nitro Plant during
effective and binding. production of 2,4,5T (1949-1969) and thereafter. These cases

In addition to the Solutia-related charge, Monsanto has are related to, and were filed in the same court as, the Allen
incurred legal and other costs related to the Chapter 11 action described above.
proceeding and its Solutia-related indemnification obligations to

Solutia Environmental Obligations: Included in the Solutia-Pharmacia. These costs, along with excess amounts for the
related charge are amounts related to certain of Solutia’sSauget and Anniston remediation described above, are
environmental liabilities, particularly expenses for environmentalexpensed as incurred, because the potential future costs to
remediation of sites Solutia never owned or operated and sitesMonsanto to protect its interests cannot be reasonably
beyond the property lines of Solutia’s current or formerestimated. The legal and other costs, together with the Solutia-
operations. The following describes the significantrelated charge, are reflected in the Statements of Consolidated
environmental matters reflected in the Solutia-related charge.Operations as Solutia-related expenses.

On Aug. 4, 2003, the U.S. District Court for the NorthernThe degree to which Monsanto may ultimately be
District of Alabama approved a Revised Partial Consent Decreeresponsible for the particular matters reflected in the charge or
(RPCD), pursuant to which Pharmacia and Solutia are obligatedother of Solutia’s Assumed Liabilities or Solutia-related expenses
to perform PCB residential cleanup work and a remedialis uncertain until the outcome of all matters in the Chapter 11
investigation/feasibility study of PCB contamination in Anniston,proceeding are resolved.
among other things. Based on Solutia’s failure to perform, on

Solutia Litigation Obligations: Included in the Solutia-related March 25, 2004, Monsanto, acting on behalf of Pharmacia,
charge are amounts related to certain of Solutia’s third-party tort entered into an arrangement with the EPA and Solutia to
litigation, including lawsuits involving polychlorinated biphenyls perform certain environmental obligations at the Anniston,
(PCBs), dioxins, and other chemical and premises liability Alabama, and Sauget, Illinois, sites under the RPCD and other
litigation. The following describes the significant litigation orders where both Solutia and Pharmacia are named parties. As
matters reflected in the Solutia-related charge. a part of this arrangement, Monsanto has agreed with the EPA

On Dec. 17, 2004, 15 plaintiffs filed a purported class action to perform certain remediation in Anniston and Sauget until
lawsuit, styled Virdie Allen, et al. v. Monsanto, et al., in the Monsanto invokes a 60-day notice of termination provision,
Putnam County, West Virginia, state court against Monsanto, which Monsanto has not invoked. In July 2006, Monsanto, on
Pharmacia and seven other defendants. Monsanto is named as behalf of itself and Pharmacia, Solutia and the United States
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entered a stipulation and agreement resolving outstanding Seeds and Genomics segment’s increasing contribution to total
penalty and other issues associated with the RPCD. Monsanto operations, the allocation percentages were changed

In May 2002, the EPA sent Monsanto and Solutia a ‘‘notice at the beginning of fiscal year 2007. Data for the Seeds and
of potential liability and offer to negotiate for removal action’’ Genomics and Agricultural Productivity reportable segments, as
regarding dioxin in the Kanawha River in Putnam and Kanawha well as for Monsanto’s significant operating segments is
counties, West Virginia, which was premised on Pharmacia’s presented in the table that follows.
former operations at its Nitro, West Virginia, manufacturing

Year Ended Aug. 31,facility. The EPA, Monsanto and Pharmacia have negotiated a
(Dollars in millions) 2007 2006 2005consent order under which Monsanto is preparing an
Net Sales(1)

Engineering Evaluation/Cost Analysis Report, which will contain
Corn seed and traits $ 2,807 $ 1,793 $ 1,494

the results of Monsanto’s investigation of dioxin contamination Soybean seed and traits 901 960 889
Cotton seed and traits 319 376 335in the Kanawha River, the sources of such contamination, an
Vegetable and fruit seed 612 569 226evaluation of removal options, and a recommended approach to
All other crops seeds and traits 325 280 289

removing or otherwise addressing the contaminated sediments.
Total Seeds and Genomics $ 4,964 $ 3,978 $ 3,233

Monsanto is performing various remedial activities at the
Roundup and other glyphosate-based

IndustriPlex site in Woburn, Massachusetts. In January 2006, herbicides $ 2,568 $ 2,262 $ 2,049
All other agricultural products 1,031 1,054 993the EPA published a Record of Decision identifying additional

Total Agricultural Productivity $ 3,599 $ 3,316 $ 3,042remedial work it anticipates for the Aberjona River, which is
Total $ 8,563 $ 7,294 $ 6,275downstream of the IndustriPlex Site. On behalf of Pharmacia,
EBIT(2)(3)Monsanto is finalizing an agreement with the EPA under which

Seeds and Genomics $ 905 $ 794 $ 374it and another party will perform this work.
Agricultural Productivity 471 301 (27)
Total $ 1,376 $ 1,095 $ 347

Depreciation and Amortization Expense(4)
NOTE 22. SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC DATA

Seeds and Genomics $ 347 $ 328 $ 302
Agricultural Productivity 180 191 186Monsanto conducts its worldwide operations through global
Total $ 527 $ 519 $ 488businesses, which are aggregated into reportable operating

Equity Affiliate Expensesegments based on similarity of products, production processes,
Seeds and Genomics $ 34 $ 31 $ 31

customers, distribution methods and economic characteristics. Agricultural Productivity — — —
The operating segments are aggregated into two reportable Total $ 34 $ 31 $ 31
segments: Seeds and Genomics, and Agricultural Productivity. Total Assets(5)

The Seeds and Genomics segment consists of the global seeds Seeds and Genomics $ 8,872 $ 7,499 $ 6,380
Agricultural Productivity 4,111 4,229 4,199and related traits businesses and biotechnology platforms.
Total $12,983 $11,728 $10,579Within the Seeds and Genomics segment, Monsanto’s

Property, Plant and Equipment Purchasessignificant operating segments are corn seed and traits, soybean
Seeds and Genomics $ 427 $ 294 $ 185

seed and traits, vegetable and fruit seeds and all other crops Agricultural Productivity 82 76 96
seeds and traits. After the acquisition of DPL in 2007, Monsanto Total $ 509 $ 370 $ 281
identified cotton seed and traits as an additional significant Investment in Equity Affiliates
operating segment within the Seeds and Genomics segment. Seeds and Genomics $ 51 $ 49 $ 47

Agricultural Productivity — — —The Agricultural Productivity segment consists of the crop
Total $ 51 $ 49 $ 47protection products, animal agriculture businesses and lawn-and-

(1) Represents net sales from continuing operations.garden herbicide products. Within the Agricultural Productivity (2) EBIT is defined as earnings (loss) before interest and taxes; see the following
segment, the significant operating segments are Roundup and table for reconciliation. Earnings (loss) is intended to mean net income as

presented in the Statements of Consolidated Operations under generally acceptedother glyphosate-based products and all other agricultural
accounting principles. EBIT is the primary operating performance measure for the

products. EBIT is defined as earnings (loss) before interest and two business segments.
(3) Seeds and Genomics EBIT includes income of $45 million, income of $6 milliontaxes and is the primary operating performance measure for the

and a loss of $36 million from discontinued operations for fiscal years 2007, 2006
two business segments. EBIT is useful to management in and 2005, respectively. Agricultural Productivity EBIT includes a loss of $2 million,

a loss of $5 million and income of $11 million from discontinued operations fordemonstrating the operational profitability of the segments by
fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

excluding interest and taxes, which are generally accounted for (4) Seeds and Genomics depreciation and amortization expense includes $10 million,
$10 million and $4 million from discontinued operations for fiscal years 2007,across the entire company on a consolidated basis. Sales
2006 and 2005, respectively.

between segments were not significant. Certain selling, general (5) Includes assets recorded in continuing operations and discontinued operations.
and administrative expenses are allocated between segments
primarily by the ratio of segment sales to total Monsanto sales,
consistent with the company’s historical practice. Based on the
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A reconciliation of EBIT to net income for each year follows:

Year Ended Aug. 31,

(Dollars in millions) 2007 2006 2005

EBIT(1) $1,376 $1,095 $ 347
Interest Expense — Net 17 79 75
Income Tax Provision(2) 366 327 17

Net Income $ 993 $ 689 $ 255
(1) Includes the income (loss) from operations of discontinued businesses, the pre-

tax cumulative effect of accounting change and pre-tax minority interest.
(2) Includes the income tax provision from continuing operations, the income tax

benefit on minority interest, the income tax benefit (provision) on discontinued
operations, and the income tax benefit on the cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle.

Net sales and long-lived assets are attributed to the geographic areas of the relevant Monsanto legal entities. For example, a sale
from the United States to a customer in Latin America is reported as a U.S. export sale.

Net Sales to Unaffiliated Customers
Excluding Inter-area Sales Long-Lived Assets

Year Ended Aug. 31, As of Aug. 31,

(Dollars in millions) 2007 2006 2005 2007 2006

United States $ 4,845 $ 4,151 $ 3,294 $ 4,805 $ 3,420
Latin America 1,580 1,281 1,239 871 863
Europe-Africa 1,262 1,061 973 1,003 794
Asia-Pacific 552 528 497 409 466
Canada 324 273 272 81 98

Total $ 8,563 $ 7,294 $ 6,275 $ 7,169 $ 5,641

NOTE 23. OTHER EXPENSE — NET Monsanto owns 50 percent of Renessen and has equal
governance and funding rights and responsibilities with Cargill.The significant components of other expense (income) were
Cargill has agreed to grant Renessen an exclusive right andequity affiliate expense, foreign currency transaction losses, and
license to Cargill’s intellectual property related to this cornin 2007 a donation of long-term equity securities. See
processing technology needed for Renessen to pursue itsNote 24 — Equity Affiliates — for information regarding the
business plan and receive rights to use intellectual propertymajority of equity affiliate expense.
developed by Renessen in other specified areas. Both Cargill
and Monsanto provide specified services to Renessen for a fee.

NOTE 24. EQUITY AFFILIATE As of Aug. 31, 2007, Monsanto performed the majority of
Renessen’s upstream research and development activities.

Renessen LLC, Monsanto’s joint venture with Cargill,
During fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, Monsanto performed

Incorporated, has developed and plans to commercialize a
R&D services of $40 million, $44 million and $42 million,

proprietary grain processing technology, marketed under the
respectively, for Renessen, which was recovered at cost. The

name ExtraxTM. This technology separates corn into three high-
fair value of performing these services approximates the

value fractions: a high-starch fraction, ideal for ethanol
recovered costs. Monsanto’s investment in Renessen, including

fermentation; food-grade corn oil, valuable as a non-trans fat oil
outstanding advances, was $2 million and $6 million as of

solution or for biodiesel; and a nutrient-rich meal that can be
Aug. 31, 2007, and Aug. 31, 2006, respectively. Equity affiliate

used as a corn replacement in animal feed rations. The ExtraxTM

expense from Renessen was $36 million in fiscal year 2007,
technology will be licensed by Renessen to North American

$34 million in fiscal year 2006, and $33 million in fiscal
ethanol manufacturers interested in optimizing the operation of

year 2005, and represented substantially all of equity
ethanol plants and diversifying the income streams generated

affiliate expense.
by the traditional dry grind ethanol manufacturing process.

87



MONSANTO COMPANY 2007 FORM 10-K

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

NOTE 25. SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE required by the consent decree. Monsanto has retained certain
EXPENSES rights to this germplasm. The buyers of these assets are

licensed to use our traits in their brands prospectively under aAdvertising Costs: Costs for producing and communicating
royalty bearing agreement. Monsanto realized a pre-tax gain ofadvertising for the various brands and products were charged to
$46 million and a tax benefit of $27 million in 2007 related toselling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses as they
these divestitures.were incurred, or expensed ratably during the year in relation to

revenues or certain other performance measures. Advertising
Environmental technologies businesses: In 2005, Monsanto

costs were $84 million, $84 million and $65 million in 2007,
sold Enviro-Chem Systems, Inc. (‘‘Enviro-Chem’’ or the

2006 and 2005, respectively.
‘‘environmental technologies businesses’’), a business that
provided engineering, procurement and constructionAgency Fee and Marketing Agreement: In 1998, Pharmacia (f/k/a
management services, and sold proprietary equipment andMonsanto Company) entered into an agency and marketing
process technologies. These businesses were previouslyagreement with the Scotts Miracle-Gro Company (f/k/a the
reported as part of the Agricultural Productivity segment. TheScotts Company) (Scotts) with respect to the lawn-and-garden
company determined that these businesses were no longerherbicide business, which was transferred to Monsanto in
consistent with its strategic business goals. This divestitureconnection with its separation from Pharmacia. Scotts acts as
resulted in an after-tax gain of $7 million recorded in incomeMonsanto’s principal agent to market and distribute its lawn-
(loss) from operations of discontinued businesses, afterand-garden herbicide products. The agreement has an indefinite
accounting for currency translation adjustments andterm except in certain countries in the European Union. The
transactional costs.agreement related to those countries terminates on Sept. 30,

In April 2001, Enviro-Chem entered into an agreement with2008, and may be extended for up to 10 years by the mutual
a third party related to the engineering, design and constructionagreement of both parties. Under the agreement, beginning in
of a power generation plant in Oregon. As of the date of thethe fourth quarter 1998, Scotts was obligated to pay Monsanto
divestiture, the receivable related to this power plant and relateda $20 million fixed fee each year for the length of the contract
fixed assets had not been collected. The title to the receivableto defray costs associated with the lawn-and-garden herbicide
was transferred to the buyer of Enviro-Chem, and the buyerbusiness (the annual payment). Monsanto records the annual
entered into an agreement with Monsanto in August 2005 topayment from Scotts as a reduction of SG&A expenses ratably
remit the proceeds of this receivable to Monsanto uponover the year to which the payment relates.
repayment by the third party. As of Aug. 31, 2006, theMonsanto is obligated to pay Scotts an annual commission
miscellaneous receivable of $6 million was recorded as otherbased on the earnings of the lawn-and-garden herbicide
current assets and $2 million of deferred taxes on thebusiness (before interest and income taxes). The amount of the
miscellaneous receivable was recorded as miscellaneous short-commission due to Scotts varies depending on whether or not
term accruals. On Aug. 31, 2007, Monsanto closed on the salethe earnings of the lawn-and-garden herbicide business exceed
of the security interest in this plant, which resulted in a loss ofcertain thresholds that vary by program year. The commission
$1 million. As such, the receivable that the third party owed todue to Scotts is accrued monthly and is included in SG&A
Enviro-Chem and the related deferred taxes have been removedexpenses. The commission expense included in SG&A
from assets and liabilities of discontinued operations as ofexpenses was $63 million in fiscal year 2007, $61 million in
Aug. 31, 2007.fiscal year 2006, and $66 million in fiscal year 2005 (the

commission expense presented herein is not netted with any
European wheat and barley business and plant-made

payments received from Scotts).
pharmaceuticals program: In October 2003, Monsanto
announced plans to exit the European breeding and seed
business for wheat and barley and to discontinue the plant-NOTE 26. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
made pharmaceuticals program. The European wheat and barley

Divested Cotton Businesses: In conjunction with the DOJ consent business and plant-made pharmaceuticals program were
decree received on May 31, 2007, Monsanto agreed to divest previously reported as part of the Seeds and Genomics
its U.S. Stoneville and NexGen Branded Cotton Seed segment. In fiscal year 2004, the sale of assets associated with
businesses. Monsanto completed its acquisition of DPL as of the European wheat and barley business was finalized. The
June 1, 2007. The U.S. Stoneville and NexGen businesses were divestiture generated a tax loss that was recognized as a tax
part of the Seeds and Genomics segment. Monsanto sold its benefit in the United States. In fiscal year 2005, Monsanto
Stoneville and NexGen cotton seed brands and related business recorded a deferred tax benefit of $106 million, $20 million in
assets on June 19, 2007, for $310 million and $7 million, continuing operations and the remaining $86 million in
respectively. Monsanto also divested certain cotton germplasm discontinued operations. The tax benefit of $86 million recorded
that was acquired from DPL’s cotton breeding program, as
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in discontinued operations was related primarily to the wheat wheat and barley business and the plant-made pharmaceuticals
reporting unit goodwill impairment loss at the date of adoption program have been segregated from continuing operations and
of SFAS 142 on Jan. 1, 2002, which was recorded as a reflected as discontinued operations:
cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle. See

Year Ended Aug. 31,Note 10 — Income Taxes — for further discussion of the
(Dollars in millions) 2007 2006 2005tax benefit.
Net Sales $ 44 $ 50 $165As a result of the plans to sell the businesses discussed
Income (Loss) from Operations of Discontinuedabove, certain financial data for these businesses has been

Businesses (including gain on disposal of $46 millionpresented as discontinued operations in accordance with
in 2007) 43 1 (25)

SFAS 144. Accordingly, for fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, Income Tax Provision (Benefit) (including tax benefit on
the Statements of Consolidated Operations have been disposal of $27 million in 2007) (28) 1 (87)
conformed to this presentation. Net Income on Discontinued Operations $ 71 $— $ 62

The following amounts related to the divested cotton
businesses, environmental technologies businesses, European

NOTE 27. QUARTERLY DATA (UNAUDITED)

The following table includes financial data for the fiscal year quarters in 2007 and 2006, which have been adjusted for discontinued
operations. See Note 26 — Discontinued Operations — for further discussion of the divested cotton businesses.

Diluted Earnings (Loss) per Share(1)
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

Income Income Cumulative Income Income Cumulative
(Loss) From (Loss) on Effect of Net (Loss) From (Loss) on Effect of Net

Net Gross Continuing Discontinued Accounting Income Continuing Discontinued Accounting Income
2007 Sales Profit Operations Operations Change (Loss) Operations Operations Change (Loss)

1st Quarter $1,539 $ 682 $ 95 $ (5) $— $ 90 $ 0.17 $ (0.01) $ — $ 0.16

2nd Quarter 2,609 1,448 546 (3) — 543 0.99 (0.01) — 0.98

3rd Quarter 2,842 1,503 565 5 — 570 1.02 0.01 — 1.03

4th Quarter 1,573 653 (284) 74 — (210) (0.52) 0.13 — (0.39)

Total Fiscal Year $8,563 $4,286 $ 922 $ 71 $— $ 993 $ 1.66 $ 0.13 $ — $ 1.79

2006

1st Quarter $1,405 $ 634 $ 63 $ (4) $— $ 59 $ 0.12 $ (0.01) $ — $ 0.11

2nd Quarter 2,190 1,236 441 (1) — 440 0.80 — — 0.80

3rd Quarter 2,309 1,169 322 12 — 334 0.58 0.02 — 0.60

4th Quarter 1,390 480 (131) (7) (6) (144) (0.25) (0.01) (0.01) (0.27)

Total Fiscal Year $7,294 $3,519 $ 695 $ — $ (6) $ 689 $ 1.26 $ — $(0.01) $ 1.25
(1) Because Monsanto reported a loss from continuing operations in the fourth quarters of 2007 and 2006, generally accepted accounting principles required diluted loss per

share to be calculated using weighted-average common shares outstanding, excluding common stock equivalents. As a result, the quarterly earnings (loss) per share do not
total to the full-year amount.

NOTE 28. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In September 2007, Monsanto acquired 100 percent of the
outstanding stock of Agroeste Sementes, a leading Brazilian
corn seed company, for approximately $90 million, net of cash
acquired. Agroeste focuses on hybrid corn seed production and
serves farmers throughout Brazil. Monsanto consummated the
transaction with cash.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

We maintain a comprehensive set of disclosure controls and Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting, included in
procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under Part II — Item 8 of this Form 10-K. The attestation report called
the Exchange Act) designed to ensure that information required for by Item 308(b) of Regulation S-K is incorporated herein by
to be disclosed in our filings under the Exchange Act is reference to the attestation report of Deloitte & Touche LLP, the
recorded, processed, summarized and reported accurately and company’s independent registered public accounting firm, on
within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, internal control over financial reporting, included in Part II —
and that such information is accumulated and communicated to Item 8 of this Form 10-K.
Monsanto’s management, including its Chief Executive Officer During the quarter that ended on the Evaluation Date, there
and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely was one change in internal control over financial reporting (as
decisions regarding required disclosures. As of Aug. 31, 2007 defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange
(the Evaluation Date), an evaluation was carried out under the Act) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
supervision and with the participation of our management, materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. We
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, consider the inclusion of the acquisition of DPL significant to our
of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our results of operations, financial position and cash flows from the
disclosure controls and procedures. Based on that evaluation, date of acquisition through Aug. 31, 2007, and consider the
the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer integration of DPL to have materially affected our internal
concluded that, as of the Evaluation Date, the design and control over financial reporting. We believe we have taken the
operation of these disclosure controls and procedures were necessary steps to establish and maintain effective internal
effective to provide reasonable assurance of the achievement of controls over financial reporting during the period of change.
the objectives described above.

The report called for by Item 308(a) of Regulation S-K is
incorporated herein by reference to Management’s Annual

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION 

On Oct. 22, 2007, the People and Compensation Committee of
Monsanto’s Board of Directors approved base salaries to
become effective as of Dec. 31, 2007, and annual incentive
awards for the 2007 fiscal year, which will be paid on Nov. 9,
2007, for the named executive officers included in Monsanto’s
proxy statement dated Dec. 6, 2006. A summary of these cash
compensation arrangements is included in Exhibit 10.28 to this
Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference.
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PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The following information appearing in Monsanto Company’s Finance Committee, and the financial expertise of
definitive proxy statement, which is expected to be filed with its members.
the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A on or about Dec. 5, 2007
(Proxy Statement), is incorporated herein by reference: Monsanto has adopted a Code of Ethics for Chief Executive

and Senior Financial Officers (Code), which applies to its Chief
m Information appearing under the heading ‘‘Information

Executive Officer and the senior leadership of its financeRegarding Board of Directors and Committees —
department, including its Chief Financial Officer and Controller.Composition of Board of Directors,’’ including biographical
This Code is available on our Web site at www.monsanto.com,information regarding nominees for election to, and
at the tab ‘‘Corporate Responsibility.’’ Any amendments to, ormembers of, the Board of Directors;
waivers from, the provisions of the Code will be posted to that

m Information appearing under the heading ‘‘Other Matters — same location within four business days, and will remain on the
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Web site for at least a 12-month period.
Compliance;’’ and The following information with respect to the executive

officers of the Company on Oct. 25, 2007, is included pursuant
m Information appearing under the heading ‘‘Board Meetings

to Instruction 3 of Item 401(b) of Regulation S-K:and Committees — Audit and Finance Committee,’’
regarding the membership and function of the Audit and

Present Position Year First Became
Name — Age with Registrant an Executive Officer Other Business Experience since Sept. 1, 2002*

Brett D. Begemann, 46 Executive Vice President, 2003 Vice President, Asia-Pacific — Monsanto Company, 11/01-6/03; Executive Vice
Global Commercial President, International Commercial — Monsanto Company, 6/03-10/07; present

position, 10/07

Carl M. Casale, 46 Executive Vice President, 2000 Vice President, North America — Monsanto Company, 6/00-6/03; Executive Vice
Strategy & Operations President, North America Commercial — Monsanto Company, 6/03-10/07; present

position, 10/07

Richard B. Clark, 55 Vice President and 2001 Present position, 2001
Controller

Terrell K. Crews, 52 Executive Vice President, 2000 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer — Monsanto Company,
Chief Financial Officer and 8/00-10/07; present position, 10/07
Seminis CEO

Scarlett Lee Foster, 50 Vice President, Investor 2005 Director, Investor Relations — Monsanto Company, 1/01-8/05; present
Relations position, 8/05

Robert T. Fraley, 54 Executive Vice President 2000 Present position, 8/00
and Chief Technology
Officer

Hugh Grant, 49 Chairman of the Board, 2000 Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer — Monsanto Company,
President and Chief 8/00-5/03; Director, President and Chief Executive Officer — Monsanto Company,
Executive Officer 5/03-10/03; present position, 10/03

Janet M. Holloway, 53 Senior Vice President, Chief 2000 Chief Information Officer — Monsanto Company, 8/00-6/03; Vice President and Chief
of Staff and Community Information Officer, Responsible for Human Resources — Monsanto Company,
Relations 7/03-4/04; Vice President and Chief Information Officer — Monsanto Company,

4/04-4/05; Vice President and Chief of Staff — Monsanto Company, 4/05-10/07;
present position, 10/07
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Present Position Year First Became
Name — Age with Registrant an Executive Officer Other Business Experience since Sept. 1, 2002*

Mark J. Leidy, 51 Executive Vice President, 2001 Vice President, Manufacturing — Monsanto Company, 2/01-6/03; present position, 6/03
Manufacturing

Steven C. Mizell, 47 Executive Vice President, 2004 Senior Vice President and Chief Corporate Resources Officer — Advance PCS,
Human Resources 8/01-3/04; Senior Vice President, Human Resources — Monsanto Company, 4/04-8/07;

present position, 8/07

Cheryl P. Morley, 53 Senior Vice President, 2000 President, Animal Agricultural Group — Monsanto Company, 8/00-6/03; present
Corporate Strategy position, 6/03

Robert A. Paley, 59 Vice President and 2002 Assistant Treasurer — Monsanto Company, 2000-2002; present position, 9/02
Treasurer

Nicole M. Ringenberg, 46 Vice President, Finance & 2007 General Auditor — Monsanto Company, 06/01-07/03; International Finance Lead —
Operations, Global Monsanto Company, 07/03-07/04; Asia Pacific Business Lead — Monsanto Company,
Commercial 08/04-12/06; Vice President, Finance — Monsanto Company, 1/07-10/07; present

position, 10/07

David F. Snively, 53 Senior Vice President, 2006 Associate General Counsel, Litigation — Monsanto Company, 2000-2004; Deputy
Secretary and General General Counsel, Core Functions — Monsanto Company, 2004-9/06; present
Counsel position, 9/06

Gerald A. Steiner, 47 Executive Vice President, 2001 Vice President, Strategy — Monsanto Company, 2001-6/03; present position, 6/03
Commercial Acceptance

* Prior to Sept. 1, 2000, the businesses of the current Monsanto Company were the agricultural division of Pharmacia Corporation.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information appearing under the following headings of the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference: ‘‘Compensation of
Directors;’’ ‘‘Executive Compensation — Compensation Discussion and Analysis;’’ ‘‘Report of the People and Compensation Committee;’’
‘‘Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation;’’ ‘‘Summary Compensation Table and Narrative Disclosure’’ including
associated compensation tables, ‘‘— 2007 Grants of Plan-Based Awards,’’ ‘‘— 2007 Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End,’’
‘‘— 2007 Option Exercises and Stock Vested,’’ ‘‘— 2007 Pension Benefits Table,’’ ‘‘— 2007 Non-qualified Deferred Compensation,’’ and
‘‘— Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change of Control.’’

The information contained in ‘‘Report of the People and Compensation Committee’’ shall not be deemed to be ‘‘filed’’ with the
Securities and Exchange Commission or subject to the liabilities of the Exchange Act, except to the extent that the company specifically
incorporates such information into a document filed under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 

Information appearing in the Proxy Statement under the heading ‘‘Stock Ownership of Management and Certain Beneficial Owners’’ is
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE 

Information appearing in the Proxy Statement under the heading ‘‘Certain Relationships and Related Person Transactions’’ and the last three
paragraphs of ‘‘Corporate Governance’’ are incorporated herein by reference.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

We currently have three compensation plans under which our equity securities are authorized for issuance to employees or nonemployee
directors: (i) the Monsanto Company Long-Term Incentive Plan (which we refer to as the ‘‘2000 Amended Long-Term Incentive Plan’’),
(ii) the Monsanto Company 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan (which we refer to as the ‘‘2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan’’), and (iii) the
Monsanto Broad-Based Stock Option Plan (which we refer to as the ‘‘Broad-Based Plan’’). Each of the plans has been approved by our
shareowners. Equity-based compensation awards under the Directors’ Plan have been granted under the 2000 Amended Long-Term
Incentive Plan as and when provided for under the Directors’ Plan.
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The following table shows for these plans as a group the number of shares of common stock to be issued upon exercise of options
outstanding at Aug. 31, 2007, the weighted average exercise price of those options, and the number of shares of common stock remaining
available for future issuance at Aug. 31, 2007, excluding shares to be issued upon exercise of outstanding options.

Equity Compensation Plan Table

Number of securities Weighted-average Number of securities remaining
to be issued upon exercise price of available for future issuance

exercise of outstanding outstanding under equity compensation plans
options, warrants options, warrants (excluding securities to be

Plan category and rights and rights(2) issued upon exercise)(1)(3)

Equity compensation plans approved by security holders(1) 24,353,955 $23.27 24,645,772

Total 24,353,955 $23.27 24,645,772

(1) At Aug. 31, 2007, under the 2000 Amended Long-Term Incentive Plan, there was a total of 20,606,254 shares of common stock to be issued upon exercise of outstanding
options granted having a weighted average exercise price of $20.78 and 518,636 shares of common stock remaining available for future issuance (excluding shares to be
issued upon exercise of outstanding options). At Aug. 31, 2007, under the Broad-Based Stock Option Plan, there was a total of 574,600 shares of common stock to be
issued upon exercise of outstanding options having a weighted average exercise price of $16.41 and 34,856 shares of common stock remaining available for future issuance
(excluding shares issuable upon exercise of outstanding options). At Aug. 31, 2007, under the 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan, there was a total of 2,620,640 shares of
common stock to be issued upon exercise of outstanding options granted having a weighted average exercise price of $44.33 per share and 21,379,360 shares of common
stock remaining available for future issuance (excluding shares to be issued upon exercise of outstanding options). As of Aug. 31, 2007, 265,941 shares of deferred stock
and 286,520 shares of unvested restricted stock units were issued.

(2) This calculation does not take into account awards of deferred stock or restricted stock units.
(3) Our Employee Stock Purchase Plan allows certain of our employees in the United States, Canada and Singapore (excluding executive officers and directors) to borrow up to

$10,000 from the company to purchase shares of Monsanto stock at the fair market value of the stock on the date of the purchase, and repay the borrowed funds, without
interest, through payroll deductions over 40 months. While there is no fixed limit on the number of shares available under the plan, all shares are purchased on the open
market. The plan prohibits a participant from having loan advances for more than $10,000 in total or for more than three separate purchases of stock outstanding at one
time. Amounts relating to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan are not reflected in the above table. As of Aug. 31, 2007, 2,712,920 shares of our common stock remain
available for purchase by employees under the plan and 287 employees were participating in the plan. This plan has been approved by our shareowners.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES 

Information regarding fees paid to our independent registered public accounting firm and approval of services by our audit and
finance committee that appears in the Proxy Statement under the heading ‘‘Ratification of Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm (Proxy Item No. 2)’’ is incorporated herein by reference.

93



MONSANTO COMPANY 2007 FORM 10-K

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) Documents filed as part of this Report:

(1) The following financial statements appearing in Item 8: ‘‘Statements of Consolidated Operations;’’ ‘‘Statements of
Consolidated Financial Position;’’ ‘‘Statements of Consolidated Cash Flows;’’ ‘‘Statements of Consolidated Shareowners’
Equity;’’ and ‘‘Statements of Consolidated Comprehensive Income.’’

(2) Exhibits: The list of exhibits in the Exhibit Index to this Report is incorporated herein by reference. The exhibits will be filed
with the SEC but will not be included in the printed version of the Annual Report to Shareowners.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this
Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

MONSANTO COMPANY

(Registrant)

By: /s/ RICHARD B. CLARK

Richard B. Clark
Vice President and Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)

Date: Oct. 26, 2007

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ FRANK V. ATLEE III Director Oct. 26, 2007
(Frank V. AtLee III)

/s/ JOHN W. BACHMANN Director Oct. 26, 2007
(John W. Bachmann)

/s/ HUGH GRANT Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Oct. 26, 2007
Officer, Director (Principal Executive Officer)(Hugh Grant)

Director
(Arthur H. Harper)

/s/ GWENDOLYN S. KING Director Oct. 26, 2007
(Gwendolyn S. King)

/s/ SHARON R. LONG Director Oct. 26, 2007
(Sharon R. Long)

/s/ C. STEVEN MCMILLAN Director Oct. 26, 2007
(C. Steven McMillan)

/s/ WILLIAM U. PARFET Director Oct. 26, 2007
(William U. Parfet)

/s/ GEORGE POSTE Director Oct. 26, 2007
(George Poste)

/s/ ROBERT J. STEVENS Director Oct. 26, 2007
(Robert J. Stevens)

/s/ TERRELL K. CREWS Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Oct. 26, 2007
Officer (Principal Financial Officer)(Terrell K. Crews)

/s/ RICHARD B. CLARK Vice President and Controller Oct. 26, 2007
(Principal Accounting Officer)(Richard B. Clark)
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EXHIBIT INDEX
These Exhibits are numbered in accordance with the Exhibit Table of Item 601 of Regulation S-K.

Exhibit Exhibit
No. Description No. Description

2 1. Separation Agreement, dated as of Sept. 1, 2000, between the 5. Corporate Agreement, dated Sept. 1, 2000, between the company
company and Pharmacia (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of and Pharmacia (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 of
Amendment No. 2 to Registration Statement on Form S-1, filed Amendment No. 2 to Registration Statement on Form S-1, filed
Sept. 22, 2000, File No. 333-36956).* Sept. 22, 2000, File No. 333-36956).

2. First Amendment to Separation Agreement, dated July 1, 2002, 6. Distribution Agreement between Pharmacia and Solutia, as of
between Pharmacia and the company (incorporated by reference to Sept. 1, 1997 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the
Exhibit 99.2 of Form 8-K, filed July 30, 2002, File No. 1-16167).* Form 8-K filed by Pharmacia Corporation (f/k/a Monsanto Company)

on Sept. 16, 1997, File No. 1-2516).
3. Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of Aug. 14, 2006, by and

among Delta and Pine Land Company, Monsanto Sub, Inc. and the 6.1. Amendment to Distribution Agreement, dated July 1, 2002, among
company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of Form 8-K, filed Pharmacia, Solutia and the company (incorporated by reference to
Aug. 18, 2006, File No. 1-16167).* Exhibit 99.1 of Form 8-K, filed July 30, 2002, File No. 1-16167).

4. Stock Purchase Agreement by and between Bayer CropScience L.P. 7. Protocol Agreement, dated July 1, 2002, among Pharmacia, Solutia
and the company dated May 31, 2007, relating to the shares of and the company, relating to litigation in Alabama (incorporated by
Stoneville Pedigreed Seed Company (incorporated by reference to reference to Exhibit 99.3 of Form 8-K, filed July 30, 2002, File
Exhibit 2 of Form 10-Q for the period ended May 31, 2007, File No. 1-16167).
No. 1-16167).*

8. Protocol Agreement dated Nov. 15, 2002, among Pharmacia, Solutia
3 1. Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by and the company (the Pennsylvania Agreement) (incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 3.1 of Amendment No. 1 to Registration reference to Exhibit 99.1 of Form 8-K, filed Nov. 18, 2002, File
Statement on Form S-1, filed Aug. 30, 2000, File No. 333-36956). No. 1-16167).

2. Monsanto Company Bylaws, as amended effective June 15, 2007 8.1. Amendment to Protocol Agreement, dated March 3, 2003, among
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2(i) of Form 8-K, filed Pharmacia, Solutia and the company, amending the Pennsylvania
June 21, 2007, File No. 1-16167). Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8.1 of Form 10-K

for the period ended Dec. 31, 2002, File No. 1-16167).
4 1. Indenture, dated as of Aug. 1, 2002, between the company and The

Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee (incorporated by 8.2. Second Amendment to Protocol Agreement, dated Aug. 4, 2003,
reference to Exhibit 4.2 of Form 8-K, filed Aug. 31, 2005, File further amending the Pennsylvania Agreement (incorporated by
No. 1-16167). reference to Exhibit 10.8.2 of Form 10-Q for the period ended

June 30, 2003, File No. 1-16167).
2. Form of Registration Rights Agreement, dated Aug. 25, 2005,

relating to 51/2% Senior Notes due 2025 of the company 9. Agreement among Solutia, Pharmacia and the company, relating to
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of Form 8-K, filed settlement of certain litigation (incorporated by reference to
Aug. 31, 2005, File No. 1-16167). Exhibit 10.25 of Form 10-K for the transition period ended

Aug. 31, 2003, File No. 1-16167).
9 Omitted

10. Global Settlement Agreement, executed Sept. 9, 2003, in the
10 1. Tax Sharing Agreement, dated July 19, 2002, between the company

U.S. District Court for the Northern District of Alabama, and in the
and Pharmacia (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of

Circuit Court of Etowah County, Alabama (incorporated by reference
Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2002, File No. 1-16167).

to Exhibit 10.25 of Form 10-K for the transition period ended
2. Employee Benefits and Compensation Allocation Agreement Aug. 31, 2003, File No. 1-16167).

between Pharmacia and the company, dated as of Sept. 1, 2000
11. Letter Agreement between the company and Pharmacia, effective

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of Amendment No. 2 to
Aug. 13, 2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of

Registration Statement on Form S-1, filed Sept. 22, 2000, File
Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2002, File No. 1-16167).

No. 333-36956).
12. Creve Coeur Campus Lease between the company and Pharmacia,

2.1. Amendment to Employee Benefits and Compensation Allocation
dated Sept. 1, 2000 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 of

Agreement between Pharmacia and the company, dated
Form 10-K for the period ended Dec. 31, 2001, File No. 1-16167).

Sept. 1, 2000 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of Form 10-K
for the period ended Dec. 31, 2001, File No. 1-16167). 13. Chesterfield Village Campus Lease between Pharmacia and the

company, dated Sept. 1, 2000 (incorporated by reference to
3. Intellectual Property Transfer Agreement, dated Sept. 1, 2000,

Exhibit 10.23 of Form 10-K for the period ended Dec. 31, 2001, File
between the company and Pharmacia (incorporated by reference to

No. 1-16167).
Exhibit 10.8 of Amendment No. 2 to Registration Statement on
Form S-1, filed Sept. 22, 2000, File No. 333-36956). 15. Five-Year Credit Agreement, dated Feb. 28, 2007 (incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K, filed March 1, 2007, File
4. Services Agreement, dated Sept. 1, 2000, between the company and

No. 1-16167).
Pharmacia (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 of Amendment
No. 2 to Registration Statement on Form S-1, filed Sept. 22, 2000, 16. 364-Day Credit Agreement, dated as of March 11, 2005
File No. 333-36956). (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 of Form 8-K, filed

March 17, 2005, File No. 1-16167).
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Exhibit Exhibit
No. Description No. Description

17. 4200,000,000 Three-Year Credit Agreement, dated as of 19.12. Form of Terms and Conditions of Restricted Stock Unit Grant Under
July 13, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 of the Monsanto Company Long-Term Incentive Plan and the Monsanto
Form 8-K, filed July 19, 2006, File No. 1-16167). Company 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as approved by the People

and Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors on
18. Monsanto Non-Employee Director Equity Incentive Compensation

Aug. 6, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Form 8-K,
Plan, as amended and restated effective Sept. 1, 2007.†

filed August 10, 2007, File No. 1-16167).†
19. Monsanto Company Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended and

19.13. Form of Non-Employee Director Restricted Share Grant Terms and
restated, effective April 24, 2003 (formerly known as Monsanto 2000

Conditions Under the Monsanto Company Long-Term Incentive Plan,
Management Incentive Plan) (incorporated by reference to

as amended and restated (incorporated by reference to
Appendix C to Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement dated

Exhibit 10.16.2 of the Form 10-Q for the period ended May 31, 2004,
March 13, 2003, File No. 1-16167).†

File No. 1-16167).†
19.1. First Amendment, effective Jan. 29, 2004, to the Monsanto Company

20. Monsanto Company 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan, effective
Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended and restated (incorporated by

Jan. 20, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Form 8-K,
reference to Exhibit 10.16.1 of the Form 10-Q for the period ended

filed Jan. 26, 2005, File No. 1-16167).†
Feb. 29, 2004, File No. 1-16167).†

20.1. First Amendment, effective Oct. 23, 2006, to the Monsanto Company
19.2. Second Amendment, effective Oct. 23, 2006, to the Monsanto

2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan† (incorporated by reference to
Company Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended and restated

Exhibit 10.18.2 of the Form 10-K for the period ended Aug. 31, 2006,
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18.2 of the Form 10-K for the

File No. 1-16167).
period ended Aug. 31, 2006, File No. 1-16167).†

20.2 Second Amendment, effective June 14, 2007, to the Monsanto
19.3. Third Amendment, effective June 14, 2007, to the Monsanto

Company 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan.†
Company Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended and restated.†

20.3 Third Amendment, effective June 14, 2007, to the Monsanto
19.4. Fourth Amendment, effective June 14, 2007, to the Monsanto

Company 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan.†
Company Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended and restated.†

20.4. Form of Terms and Conditions of Restricted Stock Units Grant Under
19.5. Form of Terms and Conditions of Option Grant Under the Monsanto

the Monsanto Company 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as approved
Company Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended and restated, as of

by the People and Compensation Committee of the Board of
Oct. 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16.2 of Form 10-K

Directors by executed unanimous written consent on Oct. 11, 2007
for the period ended Aug. 31, 2004, File No. 1-16167).†

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Form 8-K, filed
19.6. Form of Terms and Conditions of Option Grant Under the Monsanto Oct. 17, 2007, File No. 1-16167).†

Company Long-Term Incentive Plan and the Monsanto Company
21. Amended and Restated Deferred Payment Plan, effective

2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as approved by the People and
Jan. 1, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 of Form 10-K

Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors on Aug. 6, 2007
for the period ended Aug. 31, 2004, File No. 1-16167).†

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Form 8-K, filed
Aug. 10, 2007, File No. 1-16167).† 22. Annual Incentive Program for Certain Executive Officers

(incorporated by reference to the description appearing under the
19.7. Form of Terms and Conditions of Restricted Stock Grant Under the

sub-heading ‘‘Approval of Performance Goal Under §162(m) of the
Monsanto Company Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by

Internal Revenue Code’’ on pages 12 through 13 of the Proxy
reference to Exhibit 10.17.3 of Form 10-K for the period ended

Statement dated Dec. 14, 2005).†
Aug. 31, 2005, File No. 1-16167).†

23. Fiscal Year 2007 Annual Incentive Plan Summary, as approved by the
19.8. Form of Terms and Conditions of Restricted Stock Unit Grant Under

People and Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors on
the Monsanto Company Long-Term Incentive Plan, as of October

Aug. 8, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 of Form 8-K,
2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18.5 of the Form 10-K

filed Aug. 11, 2006, File No. 1-16167).†
for the period ended Aug. 31, 2006, File No. 1-16167).†

23.1. Amendment to Fiscal Year 2007 Annual Incentive Plan Summary,
19.9. Form of Terms and Conditions of Restricted Stock Unit Grant Under

effective Oct. 24, 2006, as approved by the People and
the Monsanto Company Long-Term Incentive Plan, as of Oct. 2005

Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors on Oct. 23, 2006
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17.4 of Form 10-K for the

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23.1 of the Form 10-K for the
period ended Aug. 31, 2005, File No. 1-16167).†

period ended Aug. 31, 2006, File No. 1-16167).†
19.10. Form of Terms and Conditions of Restricted Stock Unit Grant Under

24. Fiscal Year 2008 Annual Incentive Plan Summary, as approved by the
the Monsanto Company Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended and

People and Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors on
restated, as of Oct. 2004 (incorporated by reference to

Aug. 6, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K,
Exhibit 10.16.4 of Form 10-K for the period ended Aug. 31, 2004, File

filed August 10, 2007, File No. 1-16167).†
No. 1-16167).†

25. Form of Change-of-Control Employment Security Agreement, as
19.11. Form of Terms and Conditions of Restricted Stock Unit Grant Under

approved by the Board of Directors on August 6, 2007, and
the Monsanto Company Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended and

applicable to Messrs. Grant, Casale, Crews and Fraley and certain
restated, as of Feb. 2004 (incorporated by reference to

other executive officers and members of management (incorporated
Exhibit 10.16.5 of Form 10-K for the period ended Aug. 31, 2004, File

by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K, filed Aug. 10, 2007, File
No. 1-16167).†

No. 1-16167).†
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Exhibit
No. Description

26. Monsanto Company Executive Health Management Program, as
amended and restated as of Oct. 23, 2006, (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.28 of the Form 10-K for the period ended
Aug. 31, 2006, File No. 1-16167).†

27. Amended and Restated Monsanto Company Recoupment Policy,
adopted by the Board of Directors on Oct. 23, 2007.†

28. Annual Cash Compensation of Named Executive Officers dated
October 2007.†

11 Omitted — see Item 8 — Note 19 — Earnings (Loss) per Share.

12 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.

13 Omitted

14 Omitted — Monsanto’s Code of Ethics for Chief Executive and Senior
Financial Officers is available on our Web site at www.monsanto.com.

16 Omitted

18 Omitted

21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

22 Omitted

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

24 Omitted

31 1. Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification (pursuant to Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, executed by Chief
Executive Officer).

2. Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification (pursuant to Section 302 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, executed by Chief Financial Officer).

32 Rule 13a-14(b) Certifications (pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, executed by the Chief Executive Officer and the
Chief Financial Officer).

* Schedules and similar attachments to this Agreement have been omitted pursuant
to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K. The registrant will furnish supplementally a
copy of any omitted schedule or similar attachment to the SEC upon request.

† Represents management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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SHArEownEr inForMATion

Dividend Policy
the declaration and payment of  
quarterly dividends is made at the 
discretion of Monsanto’s board of 
directors. the dividend is reviewed  
by the board quarterly.

transfer Agent and Registrar
to request or send information contact: 
Mellon investor services llC 
p.o. Box 3315 
south Hackensack, new Jersey 07606 
u.s.A.

telephone:  
(888) 725-9529  
toll free within the united states  
and Canada 

(201) 680-6578  
outside the united states and Canada

telephone for the hearing impaired:  
(800) 231-5469 
toll free within the united states  
and Canada

(201) 680-6610 
outside the united states and Canada

on the Internet: if you are a registered 
shareowner, you can access your  
Monsanto account online by using  
the investor serviceDirect feature  
at Mellon investor services. Go to 
https://vault.melloninvestor.com/isd/.

Direct stock Purchase Plan
the investor services program allows 
shareowners to reinvest dividends in 
Monsanto Company common stock 
automatically. shareowners can also 
purchase common shares through an 
optional cash investment feature.  
�or more information on the program, 
contact Mellon investor services (at the 
address above).

Electronic Delivery and  
Proxy Voting
Monsanto offers its shareowners the 
opportunity to receive proxy statements, 
annual reports, prospectuses, and other 
shareowner materials electronically 
through the internet, instead of by mail.

if you are a registered shareowner,  
you can start electronic delivery by  
(1) submitting your consent when you 
vote over the internet by accessing the 
Mellon investor services Web site at  
http://www.proxyvoting.com/mon,  
or (2) submitting your consent when you 
vote by telephone via Mellon investor 
services at 1-866-540-5760. in addition, 
you may see these materials on the 
internet at any time by accessing your 
Monsanto shareowner account online. 
Contact investor serviceDirect,  
a feature of Mellon investor services,  
at https://vault.melloninvestor.com/isd/.

if your shares are held in street name  
by a bank or broker you nominated,  
you should contact your bank or  
broker if you would like to receive 
materials electronically. 

Certifications
the most recent certifications by our 
Chief executive and Chief �inancial 
officers pursuant to section 302 of  
the sarbanes-oxley Act of 2002 are  
filed as exhibits to our �orm 10-K.  
We have also filed with the new York 
stock exchange the most recent Annual 
Ceo Certification, as required by the 
new York stock exchange.

Additional shareowner Information 
shareowner, financial, and other 
information about Monsanto is available 
to you free of charge from several 
sources throughout the year. these 
materials include quarterly earnings 
statements, significant news releases, 
and �orms 10-K, 10-Q, and 8-K, which  
are filed with the u.s. securities and 
exchange Commission.

on the Internet: You can find financial 
and other information, such as  
significant news releases, �orms 10-K,  
10-Q, and 8-K, and the text of this  
annual report, on the internet at  
http://www.monsanto.com.

by Writing: You can also request  
these materials by writing to: 
Monsanto Company — Materialogic 
800 north lindbergh Boulevard 
st. louis, Missouri 63167, u.s.A.

Annual Meeting
the annual meeting of Monsanto  
shareowners will be held at 1:30 p.m.  
on Wednesday, Jan. 16, 2008, in  
K Building of the company’s offices  
at 800 north lindbergh Boulevard,  
st. louis, Missouri. A formal notice  
of the meeting and a proxy statement 
are sent to each shareowner.

  Monsanto’s stock is traded 
principally on the new York stock 
exchange. our symbol is Mon.  

   
   

    the cover and narrative section  
of this annual report are printed  
on opus dull cover and matte text, 
which contain 10% post-consumer 
content, and is �sC certified.  
the financial section is printed  
on Cascades Rolland text which 
contains 30% post-consumer 
content and is not �sC certified.

Monsanto was incorporated in 2000 as a subsidiary of pharmacia Corporation and 
includes the operations, assets and liabilities that were previously the agricultural 
business of pharmacia. With respect to the time period prior to sept. 1, 2000, 
references to Monsanto in this annual report also refer to the agricultural business 
of pharmacia. 

pesticides registered by the u.s. environmental protection Agency will not cause 
unreasonable adverse effects to man or the environment when used in accordance 
with label directions.

trademarks and service marks owned by Monsanto and its subsidiaries are 
indicated by special type throughout this publication. All other trademarks are  
the property of their respective owners.

unless otherwise indicated by the context, references to Roundup agricultural 
herbicides products in this report mean Roundup branded herbicides containing  
the single active ingredient glyphosate; all such references exclude  
lawn-and-garden products.

investor serviceDirect is a registered service mark of Mellon investor services.

extrax is a trademark of Renessen, llC.  

© 2007 Monsanto Company 
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Monsanto 2007 annual report

GrowinG

protecting yield is key as farmers work to meet our world’s growing food, 
feed, fiber, and fuel needs. Monsanto’s research helps farmers get more out 
of each seed, enabling them to do more with less. Hundreds of thousands 
of farmers throughout the world, including those below, are increasingly 
using Monsanto’s innovative products to increase their on-farm yields and to 
realize more value with each harvest. this growing adoption has contributed 
to a fourth consecutive year of record sales for our business allowing us to, 
in turn, deliver value to our shareowners.     

Monsanto CoMpany

800 north lindbergh Boulevard 
St. louis, Missouri 63167, u.S.a.

 
 
 
www.monsanto.com 

DeliverinG essential tools  
to Support GloBal aGriculture 

David wheeler 
corn    united StateS

pascal Metge 
corn    france

vitthal patil 
cotton    india

Hans van rensburg 
corn    SoutH africa

David Coulton 
cotton    auStralia

João riceto Baggio 
Soybeans    Brazil
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